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Highlights =

OVERVIEW

China East Education Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are a leading provider in
the vocational training education in China. Our business focuses
on providing innovative vocational training education to students
to increase their employability in the ever-changing employment
market, as well as supporting China’s evolving workforce
requirements driven by its sustained economic growth, urbanization
and industrial upgrade.

Our vocational training education mainly covers four industry
sectors, namely, culinary arts, information technology and internet
technology, auto services as well as fashion and beauty. We
serve these four industry sectors under seven renowned school
brands, namely New East Culinary Education, Cuisine Academy,
Omick Education of Western Cuisine and Pastry, Xinhua Internet
Technology Education, Wisezone Data Technology Education,
Wontone Automotive Education and On-mind Fashion and Beauty
Education. As of 31 December 2024, we operated 233 schools
and centers with 146,294 average number of students enrolled and
customers registered for the year ended 31 December 2024. Our
comprehensive nationwide school network covers almost all of the
provinces in mainland China and Hong Kong.
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Our brands

SEE T mh

o

Culinary 5
Arts

BeEasil

Comprehensive cuisine training programs Customized catering experience centers
including eight Chinese regional cuisines and providing customized catering experience
western culinary skills services to customers who are interested in
2HEHZEIER2 cooking or who plan to establish their own
R E AR NI A R AR businesses in the catering industry

FANFTEZ LRRRR AR 0
AUEEREMA AR ERTERTACH
DEEF RN TR E BRI

'ﬁ 58,1331

Western
Cuisine and
Pastry

© P
Cnigt 2 MR WISEZONE /525"
High-quality western style catering education Information technology and internet technology training Data technology education
providing specialized culinary training providing a wide range of information technology and internet cultivating professional data
=0 © s g e technology related courses technology engineers
e & B BB DTA St
U " HR— RO BT & B AR AT AR R SR A2 EREEBERIN 20
1 5086 f ssser
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w ABiSENES HE BEFEHEWHE

S5 WONTONE AUTOMOTIVE EDUCATION. on-mind fashion & beauty education
Auto-related skills practical training Fashion and beauty skills training
focusing on providing practical training on focusing on cultivating high skills
auto repair skills and other auto services fashion and beauty professionals

AR E By i 55 2 AR RIS DI
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Average number of students enrolledﬁcustomers registered for the year ended 31 December 2024
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The following chart sets forth the information of our seven school
brands as of 31 December 2024:

Segments
pix:

Culinary Arts

REEA

Western Cuisine and Pastry

RHEE

Information Technology and
Internet Technology
BRI R BRI

Auto Services

RERK
Fashion and Beauty
RmEE

TOTAL

a4t

TE#E#IEZE2024F12 A31 BRI EZ2
RREEER

Average number of
students enrolled/

customers
No. of schools/  registered for the
centers in year ended
operation as of 31 December 2024
Brands 31 December 2024 Hzo0uE
m 120245 12318
12A318 LEE
Eghm P AR/
28/4088 EFEMAY
New East and Cuising - N SRS 2 58,133
Academy " REEAEI
WA RERER
O:T\]I/Ci Omic /é 36 5,036
YN BRSS
Xinhua Interet and %, P 56 38,827
. 2 VDA E \yiEzoNs sEmm
Wisezone
MESHRERER
Wontone w ABSENS 4 39,965
T‘%—ﬁ WONTONE AUTOMOTIVE EDUCATION
On-mind D@ REFHAEEIHE 8 4,333
233 146,294
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We established Anhui Xinhua Education to consolidate all
our schools under a single entity.

PRI T REFERE BROMERRESRE—KE -

The number of our schools in operation reached 27.
Anhui Xinhua Compuiter institute obtained the ISO 9001:
2000 quality management system certification. Langjie
Technology was recognizad as a high and new
technology enterprise by the Beijing Municipal Science &
Technology Commission for a period of two years.
AR BRRYEED 27 B - ZEMTEEHEEBRE
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The number of our schools in operation reached 40.
Anhui Xinhua Computer Institute was appointed by the
Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security of the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) (the “Ministry of
Human Resources and Social Security”) to organize
the “Developing Talent with New Skills for China New
Project” and “Four New Talent Development Plan”.
BEMA PR EET 40 A - KR ESHEEBRR
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The number of our schools in operation reached 71, and
we expanded our business to Hong Kong.

EETNPBREEED 71 THEBERESE -

The number of our schools in operation reached 126. We
founded Cuisine Academy to provide customized
catering experience to customers who are interested in
cooking or plan to establish their own businesses in the
catering industry.
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As of 31 December 2020, we operated 206 schools in
mainland China and Hong Kong, and have successfully
issued the first batch of certificates of third-party
evaluation certification institutions for vocational skill
levels in China.

HBE2020F 12 A 31 B - RMEETENBREEE
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As of 31 December 2022, the number of our schools and
centers in operation reached 244 including 77 schools
under New East Culinary Education, 46 schools under
Omick Education of Western Cuisine and Pastry, 20
centers under Cuisine Academy, 38 schools under
Xinhua Internet Technology Education, 21 schools under
Wisezone Data Technology Education, 39 schools under
Wontone Automotive Education and 3 schools under
On-mind Fashion and Beauty Education.
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As of 31 December 2024, the number of our schools and
centers in operation reached 233 including 75 schools
under New East Culinary Education, 17 centers under
Cuisine Academy, 36 schools under Omick Education of
Western Cuisine and Pastry, 38 schools under Xinhua
Internet Technology Education, 18 schools under
Wisezone Data Technology Education, 41 schools under
Wontone Automotive Education and 8 schools under
On-mind Fashion and Beauty Education.

HE 2024 F 12 A 31 B EERNBRETOHEE
B 233 fff + BIERR I REEHE FEE 75 B - XK
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We were established in Hefei, Anhui Province.

BMERRZHE AR -

We started to offer automobile repair and
maintenance training programs under our newly
established Wontone Automotive Education
brand.
RAFIATERT R 0 B T8 @A TR
FREEEEIRZ

Wontone Automotive Education was awarded
“National Model Vocational Training Group in
Automobile Industry” by China Association of
Automobile Culture and China Auto Talent
Training Project Committee.

BmEHE TE AL R R T
BaiA [2ETETER
MR

New East Culinary Education was elected as a
standing council member of the China
Hospitality Association in the first election of the
fourth council meeting of the China Hospitality
Association.

MR THBEATRREBEFNEZR®
BAE - OEEPRTATEREREEEE
B®KE -

The number of our schools in operation reached
90. We founded Omick Education of Western
Cusine and Pastry to offer high-quality
western-style catering education.
BERRBRHEIEED 90 AT - MIBUREER
PEHE  RHELREHE -

In June 2019, the Company was listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). As of 31
December 2019, the number of our schools in
operation reached 177.

2019 F 6 A+ ARREBREBARSIER
AA) ([BRFT]) £ - BZE 2019412 A
31 H - BETHRRBEER 177 ff

As of 31 December 2021, the number of our
schools and centers in operation reached 231
including 72 schools under New East Culinary
Education, 45 schools under Omick Education
of Western Cuisine and Pastry, 20 centers under
Cuisine Academy, 33 schools under Xinhua
Internet Technology Education, 22 schools
under Wisezone Data Technology Education, 38
schools under Wontone Automotive Education
and 1 school under On-mind Fashion and
Beauty Education.

HE 2021512 A31 B - EBERNBREF
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72 PR BORF FEA BSOS PR 45 TR
B~ EIREBBTATEE 20 B0 - HESIBAE
¥ 33 PR - ZIEEIR DT AA B FREE
22 FTERR - BB T 38 PR K
BWEEEERE A 1 TR

As of 31 December 2023, the number of our
schools and centers in operation reached 245
including 76 schools under New East Culinary
Education, 46 schools under Omick Education
of Western Cuisine and Pastry, 18 centers under
Cuisine Academy, 39 schools under Xinhua
Internet Technology Education, 20 schools
under Wisezone Data Technology Education, 41
schools under Wontone Automotive Education
and 5 schools under On-mind Fashion and
Beauty Education.

HZE2023F 12 A31 5 - BEFHBREHR
DERE R 245 fiT - BIETR ZEAHE RS
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY BT E
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE
2024 2023
20244 20234
(RMB million) (RMB million)
(ANE¥BEERT) (AREBFET
Revenue WA 4,116 3,979
Gross profit EF 2,115 1,908
Profit before taxation FRADEF| 654 368
Net profit for the year FRLLH 513 273
Adjusted net profit® LR EE A ) 525 281
Adjusted EBITDA® B S BATE KB R T 1,376 1,136
As at
i
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
20245 2023%
12A831H 12A31H
(RMB million) (RMB million)
(AREEEBT) (ARBEED)
Net assets BEFE 5,749 5,608
Total assets BEE 9,484 9,291

Adjusted net profit was derived from the net profit for the year
excluding the effect of (i) non-cash share-based payment expenses;
and (ii) the net foreign exchange gains. This is not Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS(s)”) measure. For details,
please refer to the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis — Financial Review — Adjusted Net Profit and adjusted
EBITDA” in this report.

Adjusted EBITDA was derived from the adjusted net profit for the
year excluding finance costs, income tax expenses, and depreciation
expenses. This is not HKFRSs measure. For details, please refer
to the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis —
Financial Review — Adjusted Net Profit and Adjusted EBITDA” in this
report.
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Chairman’s Statement XE#H%E

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of China East
Education Holdings Limited, | hereby present the annual report of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024.

OVERVIEW

In 2024, in the face of the changing external environment and
intensive market competition, all employees of the Group were
united and strived to advance, deeply adhered to the development
strategy of “Two eliminations and three growth”, took improved
efficiency as the core of operation, and improved quality as the very
focus of management. All decision-makings and deployments were
effectively implemented, with the overall operation progressing
steadily in a positive direction.

REVIEW OF RESULTS

1. For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s revenue
from the main business was RMB4,116 million, representing
a year-on-year increase of 3.5% as compared to year 2023.
The net profit for the year was RMB513 million, representing
a year-on-year increase of 88.0% as compared to year 2023;
the adjusted net profit for the year was RMB525 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 86.6% as compared
to year 2023. The number of new students enrolled was
143,441, representing a year-on-year decrease of 6.2% as
compared to year 2023.

2. The average number of students enrolled nationwide in 2024
was 146,294. There were three new fashion and beauty
schools, including Xi’an On-mind, which recruited students
and commenced operation, bringing the total number of
institutions nationwide to 233, and four fashion and beauty
schools, such as Shenyang On-mind, were at the preparation
stage.

EMEELIR

RAERERFPERIHBEEBRABRARE
T2 ([EEE))  REALEEBHE20247F
12 A1 HEERE -

Bt

20244 - EH T ET 2R IMNEBIRIBATBIRY
MmiEES  AEEZRETER L
BEREE RABRIMBE BRI
RERS - IR ARIERRE TENRK
O BRAREEREREIENEL &
HRRBESIBNAT  BREERET
[Al4F ©

RELCE

1+ HZE2024F12A31HIEFE =%
WABAREA116EETT @ 82023
FRILLEMS.5%  FRAF A A
RH¥513E 8T » W2023F A5
nes.0% : FRLHBMFAAR
#5255 E T B20234F A L1 AN
86.6% : FTBHEAE143,441 N + &
2023 AL 6.2% °

2. 2024%F - 2EFHERE146,294
UNEE (b Tik-d eSS o ESES
IRBEBEE  2ERRABEE233
BT WHEGESFSAME M EE
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Chairman’s Statement XE#H%E

The Group has invested and built vocational education
industrial parks (the “Vocational Education Industrial
Parks”) in five regions including Anhui, Sichuan, Shandong,
Guizhou and Henan. The Phase Ill of the Vocational
Education Industrial Park in Shandong and the Vocational
Education Industrial Park in Jiangsu have fully commenced
construction and are expected to be delivered to schools for
utilisation by end of year 2025. After the completion of all the
six regional Vocational Education Industrial Parks, more than
120,000 teachers and students can be accommodated.

Anhui Wontone Senior Technical School was successfully
upgraded to Anhui Wontone Technician College, becoming
the first technician college of the Group. In January 2025, the
Group’s launch its first project of investment and acquisition,
and successfully acquired Shanxi Metallurgical Technician
College, which has 68 years of schooling history.

In 2024, the schools under the Group won 84 first-tier
prizes, 116 second-tier prizes and 100 third-tier prizes in
nationwide competitions such as The Second National
Rural Revitalization Vocational Skills Competition, Chinese
Cuisine Cooking Championship, the Berlin International
Digital Talents Innovation Skills Competition of Germany and
the Fourth National New Energy Vehicle Key Technology
Skills Competition. Anhui Wontone was recognised as the
nationwide training base for highly skilled talents. Ningxia
New East and Chengdu On-mind were recognised as the
“training bases in China for The 47th World Skills Competition
— Sugar Art/Pastry Production and Hairdressing categories”.
12 schools were selected as training bases at provincial level
for highly skilled talents and training bases at provincial level
for international competitions. Anhui New East successfully
hosted the finals of the National Feminine Domestic Service
Vocational Skills Competition and won the award for its
special contributions.

China East Education Holdings Limited «" FEIRAHBERER QA
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Chairman’s Statement XE#H%E

LOOKING AHEAD

We will accelerate the development of schools in the
Vocational Education Industrial Parks, the construction
of Phase Il of the Vocational Education Industrial Park in
Jiangsu and the Vocational Education Industrial Park in
Shandong, and ensure a high standard of timely delivery.
Schools of the Vocational Education Industrial Parks in
Shandong, Sichuan, Henan and Guizhou will make full use of
high-quality resources to endeavour to expand the number
of students. We will increase resources and investment to
support Anhui Wontone Technician College and Shanxi
Metallurgical Technician College to build the best-of-the-
region and nationally renowned technician college; We will
focus on supporting Chengdu, Guiyang and Henan regional
schools to apply for the status of technician colleges and
further improve the level of schooling. We will actively respond
to the national call of “One Belt, One Road”, accelerate the
“vocational education abroad”, export its operation model,
professional standards, teaching resources to its overseas
counterparts, and explore additional new businesses. We
will focus on the employment and entrepreneurship needs
of adults, college students, and students from technical
colleges, higher vocational schools, and secondary vocational
schools, develop high-quality special majors, accelerate
the development of government procurement projects, and
expand the revenue scale of short-term trainings for adults.

We will strengthen our teachers through “internal training and
external introduction”, improve the introduction standards
of teachers, and increase our efforts in the introduction of
highly skilled professional teachers. We will develop a number
of professional clusters closely connected with the regional
industrial chain by conducting research and development
of advanced manufacturing, artificial intelligence, modern
catering, grand health and other fields of new majors
based on local conditions, in order to serve the needs of
regional economic development. We will implement the
policy of giving priority to employment, take the initiative to
match the talents for the needs of enterprises, improve the
competitiveness of students in employment, and ensure high-
quality employments for students.

REARK

IREEHERBEFAER - TERBH
EXE - WRBHEXE-HHEAZ
R BRRHRREIN - IR - @
N - EMNBHREXERRER
DHREEER = HERERER
e BMAERRA  XHLEER
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H&e - 2EMBNREMESER - 2E
OB - B - R R Rk
REBHKENELT - E— RS M BE
R EBEEBER—H—KI%A
IR 2K B HES
B BXRIEE - HBER - KRE
BATERE - BERA ~ RBAE - =R
ERERET R PRELEFEE
% INRBUTREEIE B R - BAK
INSE- e

[AIESNE| ZREDE (D - 2= 3RAD
SIERRE - MRS HREEE RIS E
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Chairman’s Statement XE#H%E

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude
to the parents of our students, the shareholders, and all sectors
of society for their trust and support and to all employees and the
management teams for their contribution and dedication. With full
confidence in the future, we will continue to improve schooling
quality, assume social responsibility and increase operating
benefits with the goal of cultivating more high-quality skilled talents
for the society and industry sectors and create greater value for
shareholders.

China East Education Holdings Limited
Wu Wei
Chairman of the Board
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 E 1w 5 47

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

We have a leading position in vocational training education segment
in China. Moreover, we also have a leading position in China in
providing vocational training education in three segments, namely,
culinary arts, information technology and internet technology, as
well as auto services. Headquartered in Hefei, Anhui province,
we have established a nationwide school network consisting of
233 schools and centers in operation as of 31 December 2024,
covering almost all of the provinces in mainland China and Hong
Kong. We operate our business and establish our schools and
centers under seven renowned school brands, namely, New
East Culinary Education, Cuisine Academy, Omick Education of
Western Cuisine and Pastry, Xinhua Internet Technology Education,
Wisezone Data Technology Education, Wontone Automotive
Education and On-mind Fashion and Beauty Education.

We are a pioneer in providing vocational training education in China
in culinary arts, information technology and internet technology,
as well as auto services. These industry sectors are areas in
China where there is significant unmet demand for vocational
training education to bridge the supply and demand gap between
employers and students. Our primary goal is to provide students
with solid knowledge and practical skills in their chosen profession
that are tailored to the needs of employers with a view to increasing
graduates’ employability and their average compensation levels.

OUR BUSINESS SEGMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2024, in order to streamline
the operations of the Group, the Group reorganised its segments
by integrating the business operations of Cuisine Academy into
New East Culinary Education under the Culinary Arts segment,
Omick Education of Western Cuisine and Pastry is reclassified
as the Western Cuisine and Pastry segment and integrating the
business operations of Wisezone Data Technology Education into
Xinhua Internet Technology Education under the Information and
Technology and Internet Technology segment. As a result, the
segments and brands of the Group are reorganised as follows:

KL

BMEF BB EREHRERBAERE
ST o BN - FRPE R AR - EER
MR EE AR AR TERS = K1T%E
ATIRENBERERBERE - BERERN
REIESEMA - RPIWALRELRES
B REMEEM2E - B E 2024 F
12 831 A BMEEFREANMARIBHE
M RBBEL 233 FTEREF L o A
tRMEBERDEEVREFZEHE - =
RER - BOKAAIEEHE - ETSH
A - EEERDT ATEIEN - B@A
BHEMHERHHNEEHE) KEEBR
BB LA

PR EERAMT ~ {5 BBl Ko BB A8 AT DA B
AERB T E - BAFIAT BEIR MR E A
HEMETE  ZFTEELR/TEER
ERRHEFERAFTREBREASGE
MERAL  SERMAEIEBLEZ BN
HBRO - ZANEZEERERRBERM
FREEXMERENBMERREE U6
BINFR MRS FELENORER
A F B F o

E 3 Sl

REZE2024F12A31BIEFE - AREEA
SEEE AEEYETHHETES
HERBROEBLEFATERMD S
THHRAFZAHE - BECRTRAEEE
HEEFHEARYEES T - WHBERE
BRDTAA B EMMEBEEHFAE
BEM R BB TOMES KK
B oAt AEBO MR LEEHELOT -
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Segments and Brands
DR

CULINARY ARTS
RELRAM

New East Culinary Education
(“New East”)

R REHE
([#=R7A])

Cuisine Academy

e

WESTERN CUISINE AND
PASTRY
[P Tk

Omick Education of Western
Cuisine and Pastry (“Omick”)

BOKSTHEHE
([&KHF])

No. of
schools/
centers

2158
OB E

75

75

17

17

36

36

Description

#

=

New East Culinary Education has been providing comprehensive
culinary training programs to students who pursue a career in
becoming professional chefs. We teach our students the cooking
traditions and practices of diversified Chinese cuisines, including the
well-known and widely recognized eight regional cuisines in China,
supported by an integration of classic Chinese and Western culinary
skills. Each of our schools under New East Culinary Education offers
various culinary training programs with different program lengths to
meet students’ differentiated learning focuses and demands.

MR ATHHE —BERERKNAEEFMNSEERM S E R EH
AR o R BETHPBEEGEERRE ZBIEE (BREPEA
ERZEZRATN KT HEFR) ARAER PTG Z AL -
R MBI TS AERIEH AR RIZS R SETHAREIIR
B UmE2ETRNSEBEHMFENR -

Cuisine Academy has been providing customized catering experience
services to customers who are interested in cooking or who plan
to establish their own businesses in the catering industry. Cuisine
Academy primarily providing customers with customized catering
experience programs.

ERBH AU T HEREBRSGTENERTERYACHRANER
REMAGTRZERBRY - ERBREEIERSTPREMLAGTIRZ
FERBERRIE ©

Omick Education of Western Cuisine and Pastry offers high-quality
western style catering education, which is committed to providing
specialized culinary training to students with a focus on western
pastry and western cuisines. We offer a variety of courses, including
baking, desserts, western cuisines, bartending, and barista training.
BORTARAZHERESEEANERKE IR ARBERH
NABMAE R TN EEZHEN - HMREHSERE - 8FEH
1E - EHEL - TRE - FB RINBEEREFI -

China East Education Holdings Limited «" FEIRAHBERER QA
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Segments and Brands

2 &P B2 fE

INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY AND
INTERNET TECHNOLOGY

15 BBl R B B AR B ol

Xinhua Internet Technology
Education
(“Xinhua Internet”)

HEBRHE
(S

Wisezone Data
Technology Education
(“Wisezone”)

EEBERDTATE
([#EERD

SIELH

AUTO SERVICES
R

Wontone Automotive Education
(“Wontone”)

BBAEHE
(8|l

FASHION AND BEAUTY
IOES S

On-mind Fashion and Beauty
Education (“On-mind”)

B2 MEEHE
(&8 ))

No. of
schools/
centers

2158

ROEE

38

38

18

18

41

41

EEEN WA

Description

P

Xinhua Internet Technology Education provides information
technology and internet technology-related training programs.
We provide a wide range of information technology and internet
technology-related training to students with different course lengths.

BT B IR GRS R R T BT R E - R
R4 — 5112 0 T B E BB IRRR A+ 4R IR
BESR

Wisezone Data Technology Education primarily provides short-
term programs to junior college and university students who have
possessed the basic knowledge and seek to further develop
relevant practical skills. By cooperating with a number of technology
enterprises and higher education institutions, we train professional
data technology engineers.

EEERDTAA FIEM T ERE ZEER MBI S KE—F1RA
HABEBRRAENAEERKRBERMAEIRE - BAES R
ENSSEHERBAE  RIESEXBIBRMIEM -

Wontone Automotive Education focuses on providing hands-on auto
repair skill training as well as practical training of other auto services,
such as automobile commerce.

BETEHE D IMNMEMTER R A R TEABEEM)TER
BNE -

On-mind Fashion and Beauty Education focuses on cultivating high
skills fashion and beauty professionals.

e N EEABT LTINS SRR HEZEAL -

Annual Report 2024 " —Z Z[UFFIR
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SUMMARY OF OUR OPERATING DATA

The following table sets forth the number of new students
enrollments/new customers registered under each segment/brand

for the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023:

Segments and Brands

D IR

CULINARY ARTS
RELRAM
New East and Cuisine Academy

R RS

CULINARY ARTS
REEM

WESTERN CUISINE AND PASTRY

AHAE
Omick
BUKE

WESTERN CUISINE AND PASTRY

[ i

China East Education Holdings Limited «" FEIRAHBERER QA

New Students Enroliment®/
New Customers Registered®
Iz AR/
NEFEMAZR

Long-term

RERE
- One to less than two years
——FRERFUT
- Two to less than three years
—MERE=FUT
- Three years

—-=F

Short-term
KRR

Subtotal
Nt

Long-term
RERE
- One to less than two years

——FEMEUT

Short-term
KHIRE

Subtotal
/J\'E—|-

REBEHRR

TREIREE2024F 2 2023%F12 A31
AIEFERE DI,/ miEE n Bl A
RS ERPAMAR

Change
-]
Year ended 31 December Increase/
HZ12A31ALLEE (Decrease)
2024 2023
2024 2023%F  #in/ (H)
26,686 28,600 (6.7%)
5,015 2,234 124.5%
5,526 7,041 (21.5%)
16,145 19,325 (16.5%)
36,542 39,873 (8.4%)
63,228 68,473 (7.7%)
1,254 1,314 (4.6%)
12,198 13,127 (7.1%)
13,452 14,441 (6.8%)
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Segments and Brands

WK

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

AND INTERNET TECHNOLOGY

1= BB & BB i

Xinhua Internet and Wisezone
FESRREFER

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

AND INTERNET TECHNOLOGY

EERMK EMARMN

AUTO SERVICES
AERE
Wontone

= p)

AUTO SERVICES
RER

New Students Enroliment/
New Customers Registered®
R AR,/
FEFEMAZ

Long-term

RERE
- One to less than two years
——FUEMEFEUT
- Two to less than three years
—MERE=FUT
- Three years

-=F

Short-term
K HAGRIE

Subtotal
Nt

Long-term

RERE
- One to less than two years
——FRERFUT
- Two to less than three years
—MERLE=FUT
- Three years

—-=F

Short-term
KRR

Subtotal
et

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31ALFE

2024
20245

18,755

2,812

2,451

13,492

7,011

25,766

17,909

3,152

1,226

13,531

16,968

34,877

Annual Report 2024 " —Z - UFFiR

2023
20234

22,060

1,949

2,550

17,561

7,682

29,742

18,896

2,251

1,399

15,246

17,923

36,819

B2 AT

Change
-]
Increase/
(Decrease)

i,/ (H2)

(15.0%)
44.3%
(3.9%)

(23.2%)

(8.7%)

(13.4%)

(5.2%)
40.0%
(12.4%)

(11.2%)

(6.3%)

(5.3%)

17
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Segments and Brands

PBRmE

FASHION AND BEAUTY
EIEES S
On-mind

B2

FASHION AND BEAUTY

THE GROUP
AEHE

THE GROUP
A5HE

China East Education Holdings Limited «" FEIRAHBERER QA

New Students Enrollment®/
New Customers Registered®
FEI AR,/
FEFEMAE

Long-term

RERE
- One to less than two years
——SERERFUAT
- Two to less than three years
—MENE=FUT
- Three years

Short-term
RHERE

Subtotal
et

Long-term

RERRE
- One to less than two years
——FUEMFUAT
- Two to less than three years
—MERE=FUAT

- Three years

Short-term
KHIRIE

Total

2t

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2024 2023
20244 20234
3,759 1,728
2,022 630
50 33
1,687 1,065
2,359 1,678
6,118 3,406
68,363 72,598
14,255 8,378
9,253 11,023
44,855 53,197
75,078 80,283
143,441 152,881

i

Change
-]
Increase/
(Decrease)

i,/ (H2)

117.5%
221.0%
51.5%

58.4%

40.6%

79.6%

(5.8%)
70.1%
(16.1%)

(15.7%)

(6.5%)

(6.2%)
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Notes:

(1) New students enrollment represents the total number of students
newly enrolled at our operating schools in a certain period. We use
new students enroliment to reflect our ability of student recruitment

and the popularity of our programs.

(2)  Number of new customers registered represents the total number
of new customers attending our customized catering experience
programs of Cuisine Academy.

The following table sets forth the average number of students
enrolled and customers registered under each segment and brand

for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023:

Segments and Brands

P ER I

CULINARY ARTS
RERM

New East and Cuisine Academy

R RS

CULINARY ARTS
RETRAM

Average Number of
Students Enrolled®/
Customers Registered®?
T AR,/
EFEMAH®

Long-term

RERIE
- One to less than two years
——FUEMEUT
- Two to less than three years
—MERE=FUT
- Three years

—-=F

Short-term
REHIRE

Subtotal
/J\'ETI-

BRE -

(1) FEIIARIER R EHE RPN 2ERR
FEAAIR o RPIBHIEE I AR R BR
HABE2ENED RRIENZELRE
B

@ HEPEMABIEZIMERSELEAL AR R
SRR, AR -

TREFINE E202445 22023512 A31H
I FERED IR MBS D HFHEIA
REEFEMAL

Change
-]
Year ended 31 December Increase/
HE12A3ALEE (Decrease)
2024 2023
2024 2023%F  #in/ (H)
50,605 52,031 (2.7%)
3,597 2,098 71.4%
11,492 16,212 (29.1%)
35,516 33,721 5.3%
7,528 7,357 2.3%
58,133 59,388 (2.1%)

Annual Report 2024 " —Z - UFFiR
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Segments and Brands

PBRmE

WESTERN CUISINE AND PASTRY

BAHAE
Omick
BUKE

WESTERN CUISINE AND PASTRY

(i i

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

AND INTERNET TECHNOLOGY

1= BBl R BB R i

Xinhua Internet and Wisezone
HEBHREERR

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

AND INTERNET TECHNOLOGY

=R B R B AR

China East Education Holdings Limited «" FEIRAHBERER QA

Average Number of
Students Enrolled"/
Customers Registered®
T AR,/
EFEMAZ®

Long-term
RERE
- One to less than two years

——FEMEUT

Short-term
R

Subtotal
et

Long-term

RERAE
- One to less than two years
——FUAEMEUT
- Two to less than three years
—MERE=FUT
- Three years

Short-term
LN

Subtotal
/J\'EH-

=y

Year ended 31 December

BZ12831ALEE
2024
20245

1,496

3,540

5,036

36,843

2,205

3,383

31,255

1,984

38,827

2023
20234

1,443

3,321

4,764

39,540

1,611

4,600

33,429

2,017

41,557

i

Change
-]
Increase/
(Decrease)

i,/ (H2)

3.7%

6.6%

5.7%

(6.8%)
45.9%
(26.5%)

(6.5%)

(1.6%)

(6.6%)
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Change
Average Number of 25
Students Enrolled"/ Year ended 31 December Increase/
Segments and Brands Customers Registered®? BZ12A31ALLEE (Decrease)
FAE AR,/ 2024 2023
FBRBME EFEEMAER 20245 2023%F i/ (H)
AUTO SERVICES
AERB
Wontone Long-term 37,200 36,559 1.8%
&R RERIE
- One to less than two years 3,194 2,197 45.4%
——FUEMEUT
- Two to less than three years 2,358 2,727 (13.5%)
—MELE=ZFEUT
- Three years 31,648 31,635 0.0%
Short-term 2,765 2,616 5.7%
e
AUTO SERVICES Subtotal 39,965 39,175 2.0%
HERB Nt
FASHION AND BEAUTY
EICESS
On-mind Long-term 3,401 1,380 146.4%
B & RERRIE
- One to less than two years 1,327 347 282.4%
——FUAEMEUT
- Two to less than three years 61 33 84.8%
—MERE=ZFUT
- Three years 2,013 1,000 101.3%
—=fF
Short-term 932 575 62.1%
RHIRE
FASHION AND BEAUTY Subtotal 4,333 1,955 121.6%
i 3 P

Annual Report 2024 " —Z —IFF 3R 21
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Segments and Brands

Average Number of
Students Enrolled"/
Customers Registered®
T AR,/

AR mE EFEMAZ®
THE GROUP Long-term
r£E RHRE
- One to less than two years
——FLAEMEAT
- Two to less than three years
—MEUNE=ZFUT
- Three years
Short-term
FRHRE
THE GROUP TOTAL
P | ast
Notes:

1

As our schools provide various vocational training education
programs during a year and the course length and the program
commencement date varies for our different long-term and short-
term programs, we believe that the average number of students
enrolled is a measure that is comparable to that of our competitors
and therefore can fairly present our ranking and market position in
the industry. Our average number of students enrolled for a year is
only an approximation of the average number of students enrolled
during a certain year, representing the sum of the number of students
enrolled at our operating schools at the end of each month divided by
the number of months during such year, without taking into account
any transfer or withdrawal.

Our average number of customers registered for a year represents
the sum of the number of customers registered at Cuisine Academy
at the end of each month divided by the number of months during
such year, without taking into account any withdrawal. The courses
for one month or shorter are regarded as one-month programs for
the purpose of calculation.

China East Education Holdings Limited «" FEIRAHBERER QA

Management Discussion and Analysis &2 E:tmEE 5 47

Change

by

Year ended 31 December Increase/
BZ12A31BLEE (Decrease)

2024 2023
20244 2023 #n/ (HD)
129,545 130,953 (1.1%)
11,819 7,596 55.6%
17,294 23,572 (26.6%)
100,432 99,785 0.6%
16,749 15,886 5.4%
146,294 146,839 (0.4%)
B %E -

BRI ERNE RSB REE
HEREATRRAREBRIZHRIZE
ERFARBHHEMER  BRMRA
FEEIIARAHERERFH FETLER
BEtE - FibE AT AT RPN AITER
WETBER RIS HAL o FRETEIFEIIA
REREEFANFIEINAROE - 15
B EEERNEA ARBIAREE
H A ANRR A B BEF R H9 A 10 B0 (N FT R AE
MEEIRBNER)

FANFHEPEMABEIRERRE
A AENEPEMABEEINERIAE BE
B8 A8 (et REMERENER) - B
HREENER B —EAREEHR
RBIE—EARE -
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Tuition Fees/Service Fees
The following table sets forth ranges of our tuition fee and service

fee rate under each segment and brand for the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023:

Segments and Brands Program®

2 &P B2 fE e

CULINARY ARTS

REER A

New East and Cuisine Academy®® Long-term

R M SRR SR RHIRIZ
Short-term®@
2 HARRIZ®

WESTERN CUISINE AND PASTRY

mEAER

Omick Long-term

BOK A RHEJRIZ
Short-term®@
52 HARRIZO

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND

INTERNET TECHNOLOGY

R R BB R

Xinhua Internet and Wisezone Long-term

METBMRESER RHIRIZ
Short-term®@
2 HARRIZ®

BE RBE

TREYEE2024F 2023F12A31H 1
FESHENGENEE MRS EHE

Tuition/Service fee

28 REE
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31ALEE
2024 2023
2024%F 20234

(RMByper year for long-term programs,
RMB/per program for short-term programs)
(REJRIEAN BB T - F BB -
FZRIRIEUA R TT - iRIEBEN)

29,400-180,000 8,800-116,000
500-78,800 400-86,000
42,000-72,000 46,000-72,000
800-39,000 800-39,000
11,800-58,000 7,000-68,000
960-39,800 600-53,800

Annual Report 2024 " —Z - UFFiR
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Segments and Brands Program®

DR Byl

AUTO SERVICES

RS

Wontone Long-term

&im REFRIE
Short-term®@
72 HRRRIZ®

FASHION AND BEAUTY

SIOESES

On-mind Long-term

=k REIRIE
Short-term®@
52 HRRRIZO

Notes:

(1) We charge tuition fee to students enrolled at our schools. Tuition fees
of our long-term programs are typically charged based on the yearly
tuition standards of different programs that students enrolled in such
period.

(2)  Tuition fees of our short-term programs are typically charged by each
program that students enrolled in.

(8)  We typically charge customers service fees by each program that
customers registered in Cuisine Academy.

24 China East Education Holdings Limited «" FEIRAHBERER QA

Tuition/Service fee
2 REE
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31ALEE
2024 2023
20245 2023%F
(RMByper year for long-term programs,
RMB/per program for short-term programs)
(REGRIEZEAAN R T FREN -
FEEISRIEUNA R T, RIE /3 8 07)

18,600-76,000 6,800-63,400
980-23,600 800-37,400
13,900-44,600 13,900-27,800
3,980-20,800 5,800-29,800
G

(1) BARRERMBROBLERRMBE - 3
PI—ARREZ AR B AL REN T RRIZH
FEEEREEDMEHRZIZE -

@ EHRREEE-RRESLRENSER
UER

@  BA-BRREEPNERSEZMOELIR
TR E IR E -
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Recommended Employment and Entrepreneurship Rate

We are committed to assisting our students in developing
their careers. Our average recommended employment and
entrepreneurship rate of our long-term program graduates from
Wontone and On-mind reached over 95%, while New East, Omick
and Xinhua Internet reached over 90% for the year ended 31
December 2024. The following table sets forth the recommended
employment and entrepreneurship rate of our long-term program
graduates by brands for the year ended 31 December 2024:

Brands" FR AR
New East A
Omick BOK A
Xinhua Internet FEEN
Wontone 2l
On-mind & 2 7
Notes:

(1) As the schools of other brands had not provided long-term
programs of one year or more, the recommended employment and
entrepreneurship rate of these brands were not included. We also
provide graduate placement service or entrepreneurial service to
students of our short-term programs. However, students enrolled
in our short-term programs generally have different study goals
and expectations, such as to enhance a specific skill or to study for
interests, as compared to students of our long-term programs who
are generally more focused on seeking long-term employment or to
setting up their own businesses.

(2)  We provide graduate placement service and entrepreneurial service
to all students of our long-term programs. The recommended
employment and entrepreneurship rate represents the total number of
students of long-term programs who are hired through our graduate
placement service program or who set up their own business through
our entrepreneurial service in a certain period, excluding students
who are employed through other channels, divided by the total
number of graduates of long-term programs during such year.

Gl eSS S

BB ORENBEEREBEAE - #
ZE2024F12 A1 B ILFE - BIERKLE

=
£

RYRBEXLEN TSI BRERE

ERFOSWIAL - MFERF - BOKT RF
EFAEEIORIA L - TRETEZE2024
F12A31BILFERRBEE DN RARE
BEASIBGRERAIEEX

G

Recommended
employment and
entrepreneurship

rate®

SIBMERAIERE

94.6%
94.0%
93.7%
96.2%
95.9%

A LA G2 5E T BRI R DR
—FHRIARE - AR AZSRENS
ERMERAIZEE - RIFIRRAERLHRE
R EREAIAERBREERSE - A
il HRBEEIERMFENRETIED
BEBHRMRIESE - WERPIEHR
RHBE—RBRETRANEEBRREN
KON E R S R B M BB R HIE -

HPIMAA RAREEE R AT E RS
R AIZEIRT - 5l pt % KAl X ig X B
BB IR AR X RS EI B BRI
BIZERBMAIIRENEBMIBH RS
RIEBLEH(TEEEEEMRETH®
ENBE)BRUARFERMRIEEELSE
2 o
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2024, there was a decrease in the
number of new students enroliments and new customers registration
of approximately 6.2% as compared with that for the year ended
31 December 2023. On the other hand, the Group has changed
its strategy in new students enroliment by optimising its course
structure and attracting more high-value new students enroliment
during the year. As a result, the Group recorded an increase in
revenue from RMB3,979 million for the year ended 31 December
2023, to RMB4,116 million for the year ended 31 December 2024,
representing an increase of approximately 3.5%.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our revenue and
annualised average tuition/service fee per student/customer by
segments/brands for the periods indicated:

gy e
YA

HE2024F12A31BILFE © YHHERE
2023F 12 A31 H IEFERFEII AR X3
BEREMASURL46.2% 0 B—HHE  F
AAREEFABBLERE  BIELRE2EHE
LalEZEEENEAZ - Al - NEEH
FIU A RE £2023F12 A31 B IEFFERA
R¥3,979B B L MEEZ=2024F 12 A
STHIEFEMARE4116EE T EHL
3.5% °

TREFIHR IR E D, e S
DORARBEEE EFPFTHREE )/
RIS EBAA -

Year ended 31 December

BE2BNALEE
2024 2023 Change
2024 2003F 28

Annualised Annualised Annualised

Average Average Average

Tuition/ Tuition/ Tuition/

Service Fee Service Fee Revenue  Service Fee

per Student/ per Student/  Increase/  per Student/

Revenue  Customer”  Revenue  Customer’ (Decrease)  Customer

5485/ BeEL/ 5184/

EFE RPE WA BFE

14988/ TEE/ gh/ 428/

WA friEn 0N vl (H5) g

RMB000  RMB000  RMBUOOO  RMBOOO
ABETL  AREFL AREFT  AREFR

CULINARY ARTS 2R

- New East and Cuisine Academy? -HERREH SR 1,918,834 B8O 1914319 322 0.2% 24%
WESTERN CUISINE AND PASTRY FHEE

- Omick v 342,865 68.1 330,809 69.4 3.6% (2.0%)

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND EERNRERRRA
INTERNET TECHNOLOGY

- Xinhua Internet and Wisezone i ER 762,744 196 777,070 187 (1.8%) 5.1%
AUTO SERVICES AERS

- Wontone -ER 912,103 28 846,530 216 7.7% 5.6%
FASHION AND BEAUTY Bidx%

- On-mind -BER 105,439 4.3 46,881 240 124.9% 15%

OTHER MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESSES®  EftEg£#e 74200  NAFER 63045  NANER 177%  NATER

Total® EH 4,116,185 216 3978654 26.7 3.5% 3.6%

China East Education Holdings Limited «" FEIRAHBERER QA
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For illustration purposes only, the average tuition/service fee per
student/customer for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023
are calculated on a basis as revenue generated from tuition or service
fees for the year divided by the average number of students enrolled
and customers registered in the year.

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, revenue
generated from Cuisine Academy mainly represents service fees
collected from customers who attended our customized catering
experience programs.

Other miscellaneous businesses primarily include the internet
technology solution and staff outsourcing services provided to
independent third parties.

The total revenue and percentages do not include inter-segment
sales which are eliminated upon consolidation.

The Cost of Revenue

Our cost of revenue consists of teaching staff salaries and benefits,
teaching related consumables and other costs, leasing expenses/
depreciation of right-of-use assets, campus maintenance and

depreciation, utilities and office expenses. The cost of revenue

decreased from approximately RMB2,070 million for the year ended

31 December 2023 to approximately RMB2,002 million for the year

ended 31 December 2024, representing a decrease of 3.3%.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our cost of revenue

for the years indicated:

EERENWESN

BRE -

() (EEEPAME - B E20244F £2023512
ABBIEEEREL  BREFHER
REEBNIRFANEBBIRIFEEEHRA
F%ﬁbﬁﬁﬂgﬁfiiﬁi AR RREEMA
G

2 REZE2024F K2023F12A31HILF
E BERZREANBAEEARME
2MEMFLATRE R ERRENE LI
A RIS E

@ HEMMEEBIEEFEMABLE=TRHE
B BB R RRR T R B TIMBIRES

@)  HEPEARBED LA NBREESFHRREE
HD EREIHE ©

LUNDEN

BMORAR R BIEHRBTHERE
HEHEERERREMKA AERT
FTRAEEENE REEEZERFTE 2R
BRI AT o WARKRAREZE2023F
12A31BIEFEHNARKE2,070B B LR
DEHE2024F12A31HIEFEHARE
2,002B 87T WP R3.3% °

TREINFAIRFERPIARAE AR -

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALEE
2024 2023
20245 2003F
Cost % of Total Cost % of Total
gt s
A& BAl AR BOlt
RMB’000 RMB000
ARETFR ANREFT
Teaching staff salaries and benefits HETHEREH 788,181 39.4% 786,617 38.0%
Teaching related consumables and other costs ~ ZIEARB LR RE MR 408,436 20.4% 451,360 21.8%
Leasing expenses/Depreciation of right-of-use assets HERS /EHELENE 286,345 14.3% 309,266 14.9%
Campus maintenance and depreciation REFERTE 349,293 17.4% 349,026 16.9%
Utilities NiiEq 95,204 4.8% 100,761 4.9%
Office expenses PARY 74,191 3.7% 73,407 35%
Total &t 2,001,650 100% 2,070,437 100%

Annual Report 2024 " —Z - UFFiR

27



Management Discussion and Analysis &2 E:tmEE 5 47

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s gross profit was approximately RMB2,115 million for the
year ended 31 December 2024 as compared to RMB1,908 million
for the same period in 2023. The gross profit margin was 51.4% for
the year ended 31 December 2024 as compared to 48.0% for the
same period in 2023. The increase in gross profit margin was mainly
because there was an increase in the revenue while there was a
decrease in the cost of revenue due to the tightening of cost control
during the year ended 31 December 2024.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our gross profit/(loss)
and gross profit/(loss) margin by major segments/brands for the
periods indicated:

CULINARY ARTS R

- New East and Cuisine Academy -FEARERER

WESTERN CUISINE AND PASTRY A%AE

- Omick —-Buk%

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND EERMR EBRR
INTERNET TECHNOLOGY

— Xinhua Internet and Wisezone -HEERRECER

AUTO SERVICES AERE

- Wontone B

FASHION AND BEAUTY X

- On-mind -Bem

OTHER MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESSES®  EftiiE¥50

EFREME

EZE2024F 128318 LFE - AEBEF
HABARE2116EE T - M2023F R A
ARHE1,008E 8T » HE2024F12A31H
WHFE  EFEE51.4% - M2023F[FH
5348.0% ° B E2024F12A31 H ILFE -
FEMEIEIMOEZRERBWAIG N » il
YN ZNCYIIE: @ Nz TN

TREIIMRBEREESD RIEED
HER(8) REM, (85) KA -

Year ended 31 December

HZ12R31ALEE
2024 2023
20245 2023%F
Gross Gross
Gross  profit/(loss) Gross profit/(loss)
profit/(loss) margin®  profit/(loss) margin®

/B ER/B)E0 OEN/B  E/EX0
RMB'000  Percentage AMB000  Percentage
AREFT FAtt AREFIT A7t

Total Bt

1,042,203 54.3% 954,218 49.8%
191,915 56.0% 158,726 48.0%
389,842 51.1% 382,472 49.2%
464,668 50.9% 421,989 49.8%

57,565 54.6% 12,475 26.6%
(31,658) (42.7%) (21,663) (34.4%)
2,114,535 51.4% 1,908,217 48.0%
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Notes:

(1) The establishment of new schools and centers under a segment/
brand has a negative impact on our gross profit margin for the
relevant segment/brand. During the initial ramp-up period after a
new school or center commences operations, we incur substantial
fixed costs for teaching staff salaries and benefits, leasing expenses,
and other fixed costs while initial revenue from the new schools and
centers are limited due to the relatively small number of student
enrollment or customer registration in the ramp-up period of the
schools and centers.

(2)  Other miscellaneous businesses primarily include the internet
technology solution and staff outsourcing services provided to
independent third parties.

Other Income and Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2024, other income and
expenses amounted to approximately RMB120 million (2023:
RMB139 million) which primarily included government grants,
interest income from time deposits and bank balances and
entrusted loans. The decrease in other income was mainly due
to the decrease in interest income from time deposits and bank
balances and entrusted loans of approximately RMB20 million
during the year ended 31 December 2024.

Other Gains and Losses

The other gains and losses were recorded as net gains of
approximately RMB32 million for the year ended 31 December
2024 (2023: RMB43 million). Other gains included mainly gains
from changes in fair value of other financial assets measured at
FVTPL of approximately RMB51 million (2023: RMB20 million) and
the net foreign exchange gains of approximately RMB13 million
as a result of mainly the appreciation of Hong Kong dollars and
United States dollars possessed by the Group against Renminbi
during the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: RMB24 million).
On the other board, the Group recorded gains from termination
of lease agreements of approximately RMB7 million (2023: RMB4
million) and losses on disposals of property and equipment of
approximately RMB38 million (2023: RMB5 million) due to the close
down of certain schools during the year ended 31 December 2024.

BRE -

(1) R—EDE R TR A 2R KT
CEHBERD B, RENENEELETH
FE - WIEREPLRBEERNIIS
BRI - BRI E THE REN
HERS R EAM B ERAEEKNE B EK
A 1 R AR N AR DA R A AR B
ARFEPEMABREE D - g
B -

@ HOMBEXBIEeRERBIE=TRMH
M B BB R RRR T = B THMBIRTS

H A A KB

REZE 2024 F 12 A31 BILFE - L
ARFREZAHAREE 120 B &0(2023 F -
ARA139BET) - ER X2 BEREENH
B EETERRRITEHRLETEROF
BIA - Hth AR EERHREZRE
2024 F 12 A 31 BILFE - THFH KR
THEABRZFZEFOFNEWARPHAR
¥ 20 BEETTFTE ©

HAibWas I B9 18

REZ 2024 F 12 A 31 HIEFE » e
HEEBHFSREFENARE 2 BET
(2023 F : AR¥E A3 BHE D) ° H = 2024
F12A31HLEFE  HtamEERRE
NARBEGETFABRNAMESRE
ENAABEZBRSHARE S BET
(2023 F : AR¥ 20 BB IT) RIEH W as
FEAOARE13BEITQ023 F : ARK
24 BET) TEARAEEFENE TR
ELRAAREAEMSR - Z—H@E ' AR
HZE 2024 F12 A 31 HIEFERNBEAET
B AEESFSRIEAERZEOKEL
ARB7EET(023F : AR¥EAFHET)
MEEMERSBENBBEBHOARE S EE
7 (2023 F - AR¥ES BET) ©
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Selling Expenses

The Group’s selling expenses decreased from approximately
RMB1,037 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 to
approximately RMB974 million for the year ended 31 December
2024. The decrease in selling expenses was mainly because the
Group imposed tighter control on the advertising cost during the
year ended 31 December 2024.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses decreased from approximately
RMB529 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 to
approximately RMB508 million for the year ended 31 December
2024 which represented approximately 12.3% of the revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2024 and decreased as compared
to 13.3% of the revenue for the year ended 31 December 2023.
The decrease in administrative expenses was mainly due to the
decrease in share-based payment of approximately RMB8 million
and tighter control on administrative expenses during the year
ended 31 December 2024.

Finance Costs
The finance costs of approximately RMB118 million for the year
ended 31 December 2024 represented the interest expenses on

lease liabilities recognised following the adoption of HKFRS 16 —
Leases (2023: RMB139 million).
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AEBMIEERZAEZE 2023 F12 A
STHLEFEHARK1,037 BB TR E
HE2024 F12 A31 BIEFEHARE
74 BETT - HERIRO DEZEHREBE
2024 F 12 A 31 BILFE - XEBEEHE
BEAEE B SN AN IE S

TR

REERITHAXBEZE 2023 F 12 A 31
HBEFEHARE 2 BETLRLEHE
2024 F 12 A 31 HIEFENARKE 508 B
B hEHE2024F12 A1 BIEFEE
WAK) 12.3% - BEEE 2023 £ 12 A 31
AIEFERAR 13.3% BB TR - 17
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Adjusted Net Profit and Adjusted EBITDA

To supplement this report which is presented in accordance
with HKFRSs, we also presented the following unaudited non-
HKFRSs adjusted net profit and adjusted EBITDA as additional
financial measures which we believes that it can also provide useful
information to help investors and others understand and evaluate

the Company’s financial performance:

Net profit
Adjustments for: Non-cash share-based
payments
Net foreign exchange gains

Adjusted net profit

Adjustments for: Depreciation
Finance costs
Income tax expenses

Adjusted EBITDA

Notes:

REARARE(RBEBEVHRE LD 2
5)) » RRBIFEIA T RIEBEER B
WEEAEHBMANREHBEERITER
B R AP FREINSISEHE - AREIE
= HAlRHEARANEN  EREER
H AL T RHERRBFHRR

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILEE

2024 2023

20244 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREFIT

(unaudited) (unaudited)

(REER) CREEEZ)

A 512,596 272,622
T LIRS MRS B

TMAX 25,100 32,993

b 5 Yz 58 (12,756) (24,279)

LR 524,940 281,336

R e 590,845 620,364

BAFERK AR 118,041 139,301

ISR 141,821 95,387

BARSHITER

BEEANER 1,375,647 1,136,388

BsE

(1) Adjusted net profit was derived from the net profit for the year
excluding the effect of (i) non-cash share-based payment expenses;
and (i) the net foreign exchange gains (as presented in the table
above), which our management does not consider to be indicative of

our operating performance.

(2)  Adjusted EBITDA was derived from the adjusted net profit for the
year excluding finance costs, income tax expenses and depreciation

expenses.

Q) Non-HKFRSs financial measure does not have a standardised
meaning prescribed by HKFRSs and therefore may not be
comparable to similar measures presented by other companies.

(1) EFBENDBRIBERERN - HIRERE
RRERMLERVERFONAIFREH
Rt B TE ST B9 BT ¢ R i) 3 i e AR
(W ERAZINOZEME -

@ ERHESBITEREHEIENDREFA
AR AR TR ~ RS &
FERXmE -

@) AU BREENHBEENEEN

WEERTEA—E R - BORMATEE A
RAEHRLURRIELLE -
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Property and Equipment

Property and equipment as at 31 December 2024 increased by
7.4% to approximately RMB3,309 million from approximately
RMBS3,080 million as at 31 December 2023. Increase in property
and equipment was mainly due to the inclusion of the property and
equipment of the Vocational Education Industrial Parks located at
Sichuan, Shandong, Guizhou and Henan and newly established
schools during the year.

Right-of-use Assets

Right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2024 decreased by
3.5% to approximately RMB2,149 million from approximately
RMB2,226 million as at 31 December 2023. Decrease in right-of-
use assets was mainly because the Group terminated certain lease
agreements during the year ended 31 December 2024.

Capital Structure, Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2024, the Company’s issued share capital
was approximately RMB192,000 divided into 2,178,989,802
shares of HK$0.0001 each, and the total equity of the Group was
approximately RMB5,749 million (31 December 2023: RMB5,608
million).

As at 31 December 2024, the current ratio of the Group,
representing current assets divided by current liabilities, was 1.5
times (31 December 2023: 1.7 times) while the gearing ratio of
the Group, representing total liabilities divided by total assets, was
39.4% (31 December 2023: 39.6%).

As at 31 December 2024, the total of time deposits and bank
balances and cash of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB3,004 million (31 December 2023: RMB3,067 million),
representing 31.7% (31 December 2023: 33.0%) of the total assets
of the Group of approximately RMB9,484 million (31 December
2023: RMB9,291 million).
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A 31 BHARE 3,300 BETT ° WEKH
HENEZEHRFAREDR)I - ILE - &
M ROR R R B SE EE M ET R E R
R AFATER

EREEE

EREEERM 2023 F 12 A 31 BHBAA
R# 2206 B&EILFD 3.5% B2 2024 F
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For the year ended 31 December 2024, our capital expenditures
were approximately RMB910 million (2023: RMB1,085 million) and
were primarily related to acquisition of property and equipment and
right-of-use assets for upgrading the existing school premises and
construction of new campuses and Vocational Education Industrial
Parks.

It is believed that the Group has sufficient capital to meet its
commitment and working capital requirements for future operations
and for general business expansion and development.

Other Financial Assets
As at 31 December 2024, the Group held other financial assets

of approximately RMB550 million, particulars of which are set out
below:

Fair value

HZE 2024 F 12 A 31 HILFE - EARY
BHOARBI0OEE L0283 F : AR
1,086 B&EL) ' TZHEAAHRERE R
FERE KRB EZBBEYEREE
IRERAEEERR -

BB AREHATRNAS BN
ARRAREER —REBRRREED
BEEAES o

R2024 12 A 31 B ARBEBEHA
TREENARE S50 BEITL  HPFHE
3T

Unrealised % of

Realised gains for total assets

gains for theyear  of the Group

asat the year ended ended as at

31 December

2024
12024 F
Financial assets U R EEEDEA 12A31H
measured at FVTPL BHZEMEE ZAREE
(RMB’000)
AR¥FT)
Structured Deposit ERUEER
Industrial and Commercial Bank of ~ #EII&H T
China
Linked Exchange Rate Band Cumulative  BMIEXERZ5HLEAARY
Corporate RMB Structured Deposit ERIETER
Product 10,000
China Construction Bank REIRRAT
CCB Wealth Management “Huizhong”  BEES[ER] (A& 86N
(Daily Application and Monthly AFERARBEYER
Redemption) Open-ended Net Worth
RMB Financial Product 50,530

31 December 31 December 31 December

2024 2024 2024
BZo04F BZE 2024 % HAEER
128318 12A318 2024 &
ILEE L5E 128318
EEBNNE FRERHNE BEERIM
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
ANE¥TFT) (AE%FT)
- - 0.1%
- 530 0.6%
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Financial assets
measured at FVTPL

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank
LIDO Corporation Stable Profit 24JG3511
(3 Months Early Bird) RMB Public

Structured Deposit

Bank of Hangzhou
New Wallet Plan

Unquoted Fund Investment

E Fund Management (HK) Co., Ltd.
E Fund (HK) Select Asia High Yield Bond
Fund

China International Capital
Corporation Hong Kong Asset
Management Limited

CICC Multi-strategy Fixed
Income Fund

Financial assets measured at
amortised cost

Entrusted loans to related parties

Anhui Xinhua Holdings Group Investment
Co., Ltd.

A amEE

i

Unrealised % of
Realised gains for total assets
Fair value gains for the year  of the Group
asat the year ended ended as at
31 December 31 December 31December 31 December
2024 2024 2024 2024
Bzouf Bz ufE HAEER
2024 12A31H 12A31H 2024 &
UARBEELGA 12431 H HEE I:3:3 12A31H
BRZEREE ZANER EERNNE RERH s BEEFIM
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)
AEEFT) AEEFT) (AEEFT)
PERRBERT
F%% RAIEH 24JG3511
B EAREN AREHL
BIEEER 50,232 - 232 0.5%
mNET
i 2R 1,000 - - 0.0%
111,762 - 762 1.2%
BHREESRE
SHEEEEE (BB ARAF
SrERAREDNREES
173,189 - 17,705 1.8%
FEERSREEEEERAR
A7
214,818 - 17,856 2.3%
388,007 - 35,561 4.1%
REBHEATECEREE
EEE A RENETER
CRNERREEREEBR AT
50,000 - - 0.5%
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Investment Strategy and Future Prospects

The Group’s investments in other financial assets have been
conducted on the premise that such investments would not affect
our business operation or capital expenditures so as to generate a
relatively higher return from such investments than fixed-term bank
deposits.

The Group has implemented a set of internal control and risk
management measures to manage our risks related to investments
in other financial assets.

Regarding the investment in financial assets measured at FVTPL
and structured deposits, the measures include, among other
things, the followings:

° we analyze such financial assets regularly and keep track of
their performance and redemption status;

° such financial assets should be issued by a reputable bank or
financial institution; and

° the investment portfolio of such financial assets should
generally bear relatively low-risk.

Regarding the entrusted loans to related parties under the
investment in financial assets measured at amortised cost, the
measures include among other things, the followings:

° the borrowing company is required to enter into entrusted
loan agreement(s) with reputable PRC bank(s) and the
entrusted PRC bank(s) will assess the financial position of
the borrowing company(s) regularly to ensure the repayment
ability;

AEEREMESRMEENRETIAEBR
BRI ERBENSENERRAIZ RATR
®imBEE@ARERSRETERITFIALY
BEHEIH o

AEBECER—EABEHLRERRERE
i WERKRERMSREERERR -

MEBRERNARABEFELFT ABRR
ZEMEERBEBUETRNZEERERE
(KR BE)ATRIA

e BMTEHoMELE@MEETLHFE
RIBNERIR

. ELEREETRE
DRIMEEIT &

BRIFOMRITH

s FUTRMEEREMEAS
(9

3B R

HBERRENLRBHKATEZEREE
AT AR RER{ENZEERNZSER
BREEPBE) ATEE

ﬁai ARG A B BH P EIIRTTR]
é“TATz?z’J =45 x?ﬁcﬁtﬂlfi
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to secure the loan(s), each of the controlling shareholders of
the borrowing company shall enter into a personal guarantee.
Each of the controlling shareholders of the borrowing
company irrevocably and unconditionally, among others,
guarantees to the Group the punctual performance by his
respective borrowing company for borrowing the loan(s) and
undertakes that whenever the respective borrowing company
does not pay any amount of the loan when due, he shall
immediately on demand pay that amount as if he were the
principal of the loan(s). In addition, each of the controlling
shareholders of the borrowing company made a guarantee
that the Company has the right to postpone the payment
of the Company’s dividends to each of the controlling
shareholders of the borrowing company to the amount of
the loans and interests owed by the respective borrowing
company until the loans and interests are fully paid;

upon the Group’s request at any time, the borrowing
company shall provide forthwith to the Group any documents
and information relating to the business operations and
financial position of the borrowing company, including but not
limited to financial reports and financial statements in order
for the Group to assets the borrowing company’s repayment
capacity and credit risks;

if the borrowing company or its controlling shareholder has
any potential risks of financial instability, it shall inform the
Group or the entrusted PRC bank(s) immediately; and

the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) will review
the business operations and financial position of the PRC
borrowing company(s) at least every six months. If the
borrowing company or its controlling shareholder has shown
any signs of financial instability, the Group or the entrusted
PRC bank(s) can demand the borrowing company or its
controlling shareholder to repay prior to the repayment date
all or part of outstanding principal and interest accrued by
giving not less than 10 business days prior written notice to
such borrowing company.
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In view of the above, we believe that our internal policies
regarding investment in other financial assets and the related risk
management mechanism are adequate. It is expected that the
Group would continue to improve our capital usage efficiency by
investing in such low-risk or principal protected other financial assets
using our temporarily idle funds.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

The Group did not have any material acquisitions or disposals
of subsidiaries, consolidated affiliated entities or associated
companies during the year ended 31 December 2024.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The majority of the Group’s revenue and expenditures are
denominated in RMB, the functional currency of the Company,
except that certain expenditures are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. The Group also has certain time deposits and bank
balances, other financial assets and other payables denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars, which would expose
the Group to foreign exchange risk. The Group did not use any
financial instruments for hedging purposes during the year ended
31 December 2024. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure when the need arises.

Charges on the Group’s Assets

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group pledged its rental
deposits to secure outstanding unpaid contractual lease payments.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group did not have any
material contingent liabilities, guarantees or any litigations or claims
of material importance, pending or threatened against any member
of the Group.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 12 November 2024, Anhui Xinhua Education Group Co., Ltd.
(BT EHE £ E B R A7) (“Anhui Xinhua Education”) entered
into the sale and purchase agreement with Shanxi Enlightenment
Wisdom Education Consulting Center (LU PR E [EZ F 4
L) and Pu Xiaohu (EBESR) (collectively referred to as the
“Transferors”, being the independent third parties), and Shanxi
Xinzhi Huake Education Management Co., Ltd. (LU PR ZERIZRE
B AR AF]), Shanxi Metallurgical Technician College (LLTH)AS
FrRMER) and Taiyuan Juxian High-Tech Development Co., Ltd. (A
FEREEEHRZEAR A A) (collectively referred to as the “Target
Group”), pursuant to which Anhui Xinhua Education agreed to
acquire the entire equity interests of the Target Group from the
Transferors for an aggregate cash consideration of RMB10,000,000
(the “Acquisition”).

Other than the cash consideration paid, the Group also provided
RMB15,350,000 to support the daily operation of the Target Group
prior to the completion of the Acquisition.

Certain precedent conditions of the Acquisition, including the
transfer of equity interest and the change of in the board of
directors and the legal representative of the Target Group, were
completed in January 2025, so the Acquisition was considered
to be completed in January 2025. The Acquisition has been
accounted for as acquisition of business using the acquisition
method.

The Directors of the Company engaged an independent valuer
to assist in performing the valuation of the identified assets
and liabilities of the Target Group at the completion date of the
Acquisition. Based on which, the Group performed a purchase
price allocation for the Acquisition, which resulted in recognition of
goodwill amounted to approximately RMB661,000.
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OUTLOOK

Our mission is to provide the best vocational training education in
China. We intend to continue to expand our business, school and
center network and enhance our market position. To achieve these
goals, we plan to pursue the following business strategies:

Establishment of Vocational Education Industrial Parks

With the increasing proportion of our students who studied in
three-year long-term courses in the past few years, our strategies
are to acquire land and construction facilities to establish Vocational
Education Industrial Parks in cities located at our major students
enrollment provinces. The Vocational Education Industrial Parks
are expected to be equipped with advanced teaching and practical
training facilities for all of our seven school/center brands, namely,
New East, Cuisine Academy, Omick, Xinhua Internet, Wisezone,
Wontone as well as On-mind which help to consolidate the Group’s
market leadership and brand position. Currently, the Vocational
Education Industrial Parks located at Sichuan, Shandong, Guizhou
and Henan had been put in operations consecutively. On the other
hand, the third phase project of Vocational Educatioon Industrial Park
at Shandong and the first phase projects of Vocational Education
Industrial Parks at Jiangsu and Jiangxi are being planned and
promoted. Upon the completion of all these Vocational Education
Industrial Parks, it is expected that the Vocational Education
Industrial Parks of the Group should be sufficient to meet the
demands from students come from different provinces. Moreover,
the Vocational Education Industrial Parks will also house our research
and development centers, human resources and marketing centers
and serve as the continuing education and training centers for our
teaching staff, in each case in their respective designated regions.
In addition, the Vocational Education Industrial Parks can avoid the
increasing pressure in the rental expenses of our school premises
and also can improve the environment of our school premises so as
to increase the stabilities of our long-term course students. Therefore,
the Group believes that the Vocational Education Industrial Parks
will be a key driver in increasing student demand for the Group’s
education services and cost synergies can be achieved in future.
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Expansion of School Network

Our extensive school network covers most of the provincial capital
cities in China. We intend to further expand our school network to
cover all of the provincial capital cities in China. We plan to establish
our presence in cities which we believe have great potential with
significant unmet demand for skilled workers in culinary arts,
information technology and internet technology, auto services as well
as fashion and beauty.

Expansion and Diversification of Course Structures

In the four industry sectors we currently operate in, namely, culinary
arts, information technology and internet technology, auto services
as well as fashion and beauty, we plan to continue to expand and
diversify our course offerings in response to industry trends and
market demand. We are also conducting research on potential new
industry sectors that we may establish new schools in, with reference
to the developments in market demand and anticipated future
trends. We will continue to explore other markets for vocational
training education in the service industry and new economy, such
as artificial intelligence and healthcare. Based on our research, we
expect market demand for talent in certain industry sectors to grow
in the foreseeable future, we will establish corresponding programs
to capture opportunities presented by the market developments.
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Actively Applying as the Third-Party Rating Organization for the
Recognition of Vocational Skills

In 2020, the Group has become one of the first batch of third-party
rating organizations for the recognition of vocational skills in China,
whereby the Group is allowed to perform the recognition of certain
vocational skills for the public. Vocational skill recognition represents
the recognition of the skill level of labors by the rating organization
filed by the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security,
which is a way for rating of the skills of talents implemented
together with the occupational qualification rating. The third-party
organizations for the recognition of vocational skills in China are the
unit organizations recognised by the Ministry of Human Resources
and Social Security, which are unit organizations with leading
positions in the industry with credibility. After procedures such as
self-reporting, selection by experts, credit checks, assessment
by the local human resources and social security departments at
the place where the Group was registered and seeking of views
from the society, the Group became one of the first batch of third-
party rating organizations for the recognition of vocational skills in
China, whereby it is allowed to perform the recognition of certain
vocational skills. This means that the Group is allowed to perform
vocational skill recognition for the public in accordance with the
standards and regulatory requirements, and issue certificates
recognised by the state, which will significantly raise the Group’s
reputation and enhance its brand influence, and further strengthen
the Group’s leading position in the vocational skill training business
in China. By providing corresponding examinations and training
for the public targeting vocational skill certificates, the Group can
enrich its curriculum in the culinary segment to attract customers
who want to obtain such certificates and increase the potential
customers of the Group’s overall culinary segment. By issuing
vocational skill certificates, the Group can further integrate
employment resources to provide better job opportunities to the
students. The Group will have a comprehensive understanding of
the state’s policy and industry standards, which will facilitate our
vocational skill education in accordance with the state’s policy and
standards, and effectively enhance our education quality to provide
high quality vocational education services.
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We believe that with our over 30-year experience in vocational
training industry, we are well-positioned to tailor our service
offerings to capture growth opportunities in industrial upgrades
and to react promptly to the changes in the market. Also, our
highly scalable business model and centralized and standardized
management approach will accelerate the process to establish new
programs and ensure the quality of the future program offerings. It is
believed that the Group will further strengthen its market leadership
and reputation by having the above strategies.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES
Employees
As at 31 December 2024, we had a total of 10,346 employees.

The following table sets forth the numbers of our employees,
categorized by function, as at 31 December 2024:

BABEREERERE HITTEAS0F
MR - PR RA R L e SRR 5 iE
FEAHRY - UWCERBEXZRRKE
Kol MBS - i RARAS
AERENEBRN  SHRRBENE
B IDEA DR B R T ARAE - L FELR K5 2K Y
RiZmE - AREREREBIA BRI
BRAHHREANIRREE -

BEERFMBER

=l
]

MR2024F12A31H © &MH£E10,346% &
8 o TR AR2024512 A31 B iRB &t
|5 HE B A SR

Bt

Number of

Full-Time
Function Employees % of Total
Biae EHEEAE (HHEEST
Executive Directors and core management WITESNZLERAER 312 3.0%
Full-time teachers and instructors e e EIDNE KT 5,224 50.5%
Student accommodation staff BEFEEE 52 0.5%
Logistic personnel BEAE 363 3.5%
Administrative staff THRAE 1,783 17.2%
Accounting and finance staff I RYBEAE 336 3.3%
Others Hth 2,276 22.0%
Total Agtww 10,346 100%

Note: Among 10,346 employees, we had 15 employees in Hong Kong and
10,331 employees in mainland China.
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Remuneration Policies

The remuneration packages of the employees of the Group are
determined with reference to individual qualification, experience,
performance, contribution to the Group and prevailing market rate.

We remunerate our employees with basic salaries as well
as performance-based bonuses. We determine employee
compensation based on each employee’s performance and
qualifications. We plan to hire additional teachers, instructors and
other employees as we expand. Our employee recruiting channels
include word-of-mouth referrals, on-campus recruiting and online
recruiting.

Our full-time employees in mainland China participate in a variety
of social security plans that are administered by PRC local
governments, including but not limited to, pension benefits, medical
care, unemployment insurance, maternity insurance, work injury
insurance and housing provident funds. Chinese labor regulations
require that our PRC subsidiaries make contributions to the
government for these benefits based on a fixed percentage of the
employees’ average salaries of last year.

Our full-time employees in Hong Kong participate in a Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) which the assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of independent trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, contributions are made based on a percentage of the
participating employees’ relevant income from the Group and the
only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to
make the required contributions under the MPF Scheme.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Wei (R1&), aged 57, a founder of the Group, is an executive
Director and the chairman of the Board. He is in charge of the overall
management and strategic development of the Group.

Mr. Wu Wei obtained the qualification of senior economist granted
by the Personnel Bureau of Hefei* (BRET AZER) in July 2004.
Mr. Wu Wei has been a director of the board of directors of Beijing
Foreign Studies University since November 2017. He graduated
from Tsinghua University School of Economics and Management (5
A BB IR ELT) in Beijing, the PRC, with an executive master
of business administration in July 2009. Mr. Wu Wei has been a
doctoral student of Tsinghua University School of Economics and
Management, majoring in global executive management, since
2016. Mr. Wu Wei has over 30 years of experience in education.

Mr. Wu Wei did not hold any directorship in any other listed
companies during the last three years.

Mr. Xiao Guogqing (H BlE), aged 56, is an executive Director and
the deputy chairman of the Board and is responsible for business
management and providing opinion and judgement to the Board.

Mr. Xiao obtained the qualification of senior economist granted by
the Personnel Bureau of Hefei City (&EM AZE D) in July 2004.
He graduated from Renmin University of China (FFEARKXZ) in
Beijing, the PRC with a degree of master of business administration
in April 2004 and a degree of executive master of business
administration in January 2009, and from Cheung Kong Graduate
School of Business (51 7 £Fx) with a degree of executive master
of business administration in October 2012. Mr. Xiao Guoging has
over 20 years of experience in education.

Mr. Xiao resigned as a director of Anhui Xin’an Financial Group Co.,
Ltd. (ZBH T & rRERBHD AR AT) on 9 May 2024, a company
whose shares were listed on the National Equities Exchange and
Quotations (stock code: 834397) and were subsequently delisted

on 17 October 2023.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Xiao did not hold any directorship in
any other listed companies during the last three years.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wu Junbao (R#£1R), aged 59, a founder of the Group, is a
non-executive Director and is responsible for providing opinion and
judgment to the Board.

Mr. Wu Junbao obtained the qualification of senior economist
granted by the Personnel Bureau of Hefei City (BIEM A S
/@) in July 2004. He graduated from Anhui Institute of Business
Administration (Z# L &2 2kx) in Hefei, Anhui province,
the PRC with a degree of master of business administration in
December 2003. Mr. Wu Junbao has over 30 years of experience
in education.

Save as Mr. Wu Junbao has been the chairman of the board of
directors and non-executive director of China Xinhua Education
Group Limited (stock code: 2779) since October 2017, Mr. Wu
Junbao did not hold any directorship in any other listed companies
during the last three years.

Mr. Lu Zhen (F£E), aged 49, is a non-executive Director and is
responsible for providing opinion and judgment to the Board.

Mr. Lu graduated from Zhengzhou Institute of Textile Engineering
(E0 M 47 4% T EF%), currently known as Zhongyuan University of
Technology (/R T&7), in Zhengzhou, Henan province, the
PRC, with a bachelor degree majoring in mechanical engineering
in July 1999, and from Nanjing University (52 A£2) in Nanjing,
Jiangsu province, the PRC, with a degree of master of business
administration in March 2009. Mr. Lu has over 10 years of
experience in education.

Save as Mr. Lu has been an executive director of China Xinhua
Education Group Limited (stock code: 2779) since October 2017
and subsequently resigned with effect from 30 December 2024,
Mr. Lu did not hold any directorship in any other listed companies
during the last three years.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Hung Ka Hai, Clement (3 %E), aged 69, is an independent
non-executive Director.

Mr. Hung obtained a bachelor of arts degree from University of
Lincoln (formerly known as University of Huddersfield), United
Kingdom in 1980. Mr. Hung had served Deloitte China for 31
years where he had assumed various leadership roles before he
took up the chairman role of Deloitte China from 2014 to 2016.
He retired from Deloitte China with effect from June 2016. When
Mr. Hung was working with Deloitte China, he had assumed
various leadership roles, including the managing partner of Deloitte
Shenzhen office and Guangzhou office. He was also a member
of the China management team of Deloitte China. Mr. Hung had
also assumed the role of the southern audit leader and the deputy
managing partner of the southern region of China (including Hong
Kong, Macau, Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Xiamen and Changsha). He
was also a board member of Deloitte Global.

Mr. Hung served as the Guangzhou Institute of Certified Public
Accountants consultant from 2004 to 2014. During the period
between 2006 to 2011, he also served as a member of the Political
Consultative Committee of Luohu District, Shenzhen. After his
retirement as the chairman of Deloitte China, he was appointed
as an expert consultant of The Ministry of Finance in the PRC. Mr.
Hung is a life member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales.

Mr. Hung has, in the past three years, served or is serving as a
director/supervisor of each of the following listed companies whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange:

° an independent non-executive director of Tong Tong Al Social
Group Limited (formerly known as Gome Finance Technology
Company Limited) (stock code: 628) on 31 October 2016
and subsequently resigned with effect from 12 December
2023;

° an independent non-executive director of SY Holdings Group
Limited (formerly known as Sheng Ye Capital Limited) (stock
code: 6069), the listing of the shares of which has been
transferred to the Main Board from the GEM of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 8469) since 24 October 2019) from
19 June 2017 to 15 July 2022;
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a non-executive director of High Fashion International Limited
(stock code: 608) since 1 December 2017 and subsequently
resigned with effect from 1 January 2025;

an independent non-executive director of Starjoy Wellness
and Travel Company Limited (formerly known as Aoyuan
Healthy Life Group Company Limited) (stock code: 3662)
since 22 February 2019;

an independent non-executive director of Huarong
International Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 993)
since 13 December 2019;

an independent non-executive director of Skyworth Group
Limited (stock code: 751) since 18 March 2020;

an independent non-executive director of USPACE
Technology Group Limited (formerly known as Hong Kong
Aerospace Technology Group Limited) (stock code: 1725)
since 16 July 2021;

an independent supervisor of Ping An Insurance (Group)
Company of China, Ltd., whose shares are listed on both the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 2318) and
Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601318) since 18
July 2022;

an independent non-executive director of JX Energy Ltd.,
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 3395) since 1 August 2023 and
subsequently resigned with effect from 24 December 2024;
and

an independent non-executive director of Capital Estate
Limited, whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 193) since 12 April 2024.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Hung did not hold any directorship in
any other listed companies during the last three years.
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Dr. Zhu Guobin (5 El3E), aged 63, is an independent non-executive
Director.

Dr. Zhu obtained a bachelor’s degree in history, a master’s degree
in history and a master’s degree in law from Renmin University
of China in July 1983, July 1986 and June 2007, a master of
laws from the University of Hong Kong in December 1999, and a
doctorate in law and an accreditation to supervise research (Diplome
d’Habilitation a Diriger des Recherches) from the University of Aix-
Marseilles in France in June 1994. Dr. Zhu obtained a certificate
in administrative engineering class from the National School of
Administration (Ecole Nationale d’Administration) in France from
June 1989 to March 1990. Dr. Zhu was a visiting scholar of Harvard
Law School, the U.S., from 2007 to 2008 and 2020, and a visiting
scholar of Columbia Law School, the U.S., in 2011.

Dr. Zhu is a professor of Law at City University of Hong Kong
School of Law. Dr. Zhu is a guest professor of law in the Shandong
University in the PRC, an adjunct professor of law at the School of
Law of Wuhan University in the PRC. Dr. Zhu is a titular member
of the International Academy of Comparative Law (Paris, France),
a member of International Association of Constitutional Law,
a member of the French Society of Comparative Legislation, a
council member of the Chinese Association of Constitutional Law
(P EFAENFEE), a council member of the Chinese Society of
Judicial Studies (FZERIEMITE), an executive counsel member
of the Association of Hong Kong Basic Law and Macao Basic Law,
a member of the Chinese Association of the Hong Kong & Macao
Studies.

Dr. Zhu is an arbitrator of the Arbitration Commissions of Wuhan,
Zhuhai and Qingdao, and of South China International Arbitration
Centre (Hong Kong). Dr. Zhu is also a Mediator of Shenzhen
Securities and Futures Industry Dispute Resolution Centre.

Dr. Zhu is an advisor to Our Hong Kong Foundation, and a member
of Guangdong — Hong Kong — Macau Greater Bay Area Task Force
of the Department of Justice, the HKSAR Government.

Dr. Zhu is an independent non-executive director of Hybrid Kinetic
Group Limited (stock code: 1188), the shares of which are listed on

the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, Dr. Zhu did not hold any other
directorship in any listed companies during the last three years.
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Dr. Zang Yunzhi (J#Z&%), aged 45, is an independent non-executive
Director since 31 May 2021.

Dr. Zang, obtained a doctor degree in Business Administration
(Accounting) granted by Duke University in May 2006 and a
bachelor degree in Accounting granted by Tsinghua University in
July 2001. Dr. Zang served as an assistant professor at Simon
School of Business, University of Rochester from July 2006 to June
2009, and as an assistant professor at department of accounting of
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology from July 2009
to July 2015. Since July 2015, Dr. Zang has served as an associate
professor of department of accounting of Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology. Dr. Zang has extensive experience in
accounting and teaching and she also held position at the editorial
board of The Accounting Review since 2017, at CAPANA Program
Committee since 2018 and as ad hoc reviewers of various journals
in accounting area. Dr. Zang has passed all exams at Certified
General Accountants Association of Canada.

Dr. Zang did not hold any other directorship in any listed companies
during the last three years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Au Yeung Siu Kei (B(f5JKE), aged 49, is the chief financial
officer of the Company and is responsible for financial management
of the Group.

Mr. Au Yeung is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a fellow member and Certified Public
Accountant (Practising) of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Au Yeung holds a bachelor degree in
professional accountancy from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong and bachelor degree in laws from the University of London.
Mr. Au Yeung has over 20 years of experience in auditing,
accounting and financial management.

Mr. Au Yeung did not hold any directorship in any listed companies
during the last three years.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Mao Chaosheng (EH#EE), aged 45, is our joint company
secretary of the Company. Mr. Mao has over 20 years of
experience in management of administrative matters and human
resources relating to school operation, and has been working in the
Group since August 2004, where his current position is the head of
administration department and human resources department of the
Group.

Ms. Ng Sau Mei ({5 #) was appointed as the joint company
secretary of the Company on 31 December 2021. Ms. Ng is a
director and head of the Listing Services Department of TMF
Hong Kong Limited, which is a corporate secretarial services
provider, and is responsible for provision of corporate secretarial
and compliance services to listed company clients. She has over
20 years of experience in the company secretarial field and has
extensive knowledge and experience in dealing with corporate
governance, regulatory and compliance affairs of listed companies.
She is a Chartered Secretary, a Chartered Governance Professional
and a fellow member of both The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly known as “The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries”) and The Chartered Governance Institute
(formerly known as “The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators”) in the United Kingdom.

China East Education Holdings Limited «" FEIRAHBERER QA

BEARARE

ERERLE - 4558 - AR RIMEE QT
WE e EAEAEEEEREZSHEBENTT
BEERANER S EHERBIR20F KL
5 - WE2004F8 AR —ENAEEER
LHAEEAEEITERIRANERIDE

Sl

AEFEBLTH2021F12A31HEZRT AR
DA ARME - MR THREERSE
BERAR (EARARWERBHER)E
EREMRBEHEE BERLELTRAE
PRHEABWMEREGHRY - BRI RMW
EEHERBA0FLBRERE FTA
AMGTEER BEERAREHHTEHEAR
LEMNBHEMER - FAFTNE BT
AEZEAE  URBBQRNRELE (AT
[BEAFTWERE]) RRERBFTELRRE
(A RRETRERITBRABERAE])E
e

10

o

\



Corporate Governance Report &t ¥ &8k &

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles of the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). For the year ended
31 December 2024, the Company has complied with all the code
provisions set out in the CG Code.

The Board believes that good corporate governance is essential
to the development of the Group and to safeguard the interests of
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”), potential
investors and business partners and is consistent with the Board’s
pursuit of value creation for the Shareholders. The Company
is committed to enhancing its corporate governance practices
appropriate to the conduct and the development of the Group
and will review such practices from time to time to ensure that the
Company complies with statutory and professional standards and
aligns with the latest development.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising the Company’s
affairs. It should act in the best interests of the Company and
its Shareholders at all times. The Board sets strategies for the
Company and monitors the performance and activities of the senior
management.

The executive Directors are responsible for the day-to-day
operations of the Company whereas the independent non-
executive Directors are responsible for ensuring a high standard of
financial and management reporting to the Board and Shareholders
as well as to provide a balanced composition in the Board so that
there is a strong independent element on the Board.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wu Wei (Chairman)
Mr. Xiao Guoqing (Deputy chairman)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wu Junbao
Mr. Lu Zhen

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Hung Ka Hai, Clement

Dr. Zhu Guobin

Dr. Zang Yunzhi

The composition of the Board is reviewed regularly to ensure that it
has a good balance of expertise, skills and experience, which can
meet the requirements of the business of the Group. The Directors’
biographical information is set out on pages 44 to 49 in this annual
report.

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and
the management. The Board is responsible for providing high-level
guidance and effective oversight of the management while day-to-
day management of the Group is delegated to the management
team of each respective subsidiary. Generally speaking, the Board is
responsible for:

° Formulating the Group’s long-term strategy and monitoring
the implementation thereof;

° Approval of dividends;

o Reviewing and approving the interim and annual reports;

° Ensuring good corporate governance system that integrates
environment, social and governance aspects and compliance;

° Monitoring the performance of the management;

° Reviewing and approving any material acquisition and
disposal of assets and other material transactions.

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE BOARD MEMBERS

Except for Mr. Wu Wei, Mr. Xiao Guoqging and Mr. Wu Junbao, who
are cousins of each other, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
there is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship among the other Directors. All of them are free to
exercise their independent judgments.
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AND TIME COMMITMENT

The Board authorises the management to carry out the strategy
that have been approved. During the year under review, four Board
meetings were held and the principal business transacted including
but not limited to approving interim results and report, as well as
assessing business development and business performance. The
attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings, Board
committees meetings and general meeting for the year ended 31

December 2024 is set out as follows:

ESCHERREBBRA

EZeRETEERTOHANRE - ©
CEFEN  EFEeHBANAERE 2
BEEZFTEZHEHBEETRNLEREZE
BEMEE WA EEBRERMNKRE - &
EERNEZE2024F12A31BHILFEZEE
g EFEZESRRMRERGLRFEE
ST -

Number of Meeting
Attended/Eligible Attended
gRLE/
BFERHERH

Audit Remuneration  Nomination General®

Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting

Board Members EZgNE EXE EXZEY® FHEEE REZEY REAEN
Mr. Wu Wei REXE 44 NATBEA N/A TNE A 1/1 11
Mr. Xiao Guoging BEELE 4/4 N/A i A 11 N/A i A 11
Mr. Wu Junbao RERTE 44 NATER N/A TN A N/A TN A 11
Mr. Lu Zhen BEESAE 4/4 N/A N6 A N/A N6 A N/A N6 A 11
Mr. Hung Ka Hai, Clement & E%4E 3/4 3/3 11 11 11
Dr. Zhu Guobin REDHEL 4/4 3/3 1/1 1/1 1/1
Dr. Zang Yunzhi AL 4/4 3/3 N/A TN N/A TN 1/1

All Directors have access to the joint company secretaries who are
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are complied
and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

Apart from the regular Board meetings, the chairman of the Board
also held a meeting with independent non-executive Directors
without the presence of other Directors.

Note:

(1) Mr. Lu Zhen attended the annual general meeting held on 7 June
2024 by way of teleconference.
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The Board ensures that its members are supplied, in a timely
manner, with all necessary information in a form and of a quality
appropriate to enable the Board to discharge its duties.

The minutes of Board meetings recorded all the details of the
matters considered by the Board and the decisions reached,

including any concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views
expressed. Minutes of Board meetings are kept by the joint
company secretaries and are available for inspection by any
Director.

A.

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the CG Code, the role of the chairman of the
Board and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Wu Wei,
the chairman of the Board, provides leadership to the Board
in terms of establishing policies and business directions,
and in charge of the overall management and strategic
development of the Group. The Company has no chief
executive officer and the daily operation and management of
the Group has been carried out by a group of experienced
management team members.

Non-executive Directors

Each of the non-executive Directors has a term of
appointment of three years commencing from the listing
date (i.e. 12 June 2019) of the Company and each of the
independent non-executive Directors has a term of one year
commencing from the listing date of the Company or his date
of appointment. Their respective contracts will be renewed
automatically upon expiry.

During the year under review, the Company had three
independent non-executive Directors and complied with
Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. Among them, Mr. Hung
Ka Hai, Clement has appropriate professional qualifications
and experience in financial matters in compliance with Rules
3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of their
independence. The Company confirms all the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

All the Directors are appointed for a specific term and
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual
general meeting. Pursuant to the articles of association
of the Company (the “Articles of Association”) and CG
Code, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to, but not less than, one-third) shall retire from office
and be eligible for re-election at each annual general meeting,
provided that every Director is subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. In addition, any new
Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting and be subject to re-election.

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Wu
Wei, Mr. Wu Junbao and Dr. Zang Yunzhi will be subject to
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Responsibilities of Directors and Company Secretary

All Directors fully appreciate their role and duties as Directors
of the Company.

New Director will be given an introduction to the Group’s
major business activities, induction into their responsibilities
and duties, and other regulatory requirements.

Mr. Mao Chaosheng, the joint company secretary, is
responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters and ensuring that Board policy and procedures, and
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure
compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong
laws, the Company also engages Ms. Ng Sau Mei, a director
and head of the Listing Services Department of TMF Hong
Kong Limited, as the joint company secretary to assist Mr.
Mao in discharging the duties of a company secretary of the
Company. Ms. Ng’s primary contact person at the Company
is Mr. Mao Chaosheng, the joint company secretary of the
Company.
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The joint company secretaries are also responsible for
keeping all Directors updated on the Listing Rules and other

relevant regulatory requirements.

E. Directors’ and Officers’ Liability

Appropriate insurance cover on Directors’ and officers’
liabilities has been provided by the Company to cover

potential legal actions against Directors and officers.

F.  Training and Support for Directors and Joint Company

Secretaries

Each newly appointed Director has received comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her
appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Group
and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory

requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing
briefing and professional development to Directors at the

Company’s expenses whenever necessary.

The Company provides regular updates relating to the
Group’s business and the legislative and regulatory
environments in which the Group conducts its business to

the Directors.

The Directors are committed to complying with the CG Code.
All Directors have participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant for the year ended 31 December
2024. The Company will arrange internally facilitated briefings
for Directors and reading materials on relevant topics will
be issued to Directors where appropriate. All Directors
are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the

Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company
has provided reading materials on corporate governance
matters and update on the Listing Rules to all Directors for
their reference and studying. Besides, all the Directors has
also read online training/briefing on regulatory development,
directors’ duties or other relevant topics. Record of training
of each Director for the year ended 31 December 2024 were

kept by the Company.
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The individual training record of each Director received for the
year ended 31 December 2024 is summarised as below:

Participation in Continuous Professional Development

Programme in 2024

Directors

=

Executive Directors
Mr. Wu Wei (Chairman)
Mr. Xiao Guoqing (Deputy Chairman)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wu Junbao
Mr. Lu Zhen

Independent Non-executive
Directors

Mr. Hung Ka Hai, Clement

Dr. Zhu Guobin

Dr. Zang Yunzhi

During the year under review, Mr. Mao Chaosheng and Ms.
Ng Sau Mei, the joint company secretaries of the Company,
took not less than 15 hours of professional training to update
their skills and knowledge in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the

Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as
the Group’s code of conduct to regulate the securities
transactions of the Directors and the relevant employees.
Having made specific enquiries, all Directors confirmed that
they have complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2024.

Board Committees

As an integral part of sound corporate governance, the Board
has established the following committees whose authorities
and functions, compositions and duties are set out below:

(1) Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (“Audit
Committee”) has been established with specific written
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee (which were available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company) have included
those specific duties as set out in the CG Code, with
appropriate modifications when necessary. Pursuant to
its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is required,
amongst other things, to consider and recommend
to the Board the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditors and to approve their
remuneration, to review the interim and annual financial
statements, to review the Group’s financial controls,
internal controls and risk management system including
the adequacy of resources, qualification and experience
of staff of the accounting and financial reporting
function and their training programmes and budget,
and to consider any findings of major investigation of
internal control matters as delegated by the Board or
on its own initiative and management’s response. The
Audit Committee should meet at least twice each year
and when the need arises.
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During the year ended 31 December 2024, the
Audit Committee comprised three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Hung Ka Hai, Clement
as the chairman of the Audit Committee and Dr. Zhu
Guobin, Dr. Zang Yunzhi as the members of the Audit
Committee, in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, three meetings
of Audit Committee were held to review the annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2023, the
interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2024,
the risk management and internal control systems,
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit
function, and perform its other duties under its terms of
reference.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2024 and has also discussed the
internal control, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group. The Audit Committee is of
the opinion that the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with the applicable
accounting standard, the Listing Rules and the statutory
requirements and that adequate disclosures have been
made in this annual report.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company
(‘Remuneration Committee”) has been established
with specific written terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee (which were
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company) have included the duties which are set
out in the CG Code, with appropriate modifications
when necessary.
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Pursuant to its terms of reference, the Remuneration
Committee is required, amongst other things, (i) to
determine, with delegated responsibility from the Board,
the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management; (ii) to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors; (iii) to review and approve
performance-based remuneration by reference to
corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board
from time to time; (iv) to review and approve the
compensation payable to the executive Directors,
non-executive Directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their office
or appointment to ensure that such compensation is
determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that such compensation is otherwise fair
and not excessive for the Company; (v) to ensure
that no Director is involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration; and (vi) to review and approve matters
relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee should
meet at least once a year and when the need arises.

The Board has adopted the Director and Employee
Remuneration Policy which sets out the general
principles which guide the Group to deal with the
remuneration matters. As a general principle, a fair
market level of remuneration will be provided to retain
and motivate high quality Directors, senior management
and employees, and attract experienced people of
high calibre to oversee the business and development
of the Group. Executive Directors’ and non-executive
Directors’ remuneration packages shall comprise fixed
and variable components linking to individual and
the Group’s performance and comparable to other
companies similar to the Group. As for independent
non-executive Directors, only fixed Directors’ fee shall
be paid and be set at an appropriate level by reference
to the relevant time commitment and the size and
complexity of the Group and benchmarked against a
peer group.
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During the year under review, the Remuneration
Committee comprised an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, namely Dr. Zhu Guobin,
as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee, an
executive Director of the Company, namely Mr. Xiao
Guoging and an independent non-executive Director
of the Company namely, Mr. Hung Ka Hai, Clement
as the members of the Remuneration Committee in
compliance with the Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, one meeting
of Remuneration Committee was held. During the
meeting, the Remuneration Committee reviewed
the performance-based remuneration and the
compensation payable to the executive Directors and
assessed performance of executive Directors.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five
highest paid individuals are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

None of the Directors waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration and there were no emoluments paid by
the Group to any of the Directors as an inducement to
join, or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for
loss of office.

The biographies of members of the senior management
team at the date of this annual report are disclosed
in the section headed “Directors’ and Senior
Management’s Biographical Information” in this annual
report. Pursuant to the CG Code, the emoluments of
the senior management (excluding Directors) for the
year ended 31 December 2024 are within the following
bands:

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z£%1,000,000/8 7T

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7TZ1,500,000/%& 7T
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 722,000,000/ 7T
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3

Nomination Committees

The nomination committee of the Company
(“Nomination Committee”) has been established
with specific written terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee (which were
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company) have included the duties which are set
out in the CG Code, with appropriate modifications
when necessary.

The duties of the Nomination Committee are mainly to (i)
review the structure, size, composition and diversity of
the Board at least annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board; (i) identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board; (jii)
assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors; (iv) make recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors; (v) formulate a policy
concerning diversity of members of the Board (the
“Board Diversity Policy”), as appropriate; and (vi) to
review the measurable objectives that the Board has
set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy and the
progress on achieving the objectives.

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) which sets out the selection
criteria and the evaluation procedures in nominating
candidates to be appointed or re-appointed as Directors
of the Company. The objective of the Nomination
Policy is to assist the Nomination Committee in
fulfiling its duties and responsibilities as provided in its
terms of reference. The Nomination Committee shall
consider any and all candidates recommended as
nominees for Directors to the Nomination Committee
by any Directors or Shareholders of the Company
in accordance with the Articles of Association. The
Nomination Committee will take into consideration
a candidate’s qualification, experience, expertise
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and knowledge, the requirements applicable to the
Company and the structure and composition of the
Board, identify, review and nominate with diligence and
care candidates suitably qualified as Board members
before making recommendations to the Board for their
final appointment. The Nomination Committee may
also undertake its own search process for candidates
and may retain the services of professional search
firms or other third parties to assist in identifying
and evaluating potential nominees. The Nomination
Committee shall endeavour to find individuals of high
integrity who possess the qualifications, qualities, skills,
experience and independence (in case of independent
non-executive Directors) to effectively represent the
best interests of all Shareholders. Candidates will be
selected for their ability to exercise good judgment, and
to provide practical insights and diverse perspectives.
The Nomination Committee may use any process
it deems appropriate for the purpose of evaluating
candidates including personal interviews, background
checks, written submission by the candidates and
third party references. As far as practicable, nominees
for each election or appointment of Directors shall be
evaluated using a substantially similar process. The
Nomination Committee shall review the Nomination
Policy from time to time.

During the year under review, the Nomination
Committee comprised the chairman of the Board and
executive Director of the Company, namely Mr. Wu
Wei, as the chairman of the Nomination Committee
and the independent non-executive Directors of the
Company namely, Dr. Zhu Guobin and Mr. Hung Ka
Hai, Clement, as the members of the Nomination
Committee in compliance with Rule 3.27A of the Listing
Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, one meeting of
Nomination Committee was held.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy with a
view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development of the
Group. The Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level
as an essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development.

In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.

Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will review the Board’s composition
under diversified perspectives and monitor the implementation of
the Board Diversity Policy annually. During the year under review,
the Nomination Committee has reviewed the Board’s composition
(including the gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service) which has been disclosed on pages 44 to 49 in this
annual report and considered the current Board’s composition is
appropriate.

As at the date of this report, the Board consisted of both male and
female Directors, the Board is of the opinion that board diversity
(including gender diversity) has been achieved. The Board will
continue to maintain board diversity and ensure the effectiveness of
the Board Diversity Policy.
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WORKFORCE DIVERSITY

Diversity is well supported in our corporate culture. Our employment
practice complies with applicable laws and regulations and does
not discriminate on the grounds of ethnicity, race, age, gender,
marital status and religious belief. The gender ratio in the workforce
remains balanced for the year ended 31 December 2024, which is
close to 1:1. The Group has adopted a written human resources
policy to govern the recruitment and diversity of workforce.
Opportunities for employment, training and career development are
equally opened to all eligible employees without discrimination. The
Group will continue the mechanism to maintain the gender diversity
in workforce. Further details of gender ratio has been disclosed in
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is dedicated to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance and the Board is responsible for performing
the corporate governance duties as stipulated in the Listing Rules.

During the year under review, the Board had developed and
reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and review the compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

BOARD’S INDEPENDENCE

The Company has established the following mechanisms in
accordance with B.1.4 of the CG Code to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board:

(i) Composition of the Board and Board Committees

o The Board endeavours to ensure the appointment of at
least three and at least one-third of its members being
independent non-executive Directors (or such higher
threshold as may be required by the Listing Rules from
time to time).

o Apart from complying with the requirements prescribed
by the Listing Rules as to the composition of certain
Board committees, independent non-executive
Directors will be appointed to other Board committees
as far as practicable to ensure independent views are
available.
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(i) Independence Assessment

o The Nomination Committee must strictly adhere to the
Nomination Policy and the independence assessment
criteria as set out in the Listing Rules with regard to
the nomination and appointment of independent non-
executive Directors.

o Each independent non-executive Director is also
required to inform the Company and the Stock
Exchange as soon as practicable if there is any change
in his/her own personal particulars that may materially
affect his/her independence.

° The Nomination Committee is mandated to assess
annually the independence of all independent non-
executive Directors by reference to the independence
criteria as set out in the Listing Rules to ensure that
they can continually exercise independent judgement.

(i) Compensation

° No equity-based remuneration (e.g. share options
or grants) with performance related elements will be
granted to independent non-executive Directors as
this may lead to bias in their decision making and
compromise their objectivity and independence.

(iv)  Board Decision Making

° Directors are entitled to seek further information and
documentation from the management on the matters
to be discussed at Board meetings. They can also seek
assistance from the joint company secretary of the
Company and, where necessary, independent advice
from external professional advisers at the Company’s
expense.

o Directors shall not vote or be counted in the quorum
on any board resolution approving any contract or
arrangement in which such Director or any of his/her
close associates has a material interest.
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o The chairman of the Board shall at least annually hold
meetings with the independent non-executive Directors
without the presence of other Directors to discuss
major issues and any concerns.

The Board will monitor the implementation and effectiveness of the
above mechanisms annually to ensure the Board has a balance of
skills, independent views and input are available to the Board.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board acknowledges that it is its responsibility to prepare
financial statements of the Company for each financial period which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
ensure that financial statements are prepared in accordance with
statutory and regulatory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Board also ensures the timely publication of the
financial statements of the Company.

The Board confirms that, to the best of its knowledge and, having
made appropriate enquires, it considers that the Company has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and has prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis accordingly.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board conducted an
annual review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems based on the confirmation made by
the senior management and inputs from the Audit Committee. The
Board considered that the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, including the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions, are effective and adequate, and the Company has
complied with the risk management and internal control code
provisions during the year.
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The Board has an overall and ongoing responsibility for the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems, and reviewing their
effectiveness. It is acknowledged that risk management and internal
control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material adverse
change or damage.

The Board, through its risk oversight role, ensures that the senior
management establishes an effective risk management, consistent
with the Group’s strategy and risk appetite. The senior management
establishes risk management policies and internal control processes
to identify, evaluate and manage risks. Each subsidiary implements
such policies and processes in the daily operations and reports
significant risks identified to the senior management regularly.
The senior management assesses and evaluates these significant
risks reported then allocates sufficient resources to address these
risks and monitors the risk management status reported from the
relevant subsidiary from time to time. The senior management will
communicate the risk management and internal control findings to
the Board for its assessment of the effectiveness of the relevant risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.

Pursuant to the CG Code, the Company has established an
internal audit function which generally carries out the analysis and
independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems.

The internal audit department of the Group shall review material
internal control aspects of the Group, including financial,
operational and compliance controls as well as risk management
function, duties which include (i) reviewing and reporting on internal
and operational controls; (ii) following-up on the suggestions
made by external auditors; (i) ongoing monitoring and reviews
on different operating cycles; and (iv) special review of areas of
concern identified by senior management. It reports to the Board
from time to time, and also reports the findings to the Audit
Committee at least twice a year and on ad-hoc basis. The findings
are communicated with the senior management and actions are
taken to resolve defects as and when identified. No material internal
control defects were identified during the year.

China East Education Holdings Limited «" FEIRAHBERER QA

SHAKENRAREERAFIEER
SHEEERRERFENEE TR ﬁﬁ*ﬁxﬁ(
- ZHEREREERABEIERST
E”ﬂ%ﬁ’ﬁ?t/ﬁﬁfﬂi iﬁk%ﬂ‘%ﬁ’fﬁZH
@ MARERTEEEATHNES K
TE?ET’EH?%@H@EE;TE’M%EE °

Exgi R HAREEACHRRSRER
BREIARZEREE YNEAKEZ
R R RERERE - SREEEH T ERE
BHR R NEREEIRAR - PARR - AR R
EEAR - REFAFENATELETE
BZEBRERRE  TEHRSREERE
WEMBEANZERNER - SREEEGH
BMAHEZEFEFRREZERNRR - B
‘ANEFRRTERNANGEEZS AR - WE
SZAMABEFARTRELREZARER
AR - BRERES K EREENAEDE
THRREEGES S UHTHAEE
MHEA R ETE M N ERE IR R A 2 BRI

RIBEERER

TR AAAERIAHBE
BWEE - HEE
2

EHAEBENRRERE R
BRAFESEE DT &

7=

MR ESIE R4t
BT

AEBENABEPIERS ARENE
RAREITEG - BEYH - £ERAR
MR fiﬁﬂz - ETEBREROH A

REEERFRERRRE ¢ () REINEZ
REm R 2 2 (|ii)¥¢?\ﬁ%‘@%@%ﬁ?&ﬁ
FEEERRE - R SREEEMH

ZBIREETERES - ETRAE
EZER UBFRERZEEWMEEH
BRELMRRATBFREELRS - BH
ERDESRERBRBRRSEL MR
A Bl R PG 12 R &2 SRERTTEDAROR » F AL B
BT B RH) R ERESFREREG o



Corporate Governance Report &t ¥ &8k &

The Group has a policy for handling and dissemination of inside
information including relevant control processes and safeguards.
The processes and safeguards are implemented as needed by
the relevant department heads and management involved in the
handling and dissemination of inside information.

The Group is committed to preventing incidents of bribery,
extortion and fraud. The Group has implemented whistleblowing
policy and anti-corruption policy for employees, suppliers and other
stakeholders who have concerns about any suspected misconduct
or malpractice within the Group to raise concerns, in confidence
and anonymity. The Audit Committee has overall responsibility
for monitoring and reviewing the operation of such policy and
any recommendations for action resulting from investigation
into complaints. For details, please refer to the section headed
“6. Fairness and Impartiality as a Solid Foundation of Regulated
Operations” in our Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

External Auditor

The Directors are responsible for preparing the financial statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2024 to reflect a true and
fair view of the Company’s and the Group’s financial position and
financial performance and cash flows for the year.

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2024, the generally accepted accounting principles in
Hong Kong, HKFRSs and Hong Kong Accounting Standards are
adopted, with consistent use of appropriate accounting policies,
for making reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates. The
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 were
prepared on a going concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the auditor are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report in this annual report.

For the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this
report, the external auditor of the Group is Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu. Fees of auditing services and non-auditing services
provided by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and its member
firms of the same international network for the year ended 31
December 2024 were approximately RMB4.2 million and RMBO0.3
million respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this
report, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and its member firms
of the same international network provided non-audit services
mainly on interim review, taxation services and other reporting
services. These non-audit services are engaged only as they are
more effective or economical than those available from other
service providers and will not constitute adverse impact on the
independence of the external auditor. The nature and ratio of
annual fees to external auditor for non-audit services and for audit
services in 2024 have been scrutinised by the Audit Committee.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely
manner after each general meeting.

Convening of extraordinary general meeting and putting forward
proposals

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at
a general meeting of the Company according to the Articles of
Association. Any one or more members holding as at date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the joint company secretary
of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting of
the Company to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition.

If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the
procedures are available on the website of the Company.

Shareholders and other stakeholders may at any time send their
enquiries and concerns to the Board by addressing them to the
joint company secretary by post to the Hong Kong principal office
of the Company at Suite 3207, 32/F, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has adopted the third amended and restated
articles of association on 7 June 2024. There was no change in the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company during
the period from 7 June 2024 to the date of this annual report.

INDUSTRY POLICY DIRECTION

In October 2021, the Central Committee of the Communist
Party of China and the State Council of the PRC issued the
“Opinions on Promoting the High-Quality Development of Modern
Vocational Education” ({(BARESRABEHESEELEN
E 7)) (the “Opinions”). The Opinions confirm that vocational
education is an important part of the national education system
and human resource development of the PRC and it shoulders the
important responsibility of cultivating diverse talents, passing on
technical skills, and promoting employment and entrepreneurship.
Pursuant to the Opinions, efforts should be made to speed up
the development of the modern vocational education system and
cultivate more high-quality technical professionals and consummate
craftsmen in the PRC. The Opinions also set a goal that a modern
vocational-education system should be established in the PRC by
2025 and the vocational education of the PRC should be ranked
among the best globally by 2035. The Opinions specifically include
but not limited to the following measures:

- Strengthen the characteristics of vocational education types,
including consolidating the positioning of vocational education
types, promoting the vertical integration of different levels of
vocational education, and promoting the horizontal integration
of different types of education.
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Improving on the school-running system of industry-education
integration, including optimizing the supply structure of
vocational education, improving the diversified school-running
pattern, and cooperating to promote the deep integration of
industry and education.

- Innovating the school-enterprise cooperation mechanism,
including enriching the form of vocational schools, expanding
the content of school-enterprise cooperation, and optimizing
the policy environment for school-enterprise cooperation.

- Deepening education and teaching reform, including
strengthening the development of dual-qualified teachers,
innovating teaching models and methods, improving teaching
content and teaching materials, and improving the quality
assurance system.

- Building a vocational education brand with Chinese
characteristics, including improving the level of sino-foreign
cooperation in running schools, expanding sino-foreign
cooperation and exchange platforms; and promoting careers
to go global.

In May 2022, the newly revised “Vocational Education Law of the
People’s Republic of China” was officially implemented, clarifying
that vocational education and general education were equally
important, which significantly improved the recognition of vocational
education.

In October 2022, the General Office of the Central Committee of
the Communist Party of China and the General Office of the State
Council issued the “Opinions on Strengthening the Construction of
Highly Skilled Talent Teams in the New Era”.

The Group actively responded to the call of relevant important
documents, insisted on teaching reform to deepen characteristic
vocational education, and continued to help build a team of highly
skilled talents in the new era. We closely combined industry and
teaching to make them support and promote each other, and
through school-enterprise cooperation with well-known enterprises,
we rationally used the resources of both parties to achieve the goal
of school-enterprise win-win and play their respective leading roles.
The Group believes that the vocational education business of the
Group satisfies the requirement to develop the modern vocational
education system of the above policies. Therefore, it will benefit the
development of the Group in the future.
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IMPACT ON NEW LEGISLATION, POLICY AND
PROCEDURES

Over 90% of the operations of the Group are carried in the mainland
China. Any change in the policy and procedure in the mainland
China may have adverse effects on the Group’s operation and
results. Save as disclosed above, there was no material change in
the policy and procedure for vocational training education industry
in the mainland China for the year ended 31 December 2024.

Also, the introduction of new legislation and rules by the Stock
Exchange, the Securities and Futures Commission and other
regulatory bodies in Hong Kong and overseas may induce changes
in market conditions that in turn adversely affect the operating
results of the Group.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
the Shareholders of the Company. A shareholders communication
policy was adopted to ensure that Shareholders are provided with
ready, equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company. The Company has established
various channels of communications with its Shareholders such
as publication of interim and annual reports, press release and
announcement of the latest development of the Company in a
timely manner. To promote effective communications, the Company
also maintains a website at www.chinaeastedu.com, where
updated information on the Company’s business developments
and operations and other information are posted, including all the
regulatory announcements relating to the Company and the poll
results on the business day following the general meeting (if any).
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The general meeting of the Company provides a forum for
exchange of views between the Shareholders and the Board.
The chairman of the Board, the Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors), chairman or members of the Board
committees and senior management of the Group, where
applicable, are available to answer questions at the general meeting
of the Company.

The rights of the Shareholders of the Company and the procedures
for demanding a poll on resolution at general meeting are contained
in the Articles of Association. Details of such right to demand
a poll and the poll procedure are included in all circulars to the
Shareholders of the Company which will call for a general meeting
and will be explained during the proceedings of the meeting.

All resolutions proposed at general meeting will be voted by
poll. The poll voting results will be posted on the websites of the
Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.
chinaeastedu.com) on the same date of the relevant general
meetings.

Under the CG Code, the chairman of the Board should attend the
annual general meeting of the Company.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings for
separate issues, including re-election of retiring Directors. The
Company’s notice to Shareholders for the annual general meeting
will be sent to Shareholders at least 21 days before the meeting
and notices of other general meetings will be sent to Shareholders
at least 14 days before the meetings. The chairman of the Board,
the chairmen of the Board committees and the external auditor will
be available at the annual general meeting to answer questions
from the Shareholders.

The forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”) will be held on 27
May 2025.

The Company will continue to enhance communication and
relationship with its Shareholders. Enquiries from the Shareholders
of the Company are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of
shareholders communication policy in respect of the year ended 31
December 2024, and is of the view that the current shareholders
communication policy has been effectively implemented.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

REPORTING PERIOD

The time span of this Environmental, Social and Governance
(the “ESG”) Report (the “Report”) is from 1 January 2024 to 31
December 2024 (the “Year”).

BASIS OF PREPARATION

This Report is compiled in accordance with the requirements of the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide contained
in Appendix C2 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). This Report has been prepared in compliance with
the mandatory disclosure requirements and the “Comply or explain”
provisions set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide of the Stock Exchange, and is based on the
reporting principles of “Materiality”, “Quantitative”, “Balance” and
“Consistency”.

o Materiality

The Group compiled the Report with focus on material issues by
reviewing the 2023 material issues assessment results for major
stakeholders through which material issues for the Year were
identified. The results of the material issues have been confirmed
by the Board in conjunction with the Report.

o Quantitative

Where practicable, the Group disclosed information on the
standards, methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation tools
used for the quantitative information, and source of conversion
factors used.

o Balance

The Report provides an unbiased picture of the environmental,
social, and governance performance of the Group during
the reporting period avoiding those selections, omissions or
presentation formats that may inappropriately influence the decision
or judgment by the readers.
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o Consistency

The Report discloses the statistical methodology for environmental
and socially relevant data and explains the changes in calculation
methods so that the data can be compared meaningfully in the
future.

IN-SCOPE ENTITIES

This is the sixth environmental, social and governance report
released by China East Education Holdings Limited. Unless
otherwise stated, the content of the Report mainly covers the ESG
performance and related information of China East Education
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries and its seven major brands,
including New East Culinary Education, Omick Education of
Western Cuisine and Pastry, Cuisine Academy, Xinhua Internet
Technology Education, Wisezone Data Technology Education,
Wontone Automotive Education and On-mind Fashion and Beauty
Education. The in-scope entities reported remain consistent with
the prior year.

INSTRUCTIONS OF REFERRAL

For convenience of statement and reading, China East Education
Holdings Limited is referred to as “China East Education” or the
“Company”, and China East Education Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries are referred to as the “Group” or “we” in the Report.

SOURCES OF INFORMATION

All information and cases contained in the Report are sourced from
publicly available information, internal documents, and relevant
statistics of the Group.

REPORT APPROVAL

The Board of the Company confirmed that it bears full responsibility
for the Company’s ESG strategies and reporting, and has reviewed
and approved the Report. The Report is written in both Chinese
and English. In case of any discrepancy, the Chinese version shall
prevail.
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ABOUT US

As the leading vocational training education provider in China,
the Group is committed to providing career-oriented innovative
vocational training education, which features practical skills training
as its core. We have a leading position in China in providing
vocational training education in culinary arts, information technology
and internet technology as well as auto services, and the goal is
to equip our students with solid knowledge and practical skills for
their chosen professions. Since our listing and looking back at the
year 2024, we have achieved remarkable results by adhering to our
strategic positioning in vocational education, further enhancing our
corporate governance capabilities and strengthening our overall
competitive strength.

During the Year, the Group actively participated in curriculum
development and compilation, and promoted the integration of
various types of education such as vocational education and liberal
education. The Group’s institutes aspired to proactively expand
their professional fields to meet the market needs. New East
Culinary Education organized a new course specialized in Chinese
and western caterings; Xinhua Internet Technology Education
conformed to the regional industrial layout and the transformation
of digital intelligence, and established a practical training base for
high-level skills; Wontone Automotive Education made courageous
attempts to promote the rapid implementation of numerous new
professions in the smart manufacturing category. Through the
diversified development of a cluster of professionals, the training
system of the Group was enriched, thereby providing more high-
calibre and skilled talents to the society.

The Group actively participated in and strengthened cooperation
with various enterprises, promoted the integration of industry
and education, strived to strengthen collaborative and synergetic
innovations, continuously deepened school-enterprise collaborative
education, as well as joined hands to develop a hub for training
high-calibre and skilled talents. During the Year, Xinhua Internet
Technology Education joined hands with Huawei, JD Education
and other well-known Internet enterprises to hold a new national
professional conference titled “Four New and Double-high
Talent Cultivation Scheme”. We have also further strengthened
cooperation with companies such as BYD, Chery, Sangfor, and
collaborated with Subaru (Japan), and other foreign institutions
to carry out talent co-development and training programs to
proactively provide students with overseas internship opportunities,
together with international projects such as study tours in Malaysia,
Japan and other countries.
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The Group always adheres to its initial philosophy of “love and
responsibility” and drives teachers, students and employees to
actively fulfil social responsibilities. With our unique advantages in
cultivating highly-skilled talents, we have fully demonstrated our
corporate responsibility in various public welfare and charitable
fields through educational poverty alleviation, community support,
and volunteer services. In July 2024, a public welfare activity with
the theme of “Fuelling the Dream” was undertaken by numerous
schools under New East Culinary to foster the combination of
modern nutrition and traditional Chinese culinary culture, and
demonstrate the Group’s commitment to its health-themed
initiative for China. In September 2024, we launched the “New
Start — Dream Building Public Welfare Activities” project again to
subsidize people with disabilities, veterans, etc., to enable more
aspiring youngsters to successfully start their own businesses or
get employed through sponsored skills educations, such that they
can open a new chapter in their lives.

The Group conscientiously fulfilled the duties of a third-party
evaluation agency, and orderly promoted the third-party evaluation
for the recognition of vocational skills. In 2024, numerous institutes
in Anhui, Chengdu, Hunan, Jiangxi, Zhengzhou, Shandong, Wuhan
and other provinces were approved as third-party evaluation
agencies for the recognition of vocational skills.

During the Year, the Group organized 93 new professional training
courses, and the various business departments researched,
developed and published approximately 20 teaching materials;
successfully obtained 90 patents and copyrights. The Group
has a total of 233 senior technical colleges and secondary
technical colleges. During the Year, the institutes under the Group
successfully applied for 10 master’'s workshops, which further
enhance the comprehensive strengths of schooling through
qualification upgrades, thereby nurturing national craftsmen with
the ideologies of proactive exploration and serious scholarship.
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MANAGEMENT IDEAS

Enterprise Mission

o Exploring the road to innovation and development of
education, and running the best vocational education in the
world.

Enterprise Spirits

o United, Practical, Pioneering, Dedicated.

Educational Concept

° Focus on practical skills training, combining theory with
practice.

° Love and responsibility.

Employment Concept

Talents are our guarantee.

° Build up a person: To gain the opportunities to develop
simultaneously with the cause of education and achieve
respect from the organization and colleagues with
contributions to the cause of education.

o Build self-value: To gain trust of the organization and others
by virtue.

° Build a career: To gain a career by talent and performance.
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1. SUSTAINABILITY MANAGEMENT

1.1. Sustainability Strategy

The mission of the Group is to provide the highest quality of
vocational training education in China. In order to firmly adhere to
our mission, the Group has formulated the practicable sustainability
strategy to ensure that such concept is integrated into the overall
development planning of the Company and serves as an important
guiding approach of our actions. Based on the current development
status and starting from the three key areas for sustainability of
economic growth, social inclusion and environmental protection,
we have clarified that as a leader of China’s vocational training
education, the Group needs to particularly focus on four main
areas: innovative initiative, equality and mutual benefit, green
environment and harmonious society.

1. WEHRBRERE

11, AHER R

REENFEmEEPERESKEENEE
HeEHE - BTBTHMANED - A5EH
EESIEE TR A IFE S REE - #
RE—ES2ERMANCENERERER
gl - WHEEATEBNEZERE o
BEERENR  BRMACLESR a6
RAMIRFEREE (AR FEEERBERE
i AR TIEATRBEREHREE
BE CASETEEHWINHEEESE
I BIETERE) - FEOA - FERERMNM
R o

The development of education is the foundation of sustainability. As the key to enhance the awareness and

RIFEEE) BEEHERARE
B ER

3 ability of social sustainability, the Group provides high-quality education that meets the needs of students
Inn_o_V3_tlve and markets by strengthening investment and innovation, expanding and diversifying the curriculum
Initiative struc on the basis of consohdatlng the or\gma\ educatlon concept

We adhere to the corporate culture of openness, transparency, integrity and compliance; actively

Equality and
Mutual Benefit

FEER

promote mutual communication with students and parents; pay attention to the professional
development and the realization of self-value of employees; reach a consensus with all partners in
the mdustry chain to bU|Id a healthy and mutua\ly beneﬂaa\ sustainable partner: sh|p

A £3 = L &

We are constantly committed to improving the efficiency of resource utilization to reduce the emissions

Green
Environment
BEOBER TEH B

BE & GIEES - 5|87

of greenhouse gases and waste in the process of teaching and operations. Meanwhile, we are promot-

ing solutions through our own brand advantages, leading all parties in the industry to actively promote

energy conservation and emission reduct\on and the construction of a SOCIety with green environment.
¥l s

WIEVBERT - R

“Dedicated” is one of the Group’s enterprise spirits. In order to give back to the society, we actively

Harmonious

Mg E HEEENL Tflt¥,§ fE - FREERNGE AL
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contribute to the country and society, advocate participation in social charity activities, undertake
corporate responsibility, and bU|Id a harmonious society.

Society - BEIELE - ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁl%&% ERtEEHNE - BEEFRA
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1.2. ESG Governance Structure

In order to achieve the sustainable and robust development of
an enterprise, we are well aware of the importance of a sound
corporate governance structure. It not only helps the enterprise
to rationalize the allocation of internal resources, but also ensures
long-term harmony with stakeholders to jointly promote the
sustainable development of the enterprise.

In order to better manage ESG-related matters, the Group has
established a corporate governance system including an ESG
working group. Among them, the Board, as the highest decision-
making body for ESG work, assumes overall responsibility for the
Group’s ESG strategy and reporting. The ESG working group is
the body responsible for the implementation of ESG work under
the Board. Its main responsibilities include analysing risks and
opportunities related to ESG and climate change and related
impacts, formulating overall ESG and climate risks management
goals, management strategies and guidelines, and reviewing the
progress of ESG-related and climate-related goals, and assisting
the Board to guide and monitor the Group’s formulation and
implementation of ESG-related strategies and work to achieve the
concept of sustainable development. The ESG working group is
headed by the secretary to the Board and the chief financial officer
of the Company is the deputy head. The members include the
heads of various functional departments and the heads of each
brand division. ESG-related functional departments and brand
divisions, according to their respective functional divisions and
overall deployment, are responsible for establishing and improving
the norms and procedures for ESG and climate risks management,
collecting, organizing and submitting information and data related to
ESG work, implementing the Company’s ESG projects and assisting
the relevant publicity, training and stakeholder communication.

ESG working group
ESGI{E/\E

All functional departments
and brand divisions
SIS e eI

1.2. ESGEAZME
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THEEESGIENATANTEETAE
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FHTE - WAREBHESGHR IS & [E AL
BEET  -ESGILIE/NMEAREZEETEA
EAEESGIIEMKIE T 2BERED
MTESG K R & £ 10 48 B3 /2 & B2 4% 38 K 48
B E  FITESCGRARRAKREERER
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llustrative Diagram on ESG Governance Structure of China East Education
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1.8. Statement of the Board

The Group deeply acknowledges the importance of good
corporate governance for sustainable development, especially the
governance of ESG-related matters. To this end, we continued to
strive to integrate the concept of sustainable development into the
Company’s overall strategies, policies and business plans, and
to continuously promote the improvement of its strategic working
system for sustainable development.

The Board is responsible for overseeing and approving the
management approach and strategy related to ESG and climate
risks, including identifying, evaluating, prioritising and managing
material issues related to ESG and climate risks. The ESG working
group is responsible for identifying key stakeholders and preparing
lists of materiality issues and analysis reports, etc., and reporting
the results to the Board. In line with its sustainability strategy,
the Group conducts a materiality assessment on ESG issues
on an annual basis, makes the management and enhancement
of materiality issues an annual ESG priority, and oversees the
performance and results of these issues.

In terms of risk management, the Board is responsible for assessing
and determining relevant ESG-related and climate change-related
risks, and ensuring that the Group has established appropriate and
effective ESG and climate risk management and internal control
systems. The Group has commenced an ESG and climate risk
identification and assessment to identify ESG and climate risks
that have significant impact on the Group, and reviewed internal
risk management gaps. Based on the potential risks, opportunities
and related impacts of material issues related to ESG and climate
change on business strategies, the Group reviewed the risk levels
of the identified ESG and climate risks and made corresponding
adjustments, and gradually integrated ESG and climate risks into
the corporate risk management process. In the future, the ESG
working group will also continue to identify and analyse ESG and
climate risks and opportunities and related impacts, and continue
to help optimize appropriate and effective ESG and climate risk
management and internal control systems.

China East Education Holdings Limited «" FEIRAHBERER QA
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In terms of target management, the Board is responsible for
approving the Group’s ESG-related and climate change-related
targets and reviewing the progress of their achievement; the ESG
working group is responsible for formulating the relevant targets
and work plans, overseeing the progress of implementation and
reviewing their effectiveness. The Group has set forward-looking
targets in four environmental areas, namely greenhouse gas
emissions, waste emissions, energy use and water use in certain
selected institutions and developed corresponding indicators and
action plans. During the Year, the Group reviewed the progress
of target institutions in achieving various environmental goals,
continuously tracked the actual actions taken by the institutions
on various indicators and formed record documents and review
reports. The Board regularly listened to reports on the progress
of realizing the established environmental goals, and confirmed
and reviewed the results of the progress of ESG-related and
climate change-related goals. The Group will continue to
summarize experiences from reviewing the progress of the realizing
environmental goals, adjust environmental goals in a timely manner
and optimize the implementation mechanism of goals, and promote
actions for emission reduction to more operating campuses.

1.4. Sustainability Communication

The Group always considers that the effective communication with
various stakeholders is the key to achieve long-term cooperation
and stable supply. Therefore, we attach great importance on the
demands of various stakeholders, ensuring timely and proactive
responses to their demands and expectations. Based on the
actual situation of our business and operation, we have established
diversified and continuous communication channels with investors/
shareholders, teachers/employees, suppliers/partners, students,
parents, government and regulatory authorities, communities and
media to ensure the effectiveness and transparency of mutual
communication with various stakeholders.
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Stakeholder Main Issues of Concern

EXBISE

Communication Major Communication Channels
Frequency TEBERE

FHEES

BERR

Investors/shareholders

KEE /R

Teachers/employees

e/ BT

Suppliers/partners
HIEm/ S 1ER M

Students
i

Business performance

Information disclosure
Compliant operation
Risk management
NERBRR
EEEKE

BREE

[\ B 3

Employment

Employee compensation

and benefits

Employee development

and training
Employee health and
safety

Labour standards
(=

8 T HHeatar

8 T 3R B
BTREREZS

25 TXER)

Business performance

Supply chain
management
Anti-corruption
NEIEBRR
HEpEER
R&ER

Students’ safety and
health

Teaching mode
Teaching quality
Employment support

BA 72 ERER
HERA
BREmE
FRESRF

Regular/
irregular
EH
TEHR

Regular/
irregular
T8,
TEH

Regular/
irregular
EH,
TEH

Regular/
irregular
EH,
TEHR
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General meeting of shareholders
Report disclosure

Investor meetings

Press releases/announcements
HKEX website

Official website investor relations section
&N

WERE

REERES

kYN

Bk 32 48

BHRIRE ERRERE
Communication on employees’
performance appraisal
Employee feedback

Internal publication

Team building activities
BTEMEZRM
BTEHERS

NER T4

EEEE)

Supplier evaluation mechanism
Supplier meetings

On-site research and investigation
G

HrEmes

B i FHHH

Satisfaction survey
Online/offline teaching platform
Community activities

Job placement and entrepreneurship
guidance and support
Employment follow-up visit
MEE RS
BE/BETHETS
HEES

BIBL IR Rk FF

REE
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Stakeholder

FzEEES

Parents
R

Government and
regulatory authorities

B R EEE R

Communities
BigtE

Media
e

Main Issues of Concern

ERIEE Frequency
BEAE

Students’ safety and e Regular/
health irregular
Teaching quality o EH/
B R MEER TRE HA
HERE
Compliant operation e Regular/
Taxation irregular
Emissions management ¢ &,
Use of resources TEH
Employment
Anti-corruption
PERERKE
HOEMNB
PEE R
BIREE A
=2
R&S

Community investment e Irregular
Emissions o TEH
Use of resources

Environment and natural

resources

fRIEE

t7193587)

BIREA

REREAER

Compliant operation e Regular/
Teaching quality irregular
Employment o TEH
Labour standards T H
Environment and natural

resources

BHREE

HEmE

=2

B TR

RERBARR

Communication

Major Communication Channels

IEBERE

Parent-teacher conferences
Home-school interaction
Principal’s mailbox

XEE

KIRE &

RE{EHE

Policy consultation

Site visit

Meetings and discussions with
government authorities
Report disclosure

Daily communication
B

R ER

B e s M A R
WMEWR

HE &M

Site visit

Press conference
Public welfare activities
RIG2H

Eribak iy

NEEE)

Social media

Press conference

Press releases/announcements
Interviews

R IR

FEEmg

il /N

Ban
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1.5. Materiality Assessment of Sustainability Issues

As there were no significant changes in the Group’s strategy, major
business scope and scale, and stakeholders during the Year, the
Group reviewed the issues database based on the materiality
assessment and its results for 2023, benchmarking industry
practices and taking into account the impact of the external
market, international standards and policy environment on its own
operating conditions, so that they are more closely aligned with
the actual operating conditions of the Group. During the Year, the
Group added the issue of “privacy and data security” in considering
industry practice. At the same time, based on the assessment on
two main dimensions of “materiality to the Group” and “materiality
to stakeholders”, the Group identified the material issues that the
Group needed to focus on for disclosure in 2024, and made key
disclosures on the “very important” and “important” issues identified
in the Report.

Materiality of issues “Very important”
[MREZ]

“Important”
[EZE]

BEEEM

1.5, AIRBEERAEEZENGE

HRARERRIE D - TBXBHRER
MR MBEHEAIRAFEARBELEEXN
B REBMER2023FFEE MM
BR - HETXREER  XEANEHE -
BREERBRRRRHEFEEBALY
2 HEBEBETRY  AEMEAEHE
ERZERI - AFE - AREEAEN
BE METIBANMBELZE|EE - [
B R HARENER ] R[S
MERAT M E M | M = BT
BETAEE024FEFEERENEE
HEE YR ABREFHMBRNZ[RE
Z2IRER|NHBEETEREKE

“Slightly important”
—REZ]

Name of ESG issue Employee development and Employee benefits Indoor air quality
ESG## e % 18 training BIRMN ENEREE
8 T 3R By
Teaching services and Employee health and safety ~ Non-hazardous waste
quality BETfREHEETS management
HERRBEE BERREYER
Human rights Supply chain management Noise
N e ER B®E
Anti-corruption Waste management Packaging materials usage
[RIEH REEYER BEMEEEA
Hazardous gas emissions Greenhouse gas emissions Climate change
BERERBEN B REEHEL AIRE L

Employment of child labour
and labour exploitation

BIRZETMEFHA

HEIE

Electricity consumption

=
=h

Water consumption

FA7K
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Community investment

Environment and natural
resources management
RIBERAAERER
Wastewater discharge and
management
FEKBERRELE IR
Environmental education and
publicity practice
RRYFHSEER
Responsible advocacy
BEANER

Student health and safety
BESGURERERZE
Innovation and R&D of
educational models
HEEN B
Privacy and data security
BALMESERLE



BERBHR

Water consumption
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" IS
]
S
[<]
£8
ﬁ *E Indoor air quality
® [543] ERNEREE

ﬁ Non-hazardous
3 5] ESE managgmem
2 BEBRENEE
=25 Noise
T E 1R
‘= .E Packaging materials
.9 usage
= BE B
s Climate change
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2
Environment and
natural resources
management

Greenhouse gas emissions
Community investment

Electricity consumption

Wastewater discharge
and management
BOKBERERE R
Environmental
education and
publicity practice
RRUBASHERE
Responsible advocacy
BRAENE

Student health and
safety
BESOEREERS
Innovation and R&D of
educational models

AR AT

Employee development and training
BIHRERE

Teaching services and quality
BBRGEKRE

Human rights

Anti-corruption

RIEE

Hazardous %&as emissions

BEBRRY

Employment of child labour and labour

exploitation

{ERE TS5 B R H

Employee benefits

BIEA

Employee health and safety
BEIREEZS

Supply chain management
HAEEEE

Hazardous waste management

HERENER

Environmental level
BREEE

Social level
HEEE

BERRREREE anac%/ and data security
BANBERD

Materiality to the Group

HALENEEE
Very important Important
REE BE

Slightly important
=T

Matrix of Materiality on Sustainability Issues of China East Education in 2024
PERRAHE 20245 EAFEERAAS EITER

2. SHAPING THE ROLE MODEL OF INDUSTRY ELITES
TO NURTURE PEOPLE

2.1. Advanced Concepts of Vocational Education

The Group unwaveringly upholds the educational tenet of “exploring
the road to innovation and development of education, and running
the best vocational education in the world”. We continuously
explore, innovate and optimize our own educational models in
the process of deeply cultivating vocational education, and set a
benchmark for vocational education through creating the following
five systems:

1. Education Research & Development System

2. Professional Accomplishment Education System

3. Work-Study Combination Education System

4.  Teaching Supervision System

5. Entrepreneurship and Employment Guarantee System

2. BFXT  BETEEEAE

21, GEMBEHEER
REEBRFIBRIFHRRHAE NAIFTEE
B2l HEASTOBEHRS I HRER
B AMBEHENBRESR  FERE -
BIFTAMEBILE BNHRERN - WBBITE
FREBER - #TBEHEET

1. HEMEER

2. BEHERZA

5. BIFtERERER
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In March 2024, in terms of vocational education, it was proposed
in the Government Work Report of the National People’s Congress
and the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference to
“run special education and continuing education well, guide and
standardise the development of private education, and vigorously
improve the quality of vocational education”. In July 2024, the Third
Plenary Session of the 20th Central Committee of the Communist
Party of China was held in Beijing, at which the “Decision of the
Central Committee of the Communist Party of China on Further
Comprehensively Deepening Reform and Promoting Chinese-
style Modernisation ({/ A R EF R — 2 2 R L EE HEE
KIBARALHIRTED)” was considered and approved, which clearly
proposed to accelerate the construction of a vocational education
system that integrates vocational education with general education
while integrating industry with education. The Group has kept pace
with the current trends, continuously explored and deepened the
reform on teaching, devoted its efforts to build a distinctive brand of
vocational education, and continued to contribute to the nurturing
of outstanding and highly-skilled talents in the new era. Through
continuously deepening cooperation with well-known enterprises,
we closely integrated the education with industry needs, focused
on promoting the industry through the education, industry-
school cooperation, and serving the economic development of
the industry, and achieved the goal of mutual benefit and win-win
relationship between schools and enterprises.
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Mutual industry-education integration and collaborative education EHGFEFRIEA

Students from Taiyuan Wontone heading to Anhui Chery as interns
AREBREFHLRFTHEEER

Case sharing: Wontone Automotive upheld the concept of “mutual industry-education integration, school-enterprise
commonality, and direct access to learning and occupation”, and made in-depth cooperation with automotive-related
enterprises, while enabling students to consolidate and enhance their foundation of theories during the internship
and put it into practice through pre-job training and internships. In this process, students can fully understand and
meet the needs of enterprises, thus achieving a transition from school to business in advance. On 4 March 2024,
Anhui Wontone organized the ninth batch of students to join BYD as interns. As of the Year, Anhui Wontone has
cumulatively supplied nearly one thousand skilled talents to BYD, which has highly recognized the technical level and
working performance of students from Anhui Wontone. On 3 July and 23 September 2024, Taiyuan Wontone under
Wontone Automotive Education organized students majoring in automobile to undertake internships at Qingdao
Chery and Anhui Chery respectively.

Pln=Z - BRAERAIEHNLR ROEE  SBHESINES  ESEEECEREAIE  MBARIEIIFIE
HEE  FEAEEETRZEENRESIEREN  WERNERP « EUIRES - BERIUFRSD THRMNMERDESR
< MR ERNERISEMNBE - 2024F3A40 - ZREBBEBENMBFRIALTHEERE  HES
F - ZHREBDRFTR/EDHEEXTHTEREAT LEEFRERALTHEREENEMKTERITIERR -
2024F7A3HMOA23H @ BBAEHER TARBBEM TEZEXZESHEET N  “HAKEHEES -

b BE M

School-enterprise commonality to create the future together RN Y N

Leaders from China East Education visiting enterprises for research and investigation
RER A A RGP EE AT

Case sharing: In order to deepen the industry-education integration, from 23 to 24 September 2024, the main leaders of the
Automotive Business Department of China East Education Group, Anhui Wontone Senior Technical School, and Nanjing
Wontone Automobile Vocational Technical School formed a corporate inspection team to conduct in-depth communication
and on-site visits, as well as return visits to employed students in Suzhou and Yangzhou. The itinerary covers benchmark
enterprises in multiple industries such as automobiles and shipping, aiming to explore diversified cooperation models and
promote the close integration of the education chain, talent chain, industry chain, and innovation chain.

EPINZF - HRMCEHRE - 2024F9A23HF24H - FEIRFHEKETEEEE  THEBRSAKRISR ERE
BAERIERNEZRGHEMDEZERE - HaM - BNFRE TRAREENER R ESFOES - (TIEEE
T S S ETTENFREE - BERRSTUEAER - (RBEHREHE - ATHEEERE  ABTENEERS
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2.2. High Quality Education Investment
Development of high-quality teaching materials

In China, vocational education has entered a new journey of high-
quality development to improve quality, foster excellence, increase
value and empower new momentum. As a leading enterprise in the
field of vocational education, during the Year, subordinate schools
of the Group actively combined their teaching content, focused
on the three major policy directions of “integration of industry and
education, collaboration between vocational and general education,
and digital transformation”, and developed new textbooks that
keep pace with the times, covering topics such as special dishes
preparation, computer software development, and new energy
vehicle technology. Among them, New East Culinary Education
published 6 external textbooks, and another 2 textbooks had
been approved by the Ministry of Human Resources and Social
Security as part of the “14th Five-Year Plan” textbooks; Xinhua
Internet Technology Education published 3 external textbooks and
compiled 6 internal textbooks; Wontone Automotive Education
compiled 2 internal textbooks, making a positive contribution to the
development and construction of vocational education textbooks.

Launch of Online Education

The Group has responded positively to documents published by the
Ministry of Education, such as the Guiding Opinions on Promoting
the Healthy Development of Online Education (BB ETE LR
FfEEIREAEE S B)) and Safety Guarantee Requirements for
Video Live Online Teaching Platforms ((Ei&E&E FHEF 4L 2
IREEZE3K)), and actively promoted the strategic action of education
digitalization in China. We relied on its own resources of Wisezone
and cooperating with the online education division to organise the
research and development of “Zhiyuanzaixian”, a video live online
education platform. After five revisions, the platform provides a
more convenient cross-platform usage experience. The front page
is currently divided into eight segments (video, live streaming,
certification, etc.), and it has over 10,900 cumulative users and
over 50,000 cumulative videos uploaded; during the Year, the
total number of uploaded course videos has exceeded 1,000;
the highest number of visits for a single course is over 47,600;
the platform of “Zhiyuanzaixian” currently covers 893 courses in
seven categories and 30 disciplines; the online core majors include
new media operation, artificial intelligence, big data analysis, Java
engineering, and UI/UE interaction designer, etc.
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In addition, Omick Education of Western Cuisine and Pastry uses
the Omick online app to provide students with assistance anytime
and anywhere. The “Xinhua Smart Campus” platform developed
by Xinhua Internet Technology Education has currently covered
all institutions nationwide for usage, not only being used by the
institutions under the Group for daily management of students,
teachers and courses, but also for live streaming of online courses
to ensure the length and quality of teaching. In 2024, 265 new
courses were added to the platform, and the number of new
course orders was 343,453.
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“Zhiyuanzaixian”, a video live online education platform
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Diversified Teaching Methods

We hope to better empower our students through diversified
teaching methods and help them broaden their global perspectives
while improving their professional skills. During the Year, the
institutions under the Group actively launched international study
programs. For instance, Wontone Automotive organized students
to study overseas at Subaru (Japan) on 29 February and 30 August
2024, which provided students with the opportunity to learn about
advanced assembly and production management concepts in
automotive manufacturing when participating in the exchange. In
July 2024, Omick Education of Western Cuisine and Pastry worked
closely with Japan’s professional institutions to enhance students’
professional skills through customized courses on the process of
pastry making and craftsmanship in Japan.
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2.3. Support and Guarantee of Employment and Entrepreneurship

We attach great importance to the entrepreneurship and job
placement of students and hope to help them start their career
paths smoothly. To this end, the Group has set up Graduate
Entrepreneurship and Job Placement Guidance Centers in
more than 30 cities in the country, and has set up a Graduate
Entrepreneurship and Placement Office in each institution for
higher education, which is also equipped with professional
entrepreneurship and placement advisors, and is committed
to providing a comprehensive and one-stop employment and
entrepreneurship service platform for students. In addition, we
have also conducted a heart-warming career follow-up program
for students to gain an in-depth understanding of their employment
status.

During the Year, the Functional Department for Employment and
Entrepreneurship of the Group worked closely with various business
departments and jointly held a series of large-scale graduate
entrepreneurship and placement activities with our subsidiary
schools, thus bridging the “the very last trip” from the campus to
the job market. In addition to regular recruiting activities such as
mutual selection job fairs and corporate job fairs, we also focused
on the integration of industry and education, further deepening
the cooperation between enterprises and schools through school-
enterprise seminars and the execution of school-enterprise
cooperation agreements with enterprises. To more precisely
meet the employment needs of enterprises, we comprehensively
improved students’ employment and entrepreneurship capabilities,
from majors setting, counselling on career planning, to aspects
such as internship opportunities and directional employment. In
addition to employment protection, the Functional Department
for Employment and Entrepreneurship also provided systematic
support on entrepreneurship for students to start their own
businesses, covering multiple aspects including proposals of
planning, awareness training and resources support, with a view
to helping students realize their role change from apprenticeship to
entrepreneurship.
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Activity date

& B R

February-March 2024

2024.2-3H

1 March 2024
2024.3.1

12 March 2024
2024.3.12

29 March 2024
2024.3.29

27 May 2024
2024.5.27

27 June 2024
2024.6.27

28 June 2024
2024.6.28

21 August 2024
2024.8.21

26 September 2024

2024.9.26

8 November 2024

2024.11.8

2024
20244

Employment and entrepreneurship activity subject

AIREER ERE

New East Culinary Education 2024 Job Fair

RS REHBE2024F BEE

Wontone Automotive Education Spring 2024 Campus Job Fairs
BRABHAE024FEZERIIRERES

Xinhua Internet Technology High-Skills Training Base was officially launched

R B BRI S B A B B IE FURED

Shijiazhuang Xinhua Computer School Mutual Selection Special Session for IT Talents cum
Product Launch of High-Skills Training Centre

AREHESHERTAS CESESESRERITOEREME

New East Culinary Education 2024 Forum on High-Quality Development of Integration of
Industry and Education

MR RAHB 24 FENME = EERRRIE

The Human Resources and Social Security Bureau of Shenzhen Municipality signed a
strategic cooperation memorandum with China East Education
RYTHANERMERE B R BRFHE ZE BB S

“Digital Anhui, Technological Xinhua” — Contract Signing Ceremony for the 2024 School-
Enterprise Oriented Training Course for Highly Skilled Talents at Anhui Xinhua Senior
Technical School

[EU8 2R HIRINE | RBEER AR T ER2024F S A R TE BB ELE
China East Education signed the Memorandum of Understanding on International Exchange
and Cooperation for Studying Abroad in Japan
PRERSHERE A ABEERNE (%

The enterprise delegate of Wontone Automotive Education visited Suzhou and Yangzhou in
depth to seek for a new chapter of school-enterprise cooperation
ERTEHECEZERBRAAGN - BN - KERCEENRE

East Haihui was invited to attend the Sichuan Provincial Conference on the Integration of
Industry and Training cum the Development of Enterprise-School Cooperation
RABEXHHEN) I AEIREECREEERAE

Taiyuan Wontone organized students majoring in Urban Rail Transit Operation Management
to visit Taiyuan South railway station, Lanzhou High-speed Railway, Nanchang Metro

and Taiyuan Wusu Airport for on-the-job trainings; and organized students majoring in
Automotive Engineering to visit Qingdao Chery and Anhui Chery for on-the-job trainings
ANREBALHPEESESRANRREL  @NEE - mEME  AREEBEHSTEMER
BAETERERBLEBEEFH  RRHIRAMEE?

Annual Report 2024 " —Z Z[UFFIR

93



Environmental, Social and Governance Report &iE - # @R ERRE

Spring Session of Campus Mutual Selection held by Guangzhou New East
BMNHRSEFRESES

Case Sharing 1: On 29 February 2024, the “2024 Guangzhou New East Culinary School Spring Campus Mutual
Selection and Talent Booking Session” was held. More than 30 enterprises participated in this mutual selection
session, providing more than 1,000 positions for employment, which covered Chinese cuisine, Western pastry,
Western cuisine and Chinese pastry. The positions involved were comprehensive and covered a big variety, and the
participating enterprises were of high quality, which greatly improved the success rate of contract signings.
RPIHZ— : 2024F2H298 - [2024 BN R ERETRNELEREASAEGIRERT  KREESR
SERIMBK - REAEMUTAE - MAORETE - B - A% - PRERS - FREUGEMR  BE@
B 28hXE8R  KARS THERAKNE -
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Contract Signing Ceremony for the School-Enterprise Oriented Training Courses at Anhui Xinhua

ZREREE RIERIHOER

Case Sharing 2: Anhui Xinhua Senior Technical School actively promotes school-enterprise cooperation and has
established close relationships with many famous enterprises, thereby making joint efforts with them to nurture high-
quality skilled talents. During the Year, Anhui Xinhua signed cooperative contracts with a total of 313 enterprises
after visiting and negotiating with them, including 32 enterprises in respect of school-enterprise oriented courses, 33
enterprises in respect of talent development courses, and 27 enterprises in respect of collaborative practical training

courses, thus providing better employment protection for students.
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3. BUILDING DREAMS WITH INGENUITY AND
NURTURING OUTSTANDING LEADING TALENTS

3.1. Protection of Students’ Rights and Interests

Since our students include adults and minors, we strictly comply
with the Tort Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Minors and other
relevant laws and regulations for the protection of the rights and
interests of students and parents.

Safeguarding Students’ Fundamental Personal Rights

The right to health is the basic right of students. Therefore, we carry
out detailed inspections of campuses, dormitories and all kinds
of educational facilities to prevent any potential risks endangering
personal safety and ensure that students can study in a safe and
healthy environment. In addition, we are also committed to creating
a respectful and caring campus atmosphere for every student that
ensures all kinds of rights of students are fully respected, including
personal dignity, honour and privacy, etc.

In order to better serve students and parents, and to ensure that
relevant private information is protected and kept confidential, we
have established an independent file management system and set
strict usage regulations. To this end, we have implemented position
confidentiality agreement and the “Information Confidentiality
System”, where all new employees must sign the confidentiality
agreements when they are onboard, and the information of
students and parents can only be accessed with the authorization
of the management of the colleges.

Safeguarding Students’ Rights and Interests in Receiving Education

We are always student-oriented, and strive to provide them with
more opportunities and platforms for their growth and development
in order to tap into their potentials, help them demonstrate their
personal talents, and cherish the personality and uniqueness of
each student. We respect individual differences, and will not treat
any students differently because of their gender, race, religion or
cultural background.
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Safeguarding Students’ Rights to Information and Appeal

Students can exercise their right to information through a variety
of means: using the school’s public resources, such as websites,
publications, broadcasts, publicity boards and bulletin boards to
learn about the school’s news, rules and regulations, and academic
trends. The relevant departments of the school and the class
teachers are also responsible for the transmission of important
information to students and parents. Professional counsellors and
teachers can answer students’ questions. In addition, students and
parents can also obtain more information through field trips. In order
to ensure the efficiency and accuracy of information transmission,
all schools have developed corresponding procedures.

We also attach importance to the right of appeal of students and
parents. Based on the actual situation of our schools, the Group
has formulated the “Complaint Handling Measures” to expressly
regulate the institutions, responsibilities and procedures for handling
complaints. In order to facilitate students to report problems, our
schools specially set up the principal’s mailbox. In addition, our
schools publicize the contact information of the inspectors of the
institutions and the heads of the major departments, and post
complaint report boards of the Audit and Supervision Department
of the Group in each office in accordance with the “Regulations
on the Management of Complaints and Reportings of the Group”
to ensure that students can have easy access to the complaint
channels and contact information.

When facing complaints, we first let the class teacher of the
student record the relevant information of the complainant,
including the name, contact number and reason for complaint,
etc., and establish a dedicated complaint file. In order to fully
follow up on complaints, we will conduct joint investigations with
relevant departments to truly understand the actual situation of
the problem and handle it carefully. All of the progress will be
reported to the management. Besides, we are also committed to
maintaining active communication with the student and his/her
parents until the complaint is properly resolved. To ensure that
the problem is really resolved, we will also conduct regular follow-
up visits to the complainant to confirm that the problem has been
properly addressed. During the Year, the Group received a total of
9 complaints on the quality of teaching and services.

China East Education Holdings Limited «" FEIRAHBERER QA

EELANGRER B

BATEBZRERERITEMEE - FA
BEROVLER - @ - T - B -
SERRATRHE - ATHRERONE -
MEHIE RBMEHRE - SRBEEBFIMI
TETEERRENRREREZRES
BENEHE B MIRED RS2 IR AR
Eoo s BEMKRTERBEMWER
REBRELHEBEN - REREEEEDN
MEMAENE - ZHERGHIE T HEMNRE
o

BATERBERRKROBHE - RIZS
RERBER  AEEGIE T CRFEEM
Ry BRI REEE - BENREETT
RARERTE - RERBLERKREE - BR%
RIREAEM - o BEROFEREREEA
ENETEAMEBREANBKT N - WKR
(RERFEREERTE) EEMAERY
SEEFESHHRFRRIE - BRBLE
BES T E MBS R B BRI 3

EEERFEER > HMELEHBENIN
TERTHEERFANBHEEM  BFY
# BREFLRFERAST  BUEEN
RFER - REEARERFEE - HME
HAARAMPIAEFRFAAS - BE T REE
MERBER X TUREERR - AEER
He LHRETER - I HAEHIR
HBARFEFRBEGBNER  BERF
RS ZERR - RERBENE LR
R BREMTESEHLEDERFA - ER
RECDBIZERE - AFE - AEEH
WEZERN AR R IR E ERIEROR



Environmental, Social and Governance Report &iE « # @R EARRE

3.2. Health and Safety Protection

In order to create a safe and stable campus environment, the
Group has established the Safety Production Committee at the
headquarters’ level. The committee comprises members from the
senior management of the Company. Its main responsibilities are
to study, organize, coordinate and guide the Company’s major
safety production issues and organize important safety production
activities. In order to better implement safety management, the
Group has set up the Safety Production Guidance Office under
the Safety Production Committee, and the office is responsible
for coordination, planning, inspection, guidance and wrap-up
at the implementation level. In addition, the principal is the first
person responsible for the safety production work of each school.
A Safety Work Leadership Team and a dedicated safety officer
are also arranged at each school. We also require all schools and
departments to sign the three-level Safety Responsibility Agreement
under the principle of “the person who takes charge shall be
responsible” to further clarify the primary responsibility of safety
management.

We strictly abide by the Education Law of the People’s Republic of
China on a nationwide basis, the local School Safety Regulations
and other laws and regulations related to campus safety, and in
accordance with the Group’s School Safety Management System,
Fire Safety Management System, Food Safety Management
System, Environmental Safety Management System, Group
Emergency Response Plan and in light of the actual condition, each
school formulates relevant safety management system.

Safety Education

We believe that a daily and special safety education is essential to
ensure campus safety. To this end, we have created the education
management system of “three teachings and three trainings” to
enhance students’ awareness of life safety through legal safety
education, school discipline and school rules education, etc.
During the Year, all schools had actively launched safety seminars
on different themes, including safety and legal systems, drug
prevention, fire safety knowledge, anti-fraud, and anti-bullying,
thereby providing comprehensive protection for students’ safety. In
our professional courses, standardized operation and emergency
response in fire prevention, gas, use of electricity and tools are
highlighted in the syllabus.
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Publicity on fire safety in campus
HEhZ2REEEES

Case sharing 1: In November 2024, Shandong Xinhua Computer Institute carried out the publicity on fire safety
constitutions together with the local police.
RPN Z—: 2024F 11 A ILRNEEHEHEFEREFTRRBENZ 2B EEHEES -

Publicity on telecom fraud prevention in campus
T EETFRREEEED)

Case sharing 2: Anhui Wontone Senior Technical School launched a publicity to students on telecom fraud
prevention in collaboration with the local police
ROIDEZ : “HBRSARIERMEEHE S HELERRBNEEFREEERD
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Campus Security Management

The brands of main business of the Group, such as New East
Culinary Education, Xinhua Internet Technology Education and
Wontone Automotive Education, mainly offer vocational education
courses with longer duration from half-year to three years. As
most of the students live on campus, the schools adopt semi-
closed management. In order to ensure the life and property safety
of teachers, students and employees, the schools have set up
strict security systems, including the installation of a 24-hour full-
coverage monitoring system. Special personnel are arranged to
patrol, and dedicated teachers are arranged to be on day shift
or night shift, so as to report any abnormal situation in a timely
manner when it is found. We continuously improve the “triple
inspection” mechanism of self-inspection, audit and supervision
and safety inspection of the schools, and continued to improve the
ability of campus for safety hazard investigation and governance
by strengthening the intensity and scope of safety inspections and
implementing opinions on rectification.

Fire safety management

In terms of fire safety, the Group and the schools strictly abide
by the “Fire Prevention Law of The People’s Republic of China”,
and the provisions such as local “Fire Control Regulations”, and
formulated the Fire Safety Management System and the Fire
Emergency Plan. We require the fire management work to be
implemented and self-inspected from the following aspects,
including self-inspection of fire safety facilities, improvement
of fire safety systems, reinforcement of fire safety education,
implementation of fire safety measures, and establishment of fire
safety normal working mechanism. In order to ensure fire safety,
we actively cooperate in the regular inspections of the local fire
departments and carry out the annual fire safety special work
during the week of “National Fire Safety Day” every year.

We have always implemented the guiding ideology of “safety
first, prevention first, comprehensive governance”, strengthened
employees’ awareness of fire safety through the training method of
“indoor theoretical teaching + outdoor practical teaching” so that
employees are familiar with the practical skills. During the Year, the
Group had no fire safety incidents and no inappropriate fire safety
violations.
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Publicity and drills on fire safety in campus
REEHZ2EEFER

Case sharing: Fire safety trainings and fire extinguisher use drills conducted by various schools
RN =Z - ZEbFEEY & 25 OB SRR

Mental health management

We attach great importance to the mental health of students, have
established the safety education mechanism comprising “school-
family-society”, and actively play the role of the school. Through
home-school contact and other means, we keep abreast of
students’ psychological states and help them shape a positive and
sunny attitude. In addition, we organically combine mental health
education with daily teaching to ensure that students can pay
attention to their own mental health while learning. The Group has
set up a counselling room and a psychological hotline in schools.
During the Year, various schools have further provided students
with daily counselling and facilitation to ensure their physical and
mental well-being by conducting mental health seminars, interactive
care activities and the improvement of mental health assistance
mechanism.
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Mental health seminar in campus

TR0 328 i PR 8 R

Case sharing: Anhui Wontone carried out interactive seminars on mental health education
ZHE : ZREBRROVEBREHE GBHEE
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Health and Food Safety Management

In order to ensure the effective implementation of campus health
work, we comply with the School Health Work Ordinance and
formulate the School Health Supervision System. In accordance
with the requirements of the national health department, the
management of teaching hygiene, sports hygiene, diet hygiene
and school environmental hygiene has been clarified. We urge the
improvement of all courses, environment and diet that do not meet
the health requirements.

We have always adhered to food safety as one of our bottom
lines. In order to supervise and manage canteens, supermarkets
and daily services of schools, the Group has arranged the logistics
business department dedicated to special management. The Group
attaches great importance to the safety of the whole process
from food procurement, processing, sale and sample storage,
and has formulated the Food Hygiene Management System. On
the basis of the requirements of the Group, all schools further
formulated several management systems such as Canteen Hygiene
Management System, Diet Management System, Dishware
Disinfection System, Canteen Hygiene Management System and
Food Sampling System. We strictly comply with the Food Hygiene
Law of the People’s Republic of China on a nationwide basis,
establish stricter standards on the basis of meeting the national
standards, and revise the relevant systems in a time manner
according to the latest laws.

We have established a sound Food Hygiene and Safety Emergency
Plan, which clearly describes the detailed provisions of the
incident emergency handling process from the reporting system,
rescue measures, medical rescue, disease source protection and
personnel deployment to the information disclosure, etc. In order
to ensure the effectiveness and enforceability of the Plan, we also
regularly carry out emergency plan drills on food poisoning.
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In terms of the procurement of ingredients and food, suppliers
must have a certificate of quality assurance system, and are able
to ensure the freshness and quality of ingredients, and provide
certificates and proof of inspection. The canteen staff are required
to have physical examination once a year before onboarding,
ensuring that their health status meets the national hygiene
standards. In the process of cooking, we strictly implement the
principle of separate processing of raw food and cooked food
and ensure thorough cooking. Tableware and utensils must be
disinfected in strict accordance with the procedure of “first wash,
second brush, third flush and fourth disinfection” to meet the
relevant national hygiene standards. The food produced by the
canteen and sold by the supermarket must be kept for 48 hours as
stored samples for inspection and test by the superior food safety
department and educational authorities. Considering the specific
nature of the Group’s training profession, the Group has designed a
dedicated system for the procurement of ingredients for its culinary
courses, with which information on procurement requirements,
applications, names and types of dishes to be demonstrated
are all available at a glance to ensure food safety of the teaching
ingredients.

In order to control the quality of food hygiene, the Group and
schools carry out regular on-site inspection of food hygiene
in canteens and supermarkets. The Audit and Supervision
Department of the Group conducts inspections once a year; the
Logistics Business Department conducts inspections twice a
year; and schools conduct random inspections and give timely
feedbacks in their routine work. We also attach importance to the
students’ opinions on the school canteen, and collect and respond
to students’ opinions and suggestions through channels such as
suggestion box and the Logistics Business Department.
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3.3. Teaching Quality Assurance

Teaching Quality Evaluation System

Adhering to the principle of “quality of education is the lifeline
of running a school”, we have established a three-level quality
supervision system of the business departments of the Group,
schools and teachers, and made corresponding adjustments
according to the teaching dynamics grasped in a timely manner
through communication with students and parents. In addition,
schools have established a mechanism of teaching inspection
and supervision. Schools conduct regular or irregular checks on
teachers’ teaching plans, teaching satisfaction, assessment on
listening and evaluating lessons, and evaluation of their professional
titles, and summarize the areas that can be improved in time.

We also attach importance to understanding the opinions
of teachers and students through multiple channels to
comprehensively improve the quality of teaching. In every quarter,
the school management team and teachers hold a teachers’
seminar to listen to suggestions and formulate corrective
measures. Bi-monthly student symposiums are organized to
listen to the opinions of students which will be effectively put into
practical action. In order to understand the teaching situation
more intuitively, at the end of each course, we will also organize
students to complete a satisfaction survey on the online satisfaction
system. Meanwhile, in the monthly special inspection of integrity
construction, we will also conduct follow-up telephone interviews
with students who have been employed for 3 to 6 months to
understand their employment stability rate, salary standard rate and
employment satisfaction.
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The Audit and Supervision Department of the Group conducts
annual surveys on students’ satisfaction with the work of the
school. During the Year, the Audit and Supervision Department
of the Group conducted investigation on 123 schools in total,
and collected a total of 21,252 student questionnaires. Students’
satisfaction with all aspects of the school is above 90 points (out of
100 points), and the recommendation rate for institutions is as high
as 92.7%. The results of the evaluation of the Group in the past
three years (including the Year) were as follows:

Average points/
Recommended rate

in 2024
Evaluation indicators 20244
AEER THEDHEE
Teaching quality 95.083 points
SRNHBEE 95.03%
Practical teaching 94.85 points
SR E B 94.85%
Class management 92.01 points
ERMRER 92,015
Dormitory management 90.92 points
EREEER 90.92%
Employment and entrepreneurship guidance courses  92.79 points
BIRMEEER 92.79%
Recruitment activities held by the school 94.01 points
ERFARMNMEES 94.01%
Employment and entrepreneurship promotion in 93.49 points
campus and school website 93.49%
REARGERBHAIGEEE
Whether to recommend the school 92.7%
TERSHBARRR 92.7%

4. WORK TOGETHER TO CREATE A BLUEPRINT FOR
THE CORPORATE DEVELOPMENT

The Group firmly believes that every employee is our most valuable
asset and makes a key contribution to the development of the
Group. No matter whether they are the outstanding employees who
drive the development of the Group at the management level, or
teachers who selflessly dedicate themselves, stand at the forefront
of education and teach everything they know, or the colleagues
in functional departments who contribute to others implicitly, they
go all out in their respective positions and gather strength for
the Group to move forward. We are well aware that talent is the
primary productive force of corporate development. On the road of
“promoting education and serving the country”, making good use
of talents is of paramount importance. In order to ensure the long-
term corporate development, being kind to talents is a fundamental
principle that must be firmly followed.
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Average points/ Average points/

Recommended rate Recommended rate

in 2023 in 2022
20234 20226
55 HER 955 HEE
94.68 points 95.78 points
94.687 95.787%
95.13 points 96.02 points
95137 96.027
91.57 points 92.78 points
91.57% 92.787)
92.63 points 92.03 points
92.637 92.037%
98.35 points 94.23 points
93.35% 94.23%
94.14 points 98.27 points
94145 93.27%
91.75 points 94.47 points
91.75% 94.475
93.5% 92.3%
93.5% 92.3%
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4.1. Employee Profile 41, BIBER

The headquarters of the Group has 18 functional departments, 10 NEEBIBLEREIPPI18ME - FHEIE10
business divisions, and 233 operating schools under it, with a total &l - AR TBEEER233fT - £EEHE
of 10,346 full-time employees and the total employee turnover T10,346" A + B THABERAEK25295% °

rate? is 29.5%.

Gender

ESHER

Employee turnover rate by gender

R LLERERRS

24.4%

34.5%

o

10

® Male employees © Female employees
BB LZIEER BHER

Employment category

© Male employees

30 40

© Female employees

LZiHER

Employee turnover rate by employment category

EEsR BEBIRKEZERERNDS
29.5%
N/A RiEA
0 5 10 20 25 30 35

© Part-time

© Full-time
ES

2RER

' The number of employees comprises 10,346 full-time employees. !
During the Year, 862 part-time external teaching staff were not included
in the statistics of the number of employees.

2 Employee turnover rate by relevant category = number of employee 2
turnover in that category/total number of employees in that category
*100%

@ Full-time employees

© Part-time employees
FEER

EI%§E§10,346%%H‘%§§\I o A4
£ 8B FBMINEHAIBET - TREHE
BIHEFTOEH o

AR B 5 B TRk =247
B TRAAB/ZIER 8 THE100%
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Age group
EREFEFRENES

Employee turnover rate by age group

BIRkkERFRENDS

42.87%

50

® Under 30 ® 31-40 @ Under 30 ® 31-40
30RRA T 31-4075% 30T 31-4075%

® 41-50 ® Over 51 ® 41-50 ® Over 51
41-505% 51pbA L 41-505% 515

Geographical region

RE&SRS
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Employee turnover rate
by geographical region

BIRKEERHBERNS
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£
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0.12%

0.00%

29.64%
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©® Mainland China ® Hong Kong China ® Mainland China ® Hong Kong China
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4.2. Employee Rights Protection

We abide by the national and regional laws and regulations such
as the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Labour
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Special
Provisions on the Labour Protection of Female Workers, the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Women’s Right
and Interests, the Social Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Regulations on Work-Related Injury Insurance, the Trade
Union Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Regulations on
the Paid Annual Leave of Employees, the Measures on National
New Year Holidays and Memorial Days, and the Provisions on
the Prohibition of the Use of Child Labour, etc. Based on these
laws and regulations, we have established internal management
procedures to regulate the Group’s policies and measures on
recruitment, hiring, promotion, dismissal, compensation and
benefits, attendance and leaves, equal opportunities, diversity, and
non-discrimination.
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The Group strictly abides by the regulations of the country and
the region in which it operates, and has formulated personnel
management systems such as the “Recruitment Management
Regulations”, the “Employment Termination Management
Regulations” and the “Attendance and Leave Management
Regulations”, so as to standardize the process from recruitment
to employment and dismissal of employees, and ensure the strict
implementation of the relevant work, rest and leave systems.
According to the regulations, employees are entitled to statutory
holidays, paid leave such as personal leave, sick leave, marriage
leave and maternity leave or unpaid leave in accordance with the
law. We respect the legitimate rights and interests of our employees
and strive to provide them with a fair, open and inclusive working
environment.

We are committed to creating a fair and harmonious working
environment and firmly rejects any form of insult and discrimination.
We firmly object to different treatments to employees based on
their ethnicity, race, age, gender, marital status and religious belief.
In addition, we also firmly prohibit forced and exploitative labour
practices and promise not to use child labour under the legal age.
The Group’s “Employment Management System” clearly stipulates
that the Human Resources Department conducts strict inspections
on applicants’ identification information and other documents during
the recruitment process, and confirms the authenticity of age and
other information before hiring. If our employees discover related
issues, they can report to the upper management with real names
or in anonymous methods. Our Audit and Supervision Department
and other relevant departments will promptly investigate and give
feedback. During the Year, the Group did not receive any case of
the use of child labour or forced labour.

Regarding employees’ health and safety, the Group has not had
any work-related fatalities in the past three years (including the
Year). During the Year, there were 42 lost days due to work-related

injury.
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The Group provides a competitive salary and welfare system for
employees, and ensures that employees’ income correspond to
their personal contributions through the organic combination of
fixed salary and variable salary. We also continue to enrich and
improve the diversified welfare system to stimulate the enthusiasm
and creativity of employees. According to the regulations, we
pay “insurances and housing fund” for all employees, as well as
providing promotion training, working lunch, high-temperature
subsidies, paid annual leave, medical examinations, team-building
activities, year-end bonuses, holiday benefits, outward bound,
employee shuttle, employee dormitory, employee family care and
other welfare measures.
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Welfare benefits Social securit : o
=B a Y- Ey employees recreational activities
\EE N A\ E (=] w2 = o
= SETHEZE XIREE)
High-temperature Insurances and Birthday, childbirth, Team-building
= subsidies = housing fund =1 wedding subsidies = activities
I m A hfs—% CAEIE EREE
Holiday benefits Mgdicgl Employee Qutward
sREF =] examinations m :shuttle m boupd
R TS AR
Year-end Paid annual Emplgyee Annual travel
— bonuses — leave — dormitory — R s
FREE HEAR BIES: =
Annual salary Birthday
— adjustment — activities
FERE EHES
| Meal subsidy
FE®H
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4.3. Employee promotion system

The Group has established a comprehensive employee promotion
system and adopted the dual-track promotion channel of position
rank and title system, which provides a ladder for upward
development for employees of the Group, its business divisions
and subordinate units. Through this system, employees can clearly
understand their own career development prospects, so that they
can be more focused on the improvement of their own capabilities
and the realization of team goals, which also provides continuous

talent support for the sustainable development of the Group.
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4.4, Staff Training and Development

The continuous progress and growth of our employees is essential
to the development of the Group. To this end, a special training
center is set up under the administration and personnel department
of the Group, which is responsible for leading the formulation
of staff training programs. The programs cover the modules of
Management Competence, Foundation Competence of All Staff
and Professional Sequence Competence, while organizing the
implementation together with each business unit. We set up various
training courses for employees of different positions, different
levels and different business areas, including corporate culture
training, professional training for teachers, market training, network
operation training, etc. After the trainings, the training center will
issue a training satisfaction questionnaire and get corresponding
feedback in time, so that the training substance can be
strengthened and improved in the future to meet the training needs
of employees. The Group has formulated the “Notice on the 2024
Xinhua Lecture Hall Training Working Plan” ({8 RMiaF2024 4 [#7
FEARBEEIITIERT SR AD), the “Notice on the Beginning of
2024 ‘40+4’ Training at the Headquarters of the Group” (B8R 5
B2024F £ EAZL[40+4 1153 AT)), the “Notice on Further
Regulation of the Special Training Work of the Headquarters of the
Group” (KB — R EE B A S FIRF I TIEHBED)) and the
“Working Proposal on 2024 Special Skills Enhancement Training
Program for Class Teachers of the Group” ({2024 F &= @I =T
HIAR BRI TIEEEIZ)) to design customized training
schemes for the teaching staff of different business departments
and schools with different numbers of employees. During the Year,
the training coverage rate for the Group reached 100%.
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Category of training Training course classification
IR BIREDE

Professional competence Marketing training

HERENR Teaching training

Academic management training
Comprehensive function training
M5
K

= AR Ak ¥
tREBEESE

General competence General administration training
HAENB Professionalism and general skill training
BAEERA
BE=REBARKALA
Corporate level Corporate culture training
NG} Regulation and system training
Integrity training
1= 3°¢( &
REGIER
BRISAR
i |
F |

ST

Training Camp for class teachers from the First and Second Computer Business Departments
BIE— B FEHEEEEIE

Case sharing: On 30 April 2024, the Class Teachers Training Camp of Xinhua Internet Technology Education for
Spring 2024 was successfully held, covering various areas including home-school connection, class management,
organization building, and simulated combat. Through systematic education theory learning and practical skills
training, the class teachers who participated in the training not only broadened their educational horizons but also
improved their teaching standards and class management capabilities.

KPID=E : 202454 4308 - FESEHBBE2024FEFNEEEIILIEFERT - RIERERR G - TREIE - HEZ
BAREREBSELERY - BRRFNHEERSENEEREE - 290 EMMERE THERY - BIRA
THENKT PR ETREE N
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Training data by gend
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Training data by employee category
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4.5, Humanistic Care

In order to give back to employees for their selfless dedication and
ingenuity, the Group strives to provide a safe, healthy, harmonious
and friendly working environment for employees, and strengthens
the spiritual care of employees. Our schools often organize various
cultural and sports development activities, such as Teachers’ Day
tug-of-war competition, Women’s Day activities, teacher-student
sports games, etc., aiming to enrich the spiritual and cultural life of
employees and enhance corporate cohesion.

Ratio of employees trained by relevant category = number of employees
trained in the particular category/employees trained *100%

Average training hours of employees by relevant category = total training
hours of employees in a particular category/number of employees in a
particular category
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Taking good care of the teachers

On 9 September 2024, the Teachers’ Day of China East Education
cum Outstanding Teachers Commendation Conference of the
Group in 2024 was successfully held, with over one hundred
affiliated schools nationwide setting up branch venues, and more
than ten thousand teaching staff participating in the activities
online. A total of 50 teachers of different positions with different
responsibilities from schools across the country have been awarded
the titles of “Outstanding Educator” or “Excellent Teacher”.

..
% FE |

CEHED - T R

2024F9H9H  RFEIRFHBE2024F
METEEBEFSHMREZ RSB RMBEIT -
2EEBRARERBELDEE 0 B
BTERLEEFY - KB 2R L5045
TRBEEMAEZMER T EFHE I
HIH[BHEHEN B -

Teachers’ Day activities of China East Education for 2024

2024F EH BN M A MRS
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Listening to words from the heart of employees BIZEE T » R A

In order to listen to our employees and create a good working BRTREEILE  BIERIFHIER
atmosphere, the Audit and Supervision Department of the Group EEEEEHEFHERANET
conducts annual surveys on a sample of employees to find out ETHERSFAEN TN - THREIHS
their satisfaction towards various aspects of the Group. According EELTENREE  RIBAREE BT
to the 4,963 questionnaires returned during the Year covering 123 Z123F7hiiR 24,0630 % - ETHEE

institutions, employees’ satisfaction towards the Group in various EFTHEHMMEESESHU L - BA=F
aspects scored 8 or above, with specific scores for the past three (BIEAFE) AEHENT

years (including the Year) as follows:

Evaluation indicators Average scores in 2024 Average scores in 2023 Average scores in 2022
THEREE 2024 F £35S 2023F #5185 2022F F1515 5
Teaching management 9.47 points 9.53 points 9.34 points
HEER 9.475% 9.53%9 9.34%
Student management 9.51 paints 9.36 points 9.47 points
BEER 9.51% 9.369 9.47%
Employment and entrepreneurship 9.19 points 9.01 points 9.51 points
BIRETE 9.19% 9.01% 9.51%
Market operations 8.97 paints 9.63 points 9.37 paints
s eE 8.977 9.637 9.37%H
Logistical support 8.34 points 8.45 points 9.12 points
EERE 8.34% 8.45% 9.12%
Staff training 9.02 points 8.89 points 9.23 points
8T8 9.02% 8.899 9.23%
Hardware equipment 8.91 points 8.87 points 9.03 paints
R R e 8.91% 8.87% 9.03%
Functional department services 9.03 points 9.24 points 9.01 points
BB AL EBPI AR 9.037% 9.24%) 9.017
System enforcement 8.74 points 8.32 points 9.56 points
HERITER 8.74% 8.32% 9.56%
Management of mid-level and above

management team 9.17 points 9.11 points 9.38 poaints
FERALERERER 9175 9.11% 9.38%
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5. LOW CARBON AND ENERGY SAVING FOR
DIVERSIFIED EMPOWERMENT OF GREEN
TRANSFORMATION

As the pioneer in vocational education in China, we believe
that environmental protection and green development are the
fundamental responsibilities of the Group. We abide by the relevant
laws and regulations such as the PRC Environmental Protection
Law, the Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Water Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of
the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by
Solid Waste, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Ambient Noise Pollution, the Water and
Soil Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Appraising of Environment
Impacts, the Soil Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the National Catalogue of Hazardous
Wastes so as to reduce air and greenhouse gas emissions, sewage
discharged to water and land, and hazardous and non-hazardous
waste generation, etc. through regulation of use of resource and
emission management.

The Board is responsible for approving the Group’s ESG-related
targets and reviewing the progress of their achievement. The
Group has formulated relevant environmental targets, indicators
and action plans in four aspects of waste generation, greenhouse
gas emissions, energy use and water use in the environmental
field. During the Year, the Group reviewed the practical action
plans of the three selected schools for their respective ESG goals,
and the Board confirmed and reviewed the results of the progress
of ESG goals. In order to continue to promote the achievement
of ESG goals, we have tracked and recorded the implementation
status of each goal by the schools, and the overall progress was
good. In the future, the Group will continue to review the progress
of the realization of ESG goals, advance the implementation of
environmental goals, summarize experiences in a timely manner
and extend the scope of feasible practices to more operating
campuses.

China East Education Holdings Limited «" FEIRAHBERER QA
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Environmental
targets
REBE

Increase food waste
recycling

EERE K E

Indicators

2R

Empty Tray
Campaign (Promoting
Participation)
HREITBHEREER
(HEE2HE)

Action plans

TE)=T 8

Promote the Empty Tray Campaign
by putting up posters in student
canteens to remind students not to
waste food; install video cameras
at food waste dumping areas to
monitor food waste.

HENRTE  ERERER LT
&Y - REEEVNRERY £
TABIET A R R IR R IRER -
EHRERRIEN o

Actions taken during the Year and
status of progress

AEERBTHEETM

The target institutions irregularly carried out
the “Empty Tray Campaign” promotion,

and encouraged teachers and students to
routinely save food by posting banners and
other propaganda slogans in the canteen,
signing food-saving initiatives, and other
methods; and installed a camera at and
arrange supervision by dedicated persons to
the food waste dumping area at restaurants
to ensure the effective implementation of the
Empty Tray Campaign.
BT ERFRRI AR SEEE -
BRERERUSTERE REHNERE
HEZHBEMERIITEL : WEBEE
IR R KBEBL T HEALE
BRARITEEIER -

Increase the popularity
of food waste
composting activities
RE BT ESE
PES

Organize food waste composting
activities in schools on a regular
basis.

ERERERBIRFEILEED

Among the target institutions, Anhui Xinhua
has taken the lead in carrying out food
waste composting activities for four times,
with approximately 600 teachers and
students who participated in the activities,
handling a total weight of approximately
250 kg. For the remaining institutions

that have not yet carried out food waste
composting activities, the food waste was
uniformly cleared by vendors. In order to
promote the achievement of this target, the
institutions are revising their activity plans
and strengthening the ideological education
and guidance for students, with the aim of
starting as soon as possible.

BERRY - ZEHED X ERRMNRESR
EIREE - 2EMAELBOAR - RELS
BRI250RT o BT KRR HELED
BB - BN A R —IBIREIEANIR ©
RIEERIRER  RREHESHRIELE
7] Wi B4 M BAAHENE|E - K

BRFAR o
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Environmental Actions taken during the Year and
targets Indicators Action plans status of progress

REBR ER T AEERMTHEEERM
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Environmental
targets
REBE

Reduce non-
hazardous
waste
MADEEREEY)

Indicators

2R

Reduce the use of
single-use items

BAER— Rt

Action plans

GLLE.

School shops/canteens do not
actively/remuneratively

provide plastic bags and
disposable cutlery.
BREE/RETEE AERE

ERRM—RILER -

Actions taken during the Year and
status of progress

AEERBTHEETM

The target institutions did not take the
initiative to provide plastic bags and
disposable tableware but provide purchase
for a fee.
BRI EBR MBI R R —RIEE
A REBEREE -

Implement percentage
of paperless office
EmEAtHOED
IFE

Full promotion of paperless office

and paperless daily meetings, etc.
SEEEEKCHN  BFEE2
Ei iV =

The target institutions were gradually
promoting paperless office. Among them, for
Anhui Wontone Automotive Education, daily
receipt and delivery of documents, sign-in
and minutes were completed in a paperless
way. For Anhui New East Culinary Education,
unnecessary paper use was reduced by
recording the use of consumable office
supplies such as A4 paper. Anhui Xinhua
Internet Technology Education has achieved
a paper office to a great extent and reduced
paper usage through online meetings.
BRI E S ERA L - Hp - 2
BERABEHAERTUREX  FIREHEL
HERBREMMEPATH | TEIRA L
HERBTHMBSZRBLARNERE
R RO ERRRER o TRHESK
YECERBSLOIMEKHA - WiEd
EReZRIOHKRER o

Reduce hazardous
wastes

RMOBEERY)

LED light installation
data for campus and
office

RE - PAELEDE
RRHE

Expand the selection of LED
lights, replace traditional energy-
consuming lights with LED lights,
etc.

BAERLEDEREE - ALEDE
EREERRREES -

The target institutions continued to promote
the use of LED lights. Among them, the LED
light coverage of Anhui New East Culinary
Education has exceeded 90% while that of
Anhui Xinhua Internet Technology Education
has reached 70%, with priority given to
energy-saving 9W~22W LED lights in the
selection of LED lighting.

BRI RHEHELEDE R A « H -
RHIMR T A EHNLEDEBEEHED
EIO%A L REHETRHE R70%
TELEDEAHER HBEE BE R MM
IW~22WHILEDE °
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Environmental
target
REAE

Reduce vehicle
greenhouse gas
emissions

O AERERES

8

Indicators
ER

The overall fuel
consumption of the
official car or the
number of times the
official car being used

Action plans
TEstEl

Strengthen the management

of official cars, record the fuel
consumption of official cars, and
conduct regular maintenance

of official cars to reduce fuel

Action taken during the Year and status
of progress

AEERBTHEEERMR

The target institutions complied with the
management regulations of official vehicles
formulated by the Group, carried out regular
maintenance and overhaul of official vehicles,
and recorded the fuel consumption of official

NIFEREEMEK A | consumption per km. vehicles in a standardized manner. The
TS A IRE BILAEEERE - S AKER | recorded fuel consumption of official vehicles
B EERRIENEE - A ERS | remained basically the same as that of 2023.
NEFEH o BRI BTSRRI EN ABEEEM
T EHEABEETRENRE - HEE
BABERERER - RSN ABERSAE
MEP028F EEAFF o
Electric or hybrid Encourage the use of electric or The target institutions gave priority to electric
vehicle penetration hybrid vehicles vehicles or hybrid vehicles when considering
rate SEEREHNRERH N AE the replacement of retired official vehicles.
EAEFHIREEE N At present, electric or hybrid vehicles are
REERE included in the official vehicles of Anhui

Xinhua Internet Technology Education,

with the use of electric or hybrid vehicles

by teachers and students for traveling
becoming popular, which reflects the
school’s positive attitude towards and
practice of environmentally friendly traveling.
BERREERBELAKER @BLEER
ERAEBIRRE NAE - BAT - RHEETE
ERHBE A BERTERREHIREH N
RE  MERAEFHES B NTE-ITIR
MERE - BN TERERREITNERE
BAEE -

Campus greening

RE#E

Campus greening rate

REAKEE

Carry out tree planting activities
and encourage teachers, students
and parents to participate and set
a target for the number of trees to
be planted.

FEELSES) - UHBMERRE
HRLHE  FTESHANEE -

EQFaN

Tree planting activities were carried out in
the target institutions, with approximately
5,000 teachers and students taking part to
plant more than 300 trees.

B RARE TEENES - iRE 558
#15,0004 A4 - TEHERIRS00BAR ©
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Environmental

target
RGER

Improving the
efficiency of energy
use

e

REIR{E Ak

Indicators

B

Energy consumption
of energy-consuming
equipment

R B RERER
/R

Action plans

TEIET 8

Develop a maintenance plan to
regularly repair energy-consuming
equipment, and regularly repair
and upgrade electronic equipment
in schools to optimize energy
efficiency.

HIERETE - FPRERER
5 BERANE FRETHES
HEERFAR - ABLREIRENE o

Action taken during the Year and status
of progress

AEERDTDEREERMR

The target institutions repaired and
maintained energy-consuming equipment
twice a month.
B2 E A M
BERE

REFERERETIRIER

The penetration
rate of low energy
consumption devices

[EFERERIBE R E

Replace and eliminate highly
energy-consuming equipment,
formulate equipment replacement
schedule, etc.
FHRBADFEERE  HIERBE
MFRIRS -

The target institutions continued to promote
the elimination of highly energy-consuming
equipment. Among them, Anhui New

East Culinary Education has used energy-
saving stoves exclusively; Anhui Xinhua
focused on replacing highly energy-
consuming equipment in June and
December; and Anhui Wontone Automotive
Education, in addition to adopting energy-
saving stoves, has restricted the use of
air-conditioning in classrooms and offices
according to the temperature.

B R RSB E SR R ENEK « K
o REHRG TEHE R 2 A AR
B ZEHERCAMI2 AShRSRESR
# REERTEHE R RGN B
BBRERE ﬁﬁE%lJ%kﬁ%Zi&%“fﬁuﬂE@
&R -

Energy-saving product
information awareness
EiReEmESIE

Obtain the latest information about
energy saving products, e.g. by
participating in energy- saving
products environmental protection
expo to keep up with relevant
energy-saving information, etc.

?%H)lﬁﬁ“béu%ﬁ’]ﬂaﬁﬁﬁ B @
ShNEfRE 1%%&“@ R
FAERE(S %

The target institutions participated in the
online forum of energy-saving and
environmental protection products every
month, and understood and investigated the
latest situation of energy-saving products
through the internet and field visits.

B R E A2 048 LR IRRER
BRRARTEZR T BT

1=
=1
m]
als|

i
EmH)

AR ©
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Environmental
target
REAE

Improving the
efficiency of energy
use

T Hzﬁ@ﬁﬁ )&ﬁl

Indicators

ER

Energy saving publicity
penetration rate or
number of publicity
activities
ERKIREIRE B I
HEFEERE

Action plans
THE

Carry out energy-saving publicity
activities, and popularize
energy-saving knowledge through
campus posters, training and other
activities.

FROEEEED  BERERY
R - EIFESE AR AN o

Action taken during the Year and status
of progress

AEERBTHEEERMR

The target institutions organized energy-
saving practical activities for students (such
as energy-saving knowledge contests,
handmaking workshops, etc.), and carried
out publicity through posters, weekly
meetings and class meetings, involving
nearly 10,000 teachers and students.
BRI ERE E2 R ERIEE (0
EiRE AR E - FIRES) - WRERMER
Bl BAMlENHESEHAETER B
EEEME -

Use of electricity
HEE

Formulate sound energy
conservation management
work plans and measures, set
up a leading group for energy
conservation; strengthen
energy measurement
management, equip energy
meters, and measure and
count the consumption of
various energy sources.

HE T E R E AL B IR TIET 2
FIEHE - BRLEFK R E R/
4 nsREeIRAtEEE - Bite
BERETER - HBERRAE
BE{TIIEMMET

The target institutions regularly recorded
the energy consumption data of
equipment, analyzed the electricity
consumption, and set up regulations
for the use of power-consuming
equipment. Each institution has set up
a power saving/energy saving leading
group, assigning dedicated personnel
to serve as the leader, executive leader,
team members and other positions
to clarify the working plan for energy
saving management.
B E R iR 8 R T R FE AL
% HASEETHN  THEEE
REBHERLERRTE Xﬁhﬁﬁiw
B EIRLEE/ A - TRIRBEAEEA
& BT K - AE SRS - BAMEETRE
ER TS
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Environmental
target
REAE

Enhance the
effectiveness of
water resources use

RIDKERE RS

Indicators
ER

Water consumption of
equipment

REKERBRER

Action plans
TE)stEl

Develop a maintenance plan to
regularly repair energy-consuming
equipment to optimize water use
efficiency.

HIERETE - FHRERKER
- ABKERERARE

Action taken during the Year and status
of progress

AEERDTDEREERMR

The target institutions have formulated
overhaul plans for water consumption
equipment and conducted regular overhaul
on a monthly basis to repair or replace the
defective equipment in a timely manner.

In addition, Anhui Wontone Automotive
Education has established a special billing
management for secondary water supply,
standardized management of water supply
data, timely discovered and solved potential
problems, and improved the efficiency in the
use of water resources.

B 2R HIE RIEFKR BT BN IZ AE
HiRlE - WS R R ETRE R E &
U - RREBTEHEH ROKETE
PIBREE - REERMUKEIR - REER
MBREERR - REKEROEARE -

Number of water
saving devices
retrofitted/retrofit rate
KR EREEE,
BIEERS

Carry out the transformation of
water-saving projects, replace the
use of water-saving faucets, green
automatic irrigation facilities, etc.

7 e £ 7K T8 B B - R AR ERIK
KR - AL BEMLERRES -

Anhui Wontone Automotive Education and
Anhui New East Culinary Education replaced
and upgraded the faucets in the campus.
During the Year, Anhui New East Culinary
Education completed the replacement of

all faucets with water-saving faucets, while
Anhui Xinhua Internet Technology Education
replaced approximately 560 faucets with
water-saving faucets.
RHEBTEHE KLY R THAHEY
REKFEIETERAR - TEERA A
YEARFED TR EKKRERRNER - B
FEBRHEARFE TR ENOKEEERL
5601 °

Water saving publicity
penetration rate or

Carry out water-saving publicity
activities, and popularize water-

The target institutions publicized knowledge
about water saving through posters, publicity

number of water saving knowledge through boards and banners and other means, and

saving campaigns campus posters, training and other | regularly carried out publicity and education

EIKEHERELE | activities. on water saving, engaging more than 5,000

UNEREVEEDIG RREVKSEES) - BBREGRE | teachers and students.

B EIERST REKANE o | BERRIGLIER SR - RESHAE

BEVKAE - TERRRSKEEHE - #£
SR/ 285,000 AN 4 o

Water consumption | Formulate sound water saving The target institutions conducted data

FAKE management work plans and statistics and analysis of monthly water

measures; strengthen water
resource measurement
management, equip water
resource meters, and measure and
count the consumption of various
water resources.

i E T EREKE R TIE 2105
B ISRk BRI EE R - BRIk
BRFTER  HEBKERNESE
BTt EMNGET -

consumption and formulated management
working plans for water saving. Among
them, Anhui New East Culinary Education
was equipped with a total of 22 water
resources meters to conduct statistics on
water resources consumption, while Anhui
Xinhua Internet Technology Education was
equipped with 2,200 water meters.

B R Ri98E A K ETEESE - 5
W SIEEKER TS AP REER
7 A R B22(EKE R 288 - HK
BRBFEITE - RETESKHE RS

&7k §k2,200(8
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5.1. Resources Conservation

We value the rational use of resources and strive to improve the
efficiency of the use of resources and the recovery of usable waste.
The Group and regional institutions also formulated applicable
internal policies according to actual conditions. For example, the
First Division of Omick Education of Western Cuisine and Pastry has
formulated the “Requirements for Institutions to Respond to Energy
Saving” and the Office of Wuhan Wontone Automotive Education
has formulated the “Regulations on the Use of Air Conditioning
in Wontone Offices” to respond to the call for low carbon and
energy saving, actively practice low-carbon requirements, and
create a green working atmosphere and green campus. In addition
to formulating relevant policies, we promoted the concept of
conservation at the staff level, and vigorously promoted green
concepts and environmental-friendly practices in the daily teaching
to students and improved the recycling rate of waste on campus
through innovative measures.

Energy

During the Year, the Group consumed a total of 147,525.88
MWh of energy, with electric power accounting for 71.22%
of the total consumption, making it the main source of energy
consumption. We insisted on reducing energy use and improving
energy efficiency, with each business division developing and
implementing relevant management systems according to actual
circumstances. For instance, Chengdu New East under the First
Division of New East has issued the Notice on Regulating the Use
of Air Conditioning. We mainly adopted the following measures to
reduce energy consumption:

° We require the headquarters of the Group and all schools to
fulfil the obligation of energy conservation, and spread the
ideas about environmental protection to more staff members
and students.

° Our schools actively put the idea of energy conservation
into practice, promoting the use of natural light whenever
possible. Some of our schools reduce the power and standby
power consumption of office equipment by installing voice-
activated or light-activated switches.

China East Education Holdings Limited «" FEIRAHBERER QA
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° As part of the new renovation school projects, we started
with the hardware equipment by installing energy-saving
and inverter air conditioners and limiting the running time
of the air conditioning. In addition, we require that the
temperature setting of the air conditioning shall not be
lower than 26 degrees Celsius in summer, and shall not be
higher than 20 degrees Celsius in winter while stipulating the
requirements including assigning special personnel, scientific
use, reasonable regulation, and turning off the power before
leaving.

° During the course of renovation, we promote the use
of OPPLE energy-efficient lamps to reduce electricity
consumption.

o During the course of cooking, we always monitor and reduce
the consumption of natural gas and electricity through
environmental-friendly and energy-saving kitchen equipment
and high-performance oil fume purifier, as well as the
installation of an online monitor for cooking oil fume.

Water resources

During the Year, the Group consumed a total of 4,675,295.75
tonnes of water resources. The Group mainly realizes the
conservation of water resources through the following measures.

° In the daily life of the institution, we set quotas for water
consumption in student apartments and canteens, and
restrict and reduce the usage of water through quota. We
will also adjust the water supply according to the season
and post tips on water conservation and conduct trainings
to enhance the awareness of water saving among teachers,
students and staff. In addition, some institutions advocate
water-free classrooms to save water by timely overhaul of
water consumption equipment and the selection of low water
consumption cleaning and sanitation methods.

° During the construction of newly developed projects, three-
level sedimentation tanks are built on site to recycle site
water resources. Water-saving squatting toilets are also used
in newly developed projects to reduce the consumption of
water resources at source.
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Other resources

During the daily office operation, we encourage the electronic
and paperless office, double-sided printing and share through
screen during teaching to minimize the use and waste
of papers. Certain schools have launched live-streaming
courses online and courses on demand, so as to effectively
reduce the paper printing. Some institutions also adopt
the administration method of registration for paper printing
to reduce unnecessary waste. During the Year, the Group
consumed a total of 45,659.41 kg of paper.

Each school’s office draw up a list of commonly used office
supplies according to its work requirements. The General
Office is responsible for verifying the benchmarks for the
receipt of commonly used teaching and office supplies
and for setting minimum and maximum inventory levels for
commonly used office and teaching supplies.

Some schools have stored the surplus ingredients and
seasonings after they are used in teaching to reduce
the waste of ingredients. Individual schools that act as
distribution divisions also take the initiative to reduce the use
of packaging for distribution.

During the daily life, we promote low-carbon consumption
and lifestyle such as taking public transport and other means
to implement green living.

In respect of the automobile paint coated and used in training
and teaching in automobile schools, we have uniformly
purchased and used water-based paint. Compared with oil-
based paint, the usage of water-based paint is reduced by
two-thirds, and the heat required for paint baking is reduced
by 40%.

During the newly developed projects, we adopt the
prefabricated construction method, giving priority to the use
of PC bricks and readily mixed mortar. Production in plants
and renovation models by on-site installation can effectively
reduce the waste of materials and greatly reduce the dust
from construction and noise pollution.
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5.2. Emissions Reduction

We also attach great importance to the health of students,
employees and communities as well as the natural environment
protection. In order to ensure the continuous improvement of
the environment, we have formulated strict regulations on the
management of waste disposal, greenhouse gas emission
and waste management in all schools. Through continuous
technological improvement and innovation, we effectively managed
and reduced all types of emissions. During the Year, according to
the statistics reported by the subordinate institutions and verified
by the Group, there were no pollution accidents or non-compliance
incidents that had a serious impact on the environment, and there
were no confirmed non-compliance incidents or complaints related
to environmental protection that had a significant impact on the
Group.

Exhaust Gas

During the Year, the Group’s emissions of atmospheric pollutants
totalled 6,118.83 kg, including nitrogen oxides of 4,187.14 kg,
sulphur oxides of 1,503.82 kg and respirable suspended particles
of 427.86 kg. Most of these emissions came from the use of
pipeline natural gas. The automobile schools use dust dry mills
and centrally integrated dry mills. By using a central dust collection
system to quickly draw in and filter the generated dust, the dust
pollution to users and the environment is largely reduced.
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The treatment device for vehicle exhaust
FERRREREE

Case sharing: Each vehicle training room is equipped with a treatment device for vehicle exhaust for the purpose of

processing exhaust gas emissions.
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Greenhouse gas

During the Year, the Group’s total greenhouse gas emissions
were 67,371.00 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent, of which the
direct emissions due to the use of fuels, vehicles, diesel generators
and stationary sources were 8,769.14 tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent, accounting for 13.02% of the total greenhouse gas
emissions; the indirect emissions from the production of purchased
electricity was 56,382.52 tonnes of carbon dioxide, accounting for
83.69% of the total greenhouse gas emissions.

Wastes

During the Year, the Group generated a total of approximately 2.68
tonnes of hazardous wastes and approximately 158,786.33 tonnes
of non-hazardous wastes.

° Our schools advocate waste sorting and management,
whereby food waste, hazardous waste, recyclables and other
waste are sorted before being cleaned up, transported and
treated by relevant municipal departments and third-party
companies to avoid secondary pollution by hazardous waste.
During the Year, some of our schools organized food waste
composting activities for teachers and students to effectively
recycle and reuse organic waste.

° Our schools organize teachers and students to learn
knowledge about waste sorting and actively carry out waste
sorting on campus.

° To mitigate the adverse impact of waste on the environment,
we use rechargeable batteries instead of dry batteries
whenever possible and use more easily degradable materials
for packaging. In addition, we also use mobile vetting offices
to reduce the generation of wastepaper.
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oo BENEA TR TSR

The Recyclables Exchange Program at Guiyang New East

EFSHR T A R R IR B

Case sharing: Guiyang New East promotes and encourages students to collect recyclables from the dormitory and
exchange them for daily necessities and small objects by collecting stamps. The money gained from recycling is
financially included in the school’s income, which amounts to approximately RMB1,000 per month. This measure
not only effectively boosts students’ initiative and motivation to maintain campus hygiene and environment but also
brings a small amount of income to the school.
RKUNZ - EEHRTRE  FBBLEREBES AN ORERMGBEEEN A LBREEEEAR N - T
WERASMHER - BBAAZRIA - §AHARKE1,0007T o LIEREMARFAE T 2EEERBEERIRE
BEEMN - BRI - hARBRERDENE

Sewage S5k

The drainage system of rain and sewage diversion established in PRI MR5 D mAIBEK R - AR R K
our schools can prevent sewage from flowing into rivers to the B Ll R 57K AR - WRKI5KE
greatest extent and reduce the sewage treatment volume. The rain BE o ZETUE DB K A HIRA

collected by the system will be reused, with the sewage discharged A - mEKEIEE ZIREREEITHER °
after secondary filtration.
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5.3. Environmental Protection

Through the establishment of the School Energy Saving and
Emission Reduction Leading Group, we have been monitoring
the implementation of environmental protection work in all our
schools to ensure that all environmental protection regulations and
requirements are effectively implemented, and actively promoting
the publicity and education on environmental protection in all
schooals.

In the process of school construction, the Group adheres to the
goal of developing beautiful campuses and high-quality projects.
We strictly comply with relevant laws and regulations and always
attach importance to environmental protection, while actively
minimizing negative impacts on the environment. To this end, we
have formulated a series of internal systems, such as the “Project
Management System”, to regulate every aspect of our projects,
and launched special construction programs in accordance with
local policies and systems. On the other hand, the Group has
been actively engaged in green construction management and
promoting green building projects. During the Year, all of our newly
developed projects passed energy-saving audits, with soil and
water conservation plans and environmental impact assessments
formulated to ensure that there would be no negative impact on
resources and the environment during the whole construction
process. Meanwhile, green building materials and equipment
used in the design and construction processes include solar
water heating systems, air-source heat pump systems, rockwool
composite panels, readily mixed concrete and readily mixed mortar,
and LED lighting fixtures. In the construction of the projects, we
require the construction parties to maximize the conservation of
resources and minimize negative impact on the environment while
ensuring to meet basic requirements such as quality and safety.
Through these measures, the Group strives to create a beautiful,
healthy and harmonious learning and living space for students,
employees and community members.
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The green design plan of the teaching building with review opinions on it

BERGERANTENESER

Case sharing: During the Year, the 1-star green building standards were adopted for the Group’s Jiangsu Xinhua
Vocational Education Industrial Park project and Xinhua Education Group’s Shandong Vocational Education
Industrial Park project (Phase ll), with the energy saving level of the teaching building, administration building,

dormitory and others of Jiangsu Xinhua Vocational Education Industrial Park (Phase ) reaching 72%.
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5.4. Climate Change

As the Group is mainly engaged in vocational education and
training, climate change would not normally have a significant
impact on our operations. Nevertheless, we also attach great
importance to and actively respond to climate risks such as
extreme natural weather. In the event that an extreme weather
condition occurs, the Group will immediately respond to the
relevant policies of the local government. All our schools will assess
the local climate risk and formulate contingency plans accordingly
to protect the safety of students and staff. For example, Omick
Education of Western Cuisine and Pastry has formulated the
“School’s Emergency Plan for Bad Weather such as Heavy Rain”,
which details the relevant preparations, emergency measures and
work requirements, aiming to effectively cope with bad weather
such as heavy rain and thunderstorms as well as possible flooding
disasters. In addition, in the event of acute physical risks such
as floods and fires, the Group will also promptly activate relevant
contingency plans and preparation proposals for disasters. To
cope with these climate risks, the Group has also taken out various
types of property and life insurance. During the Year, our ESG
taskforce also added responding to climate risks as its duties, and
will optimize the ability of the Group and its schools to cope with
climate risk more comprehensively in the future.
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6. FAIRNESS AND IMPARTIALITY AS A SOLID
FOUNDATION OF REGULATED OPERATIONS

6.1. Supplier Management

Adhering to its philosophy of mutual benefit and win-win
cooperation, the Group has maintained long-term and stable
cooperative relationships with many outstanding suppliers.
To ensure the favorable development of these cooperative
relationships, we have formulated the “Administrative Measures
the “Administrative and
Implementing Measures for the Collective Procurement of

for the Procurement of the Group”,

Supplies by the Group”, the “Administrative Measures for the
Suppliers”, the “Management Provisions on the Responsibility
for Integrity Building” and the “Bidding Process”, which set out
clearly the division of labor and responsibilities in procurement,
the definitions of procurement methods, classification of supplies
and the authority to approve them, procurement procedures,
document filing and contract management, as well as the details
of supplier management. During the Year, the Group amended the
“Administrative Measures for the Procurement of Xinhua Group” to
improve the existing system. In 2024, the Group cooperated with
a total of 101 suppliers covering suppliers of printing, electrical
appliance products, electronic products, teaching equipment,
teaching aids and teaching materials, systems and infrastructure
equipment. All suppliers were selected and engaged in accordance
with the above policy.
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The procurement management department formulates a clear
mechanism for supplier admission, establishes a supplier database,
and registers supplier information by category. Each supplier
must fill in the “Supplier Registration Form” and sign the “Integrity
Commitment Letter”, and provide the basic information and
qualification materials of the enterprise. We will check and verify
the above information. During the review, we will pay particular
attention to the potential risk factors including the social reputation
of the supplier, whether there are any non-compliance incidents
and whether the products supplied meet the relevant national
environmental protection regulations, in addition to checking
that whether the products provided by the suppliers meet our
needs, and we will give priority to the suppliers with lower risk for
cooperation.

We also conduct field trips to our suppliers to gain a better
understanding of whether their scale of operations and production
management systems meet our requirements on product quality
and environmental protection, as well as reviewing the product
inspection reports provided by our suppliers. Our procurement
team conducts both on-site visits and business negotiations to
gain a better understanding of our suppliers’ production scale and
staffing structure, key business performance, after-sales and value-
added services, and other key points to ensure that the products
they supply meet the high standards we have always adhered to.

The Group acknowledges the importance of green procurement to
environmental protection and actively promotes relevant measures
to reduce the negative impact on the environment. During the
Year, to actively respond to the national energy saving and
environmental protection policy, Xinhua Education of the Group
procured environmentally friendly products for use in infrastructure
and daily operations, including Grade 1 energy-saving air-to-water
heat pumps, environmentally friendly sterilization and anti-bacteria
boards, one-card water-saving and power-saving products,
inverter air-conditioners and environmentally friendly plates, so as
to achieve the conservation of energy and water resources in all
aspects.
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In addition to site visits and green procurement, every year, we
will evaluate the annual overall performance of suppliers from six
aspects including qualification, quality, price, supply, service and
other advantageous items. Suppliers scoring more than 95 are
deemed as excellent suppliers, suppliers whose scores ranging
from 86 to 95 are deemed as good suppliers, suppliers whose
scores ranging from 76 to 85 are deemed as qualified suppliers,
suppliers whose scores ranging from 66 to 75 will be put in the
observation list, and the Group will cooperate selectively with such
suppliers based on the observation. Suppliers scoring less than
66 or being reported and blacklisted by the president committee
of the Group will be included in the blacklist directly and will not be
considered for cooperation.

1. Admittance of Suppliers

o Procurement management department conducts information
review on the qualification materials provided by suppliers

o If necessary, the procurement department will conduct site
visits to suppliers

2. Implementation of procurement

° Select suppliers within the range of qualified suppliers

° Identify suppliers through tendering, competitive bidding,
direct appointment, etc. as required

3. Evaluation on suppliers

° The procurement team and the business department will
regularly evaluate suppliers

° Strengthen cooperation with outstanding suppliers after the
evaluation results are announced

In order to ensure the openness, fairness, justice and
standardization of procedures of the procurement activities, all of
our subordinate schools, procurement personnel, and suppliers are
required to sign the “Integrity Commitment Letter” which, based on
the relevant national laws and regulations and relevant documents
of the Group, aims to restrict the behaviors of all parties and
effectively prevent any acts to obtain improper benefits that violate
the law and discipline, in order to protect the legitimate rights and
interests of us and the suppliers.
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6.2. Compliance Management and Integrity Establishment

The Group deeply acknowledge the importance of compliant
operation to the development of the Company. In order to promote
the openness and transparency of the Company at all fronts, the
Group establishes the integrity establishment leadership team
and organizes a strong audit and supervision team, clarifies
the compliance supervision mechanism, and the Audit and
Supervision Department is responsible for the management and
supervision of the Group’s compliant operation. Strengthening
compliance management is not only for meeting the requirements
of external supervision, but also to cater for the needs of our own
business development. We are committed to cultivating corporate
compliance culture, regularly carrying out corporate compliance
training, establishing the idea of governing enterprises according to
law, and cultivating a corporate culture based on legal culture.

Anti-Fraud, Anti-Bribery, Anti-Corruption

We strictly abide by the laws and regulations including the “Anti-
Corruption and Bribery Law of the People’s Republic of China”
and the “Anti-Money Laundering Law of the People’s Republic
of China”. We take a “zero tolerance” attitude toward corruption,
bribery, blackmail, extortion, money laundering and other corrupt
practices, and designate the Audit and Supervision Department
as the Company’s permanent institution of integrity. In order to
prevent fraud, the Group enhances the governance and internal
control, reduces the Company’s risks, regulates the operation, and
maintains the legal interests of the Company and shareholders.
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations on listed companies
and requirements of securities trading markets and regulators,
based on the actual condition of the Company, we have established
the “Anti-fraud, Anti-bribery, Anti-corruption, and Reporting and
Complaint Management Measures of the Group”. The measures
specify that the Board and Audit Committee are responsible
for the guidance works on anti-fraud, anti-bribery and anti-
corruption. The management of the Company is responsible for
establishing and implementing the relevant mechanism and control
procedures with assessment and prevention of fraud risks. The
Audit and Supervision Department is responsible for assisting
in the establishment of these mechanisms, and pay reasonable
attention to and check the potential fraud during the internal audit.
All agencies and departments are responsible for their internal
anti-fraud, anti-bribery and anti-corruption works within the
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organization. Anti-corruption training is provided to all employees
across the Group through the formulation of training requirements
and the organization and conducting of trainings. We provide anti-
corruption trainings to new employees in the form of, including
but not limited to, employee handbooks and interpretation of
documents and systems. We post propaganda posters about the
systems in every office of the Group and publicize the importance
of anti-corruption to all staff through collective meetings such as
staff meeting. The supervisor of Supervision Department of the
Group will also conduct anti-corruption trainings on school leaders
and all department heads during tour visit to each school. During
the Year, the Group conducted 1 anti-corruption training covering
the Group headquarters and all business divisions, and provided
anti-corruption trainings for a total of 7 directors and 10,339
employees.

Established Complaint and Reporting Channels

The Group has also established the Complaint and Reporting
Management Rules of the Group, which specifies that the
Audit and Supervision Department of the Group is a competent
department responsible for investigating and handling complaints
and reportings made directly or passed on by the leaders of the
Group. The complaints and reportings involving the audit and
supervision personnel of the Group will be investigated and handled
by the person designated by the leaders of the Group. The Audit
and Supervision Department sets up a reporting hotline, email and
mailbox and other supervision and reporting channels and made
them open to the public. Employees at all levels and all parties in
the community having direct or indirect economic relationships with
the Company can report relevant violations of professional ethics
through these channels, or report and uncover actual or suspected
fraud cases. During the Year, the Group had no corruption or
commercial bribery lawsuits, and did not violate relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group’s operation.
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An illustrative example of posters about complaints and reportings
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Intellectual Property Rights Protection

The Group also implements comprehensive control and
management of intellectual property rights, and strictly abides by
the “Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Patent
Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Copyright Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, the “Anti-Unfair Competition Law of
the People’s Republic of China” and other relevant laws during our
production and operation activities. We formulate and implement
management systems on intellectual property rights within the
Company such as the “Trademark Management System of the
Group”, and clarify requirements for compliant management such
as the creation, registration, protection, use and other aspects of
intellectual property rights.

During the Year, the Group successfully obtained 90 patents and
copyrights. In terms of trademark protection, the Group added 37
new trademarks and registered 275 trademarks cumulatively during
the Year.

Truthful Advertising

The Group attaches importance to the truthfulness of advertising,
strictly complies with the Advertising Law of the People’s
Republic of China in its operation activities, and conducts internal
training on typical cases of illegal and non-compliant commercial
advertisements, while requiring employees to learn, understand,
abide by and use the law, informing employees the typical
illegal advertisements and regulating the Group’s advertising
requirements.
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7. HELPING EACH OTHER TO FULFILL SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY PRACTICALLY

While pursuing sustainable and stable corporate development,
the Group has never forgotten the support and trust from different
sectors of society. For more than 30 years, we have been
active in the field of public welfare, committed to paying back
to society and continuously fulfilling our commitment to assume
social responsibility. The Group has been shouldering corporate
responsibility to society, proactively encouraging and promoting
public welfare activities, and engaged in various public welfare
projects by connecting and leveraging its strengths in vocational
education. In promoting education and poverty alleviation,
community support and volunteer services, the Group has
effectively integrated its resources in different areas to contribute to
the prosperity and development of the communities and society in
which it operates.

7.1. Dream Building and Tuition Grants by Public Welfare Activities
in Poverty Alleviation and Education Support

To put into practice the comprehensive education model of “Skills
+ Further Studies + Employment” and to help youngsters from poor
families to acquire skills and gain employment, we re-launched
the “New Start — Dream Building Public Welfare Activities” project
in September 2024. The beneficiaries of the project included
unemployed youngsters, veterans, and persons with disabilities.
Since the inception of the education support and public welfare
project in 2017, we have cumulatively supported more than 11,000
students in poverty. During the event for the Year, the Group
raised RMB404,900, which is planned to support approximately
150 students. Through the public welfare and education support
project, the Group has been exploring effective ways of targeted
poor alleviation and educational support, so that students in
poverty and aspiring youngsters can have the opportunity to
receive vocational education, with their future empowered by
poverty alleviation through skill acquisition.

7. TEMRE - JERTHEEMR

FEEREEFERTHRRNRAE - AEE
RATRHEERB THIIFEFHE -
ZTHRER A EHEARELERHER
o HAOREHELEE - UFETEIET
EEHHSEENAGE - HPEEFEA
EEXHERMT  BHRIEMESHLER
HEE AETEKEETRERENE
g RENSELELRIAE - £EIH
BHE dHEBEERNEERESEE A
MEABHTRBENER B AERL
B Nt S FAR BB R o

BEITIRE A2 REINEZANVE AR
X ERREERNSFERREERE
BR2024F9 A BIRHRE [ FTiEE-EEQ
=TB]IEE XIBREHRBESRESF -
BEEA BEALT - APHBRAFZHEER
2017F AR LA - HMIE 25HE 811,000
HREERNSE - EAFEFBHEHME - A&
EHEERARKL0.498 T TEEHY
150Z 84 - BB AHERRE » AEET
BTRRBERE HEKENARBRE -
RENSBENEEEFTARSEIREH
B SR EM A AL AR -
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7.2. Reaching Out to Communities to Spread Love and Care

During the Year, with the Group’s schools leveraging their own
unique educational resources and professional skills, teachers
and students joined hands to reach out to communities during
important festivals to provide the elderly, women and special
groups with warmth and care. For instance, Changsha On-mind
worked together with community elderly service centers several
times during the Year to provide visiting “volunteer hair cut” services
for the elderly with special difficulties in the districts, thus turning
passive services into active services and covering the “last mile”
of serving the people. In addition to actively launching community
care activities, some of our schools also joined hands with other
schools to launch practical labor skills courses, aiming to introduce
practical skills education into campuses and provide more practical
opportunities for students at the basic education level while
boosting the “Double Reduction” policy with new momentum.

AEE  SEZXRRECEGHENEE
BRMEERRE  MEET  EE2HH
RAMER - BEA B BREBFZX
FROEE - PINEDPBEFEARAFES
REEHEEZRBEL - EPIRERRFK
REEF ARREIZDIERRYE - B
REERBTBHRG - TBARRBIRE—
Kl BIEGBFERMEREEEEIN - ok
REBFERFARSKERER  5HEKE
AREHRBIARE - RERBBREEN
PERHEZERRE RS0 AER]
BFENFEE S -

An illustrative example of community care activities launched by our schools
E bR R AT A0S B R )
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7.3. Introducing Food Education to Schools and Emphasizing
Students’ Diet and Nutrition

On 12 July 2024, the launching ceremony of the public welfare
activity with the theme of “Fuelling the Dream” hosted by Beijing
Yuruomu Charity Foundation and Beijing Reignwood Cultural
Foundation and co-organized by China East Education Group
and China Industry-University-Research Institute Collaboration
Association’s Collaborative Innovation Platform for Nutritious Meals
Industry was held in Shandong New East Technical School. Based
on the well-received activities last year, the Group joined hands
with relevant organizations again this year to continue to carry out
public welfare and education support activities in four schools in
Shandong, Henan, Hebei and Shaanxi. Through these activities,
the Group popularized knowledge about nutrition and health and
spread the idea of reasonable diet. During the activities, the four
schools organized public welfare activities that allowed them to
reach out to communities, homes for the elderly, primary and
secondary schools, thus enriching students’ practical experiences
in society and demonstrating the Group’s commitment to the
mission of “Healthy China”.

2024 7H12H - RILRM FEREZE
2  bREWEESSEY  PEE
FHEER  PHESHAIERESER
EEEXHRAF AR RNAEBINH]
FERAREHMBEACLRTRAFT
BRBERT - EEFNEHTEEZLT
FEMmER - SFSEMEEEASENE
F o FEWLE OAE AL~ PRI AT AR
BEME A A=EES  BRWAEHE
REERBENG  SEAEERES &
FFREEME - OATRR DRI T EfET
@ - AER PN BERNRTEY 25
BEMNHEERGEE  BRT7TEERTIE
AR MEMES -

2024 g HMAl” E ST RN

Launching cert

emony of the *
DREIEI | E B

7.4. Accreditation for the Group (Excerpt)

Award and Accreditation

REREE

Golden Bull Award for Hong Kong Stocks
BRE4 12
Outstanding Development Award

SFHBRE

Outstanding Case Study of Leaders in New Ecology of Automotive
MENERBEEBFREN

of the “Fuellin%bt{ge_tDream” activity
e

7.4, REERGRE (HE)

Awarding Organization

AL

China Securities Journal October 2024
Bl 20245104
Shanghai United Media December 2024
Group/Jiemian News 2004412 A
PEREEE/REHME

Automotive Quality and December 2024
Brand Credit Laboratory 2024412 A

AEEERmEERERE
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APPENDIX 1: SUMMARY OF KEY PERFORMANCE Fidk1 - BERBENIEEHE
INDICATORS
Environmental Performance: RIBAEBERIA ¢

Key Performance Indicators

Air pollutants®

ARIZRY°

Nitrogen oxide emissions :9 4,187.14 5,218.65 5,904.91

RE(INOXBERE =

Sulphur oxide emjssions 59 1,5083.82 528.71 1,626.37

RSO E %

Particle emissions l;g 427.86 438.85 503.04

BRI E )

Greenhouse gas

BERRE

Scope 1 Direct emission® tonnes CO,-e 9,194.89 10,743.60 11,381.47

HE—BEHNE® NE_EIREE

Scope 1 emissions per RMB million tonnes CO,-e/RMB million ~~ 2.23 2.70 2.98

revenue’ AE-—EtREE AETARE

FRETARBYNGEHE —HRE

Scope 2 Indirect emission® tonnes CO, 57,827.65 62,876.25 57,703.85

SE _BRHME® N k=P 7

Scope 2 emissions per RMB million tonnes CO/RMB million 14.06 15.80 15.11

revenue . o R —2{Ph, B BTARE

BRETARBKREE —HHE

Scope 3 Indirect emission® tonnes CO.-e | 348.45 514.85 269.59

&[E =M E® NIty (G794

Total %reenhouseagas emissions tonnes CO.-e | _ 67,371.00 74,134.70 69,354.91

AEREINAE AE—AHEE

Greenhouse gas emissions per RMB tonnes CO,-e/RMB million 16.37 18.63 18.16

milion revenue, _ A - E%%E

BRBTARBRSREREHNE BBETAR

5  The calculation method and relevant emission coefficients of the air 5 WARSRUBBEE B R kAR
pollutant emissions refer to the “First National Census on Pollution [t /\\E:;L\:%D ERRIRIR B
Sources Manual of Urban Living Source Discharge Coefficients”, the ) (5 — R 2 B R B B IR A h R E
“Road Vehicles Air Pollutant Emission Inventory Preparation Technical wﬁ@%ﬁ¢ﬁ> p <5§ﬁ%2‘%§ﬂ$ﬁﬁﬁ%%
Guide (Trial)” and “Non-road Mobile Source Air Pollutant Emission EFW%%%%&@{?E@ (7)) AR (Es8
Inventory Preparation Technical Guide (Trial)’, issued by the Ministry ER IS SR AR5 R BEUR B AR Rl 1E
of Ecolo%y and Environment of the People’s Republic of China. Fﬁ:(iﬂ%; Y g —

6 The GHG emissions (Scope 1) are calculated with reference to the 6 ﬁt/ﬂﬂiﬁﬁ%@g(%ﬂ 22 E \ /ﬁ\é
“Calculation Method and Reporting Guidance on Greenhouse Gas Efgaﬁ%ﬁﬁ MR i/ﬁﬁg i
Emissions for Other Industrial Enterprises (Trial)” and the “Calculation XEREREHNZE Zi{fff@@:jﬂgﬁ (#
Method and Reporting Guidance on Greenhouse Gas Emissions for ﬂ)g N \<<Bi£5§:@g$$? 18 R/m 2 R g%ﬁy
On-road Transportation Enterprises (Trial)” issued by the National *ﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁi*ﬁﬁm ?E'fi aﬁﬁ) L&E@jﬁ/fﬁ
Development and Reform Commission of China and the “How %‘WEL‘]@D@%ﬁiRZE; %%‘;&%E#E =
tEo prepare ar|1 KEPSIG Repo(;tb— Ahppsendi?EZ: ﬁeporting Guidance on Eﬂé%az CRIZERETIEIZIERIES]) 5T

nvironmental s” issued by the Stock Exchange. T . " .
The Group’s revenue for the Year was RMB4,116.19 million. 7 §%§$%@W/\Z%/\EM4J 16.198 &

8  The calculation scope of the GHG emission (Scope 2) includes 8  ULREREHEN(EE )M HEE S
indirect emissions caused by the production of purchased electricity I \Vﬂ%ﬁ;\%ﬁ%%ﬂﬁi%@*;ﬁpﬁﬁimﬁj
in Mainland China, with reference to the “Instructions on Greenhouse 3 ‘TFEZ;;@ %EE Bl RBIR S a‘@é‘@% E"J§$
Gas Emission Accounting and Reporting for Power Generating %/ﬁgi‘zﬁﬁgﬁ?ﬁ ’%Eﬁﬁgﬂiﬁmﬁg% s
Equipment of Enterprises” issued by the Ministry of Ecology and s i) (51 38 AT SR 2022F 2 B B A4 17
Environlment of the PRCf(the )calculation factor adopts the 2022 BERET) -
national average emission factor). @ = VI Ry —

9 The calculation scope of the GHG emission (Scope 3) includes 9 ﬁtéiﬁﬁﬁﬂ(éﬂ ‘?E)E@iz@fiﬂ@ﬁ%
indirect GHG emissions from the Group’s business air travel and AT AN 20 7 15 ik B SR AR R TS A
paper waste. GHG emissions from business air travel are calculated HIEE R ZE RSP © EIMZE 2 IRE L H)
in accordance with the “Greenhouse Gas Protocol: The Calculation /méﬁiz@ﬁé?ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ R 5
Tool for Greenhouse Gases Emissions from Combustion of Transport Efﬁﬁ?é‘ )EI? z f?$%“§§mﬁ E’%(lgg;‘éﬁ e
or Mobile Sources” issued by the World Resources Institute and BEER  BE /EW\S*@?;@% o8 P et
the World Business Council for Sustainable Development; GHG HI O HEH @X%nﬁﬁﬁ@i@m%
emissions from paper waste are calculated in accordance with the %HE}?FQ@EL@&M \ftﬁé R <<12£@/+1%z§
“How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance 5 g heama e IRIERRE
on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange. BIRIRIE IR AT ES T -
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Key Performance Indicators Unit 2024 2023 2022
BRUER B 20244 2023F 20224
Wastes

BEY

Total discharge of hazardous wastes tonnes 2.68 3.26 4.83
BFERRNELHEE NI

Total hazardous wastes produced per tonnes/RMB million 0.0007 0.0008 0.0013
RMB million revenue AW/ BETARE

BEBTARBUGEEREELES

Total discharge of hazardous wastes tonnes 2.07 2.59 2.71
BEREEYENES NI

Total hazardous wastes produced per tonnes/RMB million 0.0005 0.0007 0.0007
RMB million revenue D BETARE

BEETARBRRAEEEYEYES

Total discharge of non-hazardous wastes  tonnes 158,786.33"°  23,986.39 23,380.84
BERRNELES UNII]

Total non-hazardous wastes produced per tonnes/BMB million 38.58 6.03 6.12
RMB million revenue D BETARE

BEBTARBUGEEREELES

Total recycled non-hazardous wastes tonnes 153,164.26"" 11,347.15 8,693.49
BEEEYORES N

Total recycled non-hazardous wastes per  tonnes/BMB million 37.21 2.85 2.28
RMB million revenue D BETARE

BEETARBUGESEEY R ES

Use of resources

BREA

Total water consumption tonnes 4,675,295.75 4,847,009.42 4,450,199.51
Rk#EE YN

Water consumption per RMB million tonnes/RMB million 1,135.83 1,218.25 1,165.28
revenue DH/ BETARE

BEETARBRGERKE

Total consumption of packaging materials ~ tonnes 14.27 25.93 13.82
BEMEERESE NI

Total consumption of packaging materials ~ tonnes/RMB million 0.003 0.01 0.004
per RMB million revenue DH/BETARE

BEETARBUDZBEMEIERE

10 The reason for the increase in total discharge of non-hazardous 10 AFEEEEENELBSERERAARR
wastes during the Year was the expansion of schools, which W32 25 4 130,000 ME B S 47 3K o
generated 130,000 tonnes of construction wastes.

11 The reason for the increase in total recycled non-hazardous wastes 11 AFEETEEYRNRKRSIERRA AR
during the Year was the recycling of 130,000 tonnes of construction LT Be A2 R S22 2 A 9 130,000ME R EE 57 3%, ©

wastes generated by schools under expansion.
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Key Performance Indicators Unit

BERER B

Use of energy 2

BERE"?

Total electricity consumption MWh

REESE KE B

Electricity consumption per RMB million  MWh/RMB million
revenue KEE BETARE
BRETARBR=RESE

Total natural gas consumption MWh

RARRBFEEE KR

Natural gas consumption per RMB MWh/RMB million
million revenue HKEE, BETARE
BRETARBEAAARAE

Total gas consumption MWh

BRREREEE JKELEF

Gas consumption per RMB million MWh/RMB million
revenue KEK, BETARE
BRETARBKRZERAE

Total methanol consumption MWh

PR HFEAS JKELEs

Methanol consumption per RMB million ~ MWh/RMB million
revenue KEE, BETARE
BRETARBYESFERS

Total LPG consumption MWh

RICERER KB

LPG consumption per RMB million MWh/RMB million
revenue KEE, BETARE
BRETARBYSRICAhRAE

Total gasoline consumption MWh

FURBREAE JKEL B

Gasoline consumption per RMB million  MWh/RMB million
revenue KEE BETARE
BRETARBERVEAE

Total diesel consumption MWh

SOHEREAE JKELES

Diesel consumption per RMB million MWh/RMB million
revenue KEE, BETARE
BRETARBKRHAE

Total steam consumption MWh

KIVHEFRERE KE B

Steam consumption per RMB million MWh/RMB million
revenue IR/ BT AR
BRETARBE&ZTRE

Total comprehensive energy MWh

consumption JKF B
mERERAS

Comprehensive energy consumption per MWh/RMB million
RMB million revenue \ KRE BETARK
BRETARBRRGESEIRERE

12 Use of energy is calculated in accordance with the conversion factors
in the National Standardized General Principles for Calculation of
Comprehensive Energy Consumption (GB/T 2589-2020) of the
People’s Republic of China.

13 The reason for the increase in total diesel consumption during the
Year was the usage of hew excavators.

China East Education Holdings Limited «" FEIRAHBERER QA

2024 2023 2022
2024 2023F 2022F
105,073.64 110,251.18  101,181.58
25.53 27.71 26.49
19,026.60  24,850.49 17,720.05
4.62 6.25 4.64
4,571.01 1,5659.34 4,913.89
1.11 0.39 1.29
2,349.43 2,574.78 837.14
0.57 0.65 0.22
10,409.27  8,949.35 16,990.44
2.53 2.25 4.45
6,048.64 8,923.91 9,010.91
1.47 2.24 2.36
43.641 4.08 4.08
0.0106 0.0010 0.0011
3.65 = =

0.0009 = =
147,525.88 157,113.13  150,658.09
35.84 39.49 39.45

12 RFEAERBEAFEAREINBERERELE
(B BT E MBI (GB/T 2589-2020) )
BEEBGTE -

18 AFEHERBERASENRERFILZHE
HEER -
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APPENDIX 2: REPORT INDEX Midk2 : F;ERLI

Mandatory
Disclosure
Requirements

RN R E

Governance
Structure

BIARE

A statement from the board containing the following elements:

()  adisclosure of the Board’s oversight of ESG issues;

(i) the Board’s ESG management approach and strategy,
including the process used to evaluate, prioritise and
manage material ESG-related issues (including risks to
the issuer’s businesses); and

(i)  how the Board reviews progress made against ESG-
related goals and targets with an explanation of how
they relate to the issuer’s businesses.

HEEFSHLNER  ETEHA FIIAT :

) WEEESHESGEENEE

(i) EFEHWESGERT# KR - BIEE - BIXHEI R
EREENESCIHEASEE (BIEHEITAEBER) &
BAE - M

(i) FBFSWMFAHRESGIER B BT £ - WHFEET N
BT AEBHRAE -

Disclosure Sections

BEEH

Sustainability Management/
Low Carbon and Energy
Saving for Diversified
Empowerment of Green
Transformation
—Iﬁﬁéé’*‘@ B KHRED

' B AR BT

Reporting Principles
b R SR Al

A description of, or an explanation on, the application of the
following Reporting Principles in the preparation of the ESG

Report: materiality, quantitative, consistency.

R SRR BESGRER AR TIERRR : E8
M B —But o

About This Report
BARARE

Reporting Boundary
e S 86 &

A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the ESG
report and describing the process used to identify which
entities or operations are included in the ESG report. If there is
a change in the scope, the issuer should explain the difference
and reason for the change.

FRIEESGIR S EREHE - K LEEUEB%,\ RS RBEAA
RE dgRELABENBEE - EERBEBINE - 81T
ANERBTRZEREEHREA -

About This Report
AR
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General
Disclosure and

Key Performance

Indicators
-REER
RRENEE

A. Environmental
A B%

A1, Emissions

N3t

General disclosure
—fHE

Information on:

@
(o)

the policies; and
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes.
BBERNRZREBHN - MARLONET  AERESEEY
MELSH :

@
(o)

BR: R
BTHRTAREAYENERARRRRNER -

Disclosure Sections or Explanation

KESHIRE

Low Carbon and Energy Saving for
Diversified Empowerment of Green
Transformation

B - ST REER

A1
A1

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

Br R KRB ER

Appendix 1: Summary of Key Performance
Indicators

fiixt : BRENESEE

A1.2

A1.2

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse
gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

Bk (BE1) RasRRHE (BE2) RERBHRE (A S)
R (@R ZE (A BEEEN - GERMHE) o

Appendix 1: Summary of Key Performance
Indicators

Wi - BRENERAE

A1.3

A1.3

Total hazardous wastes produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

FEERERENLE R R (WER) 2E Wis
EBEf - BERNHE) o

Appendix 1: Summary of Key Performance
Indicators

skt : BRENEREE

At4

At4

Total non-hazardous wastes produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intenstty (.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
FEERERZNAS (AE:
EEEN - BERNHE) -

B) R (iR %E (g

Appendix 1: Summary of Key Performance
Indicators

skt - BRI

A1.5

A15

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results
achieved.

WA LG8 RE R AR RE L A BAREA SR «

Low Carbon and Energy Saving for
Diversified Empowerment of Green
Transformation

B - SBaREEY

A1.6

A1.6

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.
BARBAERESEEMN AL - REARTLANER
BRAEIEL R BARROSE -

Low Carbon and Energy Saving for
Diversified Empowerment of Green
Transformation

[ERERRE - ZTHa B
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General
Disclosure and

Key Performance

Indicators
-REER
RRENEE

A. Environmental
AR5

A2. Use of Resources

R2. BTRER

General disclosure
—HE

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water,

and other raw materials.

RHERER (BELR K REMFRHHE) 5eE -

Disclosure Sections or Explanation

KESHIEE

Low Carbon and Energy Saving for
Diversified Empowerment of Green
Transformation

B - ST REEY

A2.1  Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (.9. Appendix 1: Summary of Key Performance
electricity, gas or ail) in total (kWh in 000s) and intensity (e.g. Indicators
per unit of production volume, per facilty). Mg BREREEE

p REHEAMERR/SEELRIE - Roh) EHE
AT BT EF:E) REE MASESEN - BERE
)

A2.2  Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of Appendix 1: Summary of Key Performance
production volume, per facilty). Indicators

A2 BREKEREE(MAGESEN - §HEEEHE) o Wik - BRENREEE

A2.3  Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results Low Carbon and Energy Saving for

achieved.

Diversified Empowerment of Green

P23 RERFTTARRE ARG B B R AEEEL B EMERY | Transformation
ke [EiREnRE - MR RER
A2.4  Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water Low Carbon and Energy Saving for
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results Diversified Empowerment of Green
achieved. Transformation
A24  ERSKEVERKR EAIAEARE - URMETORKMEE | BREE STHeGEEE
EERAEEELEEMERNSHE - The Group’s water consumption is derived
from the municjpal water supply network,
S0 it has not encountered any problems in
obtaining appropriate water consumption
16S0Urces
AEBFKGRETBEKER - HEXT
BRKE R FRE
A2.5  Total packaging material used for finished products (in Appendix 1: Summary of Key Performance
tonnes), if applicable, with reference to per unit produced. Indicators
A5 BEMARBEMKNEE IR R(ER) SEEE | Wik : BRENEREE

ffhg -
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General
Disclosure and

Key Performance

Indicators
-REER
RRENEE

A3, Environment and
Natural Resources
A3 BERARER

General disclosure

—REE

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.

BERTAHRERARERENEAY BOBR «

Disclosure Sections or Explanation

KESHIRE

Low Carbon and Energy Saving for
Diversified Empowerment of Green
Transformation
[ERERRE - SRR

A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the

environment and natural resources and actions taken to

Low Carbon and Energy Saving for
Diversified Empowerment of Green

B BRIk
) BTHERTAREATEZNEEAEREANER -

manage them. Transformation
A3l HERERERHRRRARERNEAYERCRNERE | ERSH  SuErgeEn
, B 2018
A. Environmental
A B General disclosure Low Carbon and Energy Saving for

—HE Diversified Empowerment of Green

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related Transformation

issues which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer. | IRIREEE - S o sekn R

, B REHE AR AR HET ALY ENE R RIEHFEN
A4. Climate Change B o
A RIRE( — e — : :

A4l Description of the significant climate-related issues which Low Carbon and Energy Saving for
have or may have impact on the issuer, and actions takento | Diversified Empowerment of Green
manage them. Transformation

A1 ERESRFREHETAEEYENEARRARSE - | ERE SrEdEeEL
RUES78) -

General disclosure Work Together to Create a Blueprint for the

—fHE Corporate Development

Information on: BhEL - HErFERER

@  thepolicies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.

B. Social B1. Employment REFMRRE TERES IRE- BE TERe %7
Bi® Bl |1t RURNREMGERERN

Bi.1  Total workforce by gender, employment type (such as full-
time or part-time), age group and geographical region.
IR EERE (M2RIGRE) « FRARIRIREA N

ERRH -

B1.1

Work Together to Create a Blueprint for the
Corporate Development
PARL - ARAFERER

B1.2  Employee tumover rate by gender, age group and

geographical region.

Bl2 &R FRARNNMLEENNERRALE -

Work Together to Create a Blueprint for the
Corporate Development
BNAEL HEGERRER
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General
Disclosure and

Key Performance

Indicators
-REER
RRENEE

B. Social
B.#&

B2. Health and Safety
B2. REEZE

General disclosure

—REE

Information on:

@  thepolicies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting

employees from occupational hazards.

RERER2TERERARREREBENAEN -

B BRK

b EFTHETAREAYENRBAERADINEN -

Disclosure Sections or Explanation

KESHIEE

Work Together to Create a Blueprint for the
Corporate Development/Building Dreams
with Ingenuity and Nurturing Outstanding
Leading Talents

BARL - HECERRER/FLEE
BREHEEAT

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities in each of the past

three years (including the reporting year).

Work Together to Create a Blueprint for the
Corporate Development

B2t BEA=F(REERER)BERICHANABRILE PR HELEERER
B2.2  Lost days due to work injury. Work Together to Create a Blueprint for the
B22 RAIBBAI(EAH- Corporate Development
BNAEL - HELERREE
B2.3  Description of occupational health and safety measures Building Dreams with Ingenuity and Nurturing
adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored. Outstanding Leading Talents
B23 MMRANBEREEZ2EN UREBRIREER |ELEE RERHEEAT

e

General disclosure

—RHE

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skils for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

ERRTHEE BT TR EMMEREGNBR « HlsEHNED -

Work Together to Create a Blueprint for the
Corporate Development
BNAL  HEPEHREE

B3. Development
and Training
B3. HEEE

B3.1  The percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category (e.g. senior management and middle

management).

Work Together to Create a Blueprint for the
Corporate Development
PHRL HELEERER

B31 RUANRESERMSREERE PAERE)ASNTI
EEADML -

B3.2  The average training hours completed per employee by Work Together to Create a Blueprint for the
gender and employee category. Corporate Development

B2 RUAIRESRRZS  BRERTAKINTHIEE - BARL - AEGFERER

Annual Report 2024 " —Z [ F3R

149



Environmental, Social and Governance Report &iE - # @R ERRE

General
Disclosure and

Key Performance

Indicators
-REER
RRENEE

B4. Labour
Standards
B4, ST EH|

General disclosure

—REE

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BBMIEETR4HIATH -

B HBER

) BFHETABEAYEHEELZERAGNER -

Disclosure Sections or Explanation

KESHIRE

Work Together to Create a Blueprint for the
Corporate Development
BNAEL  HEGERRER

B4.1  Description of measures to review employment practices to

avoid child and forced labour.

Work Together to Create a Blueprint for the
Corporate Development

B4t fitisEBEANEEABRETRENAT - BNAL - £EPEFYRER

B4.2  Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when Work Together to Create a Blueprint for the
discovered. Corporate Development

B2 HMEZRERBENSERAEEIMERNIR - BhEL - HErFERER

B. Social
B.#g

B5. Supply Chain
Management
Bo. fEHER

General disclosure

i

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.

ERAEENRE R ERREE -

Faimess and Impartiality as a Solid
Foundation of Regulated Operations
DAL REELFERE

B5.1  Number of suppliers by geographical region. Faimess and Impartiality as a Solid
B51  IRtREAHEERHE o Foundation of Regulated Operations
RFRE REELFERE

B5.2  Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, Faimess and Impartiality as a Solid
number of suppliers where the practices are being Foundation of Regulated Operations
implemented, and how they are implemented and monitored. | AFALE - PHELTERE

Bo.2 HABERMEMNED  mERTRBENNHLERR
B ARABRTRERN%

B5.3  Description of practices used to identify environmental Faimess and Impartiality as a Solid
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are Foundation of Regulated Operations
implemented and monitored. AYRE  HBELHERE

Bo.3 i ARAENI MR ERONHRE AL ERBHER - LA
REBRTRERNE

B5.4  Description of practices used to promote environmentally Faimess and Impartiality as a Solid
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, Foundation of Regulated Operations
and how they are implemented and monitored. ATRE  HBELHERE

Bo.4 HMERBMEENRRSZARRERNRHOHEDN - SRk

RERIRERENEL -
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General
Disclosure and

Key Performance

Indicators
-REER
RRENEE

B. Social
B.#®

B6. Product
Responsibility
B6. EmRfE

General disclosure
—HE

Information on:

@
(o)

the policies; and
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters

relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.

REMREERNREORERRS RS  BERLBSEAR

W AR ¢
@B BRIk
) BTHERTABEATZNEEAEREANER -

Disclosure Sections or Explanation

KESHIEE

Building Dreams with Ingenuity and Nurturing
QOutstanding Leading Talents/Faimess and
Impartiality as a Solid Foundation of Regulated
Operations

ELEE  FEZMREAT /ATALE -
REESSERE

Due to the nature of the Group’s busingss,
labellng matters relating to the products and
services provided are not applicable to the
Group

BRAZBNEFIE  BRIIELERA
RReEGEEHAE BT B

B6.1

B6.1

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons.
BEFREREMANTREZ 2 BEFERMEDUNE D
id:

This item Is not aoplicable to the Group as
the Group’s business does not involve the
manufacture of proaucts
BRAZEEHT I REGLE  WEHA
£51EF

B6.2

B6.2

Number of products and services related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.

REBRERRRBNERYEARELHT L -

Building Dreams with Ingenuity and Nurturing
Outstanding Leading Talents
ELEE  HEZEBEAT

B6.3

B6.3

Description of practices related to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.
MRS RREAREER RN ER -

Faimess and Impartiality as a Solid
Foundation of Regulated Operations
DIRE - REEESERE

B6.4

B6.4

Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.
mlEERTRERERERES -

This item Is not aoplicable to the Group as
the Group's business does not involve the
manufacture of proaucts
BRAZEEFTIREGLE  WRHE
£ETEA

B6.5

B6.5

Description of consumer information protection and privacy
policies, and how they are implemented and monitored.
RUEBAENRRERABEE « DRI RESS
%o

Building Dreams with Ingenuity and Nurturing
QOutstanding Leading Talents
ELEE  HEREBEAT
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General
Disclosure and

Key Performance

Indicators
-REER
RRENEE

B. Social
B.#&

B7. Anti-corruption
B7. R&A

General disclosure

—HEE

Information on:

@  thepolicies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

REDILEER 9% REFRAREN -

@ BE:R

) BFHETABEAYEHEELIERAGNER -

Disclosure Sections or Explanation

KESHIRE

Faimess and Impartiality as a Solid
Foundation of Regulated Operations
DIRE - REBESERE

B7.1  Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its employees during
the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.

B7.1 RESHAHETAIHESRLUEEENETHFARNK
HE A KGR o

Faimess and Impartiality as a Solid
Foundation of Regulated Operations
DAL REELSERE

B7.2  Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing

procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.

Br2 HihaEmkERE  IRERRTRER A -

Faimess and Impartiality as a Solid
Foundation of Regulated Operations
RERE - RBELSERE

B7.3  Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors
and staff.

HRREZRETREMRESE -

B7.3

Fairmess and Impartiality as a Solid
Foundation of Regulated Operations
DNFRT - REELSERE

B8. Community
Investment

BS. {E&KE

General disclosure

—REE

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities
take into consideration the communities” interests.

AR R2ER T REEMEHREENEREZKEDHEZR
HERFIROHE o

Helping Each Other to Fuffil Social
Responsibility Practically
TERE ERTHERE

B8.1  Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental
concerns, needs of labour, health, culture and sports).

B8l EIEEEE(IHE BEFE HIBL EE X
1t 85) -

Helping Each Other to Fulffil Social
Responsibility Practically
TERE  ERTHEEE

B8.2  Resources contributed (e.g. money and time) to the focus

area.

Bs2 AZIBBHMIMAR(NEEHHH) o

Helping Each Other to Fuffill Social
Responsibility Practically
TR - DEBTHERE
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Directors’ Report EE 24

The Board is pleased to present its report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2024.

INCORPORATION AND LISTING OF THE COMPANY

The Company was incorporated in Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 4 October 2018 under
the Companies Law of Cayman Islands and the shares of the
Company (the “Shares”) were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 12 June 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the operation of vocational training education
services. Details of the activities of the principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.

RESULTS AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 191 in this annual report.

A fair review of the business of the Group during the year and its
likely future development and outlook, important events affecting
the Company that have occurred since the end of the financial
year, an analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators, details regarding the Group’s
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group, and the Group’s key relationships
with stakeholders as required under Schedule 5 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) are set out
in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management
Discussion and Analysis” and “Corporate Governance Report” of
this annual report and which also constitute part of this report.

EFEEMAREERE R AEEIRE2024
FI2AMBLFRZEERGAMBR
%o

RAF AL LT

RAFR2018F10 H4ABEREHE AR
FERESHEAMKIAEREERE R
AR e R2019%F6 8128 © A RAIWRG
(T3 ) TERE SR P MR T ©

RRRB/REEBAT  AEEX2EHE

BEREHERY - EXEMBARMNE
B BERAF Rz A P IFRRMES2 -

REREBEE

ANEFEEE2024F12 A31 A L FER LA
R AFERBIOENGAEZNEMEE
IREEE °

BRAARERFAXHORFERLEA
BARRERLAR BV REFEREDH

ENFEARTINEREM - UMK
BYEROMAREFANKE - BN
SEETUHAKRBEELASARENEME
REZFROBERARAEE BN G AEE
MEZMEERSRE RGN (FEENE
622F) I REMMREHN A F R T FEH
o [BERETwREINIRIEEELY
HIEE - BIMBRARE 8D °
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The following list is a summary of certain principal risks and
uncertainties facing by the Group:

° our business and results of operations depend on the level of
tuition fees we are able to charge and our ability to maintain
and raise the level of tuition fees.

° our business is heavily dependent on the market recognition
of our brand and reputation and any damage to our
reputation would materially and adversely affect our business.
Negative publicity concerning our schools or our Group may
adversely affect our reputation, business, growth prospect
and our ability to recruit qualified teachers and staff.

° we face intense competition from existing players and
industry consolidation in the PRC, which could lead to
adverse pricing pressure, reduced operating margins, loss
of market share, departures of qualified employees and
increased capital expenditures.

° we may expand our school network through acquisitions or
cooperation with third party partners and may not be able to
successfully execute such expansion strategy.

The above is not an exhaustive list. Investors are advised to make
their own judgment or consult their own investment advisors before
making any investment in the Shares.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to fulfilling social responsibility, promoting

employee benefits and development, protecting the environment
and giving back to community and achieving sustainable growth.

China East Education Holdings Limited «" FEIRAHBERER QA
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The revenue attributable to the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s consolidated total
revenue for the year.

The purchases attributable to the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s consolidated total
purchases for the year.

None of the Directors nor any of their close associates (as defined
in the Listing Rules) nor any Shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the number of
issued Shares) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and/or five largest suppliers during the year.

DIVIDEND

At the Board meeting held on 27 March 2025, the Board proposed
the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.22 (approximately
RMBO0.21) per ordinary share in respect of the year ended 31
December 2024. The aforesaid proposed payment of final dividend
is subject to approval of the Shareholders at the AGM to be held on
Tuesday, 27 May 2025. Subject to the approval of Shareholders at
the AGM, the aforesaid proposed final dividend is expected to be
paid on or around Thursday, 26 June 2025.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the Shareholders by the reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

If the Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holdings, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of
any rights in relation to the Company’s Shares, they are advised to
consult an expert.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in note 15 to
the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of changes in the share capital of the Company during

the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Movements in reserves of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2024 are set out in the note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

Our reserves available for distribution to the Shareholders consist
of share premium and retained profits. Under the Companies Act
(Chapter 22) of the Cayman Islands and subject to compliance
with the Articles of Association, the share premium account may
be applied by the Company for paying distributions or dividends
to the Shareholders if immediately following the date on which the
distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, we will be able to
pay off our debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
As of 31 December 2024, the Company’s reserve available for
distribution to equity holders amounted to approximately RMB2,095
million.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has approved and adopted a dividend policy (the
“Dividend Policy”), pursuant to which the Company may declare
and distribute dividends to the Shareholders to allow Shareholders
to share the Company’s profits and for the Company to retain
adequate reserves for future growth.

The declaration, distribution and amount of dividend is subject to
the absolute discretion of the Board, after taking into account, inter
alia, the Group’s operations, business and future development
plans, liquidity position, our future operations and earnings, capital
requirements and surplus, financial condition, working capital
requirements and other factors that the Board consider relevant.
The distribution of final dividend of a financial year will be subject to
the approval of the Shareholders, but the amount of dividend shall
not exceed the recommmendation of the Board.

Subject to the aforesaid factors, the Board plans to maintain

distributing not less than 30% of the distributable profit of the
relevant financial year of the Group as dividend.
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Declaration, recommendation or distribution of any dividend is
subject to all relevant applicable laws and regulation of Cayman
Islands and the Articles of Association. The Board will continually
review the Dividend Policy and reserve the right in its sole and
absolute discretion to update, amend and/or modify the Dividend
Policy at any time. The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute
a legally binding commitment by the Company that dividends will
be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way obligate the
Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

On 27 March 2025, in the absence of unforeseen circumstances,
the Board approved the plans that the dividends to be distributed
by way of cash to the Shareholders for each of the financial year
ending 31 December 2025, 2026 and 2027 will account for not
less than 60% of the net profit attributable to the Shareholders for
that year (the “Plan”).

The Board approved the Plan to demonstrate the Company’s
confidence over its business development and prospects. In
deciding whether to recommend the payment of dividends and
its amount, the Board will consider the factors outlined in the
Dividend Policy, including the Group’s operations, business and
future development plans, liquidity position, future operations and
earnings, capital requirements and surplus, financial condition,
working capital requirements, and other relevant factors. In case of
any inconsistency between the Plan and the Dividend Policy, the
Dividend Policy shall prevail.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wu Wei (Chairman)
Mr. Xiao Guoqing (Deputy chairman)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wu Junbao
Mr. Lu Zhen

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Hung Ka Hai, Clement

Dr. Zhu Guobin

Dr. Zang Yunzhi
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FIET D Re0%8 T2l ([ZEH8l) -

ExecitERTE  RBRAQRHER
BEREASFRED REEEEEHEX
MEEREFAER  EFEKEERER
RPEUENE R BEAKENZE ¥
BRRRERAS  RBESMN - KK
BERAMN  BARFBRER - MBHR -
LEESHLLEMBBAESE - fWikat &
B SR — - ARBBER A% -

=

REZE2024F12 A31 B IEFE N EE AR
SHENESEA

WITES
REFZLE(ZE/E)
HEELLE (FEE)

FATER
REREE
BERELE

BUIFNTES
HEREE
REDEE L
EESEL

Annual Report 2024 " —Z Z[UFFIR

157



158

Directors’ Report EE2 4%

DIRECTORS (continued)

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Wu Wei,
Mr. Wu Junbao and Dr. Zang Yunzhi, shall retire by rotation and,
being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual written confirmation of independence.
The Company confirms all the independent non-executive Directors
are independent pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
and each of the non-executive Directors has entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company for a term commencing from
the date of his/her appointment/re-designation as an executive
Director/non-executive Director which shall be for a period of three
years since the listing date, and shall be automatically renewed for
successive periods of three years (always subject to re-election
as and when required under the Articles of Association). The term
of each of the service contracts/letter of appointments shall end
when the service contract/letter of appointment is terminated in
accordance with the terms and conditions thereof or by either party
giving to the other party not less than three months’ prior notice in
writing.

Each of our independent non-executive Director has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial period of one
year since the listing date or his/her date of appointment, and shall
automatically renewed for successive period of one year (subject to
re-election as and when required under the Articles of Association)
which may be terminated in accordance with the terms and
conditions of thereof or by either party serving on the other party a
prior written notice of not less than one month.

Save as aforesaid, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than normal statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of the
Directors, chief executives and their associates of the Company in
the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which (i) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (i) were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or (iii) were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for as set out in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules, and adopted by the Company
were as follows:

EERNEZNERRAR

M2024F12H31H » AREINESE - 2
THAB REBE ARAKRRA B S EERAE
BOEE (ERRBAF LRGN ((ESFRE
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RESHEAME NN AT R ZFT (BIER
BE %&Hﬁiﬂlﬂﬁu&ﬂ&ﬂfﬂﬁﬁmﬁﬁ
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Interest in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company: AR B FHEREAR 10 HY i 2

Interests in Shares Interests in Percentage of

RipER underlying Shares the Company’s
Corporate Personal pursuant to issued share Long/
interest interest share options capital°¢? Short position

BEBRET % YNGR £y
AEER BARE  HERONEE REHEIRO /%8
Mr. Wu Junbao (Note 1) 721,792,602 - - 33.13% Long position
RIERFEEH21) HE
Mr. Wu Wei (Note 2) 490,361,609 - - 22.50% Long position
RERE W22 HE
Mr. Xiao Guoging (Note 3) 437,993,495 - - 20.10% Long position
BB (H523) HE
Mr. Lu Zhen (Note 4) - - 654,510 0.03% Long position

BB (W)

e
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

Notes:

1. Mr. Wu Junbao holds the entire issued share capital of Wu Junbao
Education Company Limited (“Wu Junbao Education”) and is
therefore deemed to be interested in the 721,792,602 Shares held

by Wu Junbao Education under the SFO.

2. Mr. Wu Wei holds the entire issued share capital of Wu Wei
Education Company Limited (“Wu Wei Education”) and is therefore
deemed to be interested in the 490,361,609 Shares held by Wu Wei

Education under the SFO.

3. Mr. Xiao Guoqing holds the entire issued share capital of ZhongAn
Education Company Limited (formerly known as “Xiao Guoging
Education Company Limited”) (“ZhongAn Education”) and ZhongAn
Education Investment Limited (“ZhongAn Education Investment”)
is the wholly-owned subsidiary of ZhongAn Education which is
therefore deemed to be interested in the 437,993,495 Shares held

by ZhongAn Education Investment under the SFO.

4. Mr. Lu Zhen holds share options of 654,510 Shares. Details of the
share options are set out in the section titled “Equity-settled Share

Option Schemes” below.

5. The percentage is calculated based on the total number of

2,178,989,802 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2024.

Interests of the Company’s Directors and chief executives in
associated corporations of the Company:

Name of associated Capacity/
Name corporation Nature of interest
HE HEEE AR 55 RENE

Mr. Wu Junbao Anhui Xinhua Education

Group Co., Ltd.

RIERFEE TR EHE R E=MmAA
BRAT]

Mr. Wu Wei Anhui Xinhua Education Beneficial owner
Group Co., Ltd.

RIEERE TR EHNE SR EREAA

BRAFA

Anhui Xinhua Education
Group Co., Ltd.

TR ENEEE
BRATA

Mr. Xiao Guoqing

BEEXLE

/|

EDEAA
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Beneficial owner

Beneficial owner

ESNRSNESERLXR (BE)

it

RERAEFERERAEERARA (R
BREBN2HEBITRA - Al - 1R
BEAERBEED - BREERREBR
HBEEANT21,792,602& I8 1D th i A 17
RELEFERBHEAERAF ([REHK
B2 RTRA - At - RIBESH
MHIEES - BERIERREAEREN
490,361,609/% A% 17 FF R A 25 ©

HEELERBTLZHAEBR AT (F1E
[HEEHBERAR] ([REEE W
2EE TR - fZhongAn Education
Investment Limited ([FRHBBERE]) AF
THENEZENB AR - Bt - RIEESH
MEAEEN - BWARERRLHERER
G 89437,993,495 R AR (7 P A HEwm ©

FEE J £+ H654,5100% 8% 1) 1 BE A -
BEZSERIENFFBEN T AR
HEENBRE S5 -

AL hIRIER2024F 12 531 B B 31T
READ 48882,178,989,802/% A% ()51 &

ARBEFERERHITRABRANRAHE
AEP R

Registered capital

Approximate
percentage of

(RMB) shareholding (%)
&R LR
ON=: ) B2 (%)
42,666,700 42.67
29,222,200 29.22
28,111,100 28.11
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

Save as disclosed above and in the section of “Equity-settled Share
Option Schemes” below, as at 31 December 2024, none of the
Directors, chief executives and their associates of the Company
had any interest and short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning part XV of SFO) as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted two share option schemes as approved
by the Shareholders at the Shareholders’ meetings held on 7
December 2018 (“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) and 21 May
2019 (“2019 Share Option Scheme”) respectively (collectively
referred to as “Share Option Schemes”) for the purpose of
giving eligible participants an opportunity to have a personal stake
in our Company and help motivate them to optimise their future
performance and efficiency to our Group and/or to reward them for
their past contributions, to attract and retain or otherwise maintain
on-going relationships with such eligible participants who are
significant to and/or whose contributions are or will be beneficial
to the performance, growth or success of our Group. The Share
Option Schemes were adopted before the effective date of the new
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The Company will comply with the
new Chapter 17 in accordance with the transitional arrangements
for the existing share schemes.

The Share Option Schemes do not specify any minimum holding
period and/or performance targets as a condition for the exercise
of an option but subject to the rules of the Share Options Schemes.
The Board is empowered with the authority to determine granting
of an option on a case by case basis taking into account of the
relevant factors as the Board in its sole discretion considers
appropriate. For details of the vesting period of the Share Option
Schemes, please refer to note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.

The consideration payable on acceptance of the option granted to
an grantee under the respective Share Option Schemes is HK$1.00
which is payable no later than 28 days from the offer date.

EENBFNESERXR (E

Br BTy [ A IR #E 4 B RO BB AR A 5T
] FBMD AT EESD - FR2024F 12 H31H -
MEARNREE FETBRAEREHRE
ARAERRSE BB EAE (X RESH
R EAE GBI ZEXVED) 81D « 2N R E 8RR
f& i REHP R ERBE SRS &
BIS2MER B AR B FTFEMELM 5k
RIBEESFRIZBEMNE AR T R E
A AR °

LUR S E IR S 8

RAFIE AW EERETE - 23 AR
2018F 12 A7HRTHIRE RS FmARREAL
EMERETE (X MRS BRE
sH8]) RF2019F5 A21 HETTHR R RS
AR AR IR S ([2019F B AR
T8 (R ABRENE))  BERA
ER2EERERAQRES BEAKES
e WHEHSRABBRYAEENE
MEME R/ IREEBENERG T
255 - AR R Bk A Kby B E 4
FHHEANEENES ERIKNMEFTY
BEER/ SHEBMEFREEEFIRA
EENESLE  BEIRNZAERRHEE
MRS IERER - BARER SR EmRA
T B17ELERA AT ERER - AQ
A RIBEIR AR MM BE L BT
HEINEE

BRSBTS EARENREH
Rk SHITEBRERERNRBBE
HERE TR INHRA EEGRER
BREBARER  CEREFS2RBB
BREENHEBRERR  REEEREBE
Bt - BB ENRBHFE F2
BN in & SRR M 526 -

ESEREAEIT - BRI
BAERBELHBE28 KA NRES
1.00% 7T ©
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continuead)

Pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the Company has
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme are 135,244,720 Shares, representing
approximately 6.2% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the date of this annual report. There was no option available for
grant under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme at the beginning
and the end of the year ended 31 December 2024. The total
number of Shares available for issue under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme is 111,793,448 Shares, representing approximately
5.1% of the total issued Shares as at the date of this annual report.

Subject to the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the
Board shall be entitled to offer the grant of any option to subscribe
for Shares granted pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme for the time being subsisting to any persons who satisfy
the following eligibility criteria as the Board may in its absolute
discretion select:

(@ any current or former executive director of, manager of,
headmaster of, dean of, or other employee holding an
executive, managerial, supervisory or similar position in any
member of the Group, any current or former full-time or part-
time employee, or a person for the time being seconded to
work full-time or part-time for any member of the Group;

(b)  a current or former director or proposed director (including
an independent non-executive director) or current or former
manager of any member of the Group; and

(c) an associate (which shall have the same meaning ascribed to
it under the Listing Rules) of any of the persons referred to in
(a) to (b) above.

The basis of eligibility shall be determined by the Board from time
to time.

Subject to the approval of the Shareholders of the Company and
the termination provisions in the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme,
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years commencing on the date of adoption, provided
that no option shall be granted on or after the listing date of the
Company. The period during which an option may be exercised will
be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion, except no
option may be exercised more than 10 years after the date it was
offered, being the date of the Board resolution approving the grant
of such option, which must be a business day. The remaining life
of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is approximately three years
and eight months.

Subject to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and in compliance
with the relevant regulatory policy conditions, grantees of the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme may exercise the outstanding number of
shares granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme in cash by
way of remittance of onshore funds.
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BRIFBE X AFABEESATERETEETIRD
BTG B IR R BT T{E 8517 135,244,720
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continuead)

Subject to the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, our
Board shall be entitled at any time between (a) the adoption date
of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and (b) the listing date
(including the former but excluding the latter) to offer the grant of
an option to any eligible person as the Board may in its absolute
discretion select to subscribe at the subscription price which shall
be determined by the Board of the Company for such number
of Shares as our Board may (subject to the maximum number of
Shares available for subscription) determine.

Details of the share options outstanding under Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme were as follows:

LA RE A5 S Y M AR FE AT B (72

EERAFRER BT BERRR
T EESARN @B RAMEERBRE
3R BB = (b) £ B B (R 5RA A
B A2 EMAMMNEAKRE  MHESR
SERNBEENIAAEBALREZRD
BRE - ARAARREETEETNREE
RBEFSETHHE (TG HAEN
RABMEE) KR o

BRARBEENBRETE T HATTENRE
PRSI T

Approximate
No. of shareholding
No. of options percentage of
options exercised/ No.of  the underlying
granted cancelled/ options shares for
No. of duringthe  lapsed during outstanding the options
options yearended  the year ended at in the share
Exercisable Exercise  outstandingat ~ 31December 31 December 31 December capital of
Date of grant period price 1 January 2024 2024 2024 2024 the Company
HKD
REE  REZa0uE
7 N4% 1283181 A20245 ERERE
N4F1A1H 12A%BL  EEREAR/ 128318 RBERLT
RTEH EEART /%M ATEH el
iail AfTEEE fitia BREHA MEREHE BREHA EREHA BaE
v
2019/712
to
2029/6/11
2019574128
Mr. Lu Zhen 20181217 )
BELE 018F12R7H  2029F6A11H 2.25 654,510 - - 654,510 0.03%
2019712
to
2029/6/11
2019577128
Other employees 20181217 3
HitEE N18F12A7A 2009F6A11H 225 111,277,438 - (138500 111,138938 510%
Total
ait 111,931,948 - (188500 111793448 513%

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2024, 138,500 options were
exercised. The weighted average closing price of the Shares
immediately before the dates on which the options were exercised
was HK$3.03 per Share.

Bia . REZE2024F12A31BLEFERN - B
771£138,50010 A% 1 - i RB MR IEE
11 BERRTR D M Nk B A E
f%3.038 7T °
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continuead)

Pursuant to the 2019 Share Option Scheme, the Company can
issue options so that the total number of Shares that may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the 2019 Share
Option Scheme are 217,900,000 Shares, representing 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company upon listing and approximately
10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
this annual report. There were 217,573,000 options available for
grant under the 2019 Share Option Scheme at the beginning and
the ended of the year ended 31 December 2024. The total number
of shares available for issue under the 2019 Share Option Scheme is
217,684,180 Shares, representing approximately 10% of the total
issued Shares as at the date of this annual report.

Our Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer options to subscribe
for such number of Shares in accordance with the terms set out in
the 2019 Share Option Scheme to:

(i) any executive director of, manager of, headmaster of, dean
of, or other employee holding an executive, managerial,
supervisory or similar position in any member of our Group,
any proposed employee, any full-time or part-time employee,
or a person for the time being seconded to work full-time or
part-time for any member of our Group;

(i)  a director or proposed director (including an independent
non-executive director) of any member of our Group;

(iy  adirect or indirect shareholder of any member of our Group;
(iv)  asupplier of goods or services to any member of our Group;

(v)  a customer, consultant, business or joint venture partner,
franchisee, contractor, agent or representative of any member
of our Group;

(vij a person or entity that provides design, research,

development or other support or any advisory, consultancy,
professional or other services to any member of our Group;
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continuead)

(vii) an associate of any of the persons referred to in paragraphs (i)
to (vi) above; and

(vii) any person involved in the business affairs of the Company
whom our Board determines to be appropriate to participate
in the 2019 Share Option Scheme.

Pursuant to the amendments to the Listing Rules with effect from
1 January 2023, the eligible persons under the 2019 Share Option
Scheme is subject to Rule 17.03A of the Listing Rules.

The maximum number of Shares issuable under the 2019 Share
Option Scheme to each eligible participant within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the Shares in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
Shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting
or by the Board, the 2019 Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years from the date of adoption. The
remaining life of the 2019 Share Option Scheme is approximately
four years.

The subscription price shall be such price determined by the Board
at its absolute discretion and shall be no less than the highest of: (a)
the closing price of Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (b) the average closing
price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet of the
Stock Exchange for the 5 business days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of a Share on the date of
grant.

LA RE A5 S Y M AR FE AT B (72

(i) 2= (Vi) BR B LA 1] A o B 22
P R

(vii)

> b

Vi) ER2EARBEFEEMESSE
A SHE2019F B ERT BN A
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continuead)

Details of the share options outstanding under 2019 Share Option

Scheme were as follows:

Date of grant

Sk

Employes 2019/6/12
8 2019464128

Total

=1

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2024, no option were

exercised.

The number of Shares that may be issued in respect of options
granted under the Share Option Schemes during the year ended
31 December 2024 were 58,321,456 Shares, representing
approximately 3% of the weighted average number of Shares in

Exercisable

period

7R

2019/6112
to
2029/6/11

2019567128

pay
==

200964118

Exercise
price
HKD

e
B

issue for the year ended 31 December 2024.
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Approximate
No. of shareholding
No. of options percentage of
options  exercised/ No.of the underlying
granted  cancelled/ options shares for
duringthe lapsed during  outstanding  the options
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outstandingat 31 December 31 December 31 December capital of
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1283181 B/ 12848 RAEEAR
EERRT 28/4%0 AEEN  RAHRE

FREZE ORRERE RRERE  RREER  ANAESM

- - 111,180 0.005%

- - 111,180 0.005%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2024, the interests or short positions of the
persons, other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, in
the Shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO are as follows:

FERR

M2024512H318 » IREBEARAIRBES
K BB &P 5 33616 FT1F B KR SR 2 M AT ad
8 UMTALT (KRB EESZESITHRAE
BrIN AR E D AR (D P B a9
EIRBWT

Percentage of

the Company’s
Capacity and Number of issued Long/Short

Name nature of interest shares held share capital®” position

EARAR S BT
% SO RERNE FEROBE REFDHL®E %/ %R
Wu Junbao Education (Note 7) Beneficial interest 721,792,602 33.13% Long position
RIERHE (Wi7t1) EnEn e
Wu Wei Education (Note 2) Beneficial interest 490,361,609 22.50% Long position
REHE Hit2) EnkEn e
ZhongAn Education Investment (Note 3)  Beneficial interest 437,993,495 20.10% Long position
RLHBERE (Hit3) EnkEn e
Ms. Zhou Jiaju (Note 4) Spousal interest 721,792,602 33.13% Long position
BARE 5+ (H1iF4) fiB s e
Ms. Cheng Jing (Note ) Spousal interest 490,361,609 22.50% Long position
RE Lt (H7:5) fiB s e
Ms. Wei Zhiling (Note 6) Spousal interest 437,993,495 20.10% Long position
wER Lt (Hite) fiB s e
Notes: Vo=
1. Wu Junbao Education, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Wu Junbao, is 1. RER¥E (RHREREEZEHRB) AE

the beneficial owner of approximately 33.13% of the shareholding in
the Company. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Wu Junbao and Ms. Zhou
Jiaju (spouse of Mr. Wu Junbao) are deemed to be interested in all of
the Shares held by Wu Junbao Education.

2. Wu Wei Education, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Wu Wei, is the
beneficial owner of approximately 22.50% of the shareholdings in
the Company. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Wu Wei and Ms. Cheng
Jing (spouse of Mr. Wu Wei) are deemed to be interested in all of the
Shares held by Wu Wei Education.

NAKIBBABN RN EEIEE A - IRIBE
HFRHEGRD  REREERBRIL L
(REREEVER) WRA/NRERAE
P B P A B b s s -

2. REHEBRBELEZEHEB) RARA
#122 50%BHENERER A © BIBESF R
HEGRY  REEERESZE(REX
ERBRE) R AR REREMIFTENMR
Bt A -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

3. ZhongAn Education Investment, which is indirectly wholly-owned by
Mr. Xiao Guoqing, is the beneficial owner of approximately 20.10%
of the shareholdings in the Company. By virtue of the SFO, Mr.
Xiao Guoging and Ms. Wei Zhiling (spouse of Mr. Xiao Guoging)
are deemed to be interested in all of the Shares held by ZhongAn
Education Investment.

4. Ms. Zhou Jigju, the spouse of Mr. Wu Junbao, is deemed under the
SFO to be interested in the Shares held by Mr. Wu Junbao.

5. Ms. Cheng Jing, the spouse of Mr. Wu Wei, is deemed under the
SFO to be interested in the Shares held by Mr. Wu Wei.

6. Ms. Wei Zhiling, the spouse of Mr. Xiao Guoqing, is deemed under
the SFO to be interested in the Shares held by Mr. Xiao Guoging.

7. The percentage is calculated based on the total number of
2,178,989,802 shares in issue as at 31 December 2024.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, no person,
other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, had
interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING OF THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Mr. Wu Junbao, Wu Junbao Education (“Controlling
Shareholders”), Mr. Wu Wei, Wu Wei Education, Mr. Xiao Guoging
and ZhongAn Education (collectively as the “Undertaking Parties”
and each as a “Undertaking Party”), have entered into the Deed
of Non-competition on 21 May 2019 in favour of the Company,
pursuant to which the Undertaking Parties have jointly and severally
and irrevocably undertaken with the Company (for itself and for
the benefit of its subsidiaries) that it or he would not, and would
procure that its or his controlled entities (except any members
of the Group) would not, during the restricted period set out
below, directly or indirectly, either on its or his own account or in
conjunction with or on behalf of any person, company (enterprise or
corporate entity), partnership or associate (whether of an economic
nature), among other things, carry on, participate or be interested
or engaged in or hold (in each case whether as a shareholder,
partner, agent, employee or otherwise) any business which is or
may be in competition with the business of any member of the
Group (the “Restricted Business”) to the extent such competition
would materially and adversely impact the operations and financial
position or prospects of the Group.

The “restricted period” stated in the Deed of Non-competition
refers to the period during which (i) the Shares remain listed on
the Stock Exchange; (i) in relation to each Undertaking Party, the
relevant Undertaking Party or any of its/his associates still holds
directly or indirectly an equity interest in our Company; and (iii) the
Undertaking Parties and/or their respective associates jointly or
severally are entitled to exercise or control the exercise of not less
than 30% in aggregate of the voting power at general meetings of
the Company.

Under the Structured Contracts (as defined in the Company’s
prospectus dated 30 May 2019 (the “Prospectus”)), Mr. Wu
Junbao, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Xiao Guoging, as registered
Shareholders, and Mr. Ge Xiaoliang, as a school sponsor of Nanjing
Culinary Technical School (F 7 %L+ T 24) ("Nanjing School"),
also provided certain non-competition undertakings in favour of the

Company.

The Company has received and the independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the confirmation from the Undertaking
Parties in respect of their compliance with the terms of non-
competition undertaking for the year.
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STRUCTURED CONTRACTS

Please refer to the section headed “Structured Contracts” in
the Prospectus for the major terms of and reasons to enter into
Structured Contracts and other details. For the year ended 31
December 2024, the Board had reviewed the overall performance
of the structured contracts and believes that the Group had
complied with the structured contracts in all material respects.

On 14 May 2021, the State Council of the People’s’ Republic of
China (the “State Council”) promulgated the Implementation
Rules for the Laws for Promoting Private Education of the
People’s Republic of China (the “Implementation Rules”).
The Implementation Rules stipulate that: (1) private schools that
provide compulsory education are not allowed to enter into
transactions with their interested parties, and other private schools
which conduct transactions with their interested parties shall set
price reasonably and regulate decision-making mechanism by
following the principle of publicity, fairness and justice and shall
not harm the interests of the state, schools and teachers and
students. Private schools shall set up an information disclosure
mechanism for dealing with their interested parties. The relevant
governmental authorities relating to education, human resources
and social security and finance, shall strengthen the supervision of
the agreements entered into between non-profit private schools
and their interested parties, and shall review the connected
transactions annually; and (2) if the founder is a legal person, its
controlling shareholder and the actual controller shall meet the
requirements stipulated by laws and administrative regulations
for the establishment of a private school, and any change of the
controlling shareholder or the actual controller must be reported
to the competent authorities for filing and publication. Any social
organizations and individuals shall not control private schools which
provide compulsory education or non-profit private schools which
implement pre-school education through mergers and acquisitions
or contractual agreements.

Contractual arrangements under the structured contracts may be
regarded as connected transactions of our schools with interested
parties and we may incur costs to establish disclosure mechanisms
and undergo review and check by the relevant government
authorities where it may find that one or more agreements
underlying our contractual arrangements do not comply with
applicable PRC laws and regulations and may subject us to severe
penalties, resulting in material adverse impact on our business
operations and financial condition.
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Qualification Requirement

Pursuant to the Regulation on Sino-Foreign Cooperation in
Operating Schools of the People’s Republic of China ({F % AR
HABEFINE VEFFEIZH])), the Implementing Measures on the
Regulation on Sino-Foreign Cooperation in Operating Schools ({/
INEVEIEIEHIE M PEE)) and the Management Measures on
the Sino-Foreign Cooperative School Running regarding Vocational
Skills Training (R AMNE TERRZE BRI AR EE IR PE)), the foreign
investor in Sino-foreign joint venture schools offering training on
vocational skills must be a foreign educational institution with
relevant qualification and that provides high quality education (the
“Qualification Requirement”).

None of the implementation regulations related to the Qualification
Requirement was updated for the year ended 31 December
2024. For details of the efforts and actions made by the Group in
accordance with the Qualification Requirement, please refer to the
section headed “Structured Contracts” in the Prospectus.

Foreign Investment Law (“FIL”)

On 15 March 2019, the National People’s Congress approved
the FIL which has come into effect on 1 January 2020. The FIL
has replaced the foreign investment legal foundation in the PRC
consisting of three laws: the Sino-Foreign Equity Joint Venture
Enterprise Law, the Sino-Foreign Cooperative Joint Venture
Enterprise Law and the Wholly Foreign-Invested Enterprise
Law. For details of the FIL, please refer to the section headed
“Regulations” in the Prospectus. For details about the impact and
potential consequences of the FIL, please also refer to the section
headed “Structural Contracts” in the Prospectus.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

(1) Financial assistance

On 11 June 2024, the Company and each of Mr. Wu Junbao,
Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Xiao Guoging entered into a loan
framework agreement (the “Loan Framework Agreement”),
respectively, pursuant to which the Company agreed to,
through its designated PRC lending subsidiary(ies), make
available to the PRC receiving companies to be designated
by Mr. Wu Junbao, a non-executive Director of the Company,
Mr. Wu Wei, the chairman and an executive Director of the
Company and Mr. Xiao Guoging, the vice-chairman and an
executive Director of the Company, a RMB revolving loan
facility in @ maximum daily balance (excluding the accrued
interests) of RMB50 million each, respectively, at an interest
rate of 7% per annum for the period from 11 June 2024 to
31 December 2025. Such Loan Framework Agreement will
provide a better return on the Group’s temporarily surplus
cash resources which is beneficial to the Group and the

Shareholders as a whole.

The maximum amount of the aforesaid transaction between
the Group and Mr. Wu Junbao, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Xiao
Guoqing was nil, nil and RMB50,000,000 respectively for the
year ended 31 December 2024 (for details, please refer to
notes 20 and 31 to the consolidated financial statements).
For details of the financial assistance, please refer to the

Company’s announcement dated 11 June 2024.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

@

Structured Contracts

As disclosed in the paragraph headed “Structured
Contracts — Background of the Structured Contracts” in
the Prospectus, relevant laws and regulations restrict the
operation of vocational education and vocational training
institutions to Sino-foreign cooperation ownership, in addition
to imposing qualification requirements on the foreign owners.
Further, it is expected that the possibility of government
approval for establishing and operating a vocational education
and vocational training institute in the PRC by way of Sino-
foreign ownership in the foreseeable future is very low. As a
result, the Group, through our wholly-owned subsidiary, Hefei
Xinhua Chuangchi Education Management Co., Ltd. (the
“WFOE”), our PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities and other
parties, have entered into the Structured Contracts such
that we can conduct our business operations indirectly in the
PRC through our PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities while
complying with applicable PRC law and regulations. The
Structured Contracts, as a whole, are designed to provide our
Group with effective control over the financial and operational
policies of our PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities, to the
extent permitted by PRC law and regulations, the right to
acquire the equity interest in and/or the assets of our PRC
Consolidated Affiliated Entities and/or the school sponsors
interest in Nanjing School after the listing through the WFOE.
As we operate our education business through our PRC
Consolidated Affiliated Entities, which are controlled by their
respective school sponsors and we do not hold any direct
equity interest in our PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities,
the Structured Contracts were entered into on 30 November
2018 pursuant to which all material business activities of
our PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities are instructed
and supervised by our Group, through the WFOE, and the
relevant economic benefits arising from such business of the
our PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities are transferred to our
Group.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

@

Structured Contracts (continued)

The Structured Contracts consist of a series of agreements,
collectively, the exclusive management consultancy and
business cooperation agreements, the exclusive call option
agreements, the equity pledge agreement, the powers of
attorney, the accounts receivable pledge agreement, the
school sponsors’ or capital contributors’ rights entrustment
agreement and the school sponsors’ or capital contributors’
powers of attorney, each of which is an integral part of the
Structured Contracts. See “Structured Contracts” in the
Prospectus for details of major terms of these agreements.

In view of the Structured Contracts, we have applied to the
Stock Exchange for, and the Stock Exchange has granted,
a waiver from strict compliance with (i) the announcement,
circular and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the
transactions contemplated under the Structured Contracts
pursuant to Rule 14A.105 of the Listing Rules, (ii) the
requirement of setting an annual cap for the transactions
under the Structured Contracts under Rule 14A.53 of the
Listing Rules, and (i) the requirement of limiting the term
of our Structured Contracts to three years or less under
Rule 14A.52 of the Listing Rules, for so long as our Shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange subject however to the
following conditions:

(@ No change without Independent Non-executive
Directors’ approval

No change to the Structured Contracts will be made
without the approval of the Independent Non-executive
Directors.

(b)  No change without independent Shareholders’ approval

Save as described in paragraph (d) below, no change
to the agreements governing the Structured Contracts
will be made without the approval of our Company’s
independent Shareholders.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

@

Structured Contracts (continued)

(b)

No change without independent Shareholders’ approval
(continued)

Once independent Shareholders’ approval of any
change has been obtained, no further announcement
or approval of the independent shareholders will
be required under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
unless and until further changes are proposed. The
periodic reporting requirement regarding the Structured
Contracts in the annual reports of our Company will
however continue to be applicable.

Economic benefits flexibility

The Structured Contracts shall continue to enable our
Group to receive the economic benefits derived by
our PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities through (i) our
Group’s option, to the extent permitted under PRC
laws and regulations, to acquire all or part of the equity
or school sponsor’s interest held by the registered
Shareholders and/or the school sponsors of Nanjing
School, as the case may be, at the lowest possible
amount permissible under the applicable PRC laws and
regulations, (i) the business structure under which the
net profit generated by our PRC Consolidated Affiliated
Entities is substantially retained by our Group, such that
no annual cap shall be set on the amount of service
fees payable to WFOE by our PRC Consolidated
Affiliated Entities under the exclusive technical service
and management consultancy agreements, and (jii) our
Group’s right to control the management and operation
of, as well as, in substance, all of the voting rights of our
PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities as appointed by
the registered Shareholders in our PRC Consolidated
Affiliated Entities or by the school sponsors of Nanjing
School, as the case may be.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

@

Structured Contracts (continued)

(@

Renewal and reproduction

On the basis that the Structured Contracts provide an
acceptable framework for the relationship between our
Company and its subsidiaries in which our Company
has direct shareholding, on one hand, and our PRC
Consolidated Affiliated Entities, on the other hand, that
framework may be renewed and/or reproduced upon
the expiry of the existing arrangements or in relation
to any existing or new wholly foreign owned enterprise
or operating company engaging in the same business
as that of our Group which our Group might wish
to establish when justified by business expediency,
without obtaining the approval of the Shareholders,
on substantially the same terms and conditions as
the existing Structured Contracts. The directors, chief
executives or substantial shareholders of any existing
or new wholly foreign owned enterprise or operating
company (including branch company) engaging in the
same business as that of our Group which our Group
may establish will, upon renewal and/or reproduction
of the Structured Contracts, however be treated as
connected persons of our Company and transactions
between these connected persons and our Company
other than those under similar Structured Contracts
shall comply with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. This
condition is subject to relevant PRC laws, regulations
and approvals.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

)

Confirmation of independent non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Director have reviewed and
confirmed the continuing connected transactions set out

above are:
1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

2. on normal commercial terms or better; and

3.  entered into in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Shareholders of the Company
as a whole.

Our independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
Structured Contracts and confirmed that (i) the transactions
carried out during the year ended 31 December 2024 have
been entered into in accordance with the relevant provisions
of the Structured Contracts, have been operated so that
the profit generated by the PRC Consolidated Affiliated
Entities has been substantially retained by the Group, (i) no
dividends or other distributions have been made by the PRC
Consolidated Affiliated Entities to the respective holders of
equity or school sponsor’s interest which are not otherwise
subsequently assigned or transferred to the Group, and
(iii) the Structured Contracts and if any, any new contracts
entered into, renewed or reproduced between the Group
and the PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities during the year
ended 31 December 2024 under paragraph (d) above are
fair and reasonable, or advantageous, so far as the Group
is concerned and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

)

Confirmation of auditors of the Company

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”,
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the HKICPA. The external
auditor issued its unqualified letter containing its findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The Company’s auditors also carried out procedures on
the transactions pursuant to the Structured Contracts and
confirmed that the transactions have received the approval
of the Directors, have been entered into in accordance with
the relevant Structured Contracts and that no dividends or
other distributions have been made by our PRC Consolidated
Affiliated Entities to the respective holders of equity or school
sponsor’s interest which are not otherwise subsequently
assigned or transferred to our Group.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related parties transactions undertaken in the

normal course of business are set out in notes 20 and 31 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report, which also
constitute continuing connected transactions under the Listing

Rules. These continuing connected transactions have complied

with the requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

For the year ended 31 December 2024, none of the Directors,
the substantial Shareholders or the management Shareholders of
the Company or any of their respective associates has engaged
in any business that competes or may compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group or has any other conflict
of interests with the Group.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 31
December 2024 were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate granted to any director or their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or were the Company or any of its holding
companies, fellow subsidiaries and subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Company’s directors, their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Non-exempt Continuing
Connected Transactions” in this report, none of the Directors nor
any entity connected with the Directors had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was
a party subsisting during or at the end of the year ended 31
December 2024.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Non-exempt Continuing
Connected Transactions” and the transactions as disclosed in
notes 20 and 31 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report, no Controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
have any contract of significance with the Company or its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2024.

No contract of significance, including contracts of significance
for the provision of services, has been entered into among the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and the Controlling Shareholders
or any of their subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December
2024.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2024.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
C3 to the Listing Rules as its own code for dealing in securities of
the Company by the Directors. The Company has made specific
enquiry of all Directors and all Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard as set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 31 December 2024.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing
Shareholders.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Save for the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the 2019 Share

Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by
the Group, or existed during the year ended 31 December 2024.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company
(including sale of treasury shares (as defined under the Listing
Rules), if any) during the year ended 31 December 2024.

The Company did not hold any treasury shares (as defined under
the Listing Rules) as at 31 December 2024.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and subject to the applicable
laws and regulations, the Directors, secretary and other senior officers
of the Company at any time, whether at present or in the past, and
the liquidator or trustees (if any) acting or who have acted in relation to
any of the affairs of the Company and everyone of them, and everyone
of their heirs, executors and administrators, shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they or any of them, their or any of their heirs, executors or
administrators, shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any
act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices or trusts; and none
of them shall be answerable for the acts, receipts, neglects or defaults
of the other or others of them or for joining in any receipts for the sake
of conformity, or for any bankers or other persons with whom any
moneys or effects belonging to the Company shall or may be lodged
or deposited for safe custody, or for insufficiency or deficiency of any
security upon which any moneys of or belonging to the Company
shall be placed out on or invested, or for any other loss, misfortune or
damage which may happen in the execution of their respective offices
or trusts, or in relation thereto: provided that this indemnity shall not
extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may
attach to any of said persons.

The Company has taken out liability insurance to provide
appropriate coverage for the Directors.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE AND REVIEW OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Audit Committee of the Company consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Hung Ka Hai, Clement, Dr.
Zhu Guobin and Dr. Zang Yunzhi. The main duties of the Audit
Committee are to assist the Board in providing an independent
review of the completeness, accuracy and fairness of the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2024 of the Group, as well as the efficiency and effectiveness of the
Group’s operations and internal controls. The Audit Committee has
reviewed the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2024, including the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group. The Audit Committee is in
the opinion that the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the applicable accounting standards,
the Listing Rules and the statutory requirements and that adequate
disclosures have been made in the annual report.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The forthcoming AGM will be held on Tuesday, 27 May 2025.
For the details, please refer to the notice of the AGM which will
be published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company and/or dispatched to the shareholders of
the Company as soon as practicable in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association and the Listing Rules.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(@  For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 22 May 2025 to Tuesday, 27 May 2025 (both
days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares
of the Company may be registered, for the purposes of
ascertaining Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at
the forthcoming AGM. In order to be eligible to attend and
vote at the forthcoming AGM, all share transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Service Limited,
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 21 May 2025.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS (continued)
(b)  For determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 3 June 2025 to Thursday, 5 June 2025 (both days
inclusive), during which period no transfer of Shares of the
Company may be registered, for the purposes of ascertaining
Shareholders’ entitlement for the proposed final dividend. The
record date for the proposed final dividend shall be Thursday,
5 June 2025. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend,
all share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 2
June 2025.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Pursuant to the waiver obtained from the Stock Exchange, based
on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
public float of at least 20.0024% and 20.1817% of the Company’s
issued Shares (excluding treasury shares) from the date of listing
to 4 July 2019, being the date of issue of additional Shares upon
exercise of over-allotment options, and as at the date of this report
respectively.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
A summary of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and of

the consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years, is set out on page 308.
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AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu shall retire in the forthcoming AGM
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for their re-appointments as auditor of the Company will

be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board
China East Education Holdings Limited

Wu Wei
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2025
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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA EAST EDUCATION
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(FEIRAHEERBRAF)

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
East Education Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 191 to 307, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting
policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matter

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement,
was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. This matter was addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
BREREE
Occurrence of revenue recognition in relation to tuition fees

A RBE AN ARER

We identified revenue, referring to Note 6 of the
consolidated financial statements, as a key audit matter
due to its significance to the consolidated financial
statements and large volume of transactions for the year
ended 31 December 2024.

RTHRAN RARERERIHNEHEE20245F
12AB B IEFEGEUBREALIAERFNEERN - &
2BFE P EIRER M6 ©

Tuition fees are generally collected in advance at the
enrollment or at the beginning of each school year
for courses with duration over one year. Tuition fees
received from students but not earned are initially
recorded in contract liabilities, and then recognised
over the relevant period of the applicable courses.
Revenue is one of the key performance indicators of the
Group. Given the significant balance and large volume
of transactions processed, we therefore consider the
occurrence of revenue recognition as a key audit matter.
BE—RNABRRIHRBE - FHOREZBFRGR
RATWER - REBARBERRDRNBEVFCHENS
el HENERREREREER - WA &%
ERRRERIER — EREAEHRKFTETRSEE
R RITEI AR AR SRR EZFE

The accounting policy of revenue recognition and
analysis of revenue are included in Note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.
WATERRILA DTS 5T BERE AR S B 75 TR 3R T 5
6 o

HEEZEE

RREZFRERBEATHREALE &
AMEGAMBREANBERR/EENS
B REFRREANTERRBREAME
BRLHABRBETREN - XTTTE
HZEZRRRERNER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FINBERNAEERREREE

Our procedures in relation to the occurrence of revenue
recognition of tuition fees included:

RTERBLEBRENARR ZEXEF BT

- obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of Group’s key internal controls relating to the
occurrence of revenue recognition of tuition fees
process;

- TEHEFHE SEEERZASBBRARRBIZEH
H RS AR B IR R A © BIENIEE R

- on a sample basis, verifying the existence of
the students in the financial year by interviewing
respective students and agreeing information in the
student register system;

- HEIHRBLE  UARBRHBATMESEES - BE
MHBRFEANREAHBRLE

- on a sample basis, checking the supporting
documents of tuition fees received from students;

- HEREASBLRMABEFRIUE

- on a sample basis, performing recalculation of
the amount of contract liabilities and revenue
recognised during the year; and

- HEENFEFARERENBERKANSEE
54

- performing analytical procedures to assess the
reasonableness of revenue recognised during the

year.
- HIHWMREF - UEHERFERERHB AR SR
M o
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors of the Company and Those
Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

China East Education Holdings Limited & FEIRAHBERER A A
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors of the
Company’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient audit
evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business units within the group as a basis for forming an
opinion on the group financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and review of the audit work
performed for purposes of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continuead)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matter communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those the matter that was of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and is therefore the key audit matter. We
describe this matter in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wong Shun Yu.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2025
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income &4 E&R 2 ElER

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and expenses

Other gains and losses

Selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Research and development expenses
Finance costs

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year

Earnings per share
— Basic (RMB cents)

— Diluted (RMB cents)

L'ON

E7

HAWA R
Hitol s & &8
HERMX
THRX
iR

BARE RS

BEATE R
FREHRAX
FRENREER AR

BREF
—EXR(ARED)

—wEARED)

NOTES
Pt

10

11
14

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HZE2024%F 12831 BILEE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BILEE

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
(restated)

(&&&:75)

4,116,185 3,978,654
(2,001,650) (2,070,437)
2,114,535 1,908,217
119,753 139,257
32,431 43,355
(973,974) (1,036,973)
(507,937) (529,180)
(12,350) (17,366)
(118,041) (139,301)
654,417 368,009
(141,821) (95,387)
512,596 272,622
23.53 12.51
23.46 12.37
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position & & B &k R &

As at 31 December 2024
72024912 A31H

Non-current Assets

Property and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Deferred tax assets

Deposits paid for acquisition of
leasehold lands

Deposits for rental

Deposits for utilities and others

Deposits for acquisition of
a subsidiary

Current Assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets
— measured at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

— measured at amortised cost
Tax recoverable
Time deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Tax liabilities
Lease liabilities
Contract liabilities

Net Current Assets

Total Assets less Current
Liabilities

FRBEE
UEISE Y
EREEE
EIETIRE E
WA E T E MRS

Herse
KEENEMZS
WE—FMBARMIZES

HBEE
i
CENEL e
HtSBARE
— AR EE B A
AdRzs ([BLA SIS
B AR
— AN 2
ARELBR
R
ReRRESEY

RBRE
B 5 REAMEN TR
HIRAE

HE&E

BHAE

REBEEFE
EERERABAR

192 China East Education Holdings Limited «" FEERE S HEZERER D

NOTES
FiaE

15
16
17

35

18
19
20

21
21

22

23
24

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT
3,308,721 3,080,278
2,148,822 2,225,672
19,821 20,246
6,206 34,206
18,919 19,425
2,866 3,392
10,000 =
5,515,355 5,383,219
64,349 67,893
347,576 323,558
499,769 364,196
50,000 80,000
3,404 5,513
1,536,862 1,551,441
1,466,863 1,515,313
3,968,823 3,907,914
706,794 681,433
94,837 62,634
336,426 265,397
1,456,590 1,323,910
2,594,647 2,333,374
1,374,176 1,574,540
6,889,531 6,957,759




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued) &= & B iR & (&)

Non-current Liabilities
Lease liabilities
Contract liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Government grants

Net Assets

Capital and Reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total Equity

As at 31 December 2024 (continued)
72024412 A31 B (4)

As at 31 December

M12831H
NOTES 2024 2023
BisE 20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

FRBERB
HEaE 23 1,085,784 1,307,764
EHAE 24 24,235 17,981
EERIBRE 17 27,733 20,527
B8 2,315 3,924
1,140,067 1,350,196
EEFE 5,749,464 5,607,563

BERKEE
f& s 25 192 192
{15 5,749,272 5,607,371
ERsE 5,749,464 5,607,563

The consolidated financial statements on pages 191 to 307 were HRE191E07EMNGE VB HRRKES
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 GR2025F 3827 B il RIFHEE T - WA

March 2025 and are signed on its behalf by: IWTFATRAEEE
Wu Wei Xiao Guoqing
RiE HEE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EE EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 4REEZE B R

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

Attributable to owners of the Company
LSNGTE 2PN
Share-
based  Statutory
Share Share Capital  payments surplus  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
AR 43
RERN
Bx  ROEE EERE XARE EERBEE BHER &t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARMTRT ARETRT ARETR ARETR ARETR

(note a)
(Fi3ta)

At 1 January 2023 120231 A1H 192 2,823,093 166,947 237,650 272,385 2,201,791 5,692,058
Profit and total comprehensive FRRTREEYE

income for the year k] - - - - - 212622 272,622
Recognition of equity-settled BRNER £ O

share-based payments (Note 26) T (MzE26) - - - 32,993 = = 32,993
Issue of new shares upon exercise of T IER 1T

share options (Notes 25(ii) and 26) ~ #i( (FitE25(i)

B26) - 197 ALY - - 4,782

Transfer of share option reserve upon 1) Y B it B S e

forfeiture of share options (Note 26)  RIER & (f1326) - - = (2,689 = 2,689 =
Dividend distrioution (Note 13) RED R (FizH13) - (394,892 - - - - (394,892
Transfer B - - - - (19807 19,807 -
At 31 December 2023 120236128318 192 2,440,168 166,947 260,769 252,678 2,496,909 5,607,563
Profit and total comprehensive FREFHREENE

income for the year oz - - - - - 51259% 512,596
Recognition of equity-settled RS E RN

share-based payments (Note 26) 2+ (Fit5£26) - - - 25,100 - - 25,100
Issue of new shares upon exercise of  {T{EERRRIER 31T

share options (Notes 25(ii) and 26) AR 1% (FitsE25ii)

1%26) - 703 - (418) - - 285

Dividend distrbution (Note 13) BEAE (HEE13) - (396,080) - - - - (396,080)
Transfer 2 - - - - 12078 (12,078) -
At 31 December 2024 2024128318 192 2,044,791 156,947 285,451 264,656 2,997,427 5,749,464
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued) R &= BB K (&

Note:

Pursuant to the relevant laws in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”), the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC shall make
appropriations from after-tax profit to non-distributable reserve funds
as determined by the management of the relevant PRC subsidiaries.

These reserves include: (i) general reserve of the limited liabilities
companies and (i) the development fund of schools.

For PRC subsidiaries with limited liability, they are required to
make annual appropriations to general reserve of 10% of after-
tax profits as determined under the PRC laws and regulations
at each year-end until the balance reaches 50% of the relevant
PRC entity’s registered capital.

According to the Implementation Rules of the Law for
Promoting Private Education of the PRC ({/ % A R H A1
R B R#ERT IS, it is required for for-profit private
school to appropriate to development fund of not less than
10% of the net income of the relevant school as determined in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in
the PRC. The development fund shall be used for construction
or maintenance of the school or procurement or upgrading of
educational equipment. When the development fund is used,
the reserve will be transferred back to retained profits directly.

For the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)

BT -

E2024F 12 A31 HILFE (&)

(@) RRPEARKME(HED)BEREER

RABEHERHEA

A)ZBHEB 18 F) B

FRERETEMBAREREEEHN A

DIKFEES

ZERERE - (VBERAE

NAE—RFERNBPRERES -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows ZEBHE&RER

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEE
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTTT

OPERATING ACTIVITIES KT
Profit before tax BLADA 654,417 368,009
Adjustments for: FHEIFE
Finance costs BATG R AR 118,041 139,301
Interest income from time deposits and TR LRI T4 2R
bank balances MEWA (78,128) (95,725)
Interest income from entrusted loans ZREERFEUWA (2,854) (5,342)
Depreciation of property and equipment YIRS EITE 313,563 316,496
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 277,282 303,868
Release of asset-related government grants 3% & 2= A8 B8 B 7 B (1,847) (2,941)
Losses on disposals of property and HEMZERBER
equipment E5i8 38,116 5,040
Gains from termination of lease agreements AR IFFE Wl (7,068) (3,704)
Gains from changes in fair value of other AR EBEFTEIWEAERD
financial assets measured HihemEENAREE
at FVTPL b G (50,723) (20,412)
Equity-settled share-based payments LAz G E IR D
expense SRR 25,100 32,993
Net unrealised foreign exchange gains R E H Uk FRE (32,485) (36,162)
Operating cash flows before movements LBESEBBRILE
in working capital HEemE 1,253,414 1,001,421
Decrease in inventories FERD 3,544 3,732
(Increase) decrease in trade and other B 5 & E A FEUERIE (12 h0)
receivables b (34,063) 424
Decrease in deposits for utilities and others KB & & HAibig &R 526 34
(Decrease) increase in trade and other B 5 R E A ERTFIE
payables (A 1A (18,607) 1,922
Increase in contract liabilities SRIBEEM 138,934 133,897
Cash generated from operations KEEARNIRS 1,343,748 1,141,430
Income taxes paid BRFREE (99,878) (116,639)
Net cash from operating activities KR TBIR & F 5 1,243,870 1,024,791
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued) ZE R HREXR (@)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received from time deposits and
bank balances

Interest received from entrusted loans

Proceeds on disposals of property and
equipment

Purchases of property and equipment

Deposits paid for acquisition of leasehold
land

Withdrawal of deposits paid for acquisition
of leasehold land

Payments for right-of-use assets

Payments for rental deposits

Withdrawal of rental deposits

Purchases of other financial assets

Redemptions of other financial assets

Placement of time deposits

Withdrawal of time deposits

Withdrawal of deposits paid for development

Asset-related government grants

Deposits paid for acquisition of a subsidiary

Net cash used in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from exercise of share options
Payment on dividend paid
Repayments of lease liabilities
Interests paid on lease liabilities

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Total cash and cash equivalents at the
end of the year, represented by
Cash and cash equivalents

For the year ended 31 December 2024 (continued)
BZE 2024512 A31 BILFE ()

REED
YER TE 3 R S SR AT
FREERTIE
WERER B KA S
HEMERRENERIA

BEMELER
WERETNEfiRe

RERWEEE T NE MRS

(ERRAENH
MERS MR

REERES
BEAMSMAE
BER e BAE
RN

R R

RIE (5 ES

B AEARBTHE)
KRB A RS e
BEEDH AR FE
MAED

G e
BB

EEAER
MEREDFFE
BEEDHARLFER
0% MRS SEN (H)
HIFE

AL RALEEY

s S B B
FRALRRS
FENEE

(BVR% RA2EED)

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILLEE

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETIT
88,173 97,126
2,854 5,342
7,945 7,978
(539,597) (791,037)
(106,285) (34,206)
28,000 19,973

- (16,896)

(1,838) (2,076)
1,811 4,139
(1,424,000) (685,000)
1,369,150 979,860
(2,377,008) (2,416,492)
2,408,833 2,636,858
- 5,712

238 859
(10,000) =
(551,724) (187,860)
285 4,782
(396,080) (394,892)
(241,999) (247,537)
(118,041) (139,301)
(755,835) (776,948)
(63,689) 59,983
1,515,313 1,435,498
15,239 19,832
1,466,863 1,515,313
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 B ¥ 3% Mi st

For the year ended 31 December 2024
(= 2024F 12 A31 BIEFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

China East Education Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and registered
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands on 4
October 2018. Its shares have been listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 12 June 2019 (the “Listing”). Its ultimate
controlling parties are Mr. Wu Junbao, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr.
Xiao Guoging, collectively referred as the “Controlling Equity
Holders”. The registered office of the Company is located
at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands and the principal place
of business in PRC is No. 1009 Xuelin Road, Vocational
Education Town, Yaohai District, Hefei City, Anhui Province,

the PRC.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are mainly engaged in the
operation of vocational education institutions. Details of the
subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 32. The Company and its

subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group”.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the functional currency of the

Company and its subsidiaries.

China East Education Holdings Limited & FEIRAHBERER A A
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Under the relevant PRC laws and regulations requirement,
the Company is restricted to independently or jointly operate
most of vocational and training business. In preparation for
the Listing, the Group has entered into a series of contractual
arrangements with the Controlling Equity Holders to maintain
and exercise the control over the operation of Anhui Xinhua
Education Group Co., Ltd. (Z#EEHE E£E AR A T)
(“Anhui Xinhua Education”), and to obtain all of its entire
economic benefits (the “Contractual Arrangements”). The
Contractual Arrangements were entered into by a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, Hefei Xinhua Chuangzhi
Education Management Co., Ltd. (&E#EAIEH A EEA
[R2 7)) (“Xinhua Chuangzhi”) with Anhui Xinhua Education,
Nanjing Culinary Technical School (B R 28+ T £1K)
(“Nanjing Culinary”), the Controlling Equity Holders and
Mr. Ge Xiaoliang, which, effective from 30 November 2018,
enable Xinhua Chuangzhi and the Group to:

° exercise effective financial and operational control over
Anhui Xinhua Education and Nanjing Culinary;

° exercise equity holders’ voting rights of Anhui Xinhua
Education and Nanjing Culinary;

° receive substantially all economic returns generated
by Anhui Xinhua Education and Nanjing Culinary in
consideration for the business support, technical and
consulting services provided by the Group;

° obtain an irrevocable and exclusive right to purchase
the entire equity interest in Anhui Xinhua Education
and Nanjing Culinary from the Controlling Equity
Holders and Mr. Ge Xiaoliang at nil consideration or a
minimum purchase price permitted under PRC laws
and regulations. The Group may exercise such options
at any time until it has acquired all equity interests and/
or all assets of Anhui Xinhua Education and Nanjing
Culinary. In addition, Anhui Xinhua Education and
Nanjing Culinary are not allowed to sell, transfer, or
dispose any assets, or make any distributions to its
equity holders without prior consent of the Group; and

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 44 Bt 18 3R & Ki:E (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
{ZE2024F 12 A31 BIEFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 BI #3RR i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

° obtain a pledge over the entire equity interest of Anhui
Xinhua Education and Nanjing Culinary from the
Controlling Equity Holders and Mr. Ge Xiaoliang as
collateral security for all of the amounts Anhui Xinhua
Education and Nanjing Culinary due to the Group
and to secure performance of the Controlling Equity
Holders’ and Mr. Ge Xiaoliang’s obligations under the
Contractual Arrangements.

Consequently, the Company regards Anhui Xinhua Education
and Nanjing Culinary as indirect subsidiaries.

The following balances and amounts of the Anhui Xinhua
Education and its subsidiaries and Nanjing Culinary were
included in the consolidated financial statements:

Revenue WA

Profit before tax Gzl
Non-current assets ERBEE
Current assets MENVE E
Current liabilities iEN=KE
Non-current liabilities EMBEME

China East Education Holdings Limited & FEIRAHBERER A A

2.

REMBERREIEE (&

s ARBESKBAREERL
EMBHLENEHS KRB R
REZERAEROER  F
RRBNEHE AR THE
NAKEMRARENEIRE
R WHEREBREDFE AR
EERALRBITEANZYT
MELE

At - AR BB LRI ERS KR
RERBREENMB AR

THRBHERE REMB LR KE
RRZANERNERERAGRSNK
HERA

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARBTTT

4,000,179 3,857,406
474,814 214,606

As at 31 December

MA12831H
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARBTTT

5,507,698 4,632,169
1,644,588 1,246,226
2,545,802 1,530,871
1,138,334 1,334,020




APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”)

Amendments to HKFRS that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRS issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time,
which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period
beginning on 1 January 2024 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale
and Leaseback
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-
current and related
amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants
Amendments to HKAS 7 and

HKFRS 7

Supplier Finance
Arrangements

The application of the amendments to HKFRS in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 B #3R K MYz (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 BI #3RR i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRS in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRS that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Amendments to the
and HKFRS 7 Classification and
Measurement of Financial
Instruments®

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sales or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture'

Amendments to HKFRS Annual improvements to HKFRS
Accounting Standards Accounting Standards —
Volume 112
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2025.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2026.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2027.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRS mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all new and amendments to HKFRSs will have
no material impact on the consolidated financial statements
in the foreseeable future.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRS in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements, which sets out requirements on presentation
and disclosures in financial statements, will replace HKAS
1 Presentation of Financial Statements. This new HKFRS
Accounting Standard, while carrying forward many of the
requirements in HKAS 1, introduces new requirements
to present specified categories and defined subtotals in
the statement of profit or loss; provide disclosures on
management-defined performance measures in the notes
to the financial statements and improve aggregation and
disaggregation of information to be disclosed in the financial
statements. In addition, some HKAS 1 paragraphs have been
moved to HKAS 8 and HKFRS 7. Minor amendments to
HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and HKAS 33 Earnings per
Share are also made.

HKFRS 18, and amendments to other standards, will be
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2027, with early application permitted. The application of
the new standard is expected to affect the presentation
of the statement of profit or loss and disclosures in the
future financial statements. The Group is in the process of
assessing the detailed impact of HKFRS 18 on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 BI #3RR i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

41 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRS issued by
the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

4.2 Material accounting policy information

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
(including structured entities) controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when
the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an

investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there

are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 B #3R K MYz (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

4.2

Material accounting policy information (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee
when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the
practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not
the Group’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to
give it power, including:

° the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of
the other vote holders;

° potential voting rights held by the Group, other
vote holders or other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

° any additional facts and circumstances that
indicate that the Group has, or does not have, the
current ability to direct the relevant activities at the
time that decisions need to be made, including
voting patterns at previous shareholders’
meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 BI #3RR i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HZE2024F12 A31 ALLEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Revenue from contracts with custormers

Information about the Group’s accounting policies
relating to revenue from contracts with customers is
provided in Note 6.

Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains
a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception of the contract. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the
contract are subsequently changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 B #3R K MYz (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 4., HFEUBBRRNEREEREARSG

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL FHBURER ()
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
4.2 Material accounting policy information (continued) 42 BREEBERER (&
Leases (continued) HE (&
The Group as a lessee AREBEREFA

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and
one or more additional lease or non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease
component and are accounted for by applying other
applicable standards.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of staff apartments that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. Lease payments on short-term leases are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or
another systematic basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 BI #3RR i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continueq)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received; and

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate

line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) &4 Bt 1 R & 5T (@)

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continueq)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at that
date. In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments are fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

For the year ended 31 December 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 BI #3RR i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continueq)

Lease liabilities (continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a change
in the assessment of exercise of a purchase
option, in which case the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to changes
in market rental rates following a market rent
review, in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

° a lease contract is modified and the lease
modification is not accounted for as a separate
lease (see below for the accounting policy for
“lease modifications”).

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 B #3R K MYz (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 4., HFEUBBRRNEREEREARSG

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL STERERER (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
4.2 Material accounting policy information (continued) 42 BREEBERER (&
Leases (continued) HE (&
The Group as a lessee (continued) AEFERFRHAL ()
Lease modifications HEREH
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a i IR A TER - AEEKHE

separate lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect
the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as
a separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease
liability based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 434 B %8R 3k M 5+ ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
(= 2024F 12 A31 BIEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will
be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as government
grants in the consolidated statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic
and rational basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 B #3R K MYz (&)

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information (continued)

Government grants (continued)

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they become receivable. Such grants are
presented under “other income”.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit
schemes and Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries and annual
leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

For the year ended 31 December 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 434 B %8R 3k M 5+ ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
ZE2024F 12 A BILFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information (continued)

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payments transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at
the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without
taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate
of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share-based
payments reserve). At the end of each reporting period,
the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest based on assessment
of all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
payments reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payments reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payments reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 B #3R K MYz (&)

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information (continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and
deferred income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
taxation because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit and at the time of the transaction does not
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences.

4.

For the year ended 31 December 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 BI #3RR i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
be reversed in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
each reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 B #3R K MYz (&)

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information (continued)

Taxation (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-
of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. The Group recognises a deferred
tax asset related to lease liabilities to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary difference can
be utilised and a deferred tax liability for all taxable
temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 434 B %8R 3k M 5+ ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
ZE2024F 12 A BILFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information (continued)

Property and equijpment

Property and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the supply of services or for
administrative purposes (other than properties under
construction as described below). Property and
equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include any
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management,
including costs of testing whether the related assets
is functioning properly and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at
initial recognition. To the extent the allocation of the
relevant payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets” in
the consolidated statement of financial position. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between
non-lease building element and undivided interest in
the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 B #3R K MYz (&)

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information (continued)

Property and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of items of property and equipment other than
properties under construction less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment on property and equipment and right-of-
use assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property and equipment
and right-of-use assets to determine whether there
is any indication that these assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if

any).

The recoverable amount of property and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. WWhen
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

For the year ended 31 December 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 BI #3RR i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information (continued)

Impairment on property and equipment and right-of-
use assets (continued)

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash-
generating unit when a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be established, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount
of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-
generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 44 Bt 18 3R & Ki:E (@)

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information (continued)

Impairment on property and equipment and right-of-
use assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-
generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with
the recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating
units. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash generating unit
or the group of cash-generating units) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
cash-generating unit or the group of cash-generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 BI #3RR i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the
consolidated statement of financial position include:

(@ cash, which comprises of cash on hand and
demand deposits, excluding bank balances that
are subject to regulatory restrictions that result in
such balances no longer meeting the definition of
cash; and

(b)  cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months
or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose
of meeting short-term cash commitments rather
than for investment or other purposes.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 B #3R K MYz (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 BI #3RR i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HZE2024F12 A31 ALLEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal

and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 B #3R K MYz (&)

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of
the financial asset from the next reporting period.
If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit-impaired.

For the year ended 31 December 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 BI #3RR i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continueqd)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (continued)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost are measured

at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with
any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss excludes any dividend earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other gains

and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment

assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit losses (‘ECL”) model on financial assets
(including trade and other receivables, deposits for
rental, deposits for utilities and others, other financial
assets measured at amortised cost, time deposits
and cash and cash equivalents) which are subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount
of ECL is updated at each reporting dates to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment

assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
(“12m ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions
at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future

conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade

receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should
be recognised is based on significant increases in
the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial

recognition.

4.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 44 Bt 18 3R & Ki:E (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 BI #3RR i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 4, HFEVBBRRNEREEREARS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL STBUERE R (B)
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information (continued) 42 BREIBRER (&
Financial instruments (continueq) SETAE
Financial assets (continued) SHEEE)
Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment JBIRIEE BRI T & E R E 9%
assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued) ETTIRE S #) % B &2 6l 18
(%)
()  Significant increase in credit risk () (EERBRBEELA

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased R EERRES BV

significantly since initial recognition, the Group IRHERANREBEE EFA

compares the risk of a default occurring on the i AEERERIAR
financial instrument as at each reporting date EHE A AHRELNNR

with the risk of a default occurring on the financial % Bz &l T AR Yin e

instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In REHHRE N RRE

making this assessment, the Group considers FTLLER o B L AT Al B

both quantitative and qualitative information that AEEGERSEBIEN

is reasonable and supportable, including historical *E&E’\Eﬁ*ﬂr C BIER
experience and forward-looking information that is TR REREEBINE

available without undue cost or effort. AN SAE 1 BN Al S B9 B

[ E3=¢ =

In particular, the following information is taken into BEmE - fHMEEERR

account when assessing whether credit risk has EECEZEMNEEEE

increased significantly: TEER -

e an actual or expected significant e ST ENER(I
deterioration in the financial instrument’s ) IR EEFTR
external (if available) or internal credit rating; WERNTEHREE

=2

e significant deterioration in external market . BB =0
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant %1 *?,%E%%Tt c
increase in the credit spread, the credit PlIEE B = KIE
default swap prices for the debtor; B BERABE

EEAEEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 B #3R K MYz (&)

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.

4.

For the year ended 31 December 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 BI #3RR i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continueqd)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i) Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

(iiy  Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 B #3R K MYz (&)

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment

assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(iiy  Credit-impaired financial assets (continued)

(@  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted
to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.

For the year ended 31 December 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 BI #3RR i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continueqd)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries
are recognised in profit or loss.

China East Education Holdings Limited & FEIRAHBERER A A

4.

REVBBRRNEREEREAS
STERERER (&)

42 EBREERERE
SHTAE
EHEE ()

BRBEE BRI B EERFE 9T
T EFF L 89 % & 2 B E
(&)

(v)  MEHEER

ERERBRRZYTFT
HREEMERNEAER
PR i = AT BE B (2032 5
HFIRBEHCEAN
ERFF)  ANEEEMHE
TREE - EERERE
Rn@Em) & - cMEe
BEEDAIRBEASEZ
Yo [l A2 Fr B B 5 R 01T ©
MK LR = -
EfRR B B RIBHNIE
PR o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 44 Bt 18 3R & Ki:E (@)

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights. The ECL on trade
receivables are assessed individually, based on
the past default experience of the debtor, general
economic conditions of the industry in which the
debtors operate and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort at the
end of each year.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

4.

For the year ended 31 December 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 BI #3RR i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continueqd)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of trade and other receivables, deposits for rental
and deposits for utilities and others where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through
a loss allowance account.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The carrying amount of financial assets that are
denominated in a foreign currency is determined
in that foreign currency and translated at the
spot rate at the end of each reporting period.
Specifically:

o For financial assets measured at amortised
cost that are not part of a designated
hedging relationship, exchange differences
are recognised in profit or loss in the ‘Other
gains and losses’ line item (Note 8) as part
of the net foreign exchange gains/(loss);
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 B #3R K MYz (&)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment

assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

\)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continueq)

Foreign exchange gains and losses (continued)

° For financial assets measured at FVTPL
that are not part of a designated hedging
relationship, exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the ‘Other
gains and losses’ line item as part of the
gain/(loss) from changes in fair value of
other financial assets (Note 8).

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

4.

For the year ended 31 December 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 BI #3RR i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

4.2 Material accounting policy information (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definition of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

All financial liabilities including trade and other payables
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 4, the management of the Group is
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the management of
the Group has made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 B #3R K MYz (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
(= 2024F 12 A31 BIEFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continueq)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies (continued)

Contractual Arrangerments

The Group conducts a substantial portion of the business
through Anhui Xinhua Education and Nanjing Culinary in the
PRC due to regulatory restrictions on foreign ownership in the
Group’s schools in the PRC. The Group does not have any
equity interest in Anhui Xinhua Education or Nanjing Culinary.
The management of the Group assessed whether or not the
Group has control over Anhui Xinhua Education and Nanjing
Culinary based on whether the Group has the power over
Anhui Xinhua Education and Nanjing Culinary, has rights
to variable returns from its involvement with Anhui Xinhua
Education and Nanjing Culinary, and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over Anhui Xinhua Education
and Nanjing Culinary. After assessment, the management
of the Group concluded that the Group has control over
Anhui Xinhua Education and Nanjing Culinary as a result
of the Contractual Arrangements and other measures and
accordingly, the assets, liabilities and their operating results
of Anhui Xinhua Education and Nanjing Culinary are included
in the consolidated financial statements for both years or
since the respective dates of establishment, whichever is the
shorter period.

Nevertheless, the Contractual Arrangements and other
measures may not be as effective as direct legal ownership
in providing the Group with direct control over Anhui Xinhua
Education, Nanjing Culinary and uncertainties presented by
the PRC legal system could impede the Group’s beneficiary
rights of the results, assets and liabilities of Anhui Xinhua
Education and Nanjing Culinary. The management of the
Group, based on the advice of its legal counsel, considers
that the Contractual Arrangements among Xinhua Chuangzhi,
Anhui Xinhua Education, Nanjing Culinary, the Controlling
Equity Holders and Mr. Ge Xiaoliang are in compliance
with the relevant PRC laws and regulations and are legally
enforceable.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of each reporting period, that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of property and equipment and right-
of-use assets

Property and equipment and right-of-use assets are stated
at costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment,
if any. In determining whether an asset is impaired, the
Group has to exercise judgment and make estimation,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred
or any indicators that may affect the asset value; (2) whether
the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, in the case of value in use, the net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating
the recoverable amounts including cash flow projections
and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset
(including right-of-use assets), the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the assets belongs, including allocation of corporate assets
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, otherwise recoverable amount is determined at
the smallest group of cash generating units, for which the
relevant corporate assets have been allocated. Changing the
assumptions and estimates, including the discount rates or
the growth rate in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the recoverable amounts.

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amounts of
property and equipment and right-of-use assets were
RMB3,308,721,000 and RMB2,148,822,000 (2023:
RMB3,080,278,000 and RMB2,225,672,000) respectively,
details of which are disclosed in Notes 15 and 16
respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 B ¥ 3% Mi st

For the year ended 31 December 2024
(= 2024F 12 A31 BIEFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is mainly engaged in the provision of vocational

education services in the PRC.

Revenue represents service income from tuition fees less
sales related tax, and is recognised over time. The progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
is measured based on input method, which is to recognise
revenue on the basis of the Group’s efforts or inputs (mainly
representing teaching staff costs, rental expenses and
depreciation of school premises) to the satisfaction of a
performance obligation relative to the total expected inputs
to the satisfaction of that performance obligation, that best
depict the Group’s performance in transferring control of

goods or services.

Tuition fees are generally paid in advance at the beginning of
each courses, and are initially recorded as contract liabilities.
The portion of tuition payments received from students but
not earned is recorded as contract liabilities. Amounts which
will be earned within one year is reflected as a current liability
and those which will be earned beyond one year is reflected as

a non-current liability.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance

obligation for contracts with customers

The majority of the contracts for provision of vocational
education services are for periods of one year or less. As
permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to

these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligation for contracts with customers (continued)

The Group’s operating segments are based on information
prepared and reported to the chief operating decision
makers (“CODM?”), the Board, for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment. In the current year,
the Group reorganised its internal reporting structure which
resulted in changes to the composition of its reportable
segments. Specifically, Cuisine Academy was integrated into
the operations of New East Culinary Education to form the
Culinary Arts segment, Omick Education of Western Cuisine
and Pastry is reclassified as the Western Cuisine and Pastry,
Wisezone Data Technology Education was integrated into
the operations of Xinhua Internet Technology Education to
form the Information Technology and Internet Technology
segment, Wontone Automotive Education is reclassified as
the Auto Services segment and Fashion and Beauty segment
was separated from other miscellaneous businesses to report
as an independent segment. Prior year segment disclosures
have been re-presented to conform with the current year’s
presentation.

The Group’s reportable and operating segments for financial
reporting purposes have been reorganised as follows:

(@ Culinary Arts (formerly included New East Culinary
Education and Cuisine Academy): providing
comprehensive culinary training programs to students
who pursue a career in becoming professional chefs
and also providing customized catering experience
services to customers who are interested in cooking
or who plan to establish their own businesses in the
catering industry;

(b)  Western Cuisine and Pastry (formerly named as Omick
Education of Western Cuisine and Pastry): offering a
variety of courses, including baking, desserts, western
cuisines, bartending and barista training;

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 44 Bt 18 3R & Ki:E (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
{ZE2024F 12 A31 BIEFE

WA R 2 EBEF (7

PEEEPAANEAKREBEITHNENE
TR B E

AREBHEE D BAREBLERR
E(ERRERKE]) EES) R
R 2R EMBER  UMEERD
AR AR - RAFE - A%
BEAAN RS S - ERREDH
MR R o ARG - XIKEMk
AR R I3 2B DA R R BBl
D BRTEHEEHE BN SO
KPR - EEERDTAS HIIE
Ho B AFTEE B INEE AT (B BBl
REMBRMOE  SBIEHEE
MO BRNERE D AR - MEF X%
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ERBIU D HETRSE - BEFED
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RIEFMBHRERN  AEEARED
BREEDFDEEMT
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
(= 2024F 12 A31 BIEFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuead)

Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligation for contracts with customers (continued)

(c) Information Technology and Internet Technology
(formerly included Xinhua Internet Technology Education
and Wisezone Data Technology Education): providing
a wide range of information technology-related training
to students and also providing short-term information
technology and internet technology programs to junior
college and university students who have possessed
the basic knowledge and seek to further develop
relevant practical skills.

(d)  Auto Services (formerly named as Wontone Automotive
Education): providing hands-on auto repair skill
training as well as practical knowledge of automobile
commerce;

(e) Fashion and Beauty: mainly focusing on cultivating high
skills fashion and beauty professionals; and

()  Other miscellaneous businesses.

These segments are the basis on which the Group reports its
segment information.

The management of the Group assesses the performance of
the operating and reportable segment based on the revenue
and gross profit for the year of the Group as presented
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. The accounting policies of the
reportable segment are the same as the Group’s accounting
policies described in Note 4. Segment results represent the
profits earned by each segment and excluding certain other
income and expenses, other gains and losses, corporate
administrative expenses and income tax expense. No analysis
of the Group’s assets and liabilities is regularly provided to
the management of the Group for review. Inter-segment sales
are charged at cost plus approach.

China East Education Holdings Limited & FEIRAHBERER A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 B #3R K MYz (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
EHZE2024 512 831 AILFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. WARDEER (&
Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance AREERFANNHRARBITNEOE
obligation for contracts with customers (continued) E2RSERE ()
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and AEBRE E2024%F K 2023%12 A
results by operating and reportable segments for the years 31 AIEFEREE RO RESFE S
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023: AR ZEEDITT
For the year ended 31 December 2024 B 22024F 12831 HIFF/E
Information
Westem  Technology Other
Culinary ~ Cuisineand  and Internet Auto  Fashionand  Miscellaneous
Arts Pastry  Technology Service Beauty  Businesses Elimination Total
ERRITR i
2EEH EURE  EEESE RERE [HoES BERE Faf it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AE®TR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Revenue 0N
External sales NEEE 1,918,834 342,865 762,744 912,103 105,439 74,200 - 4,116,185
Inter-segment sales AHREEE 8,264 - - 1916 - 149,598 (159,778) -
Segment revenue DEA 1,927,098 342,865 762,744 914,019 105,439 223,798 (159,778) 4,116,185
Results ES |
Segment results PHEE 440,185 26,402 105,211 137,046 1,112 (54,860) - 655,696
Unallocated B
Otherincomeand expenses ~~ EMMARR X 82473
Other gains and losses Aol REE 32431
Corporate administratiie BEAREY
expenses (116,183)
Profit before tax il 654,417
Income tax expense FrEHRL (141,821)
Proft for the year FRiEH) 512,596
Other segmentinformation A2 S&H
Depreciation of propertyand ~~ MERRENE
equipment 129,412 17,113 65,136 76,525 7,613 17,764 - 313,563
Depreciation of right-ofuse ~~ (FFIELENRE
assets 115,453 25,885 50,261 74,207 6,783 4,693 - 211,282
Additions of property and REMERRE
equipment 129,516 1,634 63,815 41,100 21,34 330,661 - 588,067
Additions of right-of-use assets  SEIFFIEEE 179,865 5,104 26,927 3,347 668 106,285 - 322,286

Annual Report 2024 " —Z & F3R

243



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 BI #3RR i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. WARDBER(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 Bt E 20234 1231 H I F/Z
Information
Westen Technology Other
Culinary Cuisine and and Intemnet Auto Fashionand ~ Miscellaneous
Arts Pastry Technology Service Beauty Businesses Elimination Total
fERHITR At
TG FHEE  ERERE e Fa%% WAXH b A%

RMBI000 RMB'000 RMB100 RNB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB00O RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT  ARETT  ARMTR  ARETR ARt ARMTR  ARETR

Revenue 0N
External sales MEE 1,914,319 330,809 777,070 846,530 46,881 63,045 - 3.978,654
Inter-segment sales PHEHE - - 4,808 823 = 142,163 (147,794) =
Segment revenue LN 1,914,319 330,809 781,878 847,353 46,881 205,208 (147,799 3,978,654
Results &
Seqment rests SU%4 300505 8319 52,448 72,087 R0311) (#0.361) : 336,049
Unallocated IR
Otherincome and expenses ~~ EHRARER 104,994
Other gains and losses EthaREE 43,355
Corporate administrative PETHAR

€Xpenses (116,389)
Profit before tax BangH 368,009
Income tax expense: FERER (95,387)
Proft for the year FRigfl 272,622

Other segment information ~ Es2&#
Depreciation of propertyand ~~ /1ERiXENE

equipment 134,260 23,163 1,774 70,936 3470 12,893 - 316,496
Depreciation of right-of use ~~ (FFHEEERE

assets 122,952 29,725 61,816 78,000 6,422 4903 - 303,868
Addtions of property and RENE Rk

equipment 368,443 3137 34,754 110,211 28,843 249,162 - 794,550
Addtions of it ofse assels  EABRIEAZ Q517 2002 6,085 105,478 1399 67,948 - 080
Geographical information Hh i3 &
The Group primarily operates in the PRC. Substantially all of AEBTFECTREAREYR - ~5E
the non-current assets of the Group are located in the PRC. RAEDIEMBEEIUNPE -
Information about major customers EHETERFNER
No single customer contributed over 10% or more of total REZE2024F K2023F 12 4318 1k
revenue of the Group during the years ended 31 December FE - YEE-FPEREEAKA
2024 and 2023. BI10%3 A E o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 B #3R K MYz (&)

7.

OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES 7.

B EE AR RA R BT 8 B
BRI BY
FEWAKRE

Asset-related government grants
Unconditional government grants
Interest income from

— time deposits and bank balances — TEBF R R BRI T AR

— entrusted loans —EZFEER

Others HAtb

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8.

Gains from changes in fair value of other A AR BEFFEW AT AEZ

financial assets measured at FVTPL BWEMESREEN AR
BEEZE =
Losses on disposals of property and HEMERZBENEER
equipment
Gains from termination of lease IR E s
agreements
Net foreign exchange gains b ) F R

For the year ended 31 December 2024
EHZE2024 512 831 AILFE

H A R B

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLLEE

2024 2023

20245 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®F T ARETIT

1,847 2,941

35,433 31,322

78,128 95,725

2,854 5,342

1,491 3,927

119,753 139,257
Hi=REE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILLEE

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T AREFIT
50,723 20,412
(38,116) (5,040)
7,068 3,704
12,756 24,279
32,431 43,355
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 BI #3RR i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

9. FINANCE COSTS

Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBBEZMNERXZ

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”)

— Current tax —RNEATHIE
— Over provision in prior years —BAFEBERE
Deferred tax (Note 17) BEIERIE (M EE17)

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
China East Education Investment Limited (FF IR 5 #H B E
BBR A 7)) was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
“BVI”) that are tax exempted as no business carried out in
Cayman Islands and BVI under the tax laws of the Cayman
Islands and the BVI, respectively.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2023: 16.5%)
of the estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31
December 2024. The subsidiaries of the Company operating
in Hong Kong did not have tax assessable profit during both
years.

China East Education Holdings Limited & FEIRAHBERER A A

9. MEHMA

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLLEE
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREFIT
118,041 139,301

10. FREBIFAX

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A318LLEE

B EMISH ([REMEHR))

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFIT
135,719 97,816
(1,529) (1,186)
7,631 (1,243)
141,821 95,387

RRBIRFERESEMAL - PE
RA¥EREBRARDINEE 4
ARAE ((EBERRHE ) MK
o ARYENFERENEEER
REESFRAERER WO BREBFSE
ERRBEBAREENE  ARAIR
PERSHERERRARER L
B o

EBFNBR BB E2024F12 A31
HiEFE b ERBRMIR16.5%H
% (20234F : 16.5%) 5T E ° AR AR
EBE SN B QR R MEFE I &
FERBLRF o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 44 Bt 18 3R & Ki:E (@)

10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2024, pursuant
to the Enterprise Income Tax Law and Implementation
Regulations of the Law of the PRC, the applicable tax rate
of PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2023: 25%), except for certain
subsidiaries entitled to different preferential tax rates.

Beijing Langjie Technology Co., Ltd. (1t FEAEERIF AR A 7))
was qualified as a High and New Technology Enterprise since
1 January 2004 and enjoyed the preferential tax rate of 15%
during both years.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group are subject to “small and
thin-profit enterprises” will benefit from a preferential tax
rate of 20% under the EIT Law. For each of the years ended
31 December 2024 and 2023, the qualifying group entities
enjoyed 75% reduction on annual taxable income.

Certain subsidiaries of the Company are entitled to the
preferential tax rate of 15% (2023: 15%) because they are
located in the western region of the PRC. Details are set out
below:

Name of subsidiary
i NGEE

Chengdu New East Culinary Vocational Training School Co., Ltd.

BXERFT R 77 R AL B R AL IR IR AA R A A

Sichuan Xinhua Computer Institute

7)1 3 2 A 22 e

Gansu New East Culinary Advanced Technical School Co., Ltd.
HEFRA e ARIERARAH

Guiyang City New East Culinary Secondary Vocational School
ESTHRA TP ERESR

Guiyang New East Culinary Vocational Training School
EBHR 7 T ARSI ER

Guizhou Xinhua Computer Vocational Training School

BN E BRI 2R

For the year ended 31 December 2024
{ZE2024F 12 A31 BIEFE

10. FIBHEX (&

REBZE2024F12A31BLLFE -
RIE R B RS TUE & H B 5
Bl - PEB AR A EAR R A25%
(20234 : 25%) @ HEE TIER 2R
MAZETRAEETEMMERRIR
Hh o

BE2004%F1 A1H#E - b REBEERIEA
RAE A BRI M ET AR
EFERNZE15%HEERFR o

RIBLEFRETE - AEEETHE
NRABRNEMAIEE - BEX20%
MEBEHE o NEE20245F %2023
FI2ABIEFESSF 6 EKEH
BERNFERRTWMARRET5% °

MR AR B RS TH B RHEAR
RETEME  WEBEZE15%
(20234 : 15%) IEBEME - FIFH
FEOR -

Starting date
#B2s B

1 January 2011
201151 A18
1 January 2011
20111318
1 January 2015
201551 A1H
1 January 2011
201141 A1H
1 January 2011
201151 A18
1 January 2011
20111 A1H

Expiry date
ZIHAR

31 December 2030
203012 A31H
31 December 2030
2030F12A31H
31 December 2030
2030%F 12 A31H
31 December 2030
203012 A31H
31 December 2030
203012 A31H
31 December 2030
2030%F 12 A31H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 434 B %8R 3k M 5+ ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
(= 2024F 12 A31 BIEFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Certain subsidiaries of the Company are entitled to the
preferential tax rate of 15% (2023: 15%) because they are
located in the western region of the PRC. Details are set out

below: (continueq)

Name of subsidiary
MEARERE

Guizhou Wisezone Technology Co., Ltd.
EMEFEERBRBRAA

Guiyang Xinhua Internet Technical School
ESHELDBARTER

Guiyang New East Culinary Advanced Technical School
EBFRS TS RBRIER

Hohhot City New East Advanced Technical School
MRS TR R 7 = AR TR

Shaanxi New East Culinary Training School Co., Ltd.
PREGFTER 7 2 AR IR AR AR

Shaanxi Xinhua Computer Software Training School Co., Ltd.

PR BRI BB R A A
Xinjiang New East Culinary School Co., Ltd.
FIBRTR 5 R AE IR AR AR

Yunnan Wontone Automobile Repair Vocational Training School

EESEEBEEIIER
Yunnan New East Culinary Vocational Training School
EETR T R AR R I I A

Chonggqing City New East Culinary Vocational Training School

Co., Ltd.
EETHES R EREREEY SR AR AT

Chongqing Xinhua Computer Vocational Training School Co., Ltd.

EETHEE B AR ERAREEI AR
Chongaqing City Xinhua Technical School
BEMMERTER

Chengdu New East Culinary Advanced Technical School Co., Ltd.

REFT R T B AR T ERER AR

China East Education Holdings Limited & FEIRAHBERER A A

10. FiBHiBX (&2

HRARRNE THB QA HEMR
FREAESE - WEEEZF15%
(20234 : 15%) MEEF K - FI5H

SIS (&

Starting date
IR A H

1 January 2016
201651 A1H
1 January 2017
201751 A1H
1 January 2016
20161 H1H
1 January 2016
201651 A1H
1 August 2011
201148H1H
1 January 2012
20121 A1H
1 January 2016
2016F1 H1H
1 January 2014
201451 A1H
1 January 2015
201551 A1H
1 January 2012

201241 A1H
1 January 2011
20111 H1H
1 January 2017
201751 A1H
1 January 2018
201851 HA1H

Expiry date
EH B

31 December 2030
2030% 12 A31H
31 December 2030
203012 A31H
31 December 2030
203012 A31H
31 December 2030
2030% 12 A31H
31 December 2030
2080%F12A31H
31 December 2030
203012 A31H
31 December 2030
203012 A31H
31 December 2030
2030%F 12 A31H
31 December 2030
203012 A31H
31 December 2030

203012 A31H
31 December 2030
203012 A31H
31 December 2030
2030% 12 A31H
31 December 2030
203012 A31H



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 44 Bt 18 3R & Ki:E (@)

10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Certain subsidiaries of the Company are entitled to the
preferential tax rate of 15% (2023: 15%) because they are
located in the western region of the PRC. Details are set out
below: (continueq)

Name of subsidiary
MEAREHE

Chengdu Omick Western Pastry Vocational Training School
PR EBER K 2 PO BB SR B AR IR I AR

Xian New East Culinary Technical School Co., Ltd.
ARG AR TERER AT

Yunnan Xinhua Computer Secondary Vocational School.
EEMEERPEFERER

Hohhot City Xinhua Technical School Co., Ltd.
ARSI ER TEREREE AR

Hohhot Wontone Automobile Technical School Co., Ltd.
RS EBTERTIEREREE AR

Urumgi Wontone Technical School Co., Ltd.
SEBAEMEBRIEREGRAT

10.

For the year ended 31 December 2024
{ZE2024F 12 A31 BIEFE

FREBmX (&

HRARANE TH B QSR
FREAESE  WEEEZE15%
(20234 : 15%) MEEF K - FI5E

FIEAT : (A&

Starting date
HeIA A HA

1 January 2019
20191 A1H
29 May 2020
2020454 29H
2 June 2020
202056 H2H
25 June 2021
2021F6H25H
11 December 2021
2021F12 811 E
1 January 2023
202351 H1H
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31 December 2030
2030%F 12 A31H
31 December 2030
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31 December 2030
203012 A31H
31 December 2030
2030%F 12 A31H
31 December 2030
2030F12A31H
31 December 2030
203012 A31H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 BI #3RR i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10. FRSHRAX (&
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the FAFSRAS AT EGA R R EM
profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or 2HEWBERANT AN ERAT

loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILLEE

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTT

Profit before tax BA R A 654,417 368,009
Tax at PRC EIT rate of 25% BB R EMRSHTE25%
BNz BIA 163,604 92,002

Tax effect of expenses not deductible N A] H075 B L B0 TR 1 57 22

for tax purposes 11,709 16,709
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax B ZERF U AR 15 57 22

purpose (29,527) (29,263)
Over provision in respect of BT B

prior years (1,529) (1,186)
Tax effect of deductible temporary RER AN A = 5E

differences not recognised MRS 2 12,878 14,551
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised ~ ARFERFH TH E 18 TR 15 52 2 38,270 57,723
Utilisation of tax losses previously not K| F L Al A HER A B B & 18

recognised (36,405) (24,874)
Tax benefit on research and T 25 B 2 OB TS Al 2

development expenses (3,087) (4,501)
Effect of withholding tax on estimated ~ TBFIH ¥ AP BB B A RIZRF AR D

dividends in respect of the PRC s A EET AR B R 2

subsidiaries’ forthcoming years

undistributable profits 10,000 =
Income tax at concessionary rate REBEMETERNTEH (24,092) (25,774)

141,821 95,387
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 B #3R K MYz (&)

11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 11.

Profit for the year has been arrived at A& F JH &R T 51 & 18

after charging: fER :
Directors’ remuneration B
Other staff costs HAh B TR
— salaries and other allowances — & KA AMERL

— retirement benefit scheme contributions — 3R RAE K5+ E1 20
— equity-settled share-based payments — SAEzS &S E HID ST MR SZ

expense
Total staff costs B I ANEER
Depreciation of property and equipment 472 K& &4 &
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE
Total depreciation e

Capitalised in construction in progress ~ fEi2 TI2&E A1

Auditor’s remuneration 1% 2R B &

During the year ended 31 December 2024, equity-settled
share-based payments expense of RMB25,100,000 (2023:
RMB32,993,000) were recognised in profit or loss in respect
of share options of the Company. Details of transactions are
set out in Note 26.

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

FREFN

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLLEE

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

3,360 3,317
1,269,794 1,308,716
97,721 99,061
24,898 32,727
1,395,773 1,443,821
313,563 316,496
281,785 311,450
595,348 627,946
(4,503) (7,582)
590,845 620,364
4,240 4,190

REE2024F12A31H IEFE -
ERARTHERENEZAER
DEZEENRMEITEIAR
#25,100,0007C (20234 : AR#E
32,993,0007T) ° R S EH M
26 °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 BI #3RR i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
EHZE2024F12 B31 AILFE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 12. EE BESTBRABREEME
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors 2%

Details of the emoluments paid or payable by the Group to HE 20245 K 2023F 12 A31HILFE
the directors and chief executive of the Company (including B AEBEENKENARRES R
emolument for services as employee/directors of the group ERTHAB WS (BEKAETA
entities prior to becoming the directors of the Company) for RESZAETEEEREES &5
the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 are as follows: FESRBRTE BN &) FFIB AT

Equity-settled Retirement

Salaries share-based benefit
Directors and other payments scheme
fees  allowances expense contributions Total
DUEREEN
HER [3) BRER
E=He H AR A XARX FTEIR &%t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®TR AR®TR AR%TR  AR®T:R

For the year ended & £20245
31 December 2024 12831HILEE
Executive directors: ~ HITEE

Mr. Wu Wei RELE 328 600 - 70 998

Mr. Xiao Guoging HEETE 328 120 - - 448
656 720 - 70 1,446

Non-executive FNTES

directors:

Mr. Wu Junbao REBREE 328 - - 72 400

Mr. Lu Zhen BEERE 328 - 202 - 530
656 - 202 72 930

Independent non- BIFITES

executive directors:
Mr. Hung Ka Hai, AEERE

Clement 328 - - - 328
Dr. Zhu Guobin KEDHEL 328 - - - 328
Dr. Zang Yunzhi mAsET 328 - - - 328

984 - - - 984
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 B #3R K MYz (&)

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continuead)

Directors (continued)

Salaries

Directors and other
fees allowances
5ER

BT H iR
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTIL

For the year ended & Z2023F
31 December 2023 12A31HLEE
Executive directors:  #{TE% :

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

12. EX - BETHAEREEMS
(&)

Ex(E

Equity-settled Retirement

share-based benefit
payments scheme
expense  contributions Total

AR A
fxtn BIRTER
XFX sHEIfER &t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETE  ARETT ARBTRL

Mr.Wu Wei RETE 324 600 - 26 950
Mr. Xiao Guoging HBIELAE 324 120 - - 444
648 720 - 26 1,394
Non-executive FEHTES
directors:
Mr. Wu Junbao REREE 324 = = 37 361
Mr. Lu Zhen PEELAE 324 - 266 - 590
648 - 266 37 951
Independent non- BUENTES
executive directors:
Mr. Hung Ka Hali, HrEERE
Clement 324 - - - 324
Dr. Zhu Guobin REDRET 324 - - - 324
Dr. Zang Yunzhi BAEET 324 - - - 324
972 - - - 972

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
paid for their services in connection with the management
of affairs of the Group entities for both years. The non-
executive directors’ and independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were for their services as directors
of the Company.

A EFSIBITESHM D EREER
MENREEAEEEREMEEM
TR IRTS M T IASAS © LA EFTZIZE
HITEFE LB IFNITEFTNHIY
REERARRESHRGE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 BI #3RR i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 12,

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continuead)

Employees

The five highest paid individuals of the Group did not
include any directors of the Company for both years whose
emoluments are included in the disclosures above. The
emoluments of the five highest paid individuals are as follows:

Salaries and other benefits FELEHMBER
Retirement benefit scheme RREFIET B
contributions

Equity-settled share-based payments PARE R 5 B RO SRS

expense

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals are within
the following bands:

(&)

[0

&

\

AEENARRSFMALTEER
BEEENARRENES  FHES
MFHBBEER EXHE - AE&RS
HEHA TRF BT

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLLEE
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARBTTT

6,781 4,982
108 70
3,289 4,989
10,178 10,041

ARA T EA B AL 0F BIE
T

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALFE
2024 2023
20245 20234F
number of number of
employees employees
EEA" BEAH
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 L2 1,500,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T 22,000,000/ 7T 2 8
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001#7C2 3,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001#7L. 23,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 724,000,000/ 7T - 1

China East Education Holdings Limited & FEIRAHBERER A A




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 B #3R K MYz (&)

12.

13.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continuead)

Employees (continued)

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the executive directors, non-executive director,
independent non-executive directors, or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office.

No share option was granted during the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023. Details of the share option
schemes are set out in Note 26.

DIVIDENDS
During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023,

dividends for ordinary shareholders of the Company
recognised as distribution:

12,

13.

Final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2023 of HK$0.200 per
ordinary share (2023: HK$0.200 per
ordinary share for the year ended

HZE2023F12A31HILFER
NEARR B A% 0.200
7BIT (20234 © B E20224F
128318 L FEFREL AR

31 December 2022) 0.2007T)

A final dividend of HK$0.200 (approximately equivalent
to RMBO0.182) per ordinary share in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2023, in an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$435,770,000 (approximately equivalent to
RMB396,080,000), was approved by the shareholders of the
Company in the annual general meeting held on 7 June 2024
and paid during the year ended 31 December 2024.

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

EE BETBRAEREEMS
(&

e

BE (&

ANER B W 18 6 R 3 S [ (] 7T
BF  FATES  BUFNMTES
FRAERFRSHFMA LA EATHE -
TE RS R F ARG B AL
EEmp kBRI (E -

HE20245 202312 A31 B L
[§ - WHEBRERRT - BIRETE
FIEH R FE26 ©

KA
HZE2024% N 2023F12A31HIEHF
€ ARRIEBIRENREERE

Dk

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILLEE

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT
396,080 394,892

#HZE2023F 1231 H L FER KR
BB B T EAR0.200/8 T (ERA
K#0.1827T) * &51#49435,770,000
BT (HE R AR 396,080,0007T)
BR2024F6 A7 HR1THRRBF KX
B AR R A R BN = 2024
F12A31ALUEFEIRS ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 BI #3RR i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

13. DIVIDENDS (continueq) 13. BRE(E&
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final ReREEIR%E - R2025F3 27 H £
dividend of HK$0.22 (approximately equivalent to RMB0.21) THEEEgHL  ARREERE
per ordinary share in respect of the year ended 31 December E2024F 12 A31 B ILFEEE#H AR
2024, in an aggregate amount of approximately HK$479 f% B AR T MAR0.228 7T (WER A
million (approximately equivalent to RMB464 million), has R¥0.2170) * 651484798 &A T
been proposed by the directors of the Company at the board (HWERARB464BETT) AR
meeting held on 27 March 2025 and is subject to approval by RAREERRBAS R EERE
the shareholders of the Company in the forthcoming annual EFAEE ©
general meeting.
14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. BRER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share AAREBEANEBEEREARNRHER
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the FIMETE THER AN -
following data:
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HLEE
2024 2023
20245 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
Earnings: &H) :
Earnings for the purposes of calculating FA{EAHEFAREAR M FEREE T
basic and diluted earnings per share Eopapl
— attributable to owners of the Company —Z"A Fl#EA A FE(E 512,596 272,622
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HLEE
2024 2023
20245 20234
Number of shares: RHER -
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ FA{EsTE &/
shares for the purpose of calculating EXRBNEE B
basic earnings per share INFEFHE 2,178,875,190 2,178,776,814
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares #s 2 &7E & @ AR i) 5/ 22
— share options — R 5,774,384 25,460,179
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ F{EzT E &R 12 Z Y
shares for the purpose of calculating T AR A9 2K
diluted earnings per share 2,184,649,574 2,204,236,993
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 B #3R K MYz (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

15. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 15. YERRZME
Leasehold
improvements Furniture Electronic Motor  Construction
Buldings andstructures  andfixtures  equipment vehicles i progress Total
HEME
BFY KEEEE HKBEEKE  ETRG aE fERIR At

RMBO0O ~ RMBOOO ~ RMBOOD  RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBI00O
ARETRE  ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR

CcosT A

A 1 January 2023 R2023F151H 1172516 1,031,841 759,662 500,895 56,828 556,844 4,078,586
Additions RE - 23,065 73,112 46,665 1,003 650,615 794,550
Transfer 0 520,797 86,416 - - - (607,213) -
Disposals/write-off e /s - (28417) (27,232) (12,167) (2,113 - (69,929)

At 31 December 2023 WO023E12A818 1693313 1,112,906 805,542 535,393 55,808 600,246 4,808,207

Additions AE 98,322 15,400 62,171 32,849 3,047 375,378 588,067
Trangfer 4 701,472 117,755 840 1,540 - (821,607) -
Disposals/write-off e /M (63) (87,567) (38,764) (13,006) (4,449) = (143,842)

At 31 December 2024 N2024F12831H 2493044 1158493 829,789 556,776 56,313 154017 5,247,432

DEPRECIATION ik

At 1 January 2023 202351 A18 197,716 327,520 518 449 369934 49725 - 146334
Provided for the year FREE 40908 132,105 88,336 51,694 3453 - 316,496
Eiminated on disposals/ & /#ishEsE8

write-off - 20,366) (23,351) (11,19) (1,998) - (56,911)
At 31 December 2023 12023512 A31 8 238,624 439,059 583,434 410432 51,180 - 1722929
Provided for the year FRifE 51,109 136,529 76979 46,686 2,260 = 313,563
Eliminated on disposals/ & /#ishEs#18

write-off (12 (50812) (32,883) (10,436) (3,638) = (97,781)
At 31 December 2024 2024512 A31 8 289,721 524,976 627,530 446,682 49802 - 1,938711
CARRYING VALUES e

At 31 December 2024 Ro024%12 8318 2,203,323 633517 202,259 110,094 5511 184017 3308721
At 31 December 2023 Ro023%F12 8318 1,454,689 673,646 222108 124,961 4628 600246 3,080,278
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15.

16.

China East Education Holdings Limited & FEIRAHBERER A A

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The above items of property and equipment other than
construction in progress are depreciated on a straight-line
basis, after taking into account their estimated residual value,

at the following useful life:

Buildings
Leasehold improvements

Structures
Furniture and fixtures

Electronic equipment
Motor vehicles

20-40 years

Shorter of lease term or 3-5 years

Shorter of lease term or 15 years

3-5 years
3-5 years
4-8 years

As of 31 December 2024, the Group is in the process of
obtaining title deeds of buildings with carrying value of
RMB1,001,727,000 (2023: RMB647,710,000).

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

As at 31 December 2024
Carrying amounts

As at 31 December 2023
Carrying amounts

For the year ended 31
December 2024

Depreciation charge

Capitalised in construction
in progress

For the year ended 31
December 2023

Depreciation charge

Capitalised in construction
in progress

7A2024F12H31H
BREE

7A2023F12H31H
BREE

HZ2024%F12H31H
IEEE

TEER

FEETRENL

B ZE20235F12A31H
IFE

nEEM

ERTIRENME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 434 B %8R 3k M 5+ ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
(= 2024F 12 A31 BIEFE

15. YMERREE
it R R TE AN
I8 B £ T 5 Al A F NI B AT
- AN RERTEE
1EF 20240
HEMFEERE HEHIESF
(AR H B%E)
g fAHAE 15
(ABSE & B%)
REREE  3Z5F
BTRME 3E5F
="} AT/
HZE2024F12A31H » AEEIEER
EEREFEEZENEE - HEE
FREAEEAAREK1,001,727,000
70 (20234 : AR¥647,710,000
JL) °
16. FHEEE
Leasehold Leased
lands properties Total
HE L HEYME a5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR¥ET T AR¥ET T
775,861 1,372,961 2,148,822
684,980 1,540,692 2,225,672
15,404 266,381 281,785
(4,503) = (4,503)
10,901 266,381 277,282
15,367 296,083 311,450
(7,582) - (7,582)
7,785 296,083 303,868




16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

B35 BT S AR S h
HERRSIR B

Expense relating to short-term leases
Total cash outflow for leases

Additions to right-of-use assets from RNEFAREE
- new leases of lands in the PRC — B T EE
- new leases of properties inthe PRC ~ —FRE#FEHEE

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
terminated certain lease agreements of leased properties. The
Group derecognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
of approximately RMB117,351,000 (2023: RMB178,286,000)
and RMB124,419,000 (2023: RMB181,990,000),
respectively, resulting in gains from termination of
approximately RMB7,068,000 (2023: RMB3,704,000).

For both years, the Group leases various properties, including
the teaching buildings, dormitory buildings and offices for
its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed
term of 1 to 20 years (2023: 1 to 20 years). Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing
the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies
the definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable. There are no enforceable
extension and termination options in lease contracts.

The leasehold lands are amortised on a straight-line basis
over a period of 50 years, which is based on the lease terms
or estimated by the management with reference to the normal
terms in the PRC.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 44 Bt 18 3R & Ki:E (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
{ZE2024F 12 A31 BIEFE

16. FHEEE(Z

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILLEE

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETIT
13,439 9,306
375,317 415,116
106,285 66,186
216,001 224,416
322,286 290,602

REE2024F12A31BIEFE - K
SEKREHEEMENE THERZ -
REBRIIERFABEEENADAR
#117,351,0007T (20234 : AR¥E
178,286,0007T) T R HEBEHOAR
#124,419,0007T (20234 : AR
181,990,0007T) * BEUK IFE AW
# AN R ¥7,068,0007T (20234 : AR
#3,704,0007T) °

AEBRMEFEANREZEME
BREHAEE  BERMAE - LEL
ER% - HESHMNETEER1ZE20
& (20234 : 1Z220%) 7] - FAHIR
TRREE - RETRGRRAEE -
752 B 70 T AR EA R T4 T BT A ER
MHNRER  EREANERNEE
AITEOMERE - HEEOME
A LASR B TRORE AR IR 4% L3R f2 4 o

HE L IES0F MR E A
ZHEDEREYREEEL2ES
B ERBEERSS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 434 B %8R 3k M 5+ ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
(= 2024F 12 A31 BIEFE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

At 31 December 2024, the carrying values of the leasehold
lands of RMB140,908,000 (2023: RMB144,475,000) are
allocated by the government, which have no definite lease
term stated in the relevant land use rights certificates.
However, without the relevant administrative authorities’
permission, the Group cannot transfer, lease or pledge as
security such land use rights allocated by the government.

The Group entered into short-term leases for staff apartments
during the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023. As
at 31 December 2024, the outstanding lease commitment
relating to these staff apartments are RMB1,398,000 (2023:

RMB1,931,000).

Leases committed

As at 31 December 2024, the Group entered into new
leases for several properties that are not yet commenced,
with average non-cancellable period ranged from 4 to 13
years (2023: 3 to 5 years), the total future undiscounted
cash flows over the non-cancellable period amounted to

RMB73,151,000 (2023: RMB15,600,000).

Details of the lease maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set

out in Notes 23 and 28.

China East Education Holdings Limited & FEIRAHBERER A A

16. FAEEE(Z

R2024F 128318 F HE LA
A AR 140,908,0007T (20234 :
AR#144,475,0007T) FABF D B -
WENEE T HFERAEEFERTHEE
HAPR o ST - RASABRETT I R AT
] AEBTEHBN S E8ZET
HfE AR TEE - HASERIER
LR o

HE2024%F X2023F12A31H 1k
FE AEEEREIABIILE
HATAE - A2024F12H31H « B8
TRBEEENKREEHEAERA
K #1,398,0007T (20234 : AR
1,931,0007T) °

BEAGENEE

2024F12 A31H » AEBEI &
TYHEFHAE  HHER KRS -
MERATHEEBFEANTF4E13
(20234 : 3ES5%F) WA A HISHE A
FMRARAITRBESTRELELA
R#73,151,0007T (20234 : ARK
15,600,0007T) °

HEaENHER PO TFBEIIN
FfizE23 %228 °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 B #3R K MYz (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

17. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 17. EZEBEEE B8
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement REREMBIRAKFNESME - &
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities TREHBEEERBED THEHE - A
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred T A ERE BN IRLERIAL S
tax balances for financial reporting purposes: opaR gk

As at 31 December

MW12H31H
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARBTT

Deferred tax assets BIERRIAE B 19,821 20,246
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIEE & (27,733) (20,527)
(7,912) (281)
The followings are the major deferred tax assets recognised RAREE N BT FEERAN I EET
and movements thereon during the current and prior years: BMIBEAENESEMT
Withholding
Right- Asset-related Excess of tax on
Of-use Lease  government  advertising  undistributed
assets liabilities grants expenses profits Total
BEE
ik BLEE  ADRER
fepEE  HERE  DED  RxMER ajikitty CEH

RMBO0O ~ RMBOO0  RMBO0O  RMBOO0  RMBO0O  RMBIOOO
ARETT  AREBTT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETx

At 1 January 2023 12023F1A18 (388,539) 381,513 240 5,256 - (1,524)
Credit (charge) to profit or loss  F A Bk &) B3 55,136 (52,267) (233) (1,399) = 1,243
At 31 December 2023 1A2023F 12 A31H (333,397) 329,246 7 3,863 = (281)
Credit (charge) to profit or loss 5T A Gk 8) B 31,122 (28,388) 221 (586) (10,000) (7,631)
Asat 31 December2024 1202412318 (302,275) 300,858 228 3277 (10,000) (7,912
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 434 B %8R 3k M 5+ ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
(= 2024F 12 A31 BIEFE

17. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (continuead)

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. For investors
incorporated in Hong Kong, a preferential rate of 5% will be
applied where appropriate. Other than the PRC withholding
income tax provided in respect of undistributed profits of
the PRC subsidiaries as above, no deferred tax liabilities has
been provided for the remaining profits of approximately
RMB2,994,118,000 (2023: RMB2,595,826,000), which was
derived from the PRC subsidiaries since 1 January 2008 as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

At 31 December 2024, the Group has unrecognised
deductible temporary differences of RMB569,488,000
(2023: RMB517,976,000). In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, no deferred tax asset is recognised in
relation to such deductible temporary differences as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the

deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

At 31 December 2024, the Group has unrecognised tax
losses of RMB820,411,000 (2023: RMB893,214,000),
among which tax losses amounted to RMB791,739,000
(2023: RMB866,830,000) will expire at various dates
up to and including 2029 and tax losses amounted to
RMB28,672,000 (2023: RMB26,384,000) has no expiry date.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, no deferred
tax assets in respect of tax losses are recognised due to the

unpredictability of future profit streams.

China East Education Holdings Limited & FEIRAHBERER A A

17. BEHREEE BEE

BB ESEMESHE - 20084
1A1B R st BEKE LR BRI
FEAERAOREBARARTEINR -
FEEBEMAZIEEEBRA5%
MEEFE (WER) - B Lt
B Bt B 2 B R 5 ki A EHR A B TR
TSR BB - W E 20085 1
A1ARREHEMBARNARKE
2,994,118,0007T (720234 : AR
2,595,826,0007T) B %l & 5% FETHRAE
MEERBEAE  REARASEEZE
FIER I ZERD 2 BE 0 BZEY
Ry =R ] RS R~ E B[ o

M2024F12A31H » KEEH X
BRANREREEZEAARK
569,488,0007T (20234 : AR
517,976,0007T) ° AR EIEERR
FR A S AT B M B FE AR i I BT AR AR R
AR SR ER R ERZS
AMBEREEZERRECHEEL
E °

M2024F12 A31H @ REBKRER
FRIEE 18 A R#820,411,0007T (2023
& AR#893,214,0007T) @ EA -
&8 A AR791,739,0007T (2023
F . AR#¥866,830,0007T) HFIE
BB N EE2029F (BIEZFEE)
ENTRABHPEAEREEAAR
#28,672,0007C (20234 : AR
26,384,00070) W EIHA R - ANQF]
EERA BENEBBNELRE
B ERARRAEBZHT A TER M
MR ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 B #3R K MYz (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
EHZE2024 512 831 AILFE

18. INVENTORIES 18. #&

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

School materials and consumables M BOEFE M 64,349 67,893
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 BI #3RR i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

19. BEZREMERE

As at 31 December

M12H831H
2024 2023
20244 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFIT
Trade receivables E 5 W GRIE
— from government (note i) — 2R B BUAT (B 19,328 18,759
— from others (note ii) — 3R B H A (B i) 43,995 29,592
63,323 48,351
Other receivables HAth pE U sRIE

Prepayments for consumables SHFEMIBN K 24,579 29,481
Prepayments for rental HETER® 8,753 5,596
Prepayments for services i e SEUNEN 32,147 22,961
Prepayments for advertisement EETERK 46,308 45,098
Value added tax recoverable A] U Bl E TR 73,719 74,019
Advance to staff M8 TIEHAIE K 5,038 5,944

Interest receivables from time deposits & HR1F 2 M $R 1T 45 #4
and bank balances B U FI S 25,173 35,218
Deposit for development (note iii) 7 B r i (9 =iii) 14,280 14,280
Refundable deposit AREL S 6,770 11,520
Other receivables H At FEUGRIE 47,486 31,090
284,253 275,207
347,576 323,558

Notes:

The amounts represent receivables from the PRC local
governments, which purchased vocational education services
for students.

i The amounts mainly represent receivables from customers,
which purchased ancillary services other than vocational
education services.

il The amounts represent the deposits paid to the PRC local
government authority for the development of Chengdu Xinhua
Future Vocational Skills Training School Co., Ltd. (B #B#ZE
RIRBEE R A B AR A 7). The deposits will be repaid
based on the progress of the project development.

As at 1 January 2023, trade receivables from contracts with
customers amounted to RMB46,625,000.

264 China East Education Holdings Limited «" FEERE S HEZERER D

HEFORER AR ER T BFAZ
BB BB RISE YR -

i.  HHEFEIBREREEFEEWHY
BR7 (TR EREHE IR B

A °

i, AF B SRR A 3 R R R 2R
ERERIERARARENF
WHBFEENREE - REHRIE
HERZEMERIRE -

R2023%F1 818 KARFAHWE
S W ERIE A AR #46,625,0007T ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 B #3R K MYz (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 19. EFZ R HMEWFIE(Z
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables AT RZEEZEHZ5ME S EIKK
presented based on the invoice dates: TEHARER DT ¢

As at 31 December

MA12H31H
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR AR¥ETT

Within 3 months 3EA R 28,723 31,428
Over 3 months but within 12 months SEAA FER12(E AR 14,582 15,956
Over 1 year S 20,018 967

63,323 48,351
In the opinion of the management of the Group, all of the AEEEEERS  ARBFERE
trade receivable balances at the end of each year which 1 AR IRO0 A MY B 5 EIGRIA & #4715
have been past due over 90 days are not considered as in EEABRTEENEELENR S
default as these are contributed by counterparties with good F - AR TEEAED - ARNEEE
reputation and credit records. The management of the Group ERRBIWRZFAEERNE L  ZFK
considered that the impairment loss was insignificant as EREFEREARERAIWE - BRH
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and B4 E AR EERENEE BRI
amounts are considered recoverable at the end of each year B WAEBEEREERBZRE
and no impairment loss on ECL is recognised during both BRI AEX - B 5 RAMERFIE
years. Details of impairment assessment of trade and other BB R E B E I 5128 ©

receivables are set out in Note 28.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 434 B %8R 3k M 5+ ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
(= 2024F 12 A31 BIEFE

20. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 20. Hithe@mEE
As at 31 December
M12831H
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ETR ARETIT
Other financial assets measured AR BETETE AEBZR
at FVTPL (note i) Y E Ath & B S EE (B )
— Structured deposits (note ii) — &R AT SR (B D 111,762 11,750
— Unquoted fund investment —EGEREES 388,007 352,446
499,769 364,196
Other financial assets measured at REHEK AT ENH SR
amortised cost BE
— entrusted loans to related parties — AR A IR ETE R
(note iii) (Bf i) 50,000 80,000
Notes: BiEE -

Details of the fair value measurement for other financial assets
measured at FVTPL are set out in Note 28.

The structured deposits are short-term investments issued
by banks and financial institutions with no predetermined or
guaranteed return and are not principal protected. These
financial assets are with expected rates of return (not
guaranteed), depending on the market price of underlying
financial instruments, including listed shares, bonds,
debentures and other financial assets.

On 11 June 2024, the Group and each of Mr. Wu Junbao, Mr.
Wu Wei and Mr. Xiao Guoging entered into a loan framework
agreement, pursuant to which the Group agreed to, through
its designated lending subsidiary(ies), make available to the
receiving companies to be designated by Mr. Wu Junbao, Mr.
Wu Wei and Mr. Xiao Guoging a RMB revolving loan facility
in a maximum daily balance (excluding the accrued interests)
of RMB50,000,000 each at an fixed interest rate of 7% per
annum. As at 31 December 2024, the amounts represented
an entrusted loan provided to Anhui Xinhua Holdings Group
Investment Co., Ltd. (EEFHELEREEREEFRAR)
(“Xinhua Holdings Group”), a company controlled by Mr. Xiao
Guoqing, with the principal amount of RMB50,000,000 and
will be matured on 31 December 2025.

China East Education Holdings Limited & FEIRAHBERER A A

AR BEELE BN EAM
CRMEENA R BESEHNFER
HRKIEE28 o

RIT RS REBERITOEBIEER
REIARBARE QIR A RANFE
HERE  ZEeREEAFEND
HER (LERE) » BRORERF
HHEeBRTA(BRELRERD &
7 ERENEGERERE) TS
BIRME -

R2024F6 8118 » REBER R
RocE RELEREEELES
BRI EFERRZ - Bt - A%
EREEREETERNEARM
RERFEE  REBEEERBBESL
EEBEREZWRABIRETHR
mES (TRIEETFIR) AARKE
50,000,000t 2 A REBIRE
BE - BEFHEART% - :R2024
F12A381H * ZHEEABH
BRAERHO AR LZHIELRRE
BEREARAR ((FELRER])
REZTER "B AARE
50,000,0007T * #2025512 431
HEH o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 44 Bt 18 3R & Ki:E (@)

20. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

21.

Notes: (continued)
ii. (continued)

On 15 September 2022, the Group and each of Mr. Wu
Junbao, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Xiao Guoging entered into a
loan framework agreement, pursuant to which the Group
agreed to, through its designated lending subsidiary(ies),
make available to the receiving companies to be designated
by Mr. Wu Junbao, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Xiao Guoging a RMB
revolving loan facility in at a maximum daily balance (excluding
the accrued interests) of RMB80,000,000 each, at an fixed
interest rate of 7% per annum. As at 31 December 2023, the
amounts represented an entrusted loan provided to Xinhua
Holdings Group, a company controlled by Mr. Xiao Guoging,
with the principle amount of RMB80,000,000, and was settled
on 31 March 2024.

The details of the entrusted loans were constituted as
continuing connected transactions pursuant to the Listing
Rules, details of which were set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 11 June 2024 and 15 September
2022, respectively.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/TIME DEPOSITS

Cash and cash equivalents include demand deposits and
short term deposits for the purpose of meeting the Group’s
short term cash commitments, which carry interest at market
rates range from 0.10% to 5.75% (2023: 0.20% to 5.75%)
per annum.

Time deposits carry interest at prevailing market rates from
1.30% to 6.41% (2023: 1.30% to 6.41%) per annum with
original maturity of more than three months.

Except for time deposits with carrying amounts of nil
and RMB682,898,000 (2023: RMB271,866,000 and
RMB757,141,000) denominated in HK$ and US$ as at 31
December 2024, respectively, all of the other time deposits
are denominated in RMB.

20.

21.

For the year ended 31 December 2024
{ZE2024F 12 A31 BIEFE

Hih&@EE 2
iz : (&)
i (#)

M202249A150 » REFEAR (K
REE  RELEREEELES
BRI EFIERBZE - BHit - A%
EREsAEETERNE AR
MREREE  RELERH
BrESEEEZBRRARRES
AsmiEt (TRIBEFE) AA
R #80,000,0007t 2 A R 1R
EXRmE  BEFHERET% -
2023%F12A31H * ZHKIBEMHA
BB E AR A R ELRE
ERHZAER  A2EAARE
80,000,0007T * B 7202443 A31
AEE -

ZEERMNFERE LT ARAEK
REMERS  WHRARFHH
/202446 A11H 20226915
BEAE

RERBSLEY EHER

BekBESEEMREARNREANSE
[ 52 BiIR £ A GE Y& BifF A R R BAfE
K BN T0.10%E5.75% (20234 -
0.20%Z5.75%) KT HEF| KB ©

FHGERIRBITHISERNR1.30%E
6.41% (20234 : 1.30%%6.41%) &t
B YARIEA R ABB=EA -

BRIN2024F12 A1 BMREEA
TR AR®682,898,0007T (2023
£ AR#0271,866,0007T KA R#E
757,141,0007T) 2 € HATF 58 70 Bl A
TERETTEESN - B EME TR
TR ARMEEHE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 BI #3RR i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HZE2024F12 A31 ALLEE

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22, BFRHMEMRE

As at 31 December

A12H31H
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Trade payables B S e FRIE 117,724 123,804
Payable for property and equipment I EYNE ) AN 246,149 202,182
Value added tax and other taxes payable 3 {E T Kz = 4th & (< F5 7% 6,708 6,810
Payroll payable BN EE 196,650 202,549
Discretionary subsidies received on REREAUERBYIEHEL

behalf of students 22,891 33,047
Miscellaneous deposits received from  [A1E 4 URER K HETE IR &

students — within 12 months —12ff AN 62,716 62,753
Other payables E A FERTFRIE 53,956 50,288

706,794 681,433

The credit period of trade creditors is normally 90 days. The ZoERANEERBEROB © L
following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented TRIEREZAHZEINE FENIE
based on the invoice dates: RIRRER DA -

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARBTT

Within 90 days 90H ™A 117,724 123,804
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 B #3R K MYz (&)

23. LEASE LIABILITIES

24,

Lease liabilities payable:
Within one year
Within a period of more than one year

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

23. HHEAE

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARBTTT

HESEENRE:
1R 336,426 265,397
BB F BN Z R 2F R ERE A

but not more than two years 244,888 287,741
Within a period of more than two years TR {E N Z RS R EARE A
but not more than five years 473,186 559,001
Within a period of more than five years AR EIEA 367,710 461,022
1,422,210 1,578,161
Less: Amount due for settlement with B 128 A AR EN B4
12 months shown under HeEGIRTRBAEET)
current liabilities (336,426) (265,397)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months ~ F1 218 A4 2 B B 45 B K
shown under non-current liabilities SHGIRERBABET) 1,085,784 1,307,764
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to ERAREEAGENETFHESE
lease liabilities range from 4.00% to 10.25% (2023: from 4.3% BFFENT4.00%E10.25% (2023

to 12.75%) per annum.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

F : 43%%F12.75%) ©

24. EHERE

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBF R AR¥ETT

Tuition fees and service fees BE KRG E 1,480,825 1,341,891
Less: current liabilities B ORBaE (1,456,590) (1,323,910)
Non-current liabilities EMBEME 24,235 17,981
As at 1 January 2023, the current and non-current portion MN2023F1A1H AHEEBEZ
of contract liabilities amounted to RMB1,186,574,000 and MBEIIERDIT DDA ABARE

RMB21,420,000 respectively.

1,186,574,0007T & AR 21,420,000
7TE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued)

The contract liabilities as at 1 January 2023 and 31
December 2023, amounted to RMB1,186,574,000 and
RMB1,323,910,000, respectively, were recognised as
revenue during the years ended 31 December 2024 and

24. EHEE(E

202341 818 k2023412 531
B ARK#®1,186,574,000t X AR
#1,323,910,000TH A LA EH B
REZE2024F 2023612 A31H 1k

2023. FREBERBBA -
25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. BRA
Shown in the
consolidated
Number of Share financial
Notes shares Capital statements
i it kE  EREEEBER
HK$ RMB'000
BT N S
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0001 each  &%0.0001E THIZEK
Authorised: .y
At 1 January 2023, 31 December M2023F1R1R + 2023F
2023 and 31 December 2024 12A31 B k20245
12A31H 3,800,000,000 380,000
Issued: BRT:
At 1 January 2023 M2023F1A1R 2,176,465,802 217,646 192
Issue of new shares upon the IR RERETHRA
exercise of share options i 2,385,500 239 -
At 31 December 2023 1202312 A31H 2,178,851,302 217,885 192
Issue of new shares upon the TR RER TR G
exercise of share options i 138,500 14 -
At 31 December 2024 2024512 A31H 2,178,989,802 217,899 192
Notes: FaE -

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4
October 2018 with an authorised share capital of HK$380,000
divided into 3,800,000,000 shares with a par value of
HK$0.0001 each.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 4

25.

26.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

i During the year ended 31 December 2023, share options
were exercised at a subscription price of HK$2.25 per share
(approximately equivalent to RMB2.00 per share), resulting
in the issue of 2,385,500 ordinary shares of par value of
HK$0.0001 each in the Company. These shares rank pari
passu with other shares in issue in all respect.

ii. During the year ended 31 December 2024, share options
were exercised at a subscription price of HK$2.25 per share
(approximately equivalent to RMB2.00 per share), resulting
in the issue of 138,500 ordinary shares of par value of
HK$0.0001 each in the Company. These shares rank pari
passu with other shares in issue in all respect.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has adopted two share option schemes,
namely pre initial public offering share option scheme (the
“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) and post initial public
offering share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
(collectively referred as the “Schemes”).

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant
to a resolution passed on 7 December 2018 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to eligible employees,
including directors of the Company, its subsidiaries and
consolidated affiliated entities, to subscribe for shares in the
Company.

According to the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme,
options granted must be taken up within 28 days from the
date of grant, upon payment of HK$1.00. The maximum
number of shares, which may be issued upon exercise of all
options granted under the Schemes and any other schemes
of the Group, shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue as at the date on which dealings in the shares
first commence on the Stock Exchange, excluding shares
which may fall to be issued upon the exercise of any over-
allotment option granted by the Company.

25.

26.

EUBRRME @

For the year ended 31 December 2024
E2024F 12 A3 BILFE

NG

FMiaE © (8)

i, REE2023F12A31HILFE @ BB
REAEIR T2, 258 T (KSR B A
R#2.007T) REEITHE - ABAR
A)%%172,385,500/% & A EE0.0001
B2 LR - WERNESTE
HH B BTN Z B RSHAL o

i.  REE2024F12A31BILEE - B
REAEIR T RY2. 258 T (KSR B A
R¥2.007T) REETE - UBAXA
F]3%17138,500% & A% E fE0.0001
B2 LB - WERNES HE
HH BT Z B RFHAL o

B

ARRERAMARBRETE - IS
RAFRERN BRI ((ERAH
BRENBRESE]) NERRFREE
BEsBE & ((RERETE]) (s
~IZEE)) -

BRARBERBRETE

RIER2018F12 A7 B BB — TR
3R IR AN B R A B S AR AR A
B ZEIEEEEEBBEERES
(BEERRA - HNEA B RiRE 5

BEBES)RBBARAIED
WRIE B IR A % & AR B RT &1 A0 15

K R AR AN B HRE
28R MERY - X EAX1.00
BT © REBEZFA B A KBTI E
st &R E@Fﬁ*ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁgﬁiﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ
ERITHRERNEE A XTEEE
R ERFIENEBR AR ZE A D %
TN EN10% @ NEEARFRLEH
LA B RR A AP S T T (£ B ] BEBR 1T R
Bedn o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 434 B %8R 3k M 5+ ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
ZE2024F 12 A BILFE

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

The options may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme at any time during the
exercise period determined by the board of directors, which
shall in any event not be more than ten years from 12 June
2019 (being the date of the Listing).

On 7 December 2018, 135,244,720 options were granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, assuming that the
Capitalisation Issue are completed. The exercise price for
the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is HK$2.25 per share, which is 20% of the final offer
price per share on the date of the Listing.

26.

R8I (4

BRARBERBRETE

BREATNESSEENITEHAST
M EREE R AR EAERET
BIERITE - EmATERBABA
20196128 (B) LM B &) #8511
¢o

MR2018F12A78 » RIBEH XA
BEFBREFIARLENBRES
135,244,72017  BREERMLETE
TR o IRBE X ARSI ERE
SR 2 BIRENTTFEEAER2.25
BT BLETEERSKREEEN

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

Option Date of grant
R REBAH
The Pre-IPO 7 December 2018
Share Option
Scheme 2018%F 12 A7H
B RES

ATBERSAERT 2] 7 December 2018
201812 A7H
7 December 2018
20185 12H7H
7 December 2018
201812 H7H

7 December 2018

2018F12A7H

Vesting period

BEE

7 December 2018
~ 11 July 2019
2018F12A7H
~2019%7H118
7 December 2018
~ 31 December 2020
2018412 A7H
~2020412A31H
7 December 2018
~ 31 December 2021
2018512 H7H
~2021F12A31H
7 December 2018
~ 31 December 2022
201812 A7H
~2022F12A31H
7 December 2018
~ 31 December 2023
20184512 HA7H
~2023%12H31H

China East Education Holdings Limited & FEIRAHBERER A A

20% °

EhEn A

Exercise period

TEHE

12 July 2019
~ 11 June 2029
201947 H12H
~2029F6H11H
31 December 2020
~ 11 June 2029
202012 A31H
~20294%6H11H
31 December 2021
~ 11 June 2029
2021%12H31H
~2029F6H11H
31 December 2022
~ 11 June 2029
202212 A31H
~2029%6H11H
31 December 2023
~ 11 June 2029
202312 A31H
~2029F6H11H

4_-
ﬁ

EFCENE

Percentage of
the options to
be vested
FHEEN
BREASL

10%

10%

10%

10%

10%
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
{ZE2024F 12 A31 BIEFE

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 26. BREGHEI(E

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

il
>A\
5
S
§is
il
=
R
=
<5
pull] ‘[
4',
B
R
i}

(continued)
Percentage of
the options to
Option Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period be vested
FEEN
fB IR B FEE TR BREBDL
7 December 2018 7 December 2018 31 December 2024 10%
~ 31 December 2024 ~ 11 June 2029
2018F12A7H 2018F12A7H 2024F12A31H
~2024412 A31H ~2029%F6 H11H
7 December 2018 7 December 2018 31 December 2025 10%
~ 31 December 2025 ~ 11 June 2029
2018512H7H 2018512 A7H 2025512 A31H
~2025%12 H31H ~20296H11H
7 December 2018 7 December 2018 31 December 2026 10%
~ 31 December 2026 ~ 11 June 2029
2018512 A7H 20185F12A7H 202612 A31H
~20265F12H31H ~2029F6H11H
7 December 2018 7 December 2018 31 December 2027 10%
~ 31 December 2027 ~ 11 June 2029
2018F12A7H 2018 12H7H 202712 A31H
~2027%12 A31H ~2029%6H11H
7 December 2018 7 December 2018 31 December 2028 10%

2018F12A7H

~ 31 December 2028
2018512 A7H
~2028F12A31H

The fair value of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was

~ 11 June 2029
2028F12 A31H
~2029%F6A811H

BRARBEABEREAINAAE

determined at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model (the “Black-Scholes model”).

The Black-Scholes model has been used to estimate the fair
value of the options. The variables and assumptions used in
computing the fair value of the share options are based on the
directors’ best estimate. Expected volatility was determined
by using the historical volatility of comparable company’s
share prices with discounts for lack of marketability. Changes
in variables and assumptions may result in changes in the fair
value of the options.

BTy I B B A Black-ScholesHf
#E B85 ([Black-Scholes#& & |)
EE °

Black-Scholest& #Y F 2k {51 B #E &9
DREME - sTEBREA L BERT
AMEE RRERIDENEENRER
5T o TBEDKRIR(E A AT L A R IR E S
HIRE SR IR AT RESE R - B2
BETR  BEMBEAABESE
TR e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 434 B %8R 3k M 5+ ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
(= 2024F 12 A31 BIEFE

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant to a
resolution passed on 21 May 2019 for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to eligible employees, including directors
of the Company, its subsidiaries and consolidated affiliated

entities, to subscribe for shares in the Company.

According to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the
number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which
options granted and may be granted to any individual in any
12-month period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company’s issued share capital from time to time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding share options granted and yet
to be exercised shall not exceed 30% of the issued share
capital from time to time. The options granted to substantial
shareholders or independent non-executive directors of the
Company in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital
and with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 at the date of
each grant must be approved in advance by the Company’s

shareholders in general meeting.

The options granted must be taken up within 28 days from
the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1.00. The exercise
price is determined by the directors of the Company, and
will not be less than the higher of (i) the par value of the
Company’s shares; (ii) the closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the offer date; and (jii) the average closing price of
the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet for the five business days immediately

preceding the offer date.

On 12 June 2019, 327,000 options were granted under the
Share Option Scheme and the exercise price is HK$11.25

per share.

China East Education Holdings Limited & FEIRAHBERER A A

26. BRESTE(E

FERHERT Sl

AABIRIER2019645 21 BEBH
RERREANERERSE  EZRTR
BAERES (BEART - EKIE
RARGAHBERESR) REAR
AR ©

RIBBRER S - RAMBARER
REFLIEZ A ME—1218 A HRE
[AEfRIE A B 5 K AT BEIR H O B AX
RS R B BT RS T REITHORRD
BETSBEARARTRDEITRA
M1% ° RITEMAA R ERKRTT
EHERER L ERTHNRSBRNEKE
5 R IE TN B B TAANEI30% © &
FTEERRIARRELIFNITES
B B AR RRA01%REE
#8385,000,0007 7T #) B8 A 42 7R 1 Bl
RBERAE AR RAIBERILE -

B BRI AR B BT
28H NERR - B X EALZT1.00/8
T ITEBHARRESET - Wi
TMERARRRMGEE : ((REL
BHEBIASARER EAQER
DU TE K (i) BEE 4 A ER15E
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ROTFHYTE -

R2019F6 128 @ IRIEERELTE
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
E2024F 12 A3 BILFE

26.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continuead)

The Share Option Scheme (continued)

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

26. BREE(E

BT 8 (B)

BN ARBEREE

Option Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period
BRE BHAH SRR TR
The Share 12 June 2019 Immediately vested 12 June 2019
Option Scheme ~ 11 June 2029
Bt 2019F6A128 MARE 2019F6F12H
~2029F6 A 11H
12 June 2019 12 June 2019 12 June 2020
~ 11 June 2020 ~ 11 June 2029
2019F6H12H  2019F6H12H 20206 H12H
~2020F6 H11H ~2029F6 H11H
12 June 2019 12 June 2019 12 June 2021
~ 11 June 2021 ~ 11 June 2029
2019%6H12H  201966H12H 202156 A12H
~202156A11H ~20296 A 11H
* In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair value @

of 327,000 share options granted on the date of Listing was
considered insignificant due to the small volume of the options.

Percentage of
the options to
be vested
SHEEH
BRERSL

33%

33%

34%

RAREERA R ETBHAME
H1327,00007 EREH A R BEER
BREHE MR EBIEK °
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 26. BREE(EZ
The Share Option Scheme (continued) RS (B)
As at 31 December 2024, the number of shares in respect of MR2024F12A31H » BREREZSE
which options had been granted and remained outstanding FTEIE R R T M AR L 2 AR
under the Schemes was 111,904,628 (31 December 2023: Z DB E H111,904,6280% (20235
112,043,128). The following table disclosed movements of 12A31H : 112,043,128%) ° &R
the Company’s options granted under the Schemes for the EEE2024F [22023F 12 A31H 1
years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023: FE - ARAIREBEZETERENE
Mt BEER -
For the year ended 31 December 2024
HZE2024F12831HILEE
QOutstanding Exercised Forfeted  Outstanding
Date of Exercisable Exercise as at during the during the as at
Name of grantee ~ grant period price 1/1/2024 year year 31/12/2024
20245 R20245
1A1R 12A318
EEARE BitiReE AT 1 WATE  RERGTE RERRK B RATHE
HKS
BT
Director
gz
-Lu Zhen 7 December 2018 12 July 2019 ~ 11 June 2029 2.25 654,510 - - 654,510
-E& 18F12A78 201947 A12H~202056A11H
Employees 7 December 2018 12 July 2019 ~ 11 June 2029 225 111,277,438 (138,500) - 111,138,938
&8 018512A78 201947 A12H~202056A11H
12 June 2019 12 June 2019 ~ 11 June 2029 11.25 111,180 = = 111,180
201956A12A 201956 A12H~202946711H
112,043,128 (138,500) = 111,904,628
Exercisable as at 31 December 2024
202412 A31 B A FATME 58,321,456
Weighted average exercise price HK$2.26 HK$2.25 HK$2.26
IMETER 206%T 22587 20687
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 44 Bt 18 3R & Ki:E (@)

26.

For the year ended 31 December 2024
{ZE2024F 12 A31 BIEFE

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 26. BREEI(E
The Share Option Scheme (continueq) RS (B)
For the year ended 31 December 2023
B £2023F12A31HLEE
QOutstanding Exercised Forfeited QOutstanding
Date of Exercisable Exercise asat during the during the asat
Name of grantee ~ grant period price 1/1/2023 year year 31/12/2023
H2023F 2023
1A1A 12R31A
G INGE il AR g RATE  RERTE  RERRK HARITE
HK$
BT
Director
3
- LuZhen 7 December 2018 12 July 2019 ~ 11 June 2029 2.25 872,510 (218,000) - 654,510
-EE 018F12A78 20194 7A120~202056A11H
Employees 7 December 2018 12 July 2019 ~ 11 June 2029 225 114,362,988 (2,167,500) (918,050) 111,277,438
&8 2018F12A7H 201947 A126~2029E6 R 11H
12 June 2019 12 June 2019 ~ 11 June 2029 11.25 111,180 - - 111,180
2019%6A 128 201946/ 1268~2029F6 R 118
115,346,678 (2,385,500) (918,050) 112,043,128
Exercisable as at 31 December 2023
R202BE12A31 BE T 45,064,163
Weighted average exercise price HK$2.26 HK$2.25 HK$2.26
SRR 2.06%T 20587 2.06%T

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the weighted
average closing price of the Company’s shares immediately
before the dates on which the options were exercised was
HK$3.03 per share (2023: HK$6.34 per share).

As at 31 December 2024, the weighted average remaining
contractual lives of the share options is 4.45 years (20283: 5.45
years).

HZE2024%12A31B IEFE » AR
ARG MR BB EEITE B BAT
B Nt F U T B A S ARS.038 T
(20234 : HAR6.3487T) °

MR2024%12 8318 © BIRESRT A

#) IR FHY B4 455 (20234 -
5.45%) o
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26.

27.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continuead)

The Share Option Scheme (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
recognised total expenses of RMB25,100,000 (2023:
RMB32,993,000) in relation to the shares options granted by
the Company under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and
Share Option Scheme.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to owners of the Group, issued share capital,
retained profits and other reserves as disclosed in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

China East Education Holdings Limited & FEIRAHBERER A A

26.

27.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 434 B %8R 3k M 5+ ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
(= 2024F 12 A31 BIEFE

R8I (4
BT3B

REE2024F 128318 IEFE -
AEBHRALIRERNARBES
RN B 6 B B R R 5T B K B R R
EERTHERENAIAEAAR
#25,100,0007T (20234 : AR
32,993,0007T) °

EXEBER

REBEREERUBRAESEER
REARELE R BEE(ERR
P AT B P 1 R R A SRR A [ g
AEENBERBEREOEFERIE T

ek

= °

AEENEAEBRERAERED
RATBEBEOAREER ARG -
ERTRARBF G R E A o

ARRAEFTFFFRIELRERE - F
BB —D  EEEEEAKAK
RESBEAHEBORR - RIBES
MEEER - ARER BB
B BITH R DB D A KRBT
BEREORBEFAFHEREERN
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets PHEE

Financial assets at FVTPL

e mEE
Amortised cost HEHR A
Financial liabilities THEE
Amortised cost B SERR
Lease liabilities HEEE

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
deposits for rental, deposits for utilities and others,
trade and other receivables, other financial assets, time
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
payables and lease liabilities. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management of
the Group manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the management
policies remain unchanged from prior year.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 B #3R K MYz (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

28. €@TH

A ERTEAMER

As at 31 December

AR R(EEFTELF ABE

MW12H31H
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
499,769 364,196
3,247,580 3,315,974
503,436 472,074
1,422,210 1,573,161

B. TREREEBEMBE

AEENTIZeRTABEMR
ERE  KEEREMBERS
B REMEWHIE - Hite
BMEE THER REMA
TFEY  BHREMEMNR
ERHEERE ZEEMTA
MFHBREMERE - B2
ERTEAENRERBRETS
B (B B B A R L Bge)
EERRIMRDHESEAR - F
[88 20 fa] B A % 55 2 B B0 BRSR 3K
RTIX - AEEEEEEER
ERZERAR - UHEREEE
BIHBUEE R - BZES
RTABRAORERKEEBR
B L EFEERFAE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 BI #3RR i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

B. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

() Market risk

(a)

28. &RIEA (&

B. ZmEREIRBZFNMBERGE

() FEER

Currency risk (a) EXEE
Certain of the Group’s time deposits, cash rEBETESE
and cash equivalents, other receivables, HKoBHekBEeE
other financial assets measured at FVTPL B - AR
and other payables are denominated in H - AR BEE
HK$ and US$, which expose the Group sV ABEmzE
to foreign currency risk attributable to the e EERAM
fluctuations in the exchange rates of US$/ FES SRIB A T K
HK$ against RMB, the functional currency ELAHE FAE
of the respective group entities. EBRREZET,/ B
THAREBISE
EEENEEE 8
B 3O &) 38 K A9 A
Kb o
The carrying amounts of the Group’s REEBH - A&
monetary assets and monetary liabilities at EBEERE
the reporting date that are denominated in BEZEREENI
foreign currencies are as follows: BEEHE ¢
Assets Liabilities
BE aE
2024 2023 2024 2023
20244 20234 20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTRT AR%TR AREBTET
HK$ BT 26,859 322,768 330 170
us$ ET 1,114,026 1,117,588 - -

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure when
the need arises.

China East Education Holdings Limited & FEIRAHBERER A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 B #3R K MYz (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28. ©RITHAZE

B. Financial risk management objectives and policies B. SmEAREEBEZEREEKE)
(continued)
() Market risk (continued) ) TERERE(E)
(a) Currency risk (continued) (a) E¥EE(E)
Sensitivity analysis HREZE T
The Group is mainly exposed to the A& EF E M
fluctuation of relevant foreign currencies N H AN RER

against RMB.

The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 5% (2023: 5%) increase
and decrease in RMB against the relevant
foreign currencies. 5% (2023: 5%) is
the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to the key
management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the end of the reporting
date for a 5% (2023: 5%) change in foreign
currency rates. The analysis illustrates the
impact for a 5% (2023: 5%) strengthening
of RMB against the relevant currencies. For
a 5% (2023: 5%) weakening of RMB against
the relevant currencies, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the profit.

HK$ impact
BT E

2024
20244

RMB’000

ARBTT ARETTT

Decrease in post-tax F R A RE 5,

profit for the year ~ SMNEFHES%
asaresult ofa5%  {FH1& =T
strengthening of N

RMB against the
foreign currencies

(995)

2023
20234
RMB’000

(12,097)

20244
RMB’000

B EKRER

TR A EEY
R AR SN
B 1% 0 X 5%
(20234 : 5%) 2
BRE - 5% (2023
F:5%) BAEE
BB ABRNIHKE
SN EE [ B8 BT 5 B A
BREEHLE X
& I8 B Y H)E [E R
ATRE IR A B A
PR R - SRR E
DI EBFEE AR L
BAINETENE
BEIEE - WIRMNEE
EX75% (2023
F o 5%) HEEH IR
SHIRIRE EITH
B DMBREA
RN AREE A
E5% (20234 :
5%) B2 & o i
AR S HEEK
B7{E5% (20234
5%) Bl ¥ i@ K E
g%%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ&Z%

US$ impact
ExgE
2024 2023
20234

RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETT

(41,776)

(41,910)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 BI #3RR i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

B. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

()

(i)

Market risk (continued)

(b)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to lease liabilities.
The Group is also exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk through the impact of rate
changes on cash and cash equivalents. The
Group cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of interest
rates on cash and cash equivalents and
time deposits.

The Group will continue to monitor the
exposure on cash flow interest rate risk
and will consider hedging the interest rate
should the need arise. In the management’s
opinion, the Group does not have material
interest rate risk exposure and hence no
sensitivity analysis is presented.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk

which will cause a financial loss to the Group is

arising from the amount of each class of financial

assets as disclosed in the consolidated statement

of financial position. The Group does not hold any

collateral or other credit enhancements to cover

its credit risks associated with its financial assets.

China East Education Holdings Limited & FEIRAHBERER A A

28. &RIEA (&

B. ZmEREIRBZFNMBERGE

() R R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 44 Bt 18 3R & Ki:E (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

B. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continueq)

Trade receivables

For trade receivables with gross carrying amount
of RMB63,323,000 (2023: RMB48,351,000),
the Group has applied the simplified approach
in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at
lifetime ECL. The ECL on trade receivables are
assessed individually, based on the past default
experience of the debtor, general economic
conditions of the industry in which the debtors
operate and an assessment of both the current
as well as the forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort at the end
of each year.

The Group has concentration of credit risk
as 30.50% (2023: 38.80%) of the total trade
receivables were due from the PRC government
as at 31 December 2024. The Group’s remaining
customers were mainly the corporate customers,
and individually contributed less than 10% of the
total trade receivables of the Group.

In the opinion of management, the Group has no
significant credit risk for the receivables from the
PRC government and counterparties with good
reputation and credit records.

(= 2024512 A31 HILEFE

28. £RIEA (&

B.

CREREREARRBER(E)

(i)

=B R B EHG (B

€. 1 ¢ ¢

HEMBEAARK
63,323,0007T (20234 :
AR #48,351,0007T) /Y
BHRYHIEMS @ A&
EEHACEEN BWmE
AR FOFRM L 7 0E 5T
EEmAPEREEBE
KB E2ERE - RIBEBA
MAERBNKE  EBAL
ERTIET RN — RN
AR FEREFEIARN

HAERARHKE HHER
T RIS E A A K ATRE

HEMNFHEERFGE
FRWKENFAREERES

B

2024512 A31H » &
SEBESEWRKIERE
FH30.50% (20234 :
38.80%) A& FE U+ B BT
B MAREFEER
EERR - REEMHHR
BEXEBARREF A
AARBPEAREES
JE U FRIB AR EE Y 10 % BA
‘|T °

EEERR  AEEEBERE
Yorh BB AT SRR I S E K
EERBRAXSHTAR
REFMEEREERLE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 434 B %8R 3k M 5+ ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
(= 2024F 12 A31 BIEFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

B. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk with the
corporate customers, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals.
Before accepting any new customer, the Group
uses an internal credit scoring system to assess
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts.

The management of the Group believes that
the Group’s credit risk in trade receivables is
significantly reduced.

Deposits and other receivables

The Group assessed the loss allowances for
deposits for rental, deposits for utilities and
others, deposit for acquisition of a subsidiary
and other receivables with gross carrying
amounts of RMB18,919,000, RMB2,866,000,
RMB10,000,000 and RMB98,747,000 (2023:
RMB19,425,000, RMB3,392,000, nil and
RMB98,052,000), respectively on 12m ECL basis.

For deposits for rental and deposits for utilities
and others, the management of the Group
has taken into account the historical default
experience and forward-looking information,
as appropriate. There had been no significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

China East Education Holdings Limited & FEIRAHBERER A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 44 Bt 18 3R & Ki:E (@)

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

B. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continueq)

Deposits and other receivables (continueq)

Other receivables mainly consisted of interest
receivables from time deposits and bank
balances, advance to staff, deposit for
development and refundable deposit. For
interest receivables from time deposits and bank
balances, the management considered those
banks are with good reputation and transaction
record. For advance to staff, the management
considered those staff are with good credit
records and will usually pay back timely. For
deposit for development, the management
considered the deposits paid to the local
government authority which has good credit
records and will be repaid based on the progress
of the project development.

The ECL on other receivables are assessed
individually based on historical settlement records
and past default experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current
as well as the forecast direction of conditions at
the end of each year. The management believes
that there are no significant increase in credit risk
of these amounts since initial recognition and the
Group provided impairment based on 12m ECL.

For the year ended 31 December 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 434 B %8R 3k M 5+ ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
(= 2024F 12 A31 BIEFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

B. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continueq)

Deposits and other receivables (continueq)

For the years ended 31 December 2024 and
2023, the Group assessed the ECL for other
receivables are insignificant and thus no loss
allowance was recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents/time deposits/
other financial assets measured at amortised
cost

The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents, time
deposits and other financial assets measured at
amortised cost with gross carrying amounts of
RMB1,466,863,000, RMB1,536,862,000 and
RMB50,000,000 (2023: RMB1,515,313,000,
RMB1,551,441,000 and RMB80,000,000),
respectively, is limited because the counterparties
are reputable financial institutions or related
parties. The management are of the opinion
that the average loss rate is insignificant and no
impairment was provided at the end of each year.

China East Education Holdings Limited & FEIRAHBERER A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 B #3R K MYz (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28. &@ITA(E
B. Financial risk management objectives and policies B. SmEAREEBEZEREEKE)
(continued)
(i) Liquidity Risk (i)  mEEZ/EE
In the management of the liquidity risk, the EEBRSHESRERF
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash H - AEEEERERE
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the BERAETNELNEED
management to finance the Group’s operations RERBEESHIFE S RIR
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash SEEYKE - WRIEKIR
flows. The Group regularly reviews its major ERERBNTE - A&
funding positions to ensure that it has adequate ExHBEEEZEEeMR
financial resources in meeting its financial M BERER R EE
obligations. TR EL R T o
The following is the maturity analysis for financial LTAREEMFEEH
liabilities held by the Group which is based on BENIEE SN (ER
undiscounted remaining contractual obligations: RITBRBTEOEMD) -
Weighted ~ On demand Total
average  orless than 1to 2t over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1year 2years 5years 5years halances amounts
FE%, FEH

DEFSHE  1EMR 1528 EL ] L
% RBOD  RWBOO  RVBODO  RMBOO  RWBUD  RMBON
AR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR ARRTR ARRTR

At 31 December 2024 HO04EIRRIE
Taeandoterpayebles  EHREMERTE - 503436 - - - 50343 50343
Lease libltes iEEL 80 350341 276,39 624,606 00012 1982051 1422210

83,117 216,392 624,606 100012 245687 1,026,646

At 31 December 2023 103%12R31H
Tradeand o payables  ERREMERE - 472,074 - - - 472,074 470,074
Lease iabes HEaE 82 348548 P44 00,121 799105 2204216 1573161

820622 304,442 10,12 799106 2676200 20423

Annual Report 2024 &* =2 = [IF F3R 287



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 BI #3RR i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HZE2024F12 A31 ALLEE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28. &@TA(E
C.  Fair value measurements of financial instruments C. SwMIAZARBEE
() Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are () IHAEEEEEL LN EE
measured at fair value on a recurring basis B A EE SR EES
A 1BE
Some of the Group’s financial assets are REFF D EHBMEERE
measured at fair value at the end of each wEHKRIRA AR EER
reporting period. The following table gives £ o NREBILEBEEZ
information about how the fair values of these ZEMEEAAEBENS
financial assets are determined (in particular, the = (LE R G ERE
valuation technique(s) and inputs used). KA SBIR) E R} -
Relationship of
Fair value Significant unobservable
DARE Fairvalue  Valuation technique(s) unobservable input(s) to fair value
Financial 3112/2024  31/12/2023  hierarchy  and key input(s) input(s) EANTHE
assets 20245 3%  ARBE  RERER EXTTEE  BAIBE
TREE 12A31R 12A318  E# BREAZRE LN ¢ MEEZBE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR
Unquoted fund 388,007 352,446 Level 2 Net asset value as published ~ N/A N/A
investment (note ) by the fund manager
EBE FZf  ESEELHOREMEE  TER TEA
REES (3H) M
Structured deposits 111,762 11,750 Level3 Discounted cash flow-method ~ Expected retum  The higher the
was used/expected retum rates range expected retum,
rates from1.40% o the higher the fair
2.81% (2023: value, vice versa
0.45%) per (note i
annum
BEIER F=H  FRUEREREL/BEH  NT140%E  BHEHER
[E:% 281%(023% :  AnEERS
045%) MBS RZIA (M)
EREEHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 B #3R K MYz (&)

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

C. Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(continued)

()

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(continueq)

Notes:

The fair value of unquoted fund investment is
determined based on the net asset value price
multiplied by the quantity of fund shares held by
the Group.

i At 31 December 2024, if the estimated return
was 5% (2023: 5%) higher/lower and the other
variables were held constant, the total carrying
amount of other financial assets measured at
FVTPL would increase/decrease by RMB47,000/
RMB47,000 (2023: RMB5,000/RMB5,000),
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2024
EHZE2024 512 831 AILFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 BI #3RR i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

C. Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(continued)

(i)

(i)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurerments
of financial assets

The following table presents the reconciliation of
Level 3 measurements of other financial assets
during both years:

At 1 January 2023

Purchases of other financial assets
Redemptions of other financial assets
Gains on other financial assets

At 31 December 2023

Purchases of other financial assets
Redemptions of other financial assets
Gains on other financial assets

At 31 December 2024

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3
during the year.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are recorded at amortised cost

The management of the Group considers that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate
to their fair values at the end of each reporting
period.

China East Education Holdings Limited & FEIRAHBERER A A

28. &RIEA (&

o)
K>

72023F1A1H

BEHMSREE
EOH MR & E
H e mEERs
2023F12A31H
BEHMERIEE
EOHEMS RS E
E o s E WS
R2024F12831H

(i)

BTAZAREEFEE

BEZRAAEETEL
EHEEZ LK

TREGINMIEFRIRE
=R ARBEFENTR
BEZHK

RMB’000
AEBTT

293,929
605,000
(899,242)

12,063

11,750

1,374,000
(1,288,357)
14,369

111,762

FARESHEER AR
BHE=R -

KUBEHHAAR 2 B E
ERTHRENAAEE

AEBEEERR N
B BEHEKR P AE KA
AENEHEERSHE
EORmEEENESHRE
HIRW AR EERE °
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30.

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

29. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 29. EREE
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2024 2023
20244 20234F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREFTT
Capital expenditure contracted for but ~ FLUKEEM ¥ LR EDFT 4
not provided in the consolidated BRRERE M B HRES
financial statements in respect sHEB BN E AR
of acquisition of property and
equipment 152,099 485,613
RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 30. MEEBELEEENYHR
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRAFRAEEREZBIEERE
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non- W (RIERE MIFRSEE) - @
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are EEYMEANEEREREMRED
those for which cash flow were, or future cash flow will be, REBARIBEREBNAEBLREIR
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash EMERANDEARERBMEERN
flows as cash flows from financing activities. REMEMEE -
Lease Dividend
liabilities payable Total
HEAE FEfTRR S &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARBFT
At 1 January 2023 F22023%F1 A1H 1,795,913 - 1,795,913
Financing cash flows BERERE (386,838) (394,892) (781,730)
Dividend declared EEIRIEE = 394,892 394,892
New leases entered HETA AL 206,775 = 206,775
Interest expenses FERAZ 139,301 - 139,301
Termination of lease agreements & [F A& 5% (181,990) = (181,990)
At 31 December 2023 142023512 A31H 1,573,161 - 1,573,161
Financing cash flows BERERE (360,040 (396,080) (756,120)
Dividend declared EEIRIE = 396,080 396,080
New leases entered T AHAY 215,467 - 215,467
Interest expenses M ERY 118,041 = 118,041
Termination of lease agreements & IF &= (124,419) - (124,419)
At 31 December 2024 2024%12 A31H 1,422,210 - 1,422,210
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 434 B %8R 3k M 5+ ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024
ZE2024F 12 A BILFE

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(i) Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, the Group has
following transactions and balances with related parties:

Name of the related parties

RS B

Anhui Xinhua University

(R L)

(“Anhui Xinhua University”)

ZHRETESE (R BERR])

Anhui Xinhua Real Estate Co., Ltd.

(RRFEFMERRAT)

(“Anhui Xinhua Real Estate”)

TR ERMEER AR ((REFERHE])

Xinhua Holdings Group

MEEREE

Anhui Xinhua Changjiang Commercial Management
Co., Ltd. (RHFER ITHELLEEBRAQA)
(“Anhui Xinhua Changjiang”)

THHERIBELCLERARD
([ ZBHERT])

China East Education Holdings Limited & FEIRAHBERER A A

31. FEBLIXS

i) BREEFHREEMBEE DM
BEI  AEEEREY TR
AR5 R b8k

Relationship with the Company
BAA N B B R

Controlled by Mr. Wu Junbao
R RERA A1

Controlled by Mr. Wu Wei
R RIEEES

Controlled by Mr. Xiao Guoqging
X H BB S AR

Controlled by Mr. Wu Wei
RREFEES



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 B #3R K MYz (&)

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continuead)

(i)

Save for those disclosed in other notes to the

consolidated financial statements, the Group entered

into the following transactions and balance with the

related parties:

Name of related parties

o)yt

Anhui Xinhua University
ZRFTES

Xinhua Holdings Group
MEERER

Anhui Xinhua Changjiang
TR ERT

Anhui Xinhua Real Estate

RRIEEE

Nature of transactions

REME

Service income

ARFEHA

Interest income (Notes 7 and 20)

A B (Bt 517 5% 20)
Rental expenses

HERMX

31.

Interest expenses on lease

liability
HEAENN SR
Lease liability (note)
HEaE M)

Note: As at 31 December 2024, the Group has the right-of-
use asset and lease liability amounted to RMB741,000
and RMB611,000, respectively, for the lease
agreement of the use of offices with Anhui Xinhua Real

Estate.

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

RBAXS (&

(i) BR&RE B HMREMMEMEK
BEI  AEEEEY TR
AT R M ek -

Year ended/as at 31 December
HZ12A318 1L FE 712831H

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT
1,135 42
2,854 5,342

402 302

71 91

611 1,180

PizE : P20245F12H31H » K&
Bt B R EE B M E R 3L
BEARAE 2 &R -
BECHAEAERHERE
DRl B ARE741,0007T K&
AER#611,0007T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
EHZE2024F12 B31 AILFE

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 31. BEARE (E
(i)  Compensation of key management personnel (iy FEEEABFH
The remuneration of directors of the Company and RARREZEERAEEHEMEE
other members of key management of the Group EBEABRAFENH M
during the year was as follows: T ¢

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLLEE
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTT

Short-term benefits 72 HAte A 5,235 5,051
Retirement benefits scheme RINE R B K
contribution 220 116
Equity-settled share-based AR A E R I
payments expense TR 445 585
5,900 5,752

294 China East Education Holdings Limited «" FEERE S HEZERER D
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

32.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF

THE COMPANY

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

December 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

HELRAR

Anhui Xinhua Education (formerly known
as Anhui Xinhua Education Development
Co., Ltd,)

ZENAHE GIRZANEAEER
BRAT)

China East Education Investment Limited

FERAHRREBRAR

China Xinhua Vocational Education Holdings
Limited
PENEREHRERERAR

Xinhua Chuangzhi
e

Hefei Xinhua East Education Investment
Co., Ltd.
ARFERAHEREERAR

Hefei Xinhua Xueli Education
Investment Co., Ltd.
AEHEL NHEREBRLF

Hefei Xinhua Zhiyuan Education
Investment Co., Ltd.
ARHERRHERERRAF

Sichuan Xinhua Jinjin Education
Investment Co., Ltd.

R RBERERRAR]

Place/country

and date of
establishment/
incorporation
R/ AL
e/ BRR A

30 March 2004
PRC
2004434308
H

19 October 2018
BVI
2018F10A19A
REAARES
10 August 2018
Hong Kong
201858H10H
Bl

28 August 2018
PRC

20188 A28H
i

6 November 2016
PRC

2016511 A6H
H

6 November 2016
PRC

2016F11 A6H
H

6 November 2016
PRC

2016F11 A6H
H

29 May 2018
PRC
2018F5H29H
H

Issued and fully
paid share/
registered capital
BETRER
Rin/ERER

RMB100,000,000
ARE
100,000,00070

US$1
E

HKS1
BT

RMB5,000,000
ARH5,000,0007

RMB1,000,000
AR#1,000,0007C

RMB1,000,000
AR%1,000,0007

RMB1,000,000
AR%1,000,0007

RMB50,000,000
AEH50,000,0007C

32.

KRR EEMERRNFE

MR2024F N 2023F12A31H » AR
RIEEMBARMFBFNT

Equity interest
attributable to the Group
as at 31 December
FEERM2A31A
AR
2024 2023
2024%F  2023F
% %
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

Principal activities
and country of operation
IREBRBEER

Education Investment

BERE

Investment holding

RERR

Investment holding

RERR

Education Investment

YERE

Education Investment

YERE

Education Investment

BERE

Education Investment

BERE

Education Investment

BERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 BI #3RR i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 32. RQBREXEMELRMFEE

THE COMPANY (continued)

Place/country
and date of Issued and fully Equity interest
establishment/ paid share/  attributable to the Group
incorporation registered capital as at 31 December  Principal activities
Name of subsidiary XL/ AR BREIRAR KEEM2A31E  and country of operation
MEARARE W/ BRRAH &n,/ wEA ey 3 FEEBREEAR
2024 2023
024F  2003F
% %
Chengdu Tianji Education Management 16 April 2001 RMB600,000 100 100 Education Investment
Co., Ltd. PRC ARE600,0007T HRRE
RBREHRERERAR 200154416
t
Tianjin City East Haihui Human Resources 22 June 2020 RMB10,000,000 100 100 Education Investment
Management Co., Ltd PRC AE#10,000,0007C YERE
RERNBEANERERERAT 200056228
th
Sichuan Xinhua Weilai Vocational Skills 6 November 2020 RMB50,000,000 100 100 Education Investment
Training School Co., Ltd. PRC AR #50,000,00070 HERE
BEFERRBEREEISRERAE 2020911 A6H
t
Shanghe County East Xinhua Education & 30 March 2020 RMB50,000,000 100 100 Education Investment
Training School Co., Ltd. PRC AR #50,000,0007C YERE
AAGR AN EHE I ERERA 202063 A30A
HE
Anhui Wontone Automobile Maintenance 19 March 2007 RMB30,000,000 100 100 Provision of automobile related
Institute PRC AR #30,000,00070 educational services in the
THEREZEER 2007537 19A PRC
e R B R E T EENHE
oS
Anhui New East Advanced Culinary 30 October 2016 RMB1,500,000 100 100 Provision of culinary related
Technical School PRC AR®1,500,0007 educational services in the
ZENRATARARIER 20164104308 PRC
(formerly known as Anhui New East = RAEREEZ BN HE
Culinary Technical School 03
AR RAZERIER)
Anhui New East Culinary Institute 2 March 2006 RMB40,000,000 100 100 Provision of culinary related
ZEHR A THEEER PRC AR #40,000,0007 educational services in the
2006%3A2A PRC
i REEREETHERNYE
oS
Anhui Xinhua Computer Institute 28 December 2004 RMBS5,000,000 100 100 Provision of internet technology
ZHNEBHELER PRC AR%5,000,0007 related educational services
200412 28R in the PRC
il FAF EIR (B2 B B AR A
HHE R

China East Education Holdings Limited & FEIRAHBERER A A



Name of subsidiary

HEAREHE

Anhui Xinhua Advanced Technical School

Co., Ltd.
CHNER AR IERER AT

(formerly known as Anhui Xinhua

Technical School Co., Ltd.

AERHERTERBRAF)
Beiing Wisezone Educational Technology

Co., Ltd.
I REEERAERITERAR

Chengdu New East Advanced Culinary

Technical School Co., Ltd.

RBHRT AR AR T BRARAA)

(formerly known Chengdu City

Place/country

and date of
establishment/
incorporation
R/ SRR
e/ BRRAH

10 April 2017
PRC
2017848108
HE

1 November 2005
PRC
2005F11A1H
il

17 April 2018
PRC
2018F4R17H
i

32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

Issued and fully
paid share/
registered capital
BETRER
Rip/ AR

RMB1,500,000
ARE1,500,0007

RMB2,550,000
ARH2,550,0007

RMB1,000,000
AR#1,000,0007C

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 475 B #3R K MYz (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

Equity interest

attrioutable to the Group
as at 31 December
REEM2A318

el AR

2024 2023

20245 2023

% %

100 100

100 100

100 100

32. ARRTEMBRARNEEE

Principal activities
and country of operation

Provision of internet technology
related educational services
in the PRC

AR EIR (B2 G B AR A
4B k%

Provision of data technology
related educational services
in the PRC

R EIR (RS ER R AR
HER

Provision of culinary related
educational services in the
PRC

REEREETERNSE

Longauanyi District New East Culinary 5
Technical School Co., Ltd AR T
ERBERFRATHRIZENERAR)
Chengdu New East Culinary Vocational 14 January 2003
Training School Co., Ltd. PRC
KRN R RAE I ERAR AR
(formerly known as Chengdu New East i

RMB3,500,000 100 100 Provision of culinary related
AR3,500,0007C educational services in the
200314148 PRC
RAER R RN AE

Culinary School BTN .7 TELE) o
Chengdu Wontone Automobile Vocational 19 March 2010 RMB1,000,000 100 100 Provision of automobile related
Training School Co., Ltd. PRC AR%1,000,0007C educational services in the
RBBRAERIBERRERERAR  2010F3A19A PRC
(formerly known as Sichuan Wontone ks RAERE R SERENAE
Automobile Vocational Training Institute %
AR B R R 2
Changsha New East Culinary Institute 12 September 2002 RMB1,600,000 100 100 Provision of culinary related
ROFRA 2SR PRC AR%1,600,0007C educational services in the
2002F9A12H PRC
e R EREE RS

Bts
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 32. RQBREXEMELRMFEE

THE COMPANY (continued)

Place/country
and date of Issued and fully Equity interest
establishment/ paid share/  attributable to the Group
incorporation registered capital asat 31 December  Principal activities
Name of subsidiary XL/ AR BREIRAR KEEM2A31E  and country of operation
=N W/ BRRAH Rip/ERER ey 3 FEEBREEAR
2024 2023
024F  2003F
% %
Chongqing City New East Culinary 12 March 2008 RMB500,000 100 100 Provision of culinary related
Vocational Training Institute PRC AR#500,0007T educational services in the
ERTHMRA ERESESR 2008 3A 128 PRC
t REBREETHEENSE
oS
Guangzhou Gity Panyu District Wontone 4 July 2011 RMB500,000 100 100 Provision of automobile related
Automobile Vocational Training School PRC AR®500,0007 educational services in the
BNTEBRSRERTEIER 201157 A4H PRC
il REEREETEERNYE
oS
Guangzhou Gity Panyu District New East 17 February 2009 RMB500,000 100 100 Provision of culinary related
Culinary Vocational Training School PRC AR®500,0007 educational services in the
BN ESRIRI T EBFEIER 2009527178 PRC
i REEREETHERNYE
oS
Guiyang City Xinhua Computer Secondary 10 July 2007 RMB500,000 100 100 Provision of internet technology
Vocational School CO., Ltd. PRC AR®500,0007 related educational services
B EE T EREERERAT] 200757 A10A inthe PRC
i A LR B BRI R
HHE R
Guiyang New East Advanced Culinary 8 December 2016 RMB500,000 100 100 Provision of culinary related
Technical School PRC AR®500,0007 educational services in the
ERFRA T ARARIER 2016512A8A PRC
(formerly known Guiyang New East = RAEREEZ BN HE
Culinary Technical School 03
AIBEGRA ZARIER)
Guiyang New East Culinary Institute 28 December 2007 RMB500,000 100 100 Provision of culinary services in
EBHRA T 2R PRC AE#500,0007 the PRC
2007512/28H R B R AR
t
Guizhou Xinhua Computer Institute 11 July 2005 RMB?1,000,000 100 100 Provision of internet technology
EMFEERER PRC AR%1,000,0007 related educational services
2005%7A11H in the PRC
i A LR B SR IR
HHE R
Guangzhou City New East Culinary 17 February 2009 RMB500,000 100 100 Provision of culinary related
Vocational Training School Co., Ltd. PRC AR#500,0007 educational services in the
EMTHRA T RS ERER AR 2009527178 PRC
i R EIR T SRR T 5

China East Education Holdings Limited & FEIRAHBERER A A
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32.

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HZE20245F12 A31 ALLEE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 32. ADBXEMELAMFEE

THE COMPANY (continued)

Place/country
and date of Issued and fully Equity interest
establishment/ paid share/  attributable to the Group
incorporation registered capital as at 31 December  Principal activities
Name of subsidiary XL/ AR AL BEIRAR KREEM2A31E  and country of operation
i} yNGES %,/ EXR A Rip/ AR R e IEXBREZER
2024 2023
20245 2023F
% %
Hangzhou City Yuhang District 5 July 2015 RMB600,000 100 100 Provision of culinary related
New East Culinary School PRC AR®600,0007 educational services in the
N RMBIR T ZEER 2015%7R58 PRC
i R EREEZIERNAE
FR#%
Henan Xinhua Computer Institute 7 April 2003 RMB1,000,000 100 100 Provision of internet technology
AENEERER PRC AR%1,000,0007 related educational services
2003F4A7H in the PRC
i R B Rt R B AR H R
B RS
Hunan Wontone Automobile Vocational 10 May 2010 RMB500,000 100 100 Provision of automobile related
Training School PRC AR#500,0007 educational services in the
HEERERREIER 201065A10A PRC
(formerly known as Hunan Wontone ks RPEREESERENAE
Automobile Repair Vocational 5
Training School
AR ERREREEIER)
Hubei New East Culinary Vocational Training 12 March 2013 RMB900,000 100 100 Provision of culinary related
School 2013%3A12H AR#900,0007 educational services in the
WA RA T AR EIER i PRC
R ERE RTINS
FR#%
Jiangsu New East Culinary Training School 12 April 2002 RMB500,000 100 100 Provision of culinary related
IR 2RI ER PRC AR500,0007C educational services in the
200254 A12H PRC
P R EREETIERNAE
FR#%
Jiangxi Nanchang New East Culinary 14 March 2005 RMB1,800,000 100 100 Provision of culinary related
Secondary Vocational School PRC AR1,800,0007C educational services in the
TREERRTRATEER 200543A14A PRC
i R EREEZIERNAE
FR#%
Jiangxi Nanchang Xinhua Computer 22 March 2005 RMB2,600,000 100 100 Provision of internet technology
Secondary Vocational School PRC AR%2,600,0007 related educational services
TREENEEMTIEN 200543A22A in the PRC
i R B Rt 6 B AR R

MBERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 32. RQBREXEMELRMFEE

THE COMPANY (continued)

Place/country
and date of Issued and fully Equity interest
establishment/ paid share/  attributable to the Group
incorporation registered capital asat 31 December  Principal activities
Name of subsidiary XL/ AR BREIRAR KEEM2A31E  and country of operation
MEARARE W/ BRRAH &n,/ wEA ey 3 FEEBREEAR
2024 2023
024F  2003F
% %
Jiangxi Wontone Advanced Automabile 13 July 2015 RMB500,000 100 100 Provision of automobile related
Technical School Co., Ltd. PRC AR#500,0007T educational services in the
IRBRESARTIER 201567 A13A PRC
g REEREETEEENSE
oS
Nanjing Culinary 16 July 2007 RMB300,000 100 100 Provision of culinary related
R PRC AR%300,0007 educational services in the
200747 16H PRC
il REEREETHERNYE
oS
Nanjing Xinhua Computer Institute Institute 15 December 2004 RMB3,390,000 100 100 Provision of internet technology
Co., Ltd. PRC AR%3,390,0007 related educational services
AR EENZEERERAR 2004F12A150 in the PRC
il FAF EIR (B2 B B AR AR
HHE R
Shandong New East Technical School 28 February 2020 RMB3,000,000 100 100 Provision of culinary related
Co., Ltd. PRC AR%3,000,0007 educational services in the
WRFEHRIERERAT 200052285 PRC
il RAEREETHERNSE
oS
Shenyang New East Culinary School 14 December 2010 RMB500,000 100 100 Provision of culinary related
Co., Ltd. PRC AR%500,0007 educational services in the
EEN RN RHERERAT] 20106127148 PRC
il RAEREETHERNYE
oS
Shanxi Xinhua Computer Vocational 19 August 2005 RMB1,000,000 100 100 Provision of internet technology
Training School PRC AR%1,000,0007C related educational services
Wi L e 3l 2005487 19A in the PRC
i A LR B BRI R
HHE R
Shandong Xinhua Computer Institute 27 May 2003 RMB3,000,000 100 100 Provision of internet technology
Co., Ltd. PRC AR%3,000,0007 related educational services
WRHFEZHERARRNA 2003F5R27A in the PRC
(formerly known as Shandong Xinhua i PR R AR RS

Computer Institute
AR EE RER)

China East Education Holdings Limited & FEIRAHBERER A A
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HZE20245F12 A31 ALLEE

32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 32. ADBXEMELAMFEE

THE COMPANY (continued)

Place/country
and date of Issued and fully Equity interest
establishment/ paid share/  attributable to the Group
incorporation registered capital as at 31 December  Principal activities
Name of subsidiary XL/ AR AL BEIRAR KREEM2A31E  and country of operation
i} yNGES %,/ EXR A Rip/ AR R e IEXBREZER
2024 2023
20245 2023F
% %
Shaanxi New East Culinary Training 30 August 2011 RMB500,000 100 100 Provision of culinary related
School Co., Ltd. PRC AR®500,0007 educational services in the
REH R A R BB R AR 201158A30H PRC
(formerly known as Shaanxi New East ks RPER R BN E
Culinary Training School %
ATRRERT R A TSR ER)
Shanghai Xinman Culinary Training Co., Ltd. 11 September 2013 RMB3,000,000 100 100 Provision of culinary related
ez EIER AR PRC AR%3,000,0007 educational services in the
2013F9A11H PRC
i R EREE RS
5
Shijiazhuang New East 20 May 2005 RMB2,000,000 100 100 Provision of culinary related
Secondary Vocational School PRC ARE2,000,0007C educational services in the
RRENRATEELER 2005%5A20A PRC
i R EREETERNAE
5
Shijiazhuang Xinhua Computer School 17 July 2005 RMB2,000,000 100 100 Provision of internet technology
BEREEERER PRC AR%2,000,0007C related educational services
2005%7R17H in the PRC
e A EIR (B2 G B AR A
4B k%
Sichuan Xinhua Computer Institute 25 May 2004 RMB3,500,000 100 100 Provision of internet technology
M FEERER PRC AR%3,500,0007 related educational services
20045250 in the PRC
e A EIR (B2 G B AR A
4B k%
Suzhou City New East Vocational 16 December 2015 RMB500,000 100 100 Provision of culinary related
Training School PRC AR#500,0007 educational services in the
MR A TR ER 2015%12/16H PRC
i R EREEZIERNAE
5
Xuzhou New East Culinary Vocational 13 September 2017 RMB500,000 100 100 Provision of culinary related
Training School Co., Ltd. PRC AR#500,0007 educational services in the
NIRRT R ERERAA 201759A13A PRC
i RPEREEZIERNAE

Bts
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

THE COMPANY (continued)

Name of subsidiary

MEBARLHE

Xian New East Culinary Technical School
Co., Ltd.
BEHRA AR IERERAR

Yunnan New East Culinary Vocational
Training School
SRR S AREEIER

Zhengzhou Gity New East Culinary Vocational
Skills Training School Co. Ltd.

TR R RE R ERBR A
(formerly known as Zheng Zhou City New
East Culinary Vocational Training School
AIBEMN TR A T EREETIER)

Zhengzhou Wontone Automobile Vocational
Training School Co., Ltd.

PSR EREE ERAR LA
(formerly known as Zhengzhou City
Wontone Automobile Vocational
Training School
ARENERAERFEIER)

Beijing Langjie Technology Co., Ltd.

ERBENRERAR

Tianjin Langjie Technology Co., Ltd.
RERREREBRAR

Chengdu Oumandi Vocational Skills Training
School Co., Ltd.
KRN & B R BR R BB R AR

32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF

Place/country

and date of Issued and fully
establishment/ paid share/
incorporation registered capital
R/ FEER BETRER
%,/ BXRAH Rip/ERER
22 May 2020 RMB500,000
PRC AR®500,0007
2020654228

Gl

14 February 2012 RMB500,000
PRC AR®500,0007
2012427148

Gl

26 December 2008 RMB500,000
PRC AR%500,0007
200812 A26H

il

12 March 2009 RMB2,000,000
PRC AR%2,000,0007
2009437128

el

28 September 2006 RMB20,000,000
PRC AR#20,000,0007
200649288

el

16 July 2019 RMB5,000,000
PRC AR%5,000,0007
20197 A 16H

il

4 September 2019 RMB1,000,000
PRC AR%1,000,0007
2019%9A4A

e

China East Education Holdings Limited & FEIRAHBERER A A

Equity interest

attributable to the Group
as at 31 December
REEM2A318
JEfh R AR
2024 2023
20245 2023%F
% %
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
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32. ARRTEMBRARNEEE

Principal activities
and country of operation
TREBREAZER

Provision of culinary related
educational services in the
PRC

REBREETHEENSE
03

Provision of culinary related
educational services in the
PRC

REEREETHERNSE
03

Provision of culinary related
educational services in the
PRC

REEREETERNYE
03

Provision of automobile related
educational services in the
PRC

REEREETEERNHE
03

Technology development,
consulting, promotion and
services in the PRC

RAEIRIIRES - B R
v

Technology development,
consulting, promotion and
services in the PRC

RAEIRIRS - B
v

Provision of fashion and beauty
related educational services
in the PRC

FAF BIR R i B R A R
BERE
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32.

33.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which
providing vocational education services, in the opinion of the
Company’s directors, principally affected the results or assets
of the Group.

Each of the subsidiaries is limited liability company and has
adopted 31 December, as their financial year end date.

None of the subsidiaries has issued any debt securities at the
end of the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The employees of the PRC subsidiaries are members of the
state-management retirement benefits scheme operated by
the PRC government. The Group is required to contribute
a specified percentage of payroll costs as determined by
respective local government authority to the retirement
benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is
to make the specified contribution under the scheme.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for all employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of trustees. The Group contributes a certain
percentage of the relevant payroll costs to the scheme, which
contribution is matched by the employees.

The amounts of contributions made by the Group in respect
of the retirement benefit schemes during both years are
disclosed in Notes 11 and 12.

32.

33.

For the year ended 31 December 2024
{ZE2024F 12 A31 BIEFE

FARNEEMBARNFEE

FREJNARAEERRIBZER
SENEENEE  REBEHER
BHARRBNHEAR o

EWB AR AERETARRER
12A31BEAEMBEEH LA -

WER - BEH B A T BIHE &
R -

BB E

B Y 2 m B0 B e B &
ERBERERHRRENEBIKE -
7 55 (B 78 5 5 B B SR B 3 00 TR A
188 1 X #9 £k 71 e 2R R AR ) 5T 81 4 1
Fo URENRT‘ES - AEEEH
BB E M ME— R T ERIER &
TR AR TE RN -

AEERMETEREEDZERHIE
RIEREHE - ZETEMEERAKE
MEEDRFER » LHBILEFEAL
HIESERE - AKEREBEXR
B THRRERFERAETAES L
K o

REBEBRF R ERAREHEERS
MRS BWEANFI1 12 ¢
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE2024F 12 A3 BILEE

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 34, BBRRRRAEDQEHE

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December

M12831H
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREBT T
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property and equipment EYS T 12 76
Deposit for rental HEZe 188 184
Loan to a subsidiary (note i) m— XKW B AR ENER
gz 310,000 310,000
310,200 310,260
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables TEAS FRIE Je oA FE W SR IE 370 362
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note i)  FEUHIE A 7] 7A (B wii) 176,999 151,929
Interest receivables JEYF B 22,413 30,321
Other financial assets measured at FVTPL AR R BE =Wt ABEEH
At eREE 388,007 352,446
Time deposits TEHRTF K 1,315,898 1,379,007
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREeEFEEY 189,728 449,695
2,093,415 2,363,760
Current liabilities nREAE
Other payables HE A ERIE 949 571
Amount due to a subsidiary (note i) JEASH B B8 2~ B 3R 3A (B i) 21,605 21,605
22,554 22,176
Net current assets REEEFE 2,070,861 2,341,584
Total assets less current liabilites ZEZABRRBERS 2,381,061 2,651,844
Capital and reserves B #iE
Share capital (Note 25) B&ZAR (MF5E25) 192 192
Reserves G 2,380,869 2,651,652
Total equity ERAE 2,381,061 2,651,844
Notes: MI5E -

The amount represented the loans to Anhui Xinhua Education,
which were unsecured and carried the fixed interest rates
ranged from 5% to 7% per annum. These loans will be

repayable in 2027.

China East Education Holdings Limited & FEIRAHBERER A A

ZHERE AT ERBRENE
o REEERIZEE FFEH%
BET7%FTE - ZEERKR20274F
8 -
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34.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

£2024F 12 A31 HILFE

34. PBMRRRRARQBHEE

Notes: (continued) MizE : (&)

i, The amounts were non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest- i, ZEFERFESHEE  EEA
free and repayable on demand. The maximum outstanding TEFERBEZEEREE - REE
balance during the year ended 31 December 2024 was 2024fF12ﬂ31 HIEFE  REEZ
RMB176,999,000 (31 December 2023: RMB151,929,000). 8RS A ARM176,999,000
The Group measured the loss allowance of amounts due 7t (202312 A31H 8 AR
from subsidiaries equal to 12m ECL. As there is no significant 151,929,0007T) » ANEE T2 FEU
increase in credit risk since initial recognition and those B8 A B IE R B R R EER 1218
subsidiaries are of good credit records, which also maintain ABHEEEE - AR 5 B RHER
good cashflow, the management of the Group were of the LASR A= B [ B 3 4% K 0@ 38 hn B 5% 5%
opinion that the impairment loss was insignificant and no loss MEB R ASRFEERE - T4
allowance was provided. FRBORESR  BAKEEERE

RARE B BT E 0 R E TR
iR -

i. ~ The amount was due to Anhui Xinhua Education, non-trade in ii. ZHRTEMN T REHERE A
nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. IFESMUE  EIKA - THERA

Movement in the Company’s reserves NN E A

(Accumulate
Share-based losses)/
Share payments Retained
premium reserve profits Total
y AR AL A (?Eﬂgﬂé)/ \
RVHE B3 R BRRR Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT
As at 1 January 2023 R2023F1A1H 2,823,093 237,650 (144,867) 2,915,876
Profit and total comprehensive FRENREENELE
income for the year = - 92,893 92,893
Recognition of equity-settled share-  #ERIAEZ EE R
based payments (Note 26) %+ (Fit3E26) - 32,993 = 32,993
Issue of new shares upon exercise  FfTEE R R 1T
of share options iR 11,967 (7,185) - 4,782
Transfer of share option reserve IRNER RN SR
upon forfeiture of share options iR - (2,689) 2,689 -

Dividend distribution (Note 13) RS (MEE13)

(394,892) - - (394,892

As at 31 December 2023 202312 A31H 2,440,168 260,769 (49,285) 2,651,662

Profit and total comprehensive FRENR2EREEHE

income for the year = = 99,912 99,912

Recognition of equity-settled PR R A E RS

share-based payments (Note 26) 3/~ (Fff5F26) = 25,100 - 25,100
lssue of new shares upon exercise  TAfT(EIBRRER 1T

of share options ARin 703 (418) = 285
Dividend distribution (Note 13) BBk (7E13) (396,080) - - (396,080)
As at 31 December 2024 202412 A31H 2,044,791 285,451 50,627 2,380,869
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
(= 2024F 12 A31 BIEFE

35. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 12 November 2024, Anhui Xinhua Education entered into
the sale and purchase agreement with Shanxi Enlightenment
Wisdom Education Consulting Center (LA EEHE
FRFALY) and Pu Xiaohu (EEEFR) (collectively referred to
as the “Transferors”), and Shanxi Xinzhi Huake Education
Management Co., Ltd. (ILAFERERHEEEEBR A
7l), Shanxi Metallurgical Technician College (LL7H/A %
BZPt) and Taiyuan Juxian High-Tech Development Co.,
Ltd. (RKRBE=EHHE AR AF]) (collectively referred to
as the “Target Group”), pursuant to which Anhui Xinhua
Education agreed to acquire the entire equity interests of the
Target Group from the Transferors for an aggregate cash
consideration of RMB10,000,000 (the “Acquisition”).

Other than the cash consideration paid, the Group also
provided RMB15,350,000 to support the daily operation of
the Target Group prior to the completion of the Acquisition.

Certain precedent conditions of the Acquisition, including the
transferring of equity interest and the change of the board of
directors and the legal representative of the Target Group,
were completed in January 2025, so the Acquisition was
considered to be completed in January 2025. The Acquisition
has been accounted for as acquisition of business using the
acquisition method.

Details of the purchase consideration are as follow:

Cash consideration paid BRERE
Other receivables E b el IR
Total FEE

China East Education Holdings Limited & FEIRAHBERER A A

35.

BREHREE

1R2024F11 8128 » ZHFEHRE
B PR SREEME A0 &
R(GBAEZSEREA] - URILA
MBENSEEEARAT - LR
SRMSBREARZESREARSE
RAR (BRI BEEE)IILER
ek - Bt - R EHERERZ
FEZANEEIREELIRE &
ReREAARE10,000,0007T (47
B=EgE]) -

BREMRESREIN  NEETREA
R #15,350,0007T * AXFEIZEE
RUEEEIRSERCRTA) B & &E o

W EIEME T RGN - BIERE
BERAEEENESEREAREK
BE - BR2025%F 1 B - KR
EIEFAR BN2025%1 A 52K - Ui
FHOFRKRBEEAEBKEA
EE o

BEREHBWT -

RMB’000
ARET T

10,000
15,350

25,350
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HZE20245F12 A31 ALLEE

35. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (continuead) 35. MEBRFBIE(E

The assets and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition AU EEN I B BARRNEE K
as a result of the Acquisition are as follow: BENT :
Fair value
AREE
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Property and equipment L EYNE 91,263
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17,108
Inventories wE8 68
Trade and other receivables and prepayments & 5 M H b E U ZIB M IB 0B 6,944
Cash and cash equivalents Be MREeEEY 4,487
Trade and other payables B 5 R E M FIE (70,547)
Contract liabilities EHaE (3,597)
Deferred income RIEUA (14,469)
Deferred tax liabilities EIEFIEAE (6,568)
Net identified assets acquired B R B ESE 24,689
Add: Goodwill (note) on e () 661
25,350
Net cash outflows arising on the Acquisition are as follow: WWEEETBEA MRS R EFREN T -
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Cash consideration paid BIRERE 10,000
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired W ERRRE RREEEY (4,487)
5,513
Note: The directors of the Company engaged an independent valuer iz ARBESCEBBLGERMG
to assist in performing the valuation of the identified assets MY EEEERKEEETKA
and liabilities of the Target Group at the completion date of HMa B EERBEETH
the Acquisition. Based on which, the Group performed a B - Kt - AEEHKEEEY
purchase price allocation for the Acquisition, which resulted THEESE  SREANER
in recognition of goodwill amounted to approximately # AR #661,0007T °
RMB661,000.
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Five-year Financial Information & § 8 #% & 8l

A summary of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and of REBEZER AT BFENFEBRR
the consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five Mz BEERAGBHESRSAT
financial years is as set out below:

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss LEBERRE

Year ended 31 December

HE12A31ALEE
Audited
RERZ
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
20245 20234 20224 20214 20204
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)

(AE®TR) (AR®TT) (ARETT) ARETT) (ARETD

Revenue WA 4,116,185 3,978,654 3,819,022 4,139,700 3,648,892
Profit before income tax BRTS B AR R 654,417 368,009 498,022 468,777 443,748
Income tax expense FEmBEX (141,821) (95,387) (130,495) (166,611) (186,134)
Profit and total E A R 2 md S

comprehensive income B 512,596 272,622 367,527 302,166 257,614
Consolidated Assets and Liabilities REEERERE

As at 31 December

MW12831H

Audited

RER
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
2024 20234 20224 20214 20204
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)

(AE®TR) (AR®TT) (ARETT) ARETT) (ARETL

Total assets WEE 0,484,178 9,291,133 0,488,677 9,648,065 9,821,294
Total liabilities maE (3,734,714) (3,683,570) (3,796,619) (3,917,310)  (3,781,256)
Net assets BEFE 5,749,464 5,607,563 5,692,058 5,730,755 6,040,038
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